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fees and disburzements, of, or incidental to, this Assignment or in any way relating to the
enforcement, profection or preservation of the rights or remedies of Lender under this
Assignment or any other Loan Document,

(f)  Notices. Any notice, cloction, request or demand which by any provision of this
Assigament is required or permitted to be given or served hercunder shall be in the manner
required for the delivery of nottees pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

(&) Entine Agreement. This Assigument ang the Loan Documents constjtute the
catire and final apréement between Borrower and Lender with respect to the subject matter
hercof and may only bo changed, amended, modified. or waived by an instrument in wriking
sipned by Bomower and Lender.

() ) No Wajver. No waiver of eny temm or condition of this Assignment, whtether by
delay, omission or otherwise, shall bo effective unless in writing and signed by the party sought

@) .- . Suv - This Assignment shal] be binding upen and inure to the
benefit of Borrower and Lender and their respeclive succassors and permitted nesipns,

()  Caplions. An paragraph, section, exhibit and schedulc headings and eaptiona
hercin are used for reference only and in no way limit or describe the Scope orinfent of, or in any
way affect, this Assignment, - Y

(3 Seversbility. The provisions of this Assignment aro severable, und if any one
clause or provisicn hereof shall be held invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, thea such

1082;
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mval:dity or uncufomeebﬂty sha]l affect only such clause or pIOVISIOD, ar part thereof, and not
any other clause or provision of this Assignment.

: () GOVERNING LAW. ° THIS ASSIGNMENT AND THE OBLIGATIONS
ARISING HEREUNDER SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD
TO CHOICE OF LAW RULES APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS MADE AND PERFORMED
IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK AND ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OF THE UNITED
STATES ‘OF AMERICA, EXCEPT THAT AT ALL TIMES THE PROVISIONS FOR THE
. CREATION, PERFECTION. AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE LIENS AND SECURITY
INTERESTS, THE ASSIGNMENT OF-LEASES, RENTS, AND SECURITY DEPOSITS:
CREATED OR PROVIDED HEREIN AND COMPLIANCE OF THE PROPERTY AND THE
PROPOSED CONDOMINIUM WITH LAWS, RULES REGULATIONS AND ORDINANCES
OF STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL BODIES SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE
LAWS .OF THE STATE'OR, IF APPLICABLE, THE MUNICIPALITY, IN WHICH THE
PROPERTY" IS LOCATED. BORROWER AGREES THAT ANY SUIT FOR THE
ENFORCEMENT OF THIS ASSIGNMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT MAY BE
BROUGHT IN THE COURTS OF THE. STATE OF NEW YORK OR ANY FEDERAL
COURT SITTING THEREIN.AND CQNSENTS TO THE NONEXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION
OF SUCH-COURT AND THE SERVICE OF PROCESS IN ANY SUCH SUIT BEING MADE
‘UPON BORROWER IN THE MANNER AND AT THE ADDRESS SPECIFIED -FOR
NOTICES IN THE SECURITY INSTRUMENT. BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES ANY
OBJECTION THAT IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE TO THE VENUE OF ANY.
SUCH ,SUIT, OR ANY SUCH COURT OR THAT SUCH surr IS BROUGHT IN AN.
- INCONVENIENT COURT.

(m) JQE :!E& WAIVER. BORROWER AND AILPERSONS CLAIIWNG BY,
"I'HROUGH ‘OR'UNDER IT, HEREBY EXPRESSLY; KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND
]N'IENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM,

DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION (D) ARISING UNDER ‘THIS ASSIGNMENT,

'mcr,unme WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY, PRESENT OR FUTURE MODIFICATION
THEREGF OR (D) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WifH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL
- TO'THE BEALINGS OF THE PARTIES HERETO OR ANY OF THEM WITH RESPECT TO
THIS ' ASSIGNMENT (AS NOW OR HEREAFTER MODIFIED) OR ANY OTHER
INSTRUMENT, DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENE EXECUTED OR DELIVERED IN
CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED HERETO OR

THERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER SUCH CLAMM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE’

OF AC'I‘ION IS. NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING, AND. ‘WHETHER
SOUNDING IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE; AND BORROWER HEREBY
AGREES.AND CONSENTS THAT AN ORIGINAL COUNTERPART OR A COPY OF THIS
SECTION, MAY BE FILED WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN -EVIDENCE QF THE
CONSENT HERETO TO THE WAIVER OF ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL' BY JURY,
BORROWER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS CONSULTED WITH LEGAL COUNSEL
REGARDING THE MEANING OF THIS WAIVER AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS
WAIVER IS AN ESSENTIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE MAKING OF THE LOAN. THIS
WAIVER SHALL SURVIVE THE REPAYMENT OF THE LOAN.

1083a , . TOB-EF-00008455
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() (3 Taima on. ions. Bomower hereby expressly and unconditionally
waives, in conncotion with any suit, action or proceeding brought by Lender on this Assignment,

(Remainder of Page Intentionally Loft Blank)

10843

TOB-EF-00008456
kY



- fe

(4293391014 Page: 10of 16

© IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has duly executed thiz Assignment of Leases,
Rents, and Security Deposits as of the date first hereinabove written,

BORROWER:

401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE LLC, a-~
Delaware limjted liability company

Titte: Predicnt

Assignment of Lease Excention

1085a ) . .
i TOB-EF-00008457 .



&)

0429339101 Page: 11 ol 16

STATEQF_ %), fi )
) ss:
COUNTY OF 2,¢ )

L Livia Bowoss/ » 2 Notary Public in and for and residing in said County and
State, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT XYE PREStDewT - of 401 NORTH WABASH

VENTURE LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, petsonally known to me to be the same

person  whose name is  subscribed to  the foregoing  Instrument
TodMD Ty TRALALL  appeared before me this i

he/she signed and detivered said instrument as his/her own free and voluntary acts and as the free
and voluntary act of said limited [sability company.

GIVEN under my hand and notagial seal this 12 day of Ocipber, 2004,

My Commission Expires:

Assipnment of Lease Exeeution

* e rripan B et ettt e s & ot .
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Deseription
PARCEL I: '

A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING: AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST
NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27,.1955;

THENCE SOUTH, 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STRERT AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE
OF SAID PARCEL 17 ADISTANCB OF 272.18 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINTFTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A FOINT; -

THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 51 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE OF
3.97 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST
A DISTANCE OF 43.72 ¥EET;

THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES Sl MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 43.85 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST; A DISTANCE
OF 32.82 FEET; '

THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A DISTANCE OF
32.53 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE '

OF 51.47 FEET;

. THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 53 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF
2,033 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 42.61 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 44.057 FEET;

A-l

10872 ! i TOB-EF-00008459



0429339101 Page: 13 of 16

THENCE SOUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, A'DISTANCE
OF 24.308 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 116.60 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 34.47 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 105.06 FEET; ’

THENCE SOUTH 39 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 46.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO
RIVER;

OF 100.55 ¥FEET ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER TO
A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET; )

THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 104.51 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STRE&T TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK. COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PARCEL 2:

-

COMMENGING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST

NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955;

THENCE SOUTH 78 DE‘GR.EES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTH -

LINE OF BEAST NORTH WATER STREET, SAID SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
BEING ALSO THE NORTH LINE OF A PARCEL OF LAND DENOTED AS

A2
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PARCEL 17 IN AN ORDINANCE "PROVIDING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
BRIDGE ACROSS THE MAIN BRANCH OF THE CHICAGO RIVER AT NORTH
WABASH AVENUE" PASSED BY THE CHICAGO CITY COUNCIL JULY 29, 1930, A
DISTANCE OF 213.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING FOR THE PARCEL OF
LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 58,74 FEET TO

THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID POINT BEING ALSO -

THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET WITH THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH

AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGRBES 10 NHNUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH AVENUE, SAID

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ALSO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE .

OF AFORESATID PARCEL 17, A DISTANCE OF 22,62 FEET TQ A POINT;

THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 18.45 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE NORTHERLY NORTHEASTERLY, EASTERLY AND SOUTHEASTERLY
ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCLE WHICH HAS A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, A CHORD OF
94.53 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 64 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 45

SECONDS EAST, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.85 FEET TO 'I'HB POINT OF BEGINNING,. |

lN COOK COUN'I'Y ILLINOIS.
PARCEL 3:

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS IN FAYOR. OF PARCELS 1 AND 2, AS GRANTED IN -

THAT CERTAIN ORDINANCEBY THE CITY OF CHICAGO APPROVED SEPTEMBER 1,
2004 AS PUBLISHED IN JOURNAL PAGES 30411 TO 30458, BOTH INCLUSIVE, FOR
THE IMPROVEMENT,. USE AND MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC WAYS, TO IMPROVE,
MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, USE AND OCCUPY FOR PEDESTRIAN PURPOSES;
. ANDNOT VEHICULAR PURPOSES, THE FOLLOWING TRACTS OF LAND:

A) NORTH WATER STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

ALL THE LAND, SPACE AND IMPROVEMENIS, AS DESCRIBED N SAID .
ORDINANCE, LYING. ABOVE A HORIZONTAL PLANE HAVING AN ELEVATION ['OF

-22.00. FEET ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM AND WITHIN THE VERTICAL

PROJECTION -OF THE BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, -
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, -
COMPRISING PARTS OF WATER LOTS 16:AND 17 AND A PORTION OF EAST NORTH.

. WATER STREET, NORTH RUSH STREET, ORIGINAL EAST XINZIE: STREET AND
PART OF LOT i4 IN BLOCK 2 IN KINZIE'S ADDITION, WHICH TRACT OF LAND IS

A3
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MORE PARTICULARLY BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT
THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH. LINB OF BAST NORTH WATER
STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS.ESTABLISHED BY
ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955;

THENCE SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THB SOUTH
LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE op
PARCEL 17 AS ESTABLISHED IN AN ORDINANCE "PROVIDING FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A BRIDGE ACROSS, THE MAIN BRANCH OF THE CHICAGO
RIVER AT NORTH WABASH AVENUE" PASSED BY-THE CHICAGO CITY COUNCIL
JULY 29, 1930, A DISTANCE OF 21334 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE

MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.85 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES (01 MINUTE 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 29.24 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 51

SOUTH 67 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST ALONG A. STRAIGHT LINE, A
DISTANCE OF 59.14 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 39

A
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SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES
18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET,
A DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING," IN COOK. COUNTY,
TLLINOIS.

(B) NORTH RUSH STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

ALL THE LAND, SPACE-AND IMPROVEMENTS, AS DESCRIBED IN-SAID
ORDINANCE, LYING BELOW A HORIZONTAL PLANB-WHICH IS 22.00 FEET ABOVE
THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM, AND WITHIN THE VERTICAL PROJECTION OF THE
BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH,
RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BEING THAT PART OF
NORTH RUSH STREET BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT
THE POINT 'OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY
ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955: THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00
SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET .
HEXTENDED,'A DISTANCE OF 52.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES
00 MINUTES: 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 67.16
FEET, TO A: POINT; THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST
ALONG-A STRAIGHT LINE; A DISTANCE OF 13.93 FEET TO A POINT ON THE BAST '
LINE OF NORTHRUSH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 |
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A PISTANCE
OF23.40 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 54 SECONDS
. WEST-ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 59.14 FEET TQ A POINT; THENCE
SOUTH 62 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A
DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH RUSH
STREET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES" 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST-ALONG SAID
" WEST LINE 'OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO THE POINT
OFr BEG:NNNG m COOK: COUNTY ILENOIS.

10%1la

i TOB-EF-00008463 -



5 5225749020 67

UCC FINANCING STATEMENT

FOLLOW STRUCTIONS {iront and Bach) CARERKLY
A NAME & PHONE OF CONTAGT AT FILER foptoned

8. EEND ACKNOVW EDGMENT T0: (Hame snd Address)

— .

——

L

1
4

[T

1. DEBTOR'S EACT FULL LEGAL SAME!  buaerl wrdy 3 Soior narna (La wr 0} - 6 rot abeTvialy
[V SRR TS Foang

L

Doc#: 0428330102

Evgens "Qone= Moore Fes: g42.00
Ocokt:ounlynmduol’

Data: 101102004 01:42 pag Pg: 10110

MMHAGEIFDRMOQWW!M‘V

oA

401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE LLC
[ oAU N A R

C/O THE TRUMP ORGANIZATION, * UsA
1t BEE MG THUCROHS [ OF TR & F7in RANALKI B, § ey

coaToR | LLC. | DELAWARE 1 Mo
2. ADDIMORAL, DEBTOR'S mcrnummm.hmmnm-mmum-nmm

amu‘gr.m . ] 0]
O OO o T TR TR T a7
B, MR AR 53 VAT RO e
54 T TE mmﬁm:—ﬁtmémnw'—
L ! 1 . o

‘ITRE{I’W TR

3 x i TATE TAL - SRTRY

— 1251 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, ** NEW YORK NY ‘I 10020 USA
4.mmuumtnm£urm-nue-g—u-¢ . -

SEE EXHIBIT A WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO, WHICH IS MADE A PART HEREOF.

T, ALTEANATIVE DETICHATION

LESSZEArTIOR uex‘ UNG
. A Dotiory

"B, OPTICHAL FREN REFECNGE DATA -

{LLINGIS, COOK COUNTY 424407
Fmomcecow—mmuocnﬂmasmmmfmmlmwmu] )

e .. - —
oo ]
92a
10 TOB-EF-00008464

A%

PQ



0429339102 Page: 2 of 10

UGC FINANCING STATEMENTADDENDUM
FoLLOW snd back) CARFLLY

0, MAME OF FIRST DEBTOR (1a ar b ON REI.MEDF!W!C‘HGGTA‘I‘EHEHT
e ORGANIZATIONS MAME

401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE LLC

T HORVIDUALTS LABT MAME FIRET NAME WMDGLE HALIE A FIx|

oA

"A0.MSCELLANEOUS:
* 725 FIFTH AVENUE

“* 16TH FLOOR

THE ADOVE SPACE 15 FOR FILING OFFICE U E ORLY

wberevemr,
41, ADDITIONAL DEBTOR'S EXAGT FLLL LEGAL RAME < Insat o (112 0¢ 115} » B4 A0t sbieavionn of combing senksd

Y T
T4, HAUNO ADCRERS B v "_ B Sl‘T-Y (7517 GO0, COUNTIY T
TS RTINS [FOOLRTONE [V Iw e OF GROAINTION  JTLIURCOICTIONOF GREATEEATION T OROARCATIONA, 10 & oy
QRGANGATION .
_ loesror "¢ . i ) o
12,1 | AcomofinL SECURED PARTY'S or | | ABSIGNOR B/P'S NAME s eetomy g masve f122 o 138 T

120, ORGANIATIONT HAME

u.mmmmmnsucmm[]mnuuwﬂ esrincipd 1g. AdStnel colielersd fascrippar:
Muhu L] E Tuliarn Mg . .
kLA Dﬂbﬂmdf-lod-l: .
SEEEXHIBITB A'ITACHED HERETO,
— WHICH IS MADE A PART HEREOF,

10, Hame ang scdees of w RECORD CWHER o sbave-dracrbed fusl asivie
* (i Dalriey chosn nat herve 3 Fecond knlarsers N

Ts Cruch iy ¥ applontin s chask. cofy o0 bes

T, Chuch pui I nppicaible prod Ciath S0k i bus,

Dvbami & TANWITTHG LTILTY

risdn witsa Hom e Ty 30 powrs
s 8ot i citrecten ot Pyt ey Yrammcion — wiecive 3 phace i

mup! ITn-t an !mmmmummhm r! !D-ﬂll-ﬂﬁll!

FILING OFFICE COPY — HATIONAL LG FmﬂATﬂlENTADﬂEMW (FORMUGCCTAL) (REV. D7/20000)

1093a !

AT gy

R
TOB-EF-00008465




.l

.‘:

€

e

k-"

[}

0425339102 Pago: 3 of 10

EXHIBIT A TO UCC FINANCING STATEMENT

| Debtor: S‘;ecnred Party:
401 North Wabash Venture L1.C Fortress Credit Corp,
¢/o The. Trump Organization 1251 Avenue of the Americas

725 Fifth Avenue . 16™ Floor

New York, New York 10022 New York, New York 10020

DESCRIFTION OF COLLATERAL

All of Debtor’s estate, right, title and interest now owned or hereafter acquired in, to and
under any and all the property (rollectively, the*Property”) described below:

(1) the Land;

{(2)  -all additional lands, estates and developmenl riglits hereafter acquired by Debtor
for use in connection with the Land and all additional Jends ond estates thereint which myy, from
time to time, by supplemental security instriment or otherwise, be expressly made subject to the
lien of the Security Instrument; .

(3)  all of Debtors right, tille and interest in and to the buildings, foundations, strue-
tures, improvements and fixtures now or hereafter located or crected on the Land (the “Im-
provements”); :

4)  all of Debtor's right, title and interest in and to (i).all-streets, avenues, roads, al-
leys, passages, Pplaces, sidewalks, strips and gores of Jand and ways, existing or proposed, public
or private, adjsceat to.the Land, and all Feversionary rights with respect to the vacation. of said
streets, avenues, roads, alleys, passages, places, sidewalks and ways in the Tand lying thereunder:
(i) all air, Lipht, Iateral. support, development, drainsge, oil, gas and mincral rights, options to
purchase or lerse, waters, water courses pnd tiparian rights now or hereafier pexinining to or used
in connection with the Land and/or the Improvements; (jii) all and singular, the tenements, ho-
reditaments, riphts of* way, casements, appendages and appurtenances and property now or here-
after belonging or in any Way appertaining to the Land and/or the Improvements; rad (iv) all es-
tate, right, title, .claim or demand whatsoever, cither at Taw or in-equity, in possession or cxpee-
tancy, of, in and (o the Land and/or the Improvements (collectively, the “Appurienances” and
together with the Land and the Improvements, the “Real Property”); .

{5)  all of Debtor's right, title and interest in and to the machinery, appliances, appara-
tus, equipment; fittinga, fixtures, materials, agticles of perconal praperty and goods of every kind
aod nature whatsoever used in connéction with the Real Property and all additions to and rencw-
ala and replucements thereof, md-all substitutions therefor, now or hereafier affixed to, attached
to, placed upon or located upon or in the Real Propesty, or any part thercof, and used in connec-
tion with the USE, owneérship, management, maintenance, enjoyment or operation of the Property
in any.present or future occupancy or use thereof and now owned or leased or hezcafter owned or
lcased by Debtor, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all heating,

tighting, lnundry, cooking, incinerating, loading, unloading and power cquipment, boilers, dy,

MI!M%S“WM-W
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namos, engines, pipes, pumps, tanks, motors, conduits, switchboards, plumbing, lifling, cIcamng,
fire prevention, fire extinguishing, refrigerating, ventilating and communications apparatus, air
cooling and afr conditioning apparatus, building materials and equipment, clevators, escalators,
ca:pdmg. shades, draperics, awnings, soreens, doors and windows, blinds, ‘fomishings (other
than equipment and personal propc:ty of tenanis or guests of the Real Property, or any part
thereof); -

(6) - all of Debtor's right, title and intexest as lessor or Ficensor, as the case may be, in,
to and under all leases, subleases, underlettings, concession agreements and leenses of the Real
Praperty or any part thereof, now existing or hercafter enfered into by Debtor (collectively,
“Leases”) including, without limitation, any cash and other cecurities deposited thereimder, the
grant of stich cash and sccurities hereunder bemg expressly subject to the provuio::s of the appli<
cable Leases and all of Debtor’s right, fitle and interest, subject to the provisions of Section § to
tho Sccurity Instrument, in the xight to recéive and collect the revenues, incomo, rents, issues,
profits, royaltics and other benefits payable under any of the Leascs (colloctwely, “Rents™) and
all reveniies, income, reats, issues and profits otherwise erising from the use or enjoyment of alt
or any. portion of | the Real Propesty;

(D . all-of Débtor's right, title and interest in and to all proceeds, Judgments, cl:ims
compensation, awards or payments herenfier made to Debtor for the taking, whether permancnt
or temporary, by condemnation, eminent domain, or for any conyeyance made in lien of such
taking, of the.whole or any part of the Real Property, including, without limitation, all procecds,
judgments, ¢laims, compcnsahon awards or paymmts for changes of grade of streets or any other
injury to or decrease in the value of the Real Property, whether direct or consequential, whxch
awards and payments arc hereby assigned to Secured Party;

(8) - allof Deﬁtor’s right, title and interestin and to all mmeamed prctmums pa:d under )

'msm‘ance‘pohcles now or hereafier obtained by Debtor to the extent the same insure the Real
* "Properly and dny other insurance polmcs required 10 be maintained pursuant to the Loan
‘-Agmcmmt to ihe cxtent the same insure the Property or otherwise relate thereto, hcluding,
. without' hmilatmu, he.bility insurance policies and Deblor’s interest In and to #)f proceeds of the
sonversion and ific intercst payable thereon, . voluntary or involuatary, of the Real Property, or
 “any part thcreof. into caih or liquidated claims including, without limitation, proceeds of casualty
insuranee, title insurance or any other insurance maintained on or withrxespect to the Real Prop-
ety (olhcr lhan Liability insurance);

(9) atl right, title and intercst of Debtor ifvand to all cxtensions, improvenients, bet-
terments, renewals, substitutes and replacements of), and all additions and Appurtenances to, the
' Yand, hereaftet acquired by or released to Debtor or constnicted, assembled or placed by Debtor
onthe Land, and all oomrcmons of the security constituted thereby; ’

" €10) - all of Debtor's right, title and interest I, to and under, to the extent the same may

bc mcmnbcred or-assigned by Débtor pussuant to the terms thercof without ocoumrence of & -

bicach or default thereunder and without impairment of the validity or enforceability thereof and
to the exterit pesmitted by applicable law, () any and alf contracts and agreements relating to the
- ‘Real Property (other than the Leiscs), and other docinnents, books and records related to the
owneiship and operation of the Real Pmputy, including, without Hmitation- all Material Agreo-

A-2
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ments (as defined in the Loan Agreement); (ii) to the extent permitted by law, all Licenses {nz
defined in the Loan Agreement), werranties, guaranties, building pennits and govemment ap-
provals relating to or roquired for the construction, completion, occupancy and operation of the

(11} to the extent the same may be encumbered or sssigned by Debtor pursuant to thes
terms thercof and to the extent pemmitted by Jaw, all of Debtor’s right, title ang interest in, to and
under docwsnents, instruments, and general intangibles, a5 the foregoing terms are defined in the
Uniform Conimercia) Code as in effect in the State in which the Rezl Property iz located (the
*UCC™), and eredit eard receivables and €34rows, in any cese which now or hereafier relate to,
are derived from, or are used in connection with the Reat Property, and all contract rights, fran-
chiscs, books, records, plans, specifications, Licenses, sctfons and caues of action which now or
hereafier relate to, are derjved from or used in connection with the Real Property or the use, op~
cration, majntenance, occupancy or enjoyment thercof or the conduct of any husiness or activi-

(12)  all of Debtor's right, title and interest in a)] proceeds, both cash and noncash, of
the foregoing which may be sold or otherwise be disposed of Pursuarii to the fenms hereof} and

(13) al right, title and interest of Debtor as declarnt and/or developer under any existing
ture condominium documents, or master association or comnnumity association documents
with respect to tthmpmyornny portion thereof,

Deﬁniﬁong.

“Land"™ Shall mean the real Pproperty described on Exhibit B attached hereto and hereby
made a part hereof , :

“Loan Apreement™; Shall mean that certain Loan and Sccurity Agreement, dated ag of
the date of the Sceurity Instrument (as the same may be amended , supplemented, replaced or
otherwise modificd from time to time), between the Secured Party and the Debtor, . .

“Security Instrument™ Shal] shall mean that cextain Morigage, Secutlty Agreement,
Financing Statement, Fixture Filing and Assignment of Leases, Reats and Security Deposits,
dated as of October [, 2004 (a3 amended, supplemented, replaced or otherwise modified from
timeto time), by the Debtor in favor of the Secured Party, .

A-3
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EXHIBIT B

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

" PARCEL1:

A TRACT OF LAND ¥ SECTION 10, TOWNSEIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUIH LINE OF EAST
NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955; .

THENCE SOUTH, 78 DEGRERS 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE -

SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE
OF SAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 272.18 FERT; :

THENGE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A POINT;-

THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 51 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE OF
3.97 FEET TO A POINT;

| THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST,
A DISTANCE OF 43.72 FEET; ‘

THENGE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE .

OF 43.85 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST; A DISTANCE
OF 32.82 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 46 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A DISTANCE OF
32.53 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 51.47 FEET; . C

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 53 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF
2.033 FEET; : :

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 42.61 FEET; : S -

THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE,
OF 44.057 FEET; .

B-1
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IN WITNESS

of HL&:‘ 22, .

ANtUfey

20627217

WHERFEOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum as of this day

CST Member, LLC, a Delaware limited liabifity
company

By: Chicago Sun- Times Inc., a Delaware
corporation, the Sole Member

o

Name: Mark Kipais
Tts:  Vice President

CHICAGO SUN-TI\IES. IXC., a Délaware
corporation

By: M: zZe .
Name: "Mazk Kipnis

Jts: Vu:c President

TRUMP CHICAGO MA.;\AG];‘\G MI‘:‘.\IBER
LLC, a Qelaware limited liability company

Name: tld J. v
It Sole Member
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STATEOF NM\’«J(K )

} S8, -
coutyor_ oo
1, }_&e(ed g’ghi'_-\ E, a Nofary blicinandfors:id(.‘onm_\'ind;cSlarc
aloresaid, do hereby certify that &%;_

" » of
GST Member LIC, » limited liability company, lty kntown 1o me t be the same persan
whose name is subseribeg to the foregoing instrument as such respective officer, appeared before
me this day in person apd acknowledged that he signed and delivered sech instrumeny a5 hic own

in and for said County in the Sm:c_

, of
to me 10 be tie same Person whose
Tespective officer, appeared before me
[ insttument 2z his own
oluntary act of said corporation, for the uses and

GIVEN under my hand and notarial sea] thi wfllayof .20__6.
Notary'Pubiie
My Commission cXpires: .
h———-——‘___‘n:m:inn ‘i:" 'su-dun\‘a:t
Ma’&-mu%@'
2038y
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STATE OF ) :

: )SS.
COUNTY OF 1“ D L)

L _\QM ){dﬂ | M" , & Notary Public in and for said County in the State
aforesaid, do hereby cestify that _ 1) Y : of

Trumyp Chicago Managing Member LLC, a limited liability company, personally known 1o me to
be the same person whose name s subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such respective
omunqwaudbdheme&k&wﬁqmmmmﬁadmmﬂwgdmmheﬁgwdmuddeﬂ
such.instument a5 his own free and Voluntary acts and as the free and voluntary act of said
company, for the uses and purposes set fosth therein, :

GIVEN unde my hand and notarial scal thi

1105a
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Date: 10v1072004 O1: 43PM Pg: 1or13

£1HIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY
AND SHOULD BE RETURNED TO;

" Marizn P. Wexler, Esq..

Skndden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP
333 W, WackerDrive
Chicapo; Illinais 60606

MEMORANDUM o:r OPTION

.. THIS MEMORANDUM OF OPTION is made as'of the’_}5_ day of October,
2004, by and among 401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE LLC, a Delaware limited
Jlublhw company (the "Land Company®), 401 MRZZ VENTURE LLC, a Delaware
limited Hability company (the "Mezzamne Compariy," and collectively with the Land

" Company and togcther with their respective successots and-assighs, the "Company™),

cach having an office-c/o The Trump Orgenization, 725 Fifth Avenue, New York,
Now . York 10022; and FORTRESS CREDIT CORP., a Dclaw:m:_ cofporation
(tdgcmcr with its sicoessors and assigns, "Forfress"), ha.wng an address at 1251
Avenuc of thc Ammms. 16* Floor, New York, New York 10020,

ACKGRO

WHER.'EAS the Land Company ‘is the record owncr of that certain real
pmpcrty locatéd in Caok County, INlinois and described on Exhibit A A attached hereto,
and made a part hercof (the *Property™);

" WHEREAS, Land Company and Fortress have entered into that certain Loan
and Security. Agreemént dated as of the date hereof (as the swne may be amended,
eplaced, supplemented or otherwise inodified from time 1o timo, the "Land Loan
Agreement”), between Fordress, as lender, and the Land Company, as borrower,
whereby Fortress made a loan to the Land Company in the principal amount of

$104,000,000 (the "Land Loin"), which Land Loan is secured by, inter alig, that -

certain Mortgage, Sccwrity Agreement, Financing Statement, Fixture Filing and
Assignment of Leases, Rents and Security Deposits, dated as of the date: hereof,
encumbering the Property;

- e ————— e e [ U——— IV P 44
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E ‘THENCE SOUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 24.308 FEET:; )
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 116.60 FEET:

THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 34,47 FEET; T .

THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 105,06 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 29 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 46.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCK. LINE OF THE CHICAGO
RIVER;

THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 104.51 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK. COUNTY, ILLINOIS,

PARCEL 2:

COMMENCING AT THE FOINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SQUTH LINE OF EAST
NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MA¥27. 1955; . .

CUIEDLLON g0 Sorver 1A - MSW

I
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PARCEL 17 IN AN ORDINANCE *PROVIDING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
BRIDGE ACROSS THE MAIN BRANCH OF THE CHICAGO RIVER AT NORTH
WABASH AVENUE®* PASSED BY THE CHICAGO CITY COUNCIL JULY 29, 1930, A
DISTANCE OF 213,34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING FOR THE PARCEL OF

LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG .

THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 58.74 FEET TO
THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID POINT BEING ALSO
THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET WITH THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH

AVENUE;
THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH AVENUE, SAID"

SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ALSO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE
OF AFORBSA]D PARCBL 17, ADISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG A S’I’RAJGHT
. LINE, ADISTANCB OF 18.45 FEET TO A POINT;

'IHENCB NORTHERLY,, NORT.‘HEASTERLY EASTERLY AND SOUTHEASTERLY
ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCLE WHICH HAS A RADIUS OF 50.00 FEET, A CHORD OF
94,53 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 64 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 45
SECONDS EAST, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.85 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEG]NN]NG
. IN COOK COUNTY, IUL]NOIS

PARCEL 3

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS IN FAVOR OF PARCELS'1 AND 2, AS GRANTED IN

THAT. CERTAIN-ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CHICAGO APPROVED SEPTEMBER 1,

2004 AS PUBLISHED IN JOURNAL PAGES 30411 TO 30458, BOTH INCLUSIVE, FOR

THE IMPROVEMENT, USB AND MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC, WAYS, TO IMPROVE,

MAINTAIN; RE'P.A]R, REPLACE, USE AND OCCUPY FOR PEDESTRIAN PURPOSES,
AND NOT VEHICULAR PURPOSES, THE FOLLOWING TI'RACTS OFLAND: -

(A) " NORTH WATER STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT
ALL THE ‘LAND, SPACE AND IMPROVEMENTS, AS DESCRIBED IN. SAID'

_ ORDINANCE, LYING ABOVE A HORIZONTAL PLANE HAVING AN ELEVATION OF -
22,00 FEET ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM AND WITHIN THE VERTICAL

PROJECTION OF THE BOUNDARY LINE-OF A TRACT OF LAND"IN SECTION 10,
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MZERIDIAN
COMPRISING PARTS OF WATER LOTS 16 AND 17 AND A PORTION OF EAST NOR'IH
WATER STREET, NORTH.RUSH. STREET, ORIGINAL EAST KINZIB.STREET AND
PART OF LOT- 14INBIJOCK2]NK!NZIE'SADDH'ION WHICH TRACT OF LAND IS

B-3
A2AIED4-CHicngo Servor 1A -MEW
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THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF BAST =NOR'IH WATER
STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY

THENCE SQUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG TRE SOUTH
LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF

LINE OF NORTH RUSH STRERT, A DISTANCE OF 23.40 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
SQUTH 67 DEGREES 58 54 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A
DISTANCE OF 59.14 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 39

B4
AZAR04-Chicags Sorver A - MSW

]l
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SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES
18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET,
A DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY,

LLINOIS. .
(8) NORTH RUSH STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

ALL THB LAND, SPACE AND IMPROVEMENTS, AS DESCRIBED. IN SAID
ORDINANCE, LYING BELOW A HORIZONTAL PLANE WHICH IS 22.00 FEET ABOVE
THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM, AND WITHIN THE VERTICAL PROJECTION OF THE
BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH,
RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BEING THAT PARTOF .
NORTH RUSH STREET BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT
FHE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY
ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00
SECONDS EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREEY -
EXTENDED, A DISTANCE OF 52.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES
00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 67,16
FEET.TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST
ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 13.93 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST
LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES37.
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A DISTANCE
OF 23,40 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 54 SECONDS
WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 59,14 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
SOUTH 62 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A
DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH RUSH
STREET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. .

B-S
AJS 184 Chicago Sorver FA - MSW )
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WHEREAS, the Mezzanine Company is the sole owrner of the membership
interests of the Lapd Company, is an accommodation pledgor with respect to the
Land Loan and will be the borrower under the Mezzanine Loan (as defined below) to
the extent that the Option (as defined below) is exercised by Fortress;

WHEREAS, as a condition to making the Land Loan, Fortresg required and
the Company executed and delivered, that certain Option Agreement dated as of the
date hereof (a3 the same may be amended, replaced, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time, the "Qption Agreement™) for the bencfit of Fortress; and-

WHEREAS, Company and Fortress desire to record a Memorandum of
Option as herein set forth. ’

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound
hereby, for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and o

valunblo consideration, the reccipt and legal sufficiency of which are hereby

1. Option, The Company and Fortregy have entered into the Option
Agreement which granted 1o Fortress the right and option (the "Qpti

") to provide
new mezzanine finuncing (the "Mezzanine Y.0an") to be secured by, among other
things, a pledge by the Mezzanine Company of all of the meribership interests in the

2. Term. The Option M3y be exercised by Fortress from and after the
date the Exercise Condition (as defined in the Option Agreement) shall have been

satisfied though October 15, 2014 and otherwise in accordance with Section 5 of the
Option Agreement,

3. Counterparts. This Memorandum may be executed in counterparts,
and all such eéxecnted counterparts shal constitute the same agreement,
4, ecordin se On

- This Memorandum is made for recording
purposes only to give notice to all third parties of the Option in favor or Fortress,
This Memorandum shall ot be construed to amend or in any way modify the terms
of the Option Agreemeont, and in the event of any inconsistency between the terms of

[Signature Page Follows]
2

ther good and

———— s A rerm—ons A w4

" et m ..

e ——— o e
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties bercto have caused this Memorandum
of Option to be executed 23 of the day and year first above written.

LAND COMPANY

401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE
LLC, a Déluware limited liebility

e

MEZZANINE COMPANY

401 MEZZ VENTURE L1LC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By
Name;.
“ Title:

FORTRESS

FORTRESS CREDIT CORP., a
Delawaré corporation

By: . . ~
Name:,
Title: .

oL oanyTE

1109%9a
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum
of Option to be executed as of the day and year first above written. '

Y

LESEES & v e i e

LAND COMPANY
401 NORTH WABASH

LLC, aDelaware limited Liability
company

By:

Name:
Title:

MEZZANINE COMPANY

401 MEZZ VENTURE LLC,a
Delaware Jimited Hubility company

FORTRESS

FORTRESS CREDIT CORP., a
Delaware corporation

By:
. Name:
Title:

-TOB-EF-00008482
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum
of Option to be excecuted as of the day and year first above written.

1llla

LAND COMPANY
401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE

LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company

By:

Name:
Title;

MEZZANINE COMPANY

401 MEZZ VENTURELLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By:

Name:
Title:

FORTRESS

FORTRESS CREDIT CORP., a
Deleware corperation

By:

Namie: s-teve st
Title: mamAG-1ME BirEc oL,

AT emnna

' TOB-EF-00008483
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-STATE OF etlnle )

) ss.:

COUNTY OF (Qau-ﬂg&q’— )

of 401

dppeared before me thig day in person and
acknowledged that he/she signed and delivered said instrument as hisher own free and

voluntary acts and as'the free angd voluntary act of said I ility company,
GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal this (94 4 y 2004,

Notary Public

My SS10 Expices: NORMAL FOERDERER

NOTARY PUBLIC, Siate of New Yok

. No.mmw -
Qualifled in Naw York Coundy
Commlsaion Expiras Eopt, 30, 2005,

STATE OF )

) ss.;
COUNTY:-OF )

I, » 2 Notary Public in and for and residing in said
County and State, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
MEZZ LLC, a Delaware Limited: liability compmy; personally known to me
to be the same person whoge name is subscribed to the forcgoing instrument as such

appeared before me this day in perzon and acknowledged
that he/she signed and delivered said instrument as Lis/her own freg and volunlary acts

i iability company,
GIVEN untder my hand and notarial seal this day of October, 2004,

: . Notary Public
My Coramission Expires;

A ettt vt i 8 8

R L e S
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-STATE OF )
. .) 59,
COUNTY OF )
1 » & Notary Public in and for and residing in said

County and State, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT of 401
NORTH WABASH VENTURE LLC, a Delawaro [imited lisbility company, personally
"known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to-the foregoing instrument
as such ° appeared before me this day in person and
acknowledged that he/she signed and delivered said instrument as his/her own Fee and
voluntary acts and as the free and voluntary act of said limited liability company.,
GIVEN under my hand and notarinl seal this - day of October, 2004,

Notary Public
My Commission Expires;

STATE OF Qo5 S )
. )y 8s.:

COUNTY OF Mﬁ.}

L _Mereac: Foerdaxos |, a Notary Public in and for snd iding in said .

Counly and State, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT Xyeuweads. N0  of 401 -

MEZZ VENTURE LLC, a Delaware limited lisbility company, pérsonally known to me

to be. the saime name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as sach
W appeared before me thig day in person and acknowledged

thit he/she signed and delivered. said instrumient a$Mis/herbwn free and voluntary acts

and ss thé-free and voluntacy act of said Limited liahdlity o -

GIVEN under my hand atid notarial seal this 13— &

Notary Public-

NORMA 1. FOERDERER
HOTARY PUBLIC, State of dlew Yok
Na. O1FO4743494
Quatfied in Now York County
Comimision Expies Sept. 30, 200.5

My Ct;nmﬁs:ron Expircs:

e — 1

T 11132 . TOB-EF-00008485
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STATE OF /. Yo K
COUNTY OF fe Yar K
L _Sosmn %g &é.’u Far. » a Notary Public in and for and residing in sajd
County and Sfate, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT Sl SHoasd~

of
FORTRESS CREDIT CORP., a Delaware corporation,

personally known to me to be
the exme person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such
Qhﬂ‘ﬁ' Dizee éﬂ_ appeared before me this day in person  and
acknowletged that hefshe signed

and delivered said instrument as hiwher own free
and voluntary acts and as the free and voluntary act of said corporation,

GIVEN undet ry hand and notarial seal this {27 day of October, 2004,

3.2

S Vot gt

2200
otary Pribli
My Commission Expires: -

- - -

JERYL ROBNSON

NOTWHB!A},
No. 01O ™ York
Whﬂmmcowy
%M‘,m}o

T, e T PR
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EXHIBIT A
Description of P
PARCEL 1:

A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERB)IAN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH
LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH.
RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955;

. THENCE SOUTH, 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF BAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE
NORTHERLY LINB OF SAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 272.18 FEET;

TI{ENCB SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG
T'I%ORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17 ADISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A
PO,

'I'HENCB SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTB 51 SECONDS WEST, A

. DiSTANCE ‘OF 3.97 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS -

‘WEST, A DISTANCE OF 43,72 FEET:
THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, A

DISTANCE OF 43.85 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST; A
DISTANCE OF 32.82 FEET;

. THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 32.53 FEET; -

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCBOFSI 47FEET .

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES Ol hIINUTE 53 SECONDS . WEST, "A
DISTANCE OF 2.033 FEET;

. . THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 42.61 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 44.057 FEET;

11152 | ; TOB-EF-00008487
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THENCE SOUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 24.308 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 116.60 FEET;

NAENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 34.47 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 105.06 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 39 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 46.62 FEBT TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCK. LINE OF
THE CHICAGO RIVER;

THENCE NORTH 48 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 55 SECONDS BAST, A
DISTANCE OF 401.26 FEET ALONG, SAID NORTHERT % DOCK LINE OF THE
CHICAGO RIVER TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTEERLY DOCK LINB OF

RIVER;

PART OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, EAST KINZIE STREET AND NORTH .

WABASH AVENUE BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF °

EAST NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH
STREET AS ESTABLIS_HBD BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955;

1116a i TOB-EF-00008483
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" THENCE SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE

SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, SAID SOUTH LINE OF EAST
NORTH WATER STREET BEING ALSO THE NORTH LINE OF A PARCEL OF
LAND DENOTED AS PARCEL 17 IN AN ORDINANCE "PROVIDING FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A BRIDGE ACROSS THRE MAIN BRANCH OF THE
CHICAGO RIVER AT NORTH WABASH AVENUE" PASSED BY THE CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL JULY 29, 1930, A DISTANCE OF 213.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF ~

BEGINNING FOR THE PARCEL OF LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED;
THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST

ALONG THE SOUTH LINB OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF

58.74 FEET TO THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER. OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID
POINT BEING ALSQO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF
BAST NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF NORTH WABASH AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH AVENUE, SAID
5 OUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ALSO THE NORTHWESTERLY
LINE OF AFORESAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO APOINT;

. THENCE SOUTH 60’ DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG A

STRAIGHT-LINE, ADISTANCE OF 18. 45 FEET TO A POINT;

"'THENCE NORTHERLY, NORTHEASTERLY, EASTERLY AND

SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCLE WHICH HAS A RADIUS OF
50.00 FEET, A CHORD OF 94:53 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 64

.DEGREES. ZOJV!]NUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.85 FEET

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 3:

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS IN FAVOR OF PARCELS 1 AND 2, AS
GRANTED IN THAT CERTAIN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF CHICAGO
APPROVED SEPTEMBER 1, 2004 AS PUBLISHED IN JOURNAL PAGES 30411 TO

30458, BOTHINCLUSIVE, FOR THE IMPROVEMENT, USE AND MAINTENANCE

QF PUBLIC' WAYS, TO IMPROVE, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, USE AND

.OCCUPY FOR: PEDESTRIAN PURPOSES, AND NOT VEHICULAR PURPOSES,

THE FOLLOWING TRACTS OF LAND:.
A) NOR.TH WATER STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

"ALL THB LAND :SPACE AND IMPROVEMENTS. AS DESCRIB IN SAID

ORDINANCE, LYING ABOVE A : HORIZONTAL PLANE HAVING AN
ELEVATION OF 22.00 FEET ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM AND- WITHIN
THE VERTICAL PROJECTION OF THE BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF

11l17a
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' LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COMFRISING PARTS OF WATER LOTS 16 AND 17 AND
A PORTION OF EAST NORTH WATER » NORTH RUSH STREET,

BEARING OF NORTH 51 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 36 SECONDS EAST, AN ARC

DISTANCE OF 47.92 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 25 DEGREES 34

MINUYES 12 SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 5.53

FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET:

THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE

NORTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 242,76 FEET
8

DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS "WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF

BAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 14.61 FEET TO A POINT:

I

1118a . ) TOB-EF-00008490
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THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG A
-STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 67.16 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 90
DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A
DISTANCE OF 13.93 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST L, INE OF NORTH RUSH -
STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A DISTANCE OQF 23.40
-FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 54 SECONDS

- . WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 59.14 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREBS 22 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST ALONG A
STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINB
OF - SAID NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A
DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY,

ILLINOIS.,

(B) NORTH RUSH STREET PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT

ALL THR LAND, SPACE AND IMPROVEMENTS AS DESCRIBED IN SAID .
ORDINANCE, LYING BELOW A'HORIZONTAL PLANE WHICH IS 22.00 FEET
ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM, AND WITEIN THE VERTICAL -
PROIEC'I'ION OF THE BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION
10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 'EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
. MERIIAN'BEING THAT PART OF NORTH RUSH STREET BOUNDED AND' -
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE POINT-OF INTERSECTION OF
THE-SOUTH LINE OF EASI‘NORmWATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF
. NORTH RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27,
'1955; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG
‘THE:SOUTH LINE OF BAST-'NORTH WATER STREET EXTENDED, A DISTANCE
OF 52.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00
. SECONDS BAST ALONG A'STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 67.16 FEET TO A S
POINT; THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG
A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 13.93 FEET TO A FOINT ON THE EAST
LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET, A
DISTANCE OF 23.40 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 58
MINUTES. 54 SECONDS WESTALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF
59.24FBET TO A EOINT, THBNCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 39
SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 12.78 FEET TO A
POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE NORTH
00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS-BAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF
‘NORTHRUSH STREET, A DISTANCE OF 108.05 FEET TO" THE POINT OF
BEGINNING IN' COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

1119a i TOB-EF-00008491
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THIS INSTRUMENT WAS PREPARED BY AND

AFTER RECORDING SHOULD BE RETURNED ]Eﬂalmll
TO:
Doc#,

Stcven Q.M. Stein ;0420834139

Jahn-Paul Lnfan Etgane “dene® Moore Fes: 810,50
Stein, Ray & Hords LLP Qoak County Recoider af Desda

222 West Adam Street, Sulto 1800 Osta: 1022/2004 0:48 Py Pg: 104
Chicago, Ilinols 60606

(312) 651-3700 :
: Of
%1/
ORIGINAI, CONTRAQQB’S EQ!‘!CE ND QLA];M_ _EQR MEQ MQ LIEN

STATE OF ILLINOIS
Ss.

S’ S g

COUNTY OF COOK

The claimant, Environmental Systems Design, Inc. with an address at 175 West Jackson,
Chicago, Dlinois (“BSD™), hereby files its Original Contractors Notice and'Claim for Mechanics
Licn and'claims a mechanic’s lien on the Real Bstate (as hereinafter deceri

10022; 401 N. Wabash Venture, LLC; Trump Chicago Munaging Member L1.C; Trump Chicago
Member LLC; TIHT Chicago Member Acquisition LLC (The Trump Organization, Inc,, 401 N.

j Trump Chicago Member LLC,
and TIHT Chicago Member Acquisition LLC shall be collectively referred to herein as the

*“Trump Partics"); and against the interest(s) of any person or entity claitning or having an
interest in the Real Bstate (as hereinafter described) by, through or under Owner, )

ESD states as follows:

| Since May 15, 2003, and continuing thereafter, Owner owned fee simple title to
the real estate (including all Jand and improvements thercon) (the "Real Estate") in Cook County,

llinois commonly known as 401 N. Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Minois, and legally described as
follows:

Ses Legal Descriptlon attached hereto as Exhibit A

The Real Estate Tax Identification Nuniberg are: 17-10-135-025-0000, and 17-10-
136-008-0000),

2 On iaformation and belic; since May 22, 2002, the Trump Parties (or one or more
of them and/or any of their designees) had an option to purchase the Real Bstate,

Address: 401 North Wabash, Chi Tlinois
Pitt Numbers: 17-10-135-025-000?%;:10-[36-008—0000

1120a . i TOB-EF-00008492
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. 3 On information and belief, the Trump Parties, as beneficiary of Owner, as agent of
Owner or otherwise, hed authority, or were knowingly permitted by Owner, to enter into -
contracts for the improvements to the Real Bstate,

4. . On orsbout Scptember 23, 2002, one or morv of the Trump Partics entered into a
contract with ESD under which ESD agreed to perform certain mechanical, electrical, life-safety,
fire proteciion, plumbing, telecomrmmication end other engincering services in, connection with
improvements (o the Real Estate in exchange for payment on an hourly basis (the “Contract™).
ESD performed the foregoing scrvices pursuant to the Contract to the extent and value of One
Miltion Scventy Two Thonsand Eight Hundred and Fifty-Nine Dollars ($1,072,359.00),

5.~ Owner authorized the Trump Partics to enter into contracts to improve the Real
Estate. Alternatively, Owncr knowingly permitted the Tromp Parties to enter into contracts to
improve the Real Estate.

6. - The last day ESD performed services pursuant to and in accordance with ‘the
Contract was on August 20, 2004,

. 7. As of tho dats hereof, there is due, unpaid and owing to BSD for services
“performed -under the Contmet, after allowing all credits, the principal ind Yienible sum of Six

Huiidred Thirty One Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty-Eight Dollars ($631,428.00) for
which, with inferest at the rate of 10% per annum, ESD cliims & licn-on theReal Estate,

Détedl: October 2/ *5004 _ A
. ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC.
‘By:

ame: George G. Vrechek
Its: Senior Vice President

Address: 401 North Wabash, Clicago, Hllinois
Pin Numbers: 17-10-135-025-000; 17-10-136-008-0000

1121a ; TOB-EF-00008493
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STATE OF ILLINOIS

S8.
COUNTY OF COOK,

St et Nt

i D, that I have read
the foregoing Original Contractor’s Notice and Clim for Mechanic's Lien and knoyy the contents
f, and that the statements contained therein are trye, .
Name: George G, Vrechek
Title: Senior Vice President
Subscn’bﬁg and swom to before me
this/F/*%ay of Qctober, 2004, : “OFFICIAL SEAL
; 9 : PAULA R, Mluﬁfglw
S5 commssion et o7,
' eteatgt Mt eee :
' Notdry Public ‘

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FREPARED BY AND.
AFTER RECORDING SHOULD BE RETURNED TO:

Steven G. M. Stein
Joha-Paul Lujan

Stein, Ray & Hurvis LLP
222 Weat Adams, Suits 1800
Chicago, Illinoix 60505
(312} 641-3700

Address: 401 North Webash, Chicapo, Hiinole
Pin Numbers; 17-10-135-025-000; f’(l)-] 0-136-008-0000

e

T ; 108494
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EXHIBIT

Legal Description:

A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14, LYING EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST
NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET AS
ESTABLISHED BY ORDINACE PASSED MAY 27, 1955; THENCE SOUTH 78 DEGREES
25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF
272.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG
THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17, A DISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 51 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 3.97 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES
51 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 43.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 51
MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 43.85 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 52
DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 32.82 FEET; THENCB
SOUTH.49 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A DISTANCE OF 32.53 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5147
FEET; THENCE SOUTH-47 DEGRERS.01 MINTUES 53 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 2.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 42.61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 23 SECONDS'
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 44.057 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39
SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 24,308 FEET; THENCB SOUTH :00. DEGREES 09
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 11660 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 22 -
DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 34.47 FEET; THENCE .
NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS BAST, A DISTANCE OF 105.06 FEET; :
THENCE SOUTH 39 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 46.62 Doy
FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCKLINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER; '
THENCE NORTH 48 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF
401.26 FEET ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCKLINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER TO AN
ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIFER; THENCE
NORTH 62 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF -100.55 FEET
ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCKLINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER TO A POINT ON THE
WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37
SECONDS BAST, A DISTANCE OF 104,51 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF NORTH.,
RUSH STREEY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Addrozs: 401 North Wabash, chicsfo, Iltinols
Pin Numbers: 17-10-135-025-000; 17-10-136-003-0000

11232 . TOB-EF-00008495 .
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IN THE CIRGUIY COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOTS
CQUHTY DEPARTMENT, CHANCERY DIVISION
MECHANICE LIEN SECTION

ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC.,an lilloofs
comporation, -
Plaintiff,
V.
THE TRUMP ORGANIZATION, INC.: 401 N, WABASH

VENTURE, LLC; FORTRESS CREDIT CORP,;
UNKNOWN OWNERS ond NON-REGORD CLAIMANTS,

Defandants.

Case No. 04 CH 19151

e

Dock: 043244408

Eugene “Gene” Moore Fes: §18.20
Cook Oaunty Recorder of Deade

Date: 11/10/2004 02:02 PM Pg: 1012

LIS PENDEN

c

John-Paul Lujan, ona of tha attomeys for Plaintitf, Environmental Systems Design,’Inc.

("ESD"), hereby cerlifies that ESD's Complaint to Fareclose Mc.a'chanics Lien and for Cther Relief

(the *Complaint”) was fited in the above Court on Movember 18, 2004 and is now pénding-in said

Court and that the property affected by sald Complaint is legally described as foliows:

ATRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 14, LYING
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH -

UINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH
RUSH STREET AS ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955;
THENCE SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 272.18 FEET:

- THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE

NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17, A MSTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 54 SECONDS WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 3,97 FEET TQ A POINT; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60
DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 43.72 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE
OF 43.85 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 32.82 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES az
MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A DISTANCE OF 32.63 FEET: THENGCE SOUTH
47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 51.47 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE
OF 2.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 42.61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17

Address: 401 N, Wabach, Chicago, lllinols
Pin Numbar:17-10-135-025-0000. and 17-10-136-008-0000

8T b b —— B o el et s Attt . e e—rr——
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MINUTES23 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE OF 44,057 FEET, THENCE SOUTH
53 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 39 SECONDSWEST, A DISTANCE OfF 24.308 FEET;
THENCE SOUTHO00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE
OF 116.80 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 22 'DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS
_EAST, A DISTANCE OF 3447 FEET: THENCE NORTH 67 DECGREES 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 105,06 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
35 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 46.62 FEET
TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCKLINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER;
THENCE NORTH 48 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 55 SEGONDS EAST, ADISTANCE

RIVER TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTHERLY DOCK

CHICAGO RIVER; THENCE NORTH 62 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 37
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 100,55 FEET ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCKLINE OF
THE CHICAGO RIVER TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH
STREET: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 18 Mi NUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 104.51 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH
STREET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO;

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

008-00400;
and commonly known as 401 North Wabash, Chicago, llinols.

Dgted; November 18, 2004

E OF THE CHICAGO
LINE OF THE
SECONDS

The Real Estate Tax Identification Numbers are: 17-40-135-025-0000, and 17-10-136~

ENVIRONM L SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC. -
By:

Subscri ad swom to before mé
this

@f Hs Aﬂorqé'ys

otary Pubiic SR
Wy

of Nov mb_e% ‘
] A A
s 4 OFFICIL SEAL

AFTER RECORDING THIS INSTRUMENT P mbrmeteine
SHOULD BE RETURNED TO: ° y

. -
Staven G.M. Steln

-.John-PaulLujan ¢ .
Stein, Ray & Hads - : ]
222 West Adams - Suite 1800 : O

s - \LVE.Z/

Chicago, Hlinols 60606
(312) £541-3700

Addrass: 401 N, Wabash, Chiengo, WHinols s
£in Numbar:17-10-135-025-0000, and 17-10-136-008-0000

-~
1y

-----

A%iw cmm

TOB-EF-00008497



.le

by

L

: 0503120008
Evnoo.oo;c:wm' Moore g, 312060
ot D,
Date: Ot3122008 01:41 PM::::' 1ols57

m:mw,ﬁrkmrdn-':mm&

ACCESS :ONSTRUCTT,

J THIS ACCESS AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

(the "Agreemeni") is

cutered into ag of this 17¢h day of December, 2004 (the "Effective Date™) by and Rmong 330 N.
WABASH AVENUE, LL.C., a Delaware limited: Liability company ("330", BOVIS LEND
VENTURE,

LEASE, INC., a Florida corporation ("Bovis™), and 403 NORTH WABASH

LLC, a Delaware limitcd Lisbility company ("401m, -

) 1126a

y WITNESSETX:
WHEREAS, 401 owns the propesty legally described in E attached hereto and
incorportad herein, . carrently improved with the former Chicago Sun-Timeg Newsp
headquatters and printing plant, commonly known ny 401 North Wabash Avenue, Chicago,
Hlinois (collectively the "401 Property™); and :

) WHEREAS, 401 has 1o redevelop the 401 Property by constructing a new
high-tise building (the "Iromp Iuternationa} Hotel & Tower "} to contain a mix of various
residential and commercial uses, parking and Joadin ties, associated pses and exterior
land aod o improvements on both the 401 Property and cextain edjacent arcas
(exclusivo of the 330 Proparty, as hereis cr defined); and

]

5 . Thls Document Prepared by Yermanent Real Estats
Aud After Recording Retgrn to: TaxYicptification Nambery

. o | 110~ 135005
szmmI:nSan;osmmia,Sufmsoo { 7 ~lp __,36 _ odg
CHL145203408 Hor N- wabosh
J Ch&" T
L J
TOB-EF-00008498
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WHEREAS, 330 owns or gromx leases tho property legally described in Exhibit B
attached herclo and incorporated herein,. which is improved with a fifty-two (52) story office
tower, with a plaza overlooking the Chicago River and other relsted amexnities and
improvements, located at 330 North Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Ilinois and commonly known as

One IBM Plaza (the "IBM Building"). 330 also owns the public patking garage located at 400 © .

North Wabach Avenue, Chicago, Miinois (the "Parking Garage™), which provides parking for
tenants and occupants of the IBM Building and the public gencrally (tho Parking Garage and the
IBM Building are collectively defined in this Agreement as the "330 Property"); end

WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Ordinance caacted by the City Council of the City of
Chicago on July 29, 1930, and aa implemented by an Indenture dated Octaber 17, 1930, between
the City of Chicago (the “Cliy™) and the Chicago md North Western Railway Company and
recorded on. October 22, 1930 with the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, as Document
Number 10774442 (the "City Wabash Avenne Eascment Agrecment™), the City was grented

the right and obligation to construct a bridge across the Chicago River, to be joined with a new-

upper and lower Wabash Avenue. That agroeinent alzo obligates the City to repair, maintain and
replace the bridge and upper and lower Wabash Avents, as and when required; in the judgment
of the City; and . ) )

- WHEREAs;pmwunttoacatainOrdinqncocnactedbythoCityCou;wiloﬁth‘xtyon
September 1, 2004, and published in the Joumal of Procecdings of the City, Council of the City
of Chicago for such date, on pages-30411 througli 30458, inclusive (the "City Ordinznce*), the
City and 401 have agreed to enter into a cértain Construction and Easemeat Agresment (the
"City/401 Coustruction. and Easenient Agreement™), which will roquire 401, acting on behnlf
of the City, to cause Bovis and other contractors and subcontractors to demoliah, repair; replace
and install certain improvements to upper and lower Wabash Aveaue, located in material part in
the pubfic way, sich improvements dofined in ‘the . City/401 Constriction .and -Easement
Agreeiment as tho' "Improvements”, such definition fitcorpor into thix Agreement and
redefined as the "Waba:fh Avenue Improvements”; and ..

WHEREAS, the Wabash Avenne Ymprovenients include nof only public improvements,
but also certain private impiovements which benefit only the owner of the 401 Property,
including, but not Lmited to, parking facilities, loading docks and other below-grade. structures;
and : ’ ’

WHEREAS, the ownership interest and rights of 330, and slf tenanis and occupants of
the 330 Property, and anyone claiming by, through and under 330 and thoso tenants and
occupants, are subject to the rights of.the City under the City Wabash Avenue Easement

Agreement; and

WHEREAS, during the course of construction of the Wabash Avenue fmprovements,
soms partions of the 330 Praperty will tia fapacted, aud Bovis,.401 and 330 have agreed 0 a
program ard the following terms and conditions, as more fully described in this Agreement, to
mitigate such impact on the 330 Property; and ]

Ci-1452934va

11273 ; TOB-EF-00008499
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signage identifying garage and retail tenants (collectively, the *Siguage”) on such
barriers and barricades. Wayfinding signage shall be professionally designed and
fabricated by Bovis, and signage for the parage and retsil tenents shall be
designed and fobricated by those tenants (or 330), and all such signs shall be
installed by Bovis, in compliance with City standards and subject to the
reasonable approval of 401, Bovis and 330, not to be unrcasonably witbheld,
qualified or delayod. Bovis (and/or 401) shall pay the cost of fabricating the
wayfinding signage and the cost of installing the wayfinding signage and the
garage and retail tensnt signage; 330 (or the particular tenant) shall pay for the'
cost of fabricating the signage for the garage and the xetail tenants,

(ii}) With respect to removal of pavers from the IBM Building plaza,
Bovis shall only remove the pavers required to perform the Wsbash Avenue
Improvements. Any pavers removed or damaged by Bovis aundfor its
subcontractors shall be replaced by Bovis at Bovix's and 401’ sole cast and
expénse. Hard Surfice Finidhers, Inc, ("Hard Surface™) has submitted a bid for
. mmovalandreplawncntofcuminpwmﬁomﬁwmmmﬁlding,and}{md
. Surface is hereby approved by 330 as the subcontractor of Bovis to perform such
. removal-and replacament, but 330 does not approve or d.tsapmovc tho amount or.
any of the-other tevms of such bid. Bovis shall require Hard Surface (or such
other paver replacement company as may be approved by 33010 perform such
removal sud replaccincnt) to obtain .and/or control an adequate stock of new
. miteriale to assure the replacement of the pavérs and to warrant aoy replacement
-pavers fromix defects in matexials or workmanship for a period of ane year from
installation and retuom to sexvice of the plaza adjoining the IBM Building. Priorto
removing ey pavers as provided.in this subsection, Bovis shatl provide 330 with
an ag-built Jayout ofithe granite pavers along the east lins of the IBM Building
with 'the. location of the construction barricades, Bovis.shall provide 330 with a
copy of the confract with Hard.Surface and with any other paver replacement.
: company.approved by 330 promptly after any such contract inexecuted,

(iv)  With respect to the expansion joint cumrently in place, 401 and
Bovis shall Jeave the mgtal.axpmsiqnjaint on the IBM Building side in place,
uniltered (provided that sich Joint is amooth, clcan and undamaged), and replace
the rubber ‘gasie? joint once the expansion joint on the City s:de of Webash" *
Avenue is completed,

()] épnmy_g_l; 401, Bovis, the Cxty and 330 have approved the preliminary
plans, specifications and construction activities and programs for the 330 Property Work -
attached as Exhibit C. Portions of the 330 Pmpexty Work shall be designed and
commenced before others; 401 end Bivis shall submit in a fimely manner refinements, -
fevisions and changes o plans and, drawings to 330 aod 330 shall spprove sich’
submissions in writing (sucli approval not to be unrcasonably withheld, qualified or
dclaycd) andfor provide comments to such submissions in & timely manner but in eny
cvent within fourteen (14) days after receipt of such submissions so ny to allow tho-
Wibazh Avenue Improvements and the 330 Propaty Work to commencs and continue in

CHLI452034vR
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Woik Plans or mny other items submitted to or requests made of 330 for approval which
is objected to by 330, 401, Bovis and 330 shayy request tho Commissioner of

rtation of the City ("Comm!uloner“) to decido the mettey in controvemy, and the
decision of the Commissioner shall be hinding upon 401, Bovis, 330 and the City. No
postion of the 330 Propénty Work may be commenced by 401 or Boyjs mntil tho plans,
spécifications or other materials relating to such portion of the 330 Property Work have
betn approved in writing by 330 or the Commissioner, as provided forin the immediately
preceding sentence, 'Iho33DPmpextyWoduhnllbcpm:fo:medh accardance with the

" USC. 12101, ct seq, and fhe regulagions promulgated thereunder, (2) the Tlfinois

I { ed
Environmental Barrfers Act {410 H.CS 25/1 ct5eq, (1996), (3) The Hllinois Accessibility
Codo, 71 HL. Adm, Code 400, a0d (4) codes and building ordinsnces of the City of
Chicago, State of Himois,

©) hasin le Play. The Final 330 Work Plans shall also
include 2 plan for the phasing of the 330 Property Work and & specific schedule for itg
duration end comp!di_on (the 330 Property Phasing 'and‘ Schedule Plan®), 2 copy of

matesially lengthen the st ime or sequence currently planned for initiall
opening the northerly portion of Wabash Avenue traffie to fX areas near the 330

CHI-1452534v3
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Further, tho City, 401 and Bovis shll staks good fith efforts to assume the timely sction and
coondination of City-related entities such as the Burean of Electricity for streetlights, utility
cutoﬂ‘nndWgwatwandmwu,e&mdpdmu&ﬁﬁahordertonﬁnimizomaddownﬁme. :

(@ - Dasmage Survey. 401, atits expensc, has engaged STS Consultants, Ltd.

. (“STS") to take a photographic damage survoy of existing conditions with elevation
benchmarks for sl key elements and building features relating to the adjacent exterior
portions of the 330 Property. A scismometer shall be installed to measure vibration and
impact, on sumrounding property during construction of the Wabash Avenue
mprovemeats, incleding, but not limited to, the installation of caissons and sheet piling,
to confirm that such vibrations mdeWMmq:ﬁmdbyI.aw.andw
protocol- for making: quch information readity available to 330 shall be establiched by
Bovig, 401 and 330. In addition, 330, 401 and Bovis shall designute in writing
representatives’ (the "330 Representative”, the "401 Representative” and the "Bovis
Representative”, respectively) who can be reached at sy time in the event of an

fo the matter in questioi. A copy of the cxisting conditions damage surveys prepared by
STS shall be delivered to 330 concurrent withi the exccution of this Agreement.
" Section 2, Comstiyction.

{a) - General Reqoivemeinty. 401 and Bovis shall cause the Wabash Avenue
Improvements-to-be constructed and work pesformed in accordance with the City/40%:
Constiuction.and Basemont Agreenent. ‘401 and Bovis, once the work on the Wabash
Avenue Jmproveshents'is commenced,. shall diligently snd continuausly pursue such

. work to.completion. 40 has posted & bond-with the City; a8 requircd by the City/401 -
Congtinction.and Easerient Agreement and approved by the Commissiones, securing the
completion of the Wabash Avémie Improvements. 401 shall provide 330 with = copy of
the'bond. 401 shall céuse Bovis to perform the 330 Property Work, and Bovis shall cagse : X

" the 330 Property Woik to be performed, ia sccordance with the Finid 330 Work Plans,
MSangnpatyPhaMand'SchedﬂcPhy,theLaWandthisAman Upon
completion of the Wabash Avendo Improvements, tho City Resident Enginesr, a=
requited by the. City/401 Construction Rasement Agroement "snd established City
guidelines, shall ixsuo a letter to the City, 330 and 401 in form and substsnoe required by
the City, certifying that the: Wabash Avenus Improvements (which include the 330
Property Work) have been substantially completed in conformance with the Law and the
final plans and specifications for the Webash Avenue Improvements. Acceptance of the

the' rights zud obligations of 330, 401 and Bovis herennder, that the Wabash Avenuc
“Impiovements have been finally completed, subject to completion of any punchlist items
© or rémaining itemns specified by the Commissioner, . )
i () mm.mmbemmymwmmmﬂsm
Wo:kP!ansand!hc33DPropmyPhuingandScbuhﬂcPhn. 401 hercby agrecs to catuse
Bovis to do, and Bovis hereby agrees to do, amang other things, the following:

) 6
CHE142934vE
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()  To control construction traffic 8t the cast and west ends of Caroll
Street, Bovis shall submit written street restrictions to the City for review and

‘spproval and to 330 for informationa] Puposes and for timely good fajth

consultation with 330. _Bovia.shallalsomammnagatcdmtzyatbom cads of

(i) Bovis shall construct » tempotary access bridge (tho "Pedestrian
Bridge") in the location spproved by the City and shown on EXAbYE. The
Pelestrian Bridge shall be supported independently fom the 330 plaza deck.
Bovis shall remove the miling on the 330 Property plaza deck to install fho
Pedestrien Bridge but shall réplaca such railing and repair any damage to the 330

. Property plaza deck caused by such ‘removal and the coustruction of the

Podestrian Bridge. The width, height, strength, lighting and other characteristics
of the Pedestrizn Bridge are delinested onsg_u;u attached hereto based on

Bovis shall install siguage for wayfinding on ths Pedéstring Bridge in accordance
with the requirements for waylinding signage ng provided in Section 1(a)()
nbove, .

dcuilingthuwmpomrycabuunmundmdxmnbmmpoancunmwilh tho
exccution of this Agreement. Similarly, 401, Bovis and the City shall agree upon,
and the City shall establish, circulation path 2nd & cabstand on zouthbomud
Wabash Avenus immédiately to the norih, of the north end of the construction
zone on Wrbash Avenue. Bovis shall submit a copy of such circulation path to
330 for informational purposes and for timely good faith consultation with 330,

(")  Certain construction nctivitics will require the temporary closure of
occess from Kinzie Street to the lower lovet parking garage in the IBM Bullding,
sich construction nctivities fo include, but not be limited fo, demolition of the

1132a
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to begin in.May 2005, and pouring concrete inJuly 2005. The parties anticipate

that elosure of access to the Jower level parking garags in the IBM Building
should not exceed the following periods: (i) 3 day= during demolition, (ii) 5 days
duting steel erection , and (jii) 5 days during the concrete pour, Bovis shall

provide 330 with at Ieast one (1) week’s prior written notico before beginning an -

actlvity that would result in the temporary closure of the Tower levet garage in the
IBM Building 5o that 330 may notify the impacted tenants and make altemative
pasking amangements for thoso tenants as needed . If the fime of closure exceeds
-the specified 5 day period, 2a 330 sole and exclusive remedy for such extended
<losure, Bovis shall pay to 330, in addition to the sinps payzble to 330 pursuant to
Scction 6(a) below, the suin of $300 per day for each day the lower level garage is

cloeed bieyond tha zpplicablo 5 day pesiod, umtil the canstruction activity foreing,

Pedostrian Bridge. ‘In the event there is damunge, graffiti, faflure to perform:
regular snow removal-on the Pedestrian Bridge, broken or burned out Hghting on
the Pedestriag ‘Bridge dr other maintensncs issues which are not corrected or
rectified by Bovis prompily after notice from 330 (but no more than 5 days after
such noticc), 330 chall have the right, but not the obligation, to remove the graffiti

. or pexform the snow removal or replace the burned out lighting, and Bovis shall
reimburse 330 for tha reasonpble cost thercof upon written demand,

. ' Secton 3. Constructipn Fhiase Fudemnitles. Except for the negligence of 330, its
agents; employecs or contractora, Bovis, Liereby agrees to indemmity, nify, defend and hold harmless
330, ity officers, directom, shaicholders, cmployees, agents, tenants and mortgagees and their
respectivo siccessors, in interest (collectively, the “330 Indomnitees”) from and against any-snd
all ‘claims, demends, damiages, lawsuits, legal proceedings, losses, liens, lishilities, judgments,

- ordess or decreos, including. all reasonnble costs and expenses (including, without Iimitation,
reasonzblo aftorueys’ fees, court costs and other reasonshle expenses related to litigation incurred
by the 330 Indemnitees in-connection therewith). (collectively, "Losses” arising from or as a
result of the performance of the Walinah Avenue Improvements and the 330 Property Work,
provided that such Loss is attributable 1o (i) the death of, or peteonal injury caused to, any
natural person; or (if) physical damags to or 16ss of real or personal property of any person or
catity. Theindemnity chligations of Bovis shall survive the termination of thiz Agreement,

Sectlon 4. Copstruction Inswrance, .

® € Reguired. TPrior to commencement of construction and

perforinance of the Wabash Aveiiue Fmprovements and the 330 Property Work, 401 -

mdlprBoviskbanpfopmmdmahtain,ﬁt!hémlecostmdupmofMI and Boviz,
or shall cause to be procured anil matntained at'all times prior to final completion of the

CHL1452934v8
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rencwal date octurting during the term of his Agreement. Bovis and/or 401, must submi

evidence of insurance on Accord Form 27 or equivalent, 'I‘bcilismancemustproﬁdc for

thisty (30) days prior swritten botico to be- iven to 330 iy the ovent coverage ia
Hally

Section 5, %. Bach 0£401 and Boyis ghall act diligently and
shall require jtg Iespective contractors, subcontractors and consuliants to pet diligently toward.
i and finally completing construction of (i) the Wabash Avenue Improvementy i

Y-
28 built drawingg showing the completed 330 Property Work and its intepration with the
completed Wabaal, Avenne Improvemmta.,

1t is undemstood 28d agreed thint TIME IS GF THE ESSENCE IN THE PROSECUTION (8

THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THIS AGREBMENT, becatise untit completed, substantis] ang

matetial street and bridge providing pedestrian ang vehicular zcoesy 1o the 330 Property win bs

distupted. Recognizing this Tequirement, 401 and Bovis (a) agreeto, cauge the Wabash Avenye
Ii,

purmuant o the City/d0l Constaetion wd Basement Agréement i1 consiruction of tho 330
Property Work o the Wabazh Avenue Improvements gy)1s behind schedyle.

Section 6, Bﬂ@b&mmm In eddition to any afpier ©Costs or ather amountg
required to be paiqg by 401 or Bovis to 330 hereunder, 401 and Bovig shal] Pay to 330 the
following amounts: \

) Anamou.n:equal tolnymalcominumndby.oracamclaima asserted
against, 330 as » regujt of the impacy, if any, of thy Wabash Avenye Improvemonts snd/or
the 330Propcz:yWo‘rk-nn tthchanci!ity. fo the extent guch Costs or claims are not

CHL1433504v3
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paid to 330 from insurance proceeds under insurance ;;oliciw obtained by 401 or Bovis;
and . '

()  Anamount equal to $75,000.00 to reimburse 330 for costs and expenses

incutred by 330 in connection with this Agrocment,

The amount specified.in Scotion 6(c) above shall be paid to 330 within thirty (30) days of the
date of this Agreement. Tho.amounts.specified in Sections 6{a) and 6{b) above shall bo paid to
330.within thirty (30) dayz after writtest demand from 330 for such amotmts, with cach such
demand being accompanied by reasonable supporting docinnentation,

- Section 7, 330, on tho ane huand, and 401 and Bovis,
on the other, may, upon breach of any of the tems and provisions of this Agreement, send
written notice of such breach to tho party causing such breach. Unless enother period iz stated,
- and except in‘ense of emergency, in tho event any breach i8 not cured within sixty (60) days afte;
receipt of such notice of breach, then the party causing such breach shall be deemed in default of
its obligations under this Agreement, and the non-defaiilting party shall have such rights and
remedics-as shall be availablo to it at law or in equity; provided that in the event a default carnmot
roasomblybcmedwiﬂﬂnﬁxty(ﬁo)dm_Iﬁcrwﬁﬂnanoﬁcchasbmmccivod'bythc
dafinlting purty snd the defzulting party ia proceeding diligently. to cure the dofanlt at the
expiration of the sixty (60) day period, the defanlting parly shell have such sdditional time as
may be reasonsbly nocessary to cure said default, In the case of an cmergency, the cure shall be
undertaken a3 soon as reasonably possible to minimize further injury of persons and loss or

Section 8. Partial Iyvalidity. If any clause, sexitence or-other portion of this Apreement

1 become illogal, null end void for any, reason, or shall be held by sny court of competent:

Jurisdiction, to b6 a0, the:veniaining portion hereof shell semain in fall force and effect. The

" texmipation’of any one or niare provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the continuing
* yalidity of the other pirovisions of thin Agreement. _

Ifto 401: /0 The Trump Organization
. 725 Fifth Avenuc
New York, New York 10022
Attn: Allen Weisselberg

10
CHE4R930 .

113s5a i TOB-EF-00008507 .



53

With a copy to:

Andwithacqpyto:

If to Bovis:
With a copy to:

If'to City, at:

With a copy to;

. It 330:

CHE-1452934vs
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The Tremp Organization

725 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10022,
Attn: Russell Flicker

Piper Rudnick LIp

203 North LaSalles Street, Suite 1900

Chicago, Iltinois 606501

Attn: Theodore J. Novak and
Jeffrey N. Owen

¢/o Bovis Lend Lease, Ine,

200 Park Avenie

New York, New York 101586
Attn: Mr, Michas) Silvermintz

"c/o Bovis Lend Lease, Inc .
One North Wacker Drive, Suite 850
' Chicago, Hlinois 60605
Aftn: Mr. Paul James -

Commirsioner of Transportation
30 North LaSalle Street

Room 1100

Chicago, Iitigois 60602

(Or to such other address.that the Commissioner

5
City)
City of Chicago - Corporation Counge]
121 Nocth LaSalls Street

Room 600 City Hal}
Clilcago, Iinoss 60602

I30N. Wabash Aveaue, LI.C,-
.¢/0 Pritne Gronp Realty Trust

77 West Waoker Drive, Suite 3900
‘Chicago, Nllinojs 60601

Atin: Joffrey A, Patterson

11

I}all have published Beuerally throughout the .-

1i36a

TOB-EF-00008508



0503122208 Page: 12 of 57

With a copy to: Prime Group Realty Trust
77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 3500
Chicago, Nllinois 60601
Attn: Jemes Hoffinan

-And to: Jones Day
: 77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 3500
Chicago, Hlinois 60601-1692
Atin: Dan B. Miller

Section 10. Ilinols Law. This Agreement has boen negotiated, executod and delivered -

at Chicago, Iilinoils, and shall bo constraed and enforced in accordance with the lawa of Hilinois
(but not including the conflict of Jawa provisions of Dlinois law). .

Section 11. Bepefited Partiess No Third-Party Bepeficlayles, This Agrecment, and
the benchits and obligations of 401 and 330 provided for berein, shall yun with the 401 Propaity
and the 330.Property, respectively, land and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit solely
of Boviz, 330, 401; the City and their réspective successors in intereat, assigns, and such parties’
respective legal representétives (collectively, the "Benefited Partles”). This Agrecment and the
tcrms hereof are intended solely for thc becfit of the Benefited Parties 25 expresaly provided for
herein. No other person shall have any sights, responsibilitics, or obligations hereunder nor may
such person enforce any of the terms or be eatitled to any of the benefits hercof. :

Section 12. Estoppels. Upon the reasonsble request of Bovis, 330 or 401, my party )
shall deliver for the benefit of the xcquesting person or its lenders, purchasers, investors, and-

major teonnts an estoppel certificato concemning tha status of matters under this Agreement,
including nctual knowledge of defanits under this Agreement and such other matters reasonably
requested by.any party. ‘ .

Section 13, Jg_lm_mgml_l‘ig_lzl,ﬂx To the cxtent there are instances in thiy,

Agreement which impose obligations of both 401 and Bovis, each of 401 and Bovis shafl be
jointly and soverally lisble for mch obligations undex this Agreement; othcrwise, the obligations
of each of 401 or Bovis shall be soveral. .

Section 14, Anthority-and Valldity. Bovis, 330, 401 and the City cach represents and
warrant to one anothee-that (i) this Agreement has been duly authorized, exccuted and delivered
by it and (i) this Agrcement constitutes the Iogal, valid and binding obligation of it, cnforcesble
against it in accordance with its teoms, This Agrecment may not be amended, modified, released

or terminated by any party to this Agreement without the prior writien consent of all partics
hereto, . .

. EXECUTIOH APPEARS ON FOLLOWING PAGE

12
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[

‘BOVISLAND LEASE, INC, 401 NORTH WABASHVENTURE, LLC

By £ @ﬂm By:
Neme: pn.:;_ A Tane Name; .
Titler__s5 s e Tite:

330 N. WABASH AVENUE, LL.C,
By: 330N, Wabash Mezzonine, 1.1.C.

By:Prime Group Realty, L.P,, its
Administrative Member

By:Prime Grouyp Realty Trust, its
Managing General Partner

By:
. Name:
Title:

. 13
CHI-MS294vt
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BOVIS LAND LEASE, INC. 401 NOR' R VENTURE, LLC
By: By: :
Name: Name: Tusserd_ €l i
Title: Title: HHP
330 N. WABASH AVENUE, L.L.C.
By: 330N. Wabash Mezzanine, L.L.C.
By:Prime Group Realty, LP., its
Administrative Member
By:Prime Group Realty Trust, fts - -
Managing General Pariner
By:
Name:
Title:
. 13
~CHGOE20159140v1 .
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BOVIS LAND LEASE, INC. 401 NORTH WABASH VENTURE, LLC
By, By:
Nome;_ Name;
Title: Title;_.
330 N. WABASH AVENUE,L.L.C.
By: 330 N. Wabash Mezzanine, L.L.C.
By:Frime Group Realty, L.2., its
Administrative Member
By:Prime Group Realty Trust, its
Mmnaging General Partner
o Y
&
NeyTebfry 4. Foffenson
Title:_Fresident & ¢&p
13
CHE4504a
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JOINDER
The City of Chicago, by the Commissioncr of the Department of Transportation, hereby
joing in_the exccution of this Agrecment for the purpose of agrecing to act as an arbitrator
pursuznt to Section 1(b) of this’Agreement, and for no other purpose.

. City of Chicago
Commissioner of the Department of Transportation

; . 14
Ceil-1452934v8
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STATEOF_S\\wois

}ss
countyor _Ce-oM 3 .

L, _loole A CoBune Notary Public.ix and for said County, in the State
aforesaid, DO BEREBY CERTIFY that__ A, A Ties , the __ ot of
BOVIS LEND LEASE, INC,, a Florida corporation, personally knowit to me to be the some
person whose name is subseribed to the foregoing instrument as such _ ,
appeared before me and acknowledged that ()he signed-and delivesed the said instrument as
his/her own frec and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of said cotporation, for the
uses pnd purposes therein set forth, .

Given inder my hand and seal this ln—"t‘" dayof ] 0mdJen Y, 2005.

ﬁ&_ﬁ& Q C&e_o.M

Natary Public

ey
.- GALEA.COHEN. 3
s Sinta of I3incls E .
‘ :..............-Ef‘.*";;.lgﬁ'g‘.‘.:
STATE OF ) . : -
. o )ss
COUNTY OF )
L — . L Notax)'r Public in and for said County, in the State
aforesald, DO BEREBY CERTIFY that -, the . of401

NORTH WABASH VENTURE, LLC, a Delaware limited lisbility company, personally known
o me to be the same person whose name §s subscribed to-the foregoing instrument as such

" _»appeared before me and acknowledged that ()he signed and delivered the
said instrument as hisher own free and voluntary act, ond as the free and voluntary act of said
company, for the uses and purpases therain set forth, )

Given under my hand and seal this day of 2005,
N&taty Public
My Commi.;.s,ion Explres:
15
. CHEIAY29M4vE
1142a ,
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STATE OF )
) ) ) S8
COUNTY OF - )

1, , Notary Public in and for said County, in

the State aforesaid, DO-HEREBY. CERTIFY that _Lthe .

of BOVIS LEND LEASE, INC,, a Florida corporation, personally knowa to me to be the same
person whose name is subscribed to thé foregoing instrument as such o
appearcd before me and acknowledged that (s)he signed and delivered the said instrument as
histher own fiee and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of said corporation, for the

uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under my hand and seel this day of > 2005,
Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
STATEOF _[LL71asot S )
}s8

COUNTY OF _COOK. )

1, JZAMA A Arvaetz Notary Public in and for said County, in

the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY thiat RUSSEL L. FLIRER, the EXFLvE” Vd

. of 401'NORTH WABASH VENTURE, LLC, a Delaware-Jimited Tability company, personally
‘known to me o be the same person whose pame is subscribed. to the foregoing instrument as
such ’ -, appearcd before me and acknowlcdged that (s)he signed and delivercd
the said instrument as his/her own fice and voluntary act, and: as the free and voluntary act of
said.company, for the uses and purposes therein sct forth..

Given wnder my hand and scal this /i day of _JAarunes/ 2005, .

Qy(._xff—-h—-d‘ M

U Notory Public . &

My Commission Expires: 3/9'-1'/ 80

. 15 LYY ree 2/22/08
ZCHGO220199 14DV MR T Yy
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) ]
)S
COUNTY OF COOK. )

kmajre_l_%f_.Noummc i and for ssid County, inthe Stato
aforcssd, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that ersontho PesidetACED of

Prime Group Realty Trust, a Maryland real estate investment trust, the Managing General
Pariner of Prime Group Realty, LP., a Delaware limited partnership, tho Administrativa Member
or 330 N. Wabash Mezzening, L.L.C., 2 Delawary Limited liability company, the general partner
of 330 N, WABASH AVENUE, L.L.C., a Delaware limited lisbility company, personally known
to me to be fhe umupawnwhdscnmnels subseribed to the foregoing instrument as such

, appearcd bofore ma and acknowledged that (8)he signed and delivered the
smdmstmncmtash:dlwtown&ecmdvohnuuyact, mdasthcﬂeoandvohmwyactofsmd
company, for tho uscs and purposcs therein set forth.

Given under my hand and seal this__/ th day of,)am[__, 2005.

My Commission Expirca: _1 /1 | " Ny

SEAL
ﬂL!gmm
~STA) 4
3 HOTARY PUSLIC e

WPl

. 16
CHLI4SI9MrS
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_ STATE OF ILLINOIS )
. }SS
COUNTY OF COOK )

L M@Ma Notary Public in and for seid County, in the State
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that Miguel d'Escoto, the Commissioner of the Department

of Transportation of the City of Chicago, personally known to mo to be the same pecson whose
name is subscribed to the foregoing instromeit as such Commissioner, appoared before me and
acknowledged that he signed and delivered the said instrument as'his own free and voluntary act,
and as the free and voluntsry act of said company, for the uses and pusposes therein sct forth,

Given under my hand and seal this ~_dayof

My Commission I%xpigesz ql'/ﬂ .7—//” f//

CHIA2IMvE
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EXHIBIT A,
EGAL DES ON QF 40 P

PARCEL 1:

SOUTH LINE OF BAST NORTH WATER STREET AND ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE
OF SAID PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 272.18 FEET; .
THENCE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PARCEL 17 A DISTANCE OF 22,62 FEET TO A POINT; .
THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 51 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF
3.97 FEET TO A POINT; ) :
- THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST,
A DISTANCE OF 43.72 FEET; -

THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 43.85 FEET;

THENCB SOUTH 52'DEGREES 21 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST; A DISTANCE
OF 32.82 FEET; "

THENCE SOUYH 49 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 01 SECOND WEST, A DISTANCE OF
32.53 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE

OF 51.47 FEET; - - :

. THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 53 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF
2.033 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 47 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 42,61 FEET;

"THENCE SOUTH 49 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 23 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 44.057 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, A DiSTANCB_

OF 24.308 FEET:

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 éECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 116,60 FEET; ]

THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 3447FEET: -

OF 105.06 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30‘ SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE -

A-l
CIE1452934v3
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THENCE SOUTH 39 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE
OF 46.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO
RIVER; :

THENCE NORTH 48 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE

OF 401.26 FEET ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER TOr

AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER;
THENCE NORTH 62 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 37 SECONDS RAST, A DISTANCE
. OF 100,64 FEET ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER TO
A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET; -
THENCE NORTH.00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE

OF 104.51 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH STREET TO THE POINT OF |

BEGINNING, ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARéEL 2:

ALL THE LAND, PROPERTY AND SPACE LYING ABOVE A HORIZONTAL PLANE
WHICH 1S 22.00 ' FEET ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM AND BELOW - A
HORIZONTAL PLANE WHICH IS 150 FEEY ABOVE THE CHICAGO CITY DATUM, AND
WITHIN THE VERTICAL PROVECTION OF THE BOUNDARY LINE OF A TRACT OF
- LAND: IN SECTION. 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 BAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN BEING THAT PART OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, EAST
KINZIE .STREET AND NORTH WABASH AVENUE BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: .

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST ‘

NORTH WATER STREET WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH RUSH SIREET AS

ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE PASSED MAY 27, 1955; .

THENCE SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MIENUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTH
LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, SAID SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
STREET BEING ALSO THE NORTH LINE OF A PARCEL OF LAND DENOTED AS
PARCEL 17 IN AN ORDINANCE *PROVIDING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
BRIDGE ACROSS THE MAIN BRANCH OF THE CHICAGO RIVER AT NORTH
WABASH. AVENUE" PASSED BY THE CHICAGO CITY COUNCIL JULY 29, 1930, A
DISTANCE OF 213.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING FOR THE PARCEL OF
LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED; .

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 78 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 58.74 FEET TO
" THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER. OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID POINT BEING ALSOQ
THE POINT OF INTERSECTION. OF THE SOUTH LINE OF EAST NORTH WATER
. STREET WITH THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF NORTH WABASH
AVENUE; . g

A2
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OF AFORESAID PARCEL 17, A DISTANCE OF 22.62 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST ALONG A STRAIGHT
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 18,45 FEET TO A POINT

UTHEASTERLY
ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCLE WHICH HAS A RADIUS OF 50,00 FEET, A CHORD OF
" 94,53 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 64 DEGREFS 20 MINUTES 45

SECONDS EAST, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 123.85 FEET TO THE POINT Of BEGINNING,
IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. .

A-3 -
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G OF ROPE

PARCEL 1:

ALIL THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND-CONSISTING OF A PART OF LOT 9 IN ’
BLOCK. 2 IN KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39°
NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, SAID PARCEL OF
LAND BEING BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED ASFOLLOWS: "

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF NORTH
STATE STREET AND RECOGNIZED IN THE WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE ORDINANCE
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 29, 1930 WITH
THE FRESENT NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER. AS RECOGNIZED
IN SAID ORDINANCB,SAIDPOINTBENGS{}UIHDDEGREES9MINUIES4O
SECONDS WEST 475.69 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2
OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE NORTH 63 DEGREES 2 MINUTES_ 40
SECONDS EAST ALONG SATD NORTHERLY DOCK LINE 177.70 FEET; THEN NORTH
29 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 68.58 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67
PEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 18.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES
24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS “WEST 4.25 FEEBT; THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 1.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES
30 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCB OF 119.64 FEET; "THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 10
MINUTES 350 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 30.05 FEET FOR.A PLACE OF
BEGINNING AT THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF SAID HEREINAFTER

DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 32 DEGREES 10
MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 23.745 FEET TO A POINT 131.61 FEET

PERPENDICULARLY) BAST FROM SAID. EAST LINE OF NORTH STATE
STREET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 9 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST PARALLEL
WITH TBE AFORESAID EAST LINE OF NORTH STATH STREET, A DISTANCE OF 10.74

FEET; THENCE SQUTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE

WEST, A DISTANCE OF 821 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, IN COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AND

PARCHE 2:,

ALL THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND CONSISTING OF A PART OF LOT 8 AND A
PART OF LOT 9 IN BLOCK 2 TOGETHER WITH A PART OF VACATED NORTH WATER
STREET ADJOINING SAID BLOCK 2, ALL IN KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO IN™*
SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
m@ SAID PARCEL, OF LAND BEING BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS.

-

B
CHI-1452934v8

S 1149a” o o
. ; TOB-EF-00008521

r—
L

La eblew, e . 4



-

o

0303122208 Page: 25 of 57

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INFERSECTION OF THE BAST LINE OF NORTH
STATE STREET AS RECOGNIZED IN THE WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE ORDINANCE
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 29, 1930 WITH
THE PRESENT NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER, AS RECOGNIZED
IN SAID ORDINANCE, SAID POINT BEING SOUTH 0 DEGREES 9 MINUTES 40
SECONDS WEST 475.69 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2
OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE NORTH 63 DEGREES 2 MINUTES 40
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE, 177.70 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 68.58 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67
DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS BAST 18.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES
24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 425 FEET; THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 1.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES
30 SECONDS. WEST 4538 FEET TO A POINT 13161 FEET (MEASURED
PERPENDICULARLY) EAST FROM SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH STATE STREET FOR
A PLACE OF BEGINNING AT THE MOST SOUTHERLY. CORNER OF SAID
HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 22
DEGREES- 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE.OF 74.26 FEET; THENCB
NORTH 32 DEGREES .10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.005 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 53 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS BAST, A DISTANCE OF 8.210
FBET TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF AN EXISTING STEEL COLUMN;
THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 53 DEGREES: 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS BAST, A
DISTANCE OF 7.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 9 MINUTES 40 SECONDS
WEST PARALLEL WITH THE AFORESAID EAST LINE OF NORTH STATE STREET, A
DISTANCE OF 10341 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, AND )

PARCEL 3:

A TRACT OF LAND IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 BEAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN COMPRISING THAT PART OF BLOCK 2 AND WATER
LOTS 2 TO 8 BOTH INCLUSIVE IN KINZIE'S ADDFFION TO CHICAGO, VACATED
CARROLL AVENUE (FORMERLY KNOWN AS NEW NORTH WATER STREET) AND
VACATED NORTH ‘WATER STREET IN THE CITY . OF CHICAGO MORB
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: TO WIT:

BEGINNING AT THB POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF NORTH
STATE STREET AS RECOGNIZED IN THE WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE ORDINANCE
FASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THR CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 29, 1930 \ITH
THE PRESENT NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGQ RIVER AS RECOGNIZED
IN SAID ‘'ORDINANCE, SAID POINT BEING SOUTH 0 DEGREES 9 MINUTES 40
SECONDS WEST 475.69 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2
OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE NORTH 63 DEGREES 2 MINUTES 40
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE 177.70 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 68.58 FERT; THENCE NORTH 67

B2
CHLI4529M4v8,

1150a

TOB-EF-00008522



0503122208 Page: 26 of 57

DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 18.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES
24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 425 FEET:; THENCB NORTH 67 DEGREES 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS BAST 1.62 FEET; THENRCRE NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES

72D IN SAID WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE ORDINANCE WHICH POINT IS
23281 FEET BAST OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2 OF KINZIE'S
ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SBCONDS
BAST TO A POINT WHICH IS 98.75 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY (MEASURED ALONG
THE, LINE SOUTH 32 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 50 SECONDS WEST) FROM SAID POINT

IN THE SOUTH LINB OF EAST KINZIE STREET WHICH POINT IS 232.81 FERT BAST
OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2 OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO
CHICAGO: THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 15
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 46 SECONDS TO THE RIGHT WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED
COURSE 66.93 ERET; THENCE NORTHEASTWARDLY ALONG THE ARC OF A CIRCLE
CONVEX-TO THE NORTHWEST HAVING A RADIUS OF 728.78 FEET AND TANGENT
TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE 5935 ¥EET TO A POINT ON THB SOUTH LINE OF
RAST KINZIR 'STREET WHICH POINT IS.27521 FEET EAST OF THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2 OF KINZIES ADDITION TO-CHICAGO; THENCE WEST
ALONG iHE SOUTH LINE OF KINZIE STREET 27521 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST

. CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2 OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE SOUTH 0
DEGREES 9 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 2
OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO AND THE EAST LINE OF STATE STREET 475.6%

_ FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, AND

PARCEL 4

ALL THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND CONSISTING OF A PART CF LOT 8 AND
PART OF LOT 9 IN BLOCK 2 TOGETHER WITH PART OF VACATED NORTH WATER
STREET ADIOQINING SAID BLOCK 2, ALL IN KINZIES ADDITION TQ CHICAGO IN
SECTION' 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL.
mujlgm, 'SAID PARCEL OF LAND BEING BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: T .

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF NORTH.
STATE STREET AS RECOGNIZED, IN THE WABASH AVENUE BRIDGE ORDINANCE
PASSHD BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 29, 1930 WITH
THE PRESENT NORTHERLY DOCK LINE OF THE CHICAGO RIVER, AS RECOGNIZED
IN SAID ORDINANCE, SAID POINT BEING. SOUTH 0 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40
SECONDS WEST 475,69 FEET FROM_THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 2
OF KINZIE'S ADDITION TO CHICAGO; THENCE NORTH 63 DEGREES, 02z MINUTES 40
SECONDS EAST- ALONG SAID NORTHERLY DOCK LINE, 177.70 FEET, THENCE -
NORTH 22 DEGREES 24’ MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 68:58 FEET; THENCE NORTH
67 DEGREES 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 18.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22

B-3
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DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 4.25 FRET; THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES -
35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 1.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES 24
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 45.38 FEET FOR A FLACE OF BEGINNING; THENCE
NORTH 0 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 103.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 53
DEGREES 26 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST, 522 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 09
MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH AND 135.80 FEET (BY

" RECTANGULAR MBASUREMENT) EAST OF THE AFORESAID EAST LINE OF NORTH

STATB STREET, 116.60 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 30
SECONDS WEST, 10.91 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING IN COOK, COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

Permanent Index Wumbera:  17-10-135-009-0000
17-10-135-013-0000
17-10-135-014-0000
17-10-135-019-0000
17-10-135.021-0000
17-10-135-023-0000
17-10-135-024-0000

Address of Property: 330 North Wabash, Chicago, Itinois
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Lond Lansn
From:
Jamas P. Bultarazz
Bovis Lond Laasa, Ine, .
mNme.%BGO.CNm.ILBOBOB
To . .
Prima Truet
330 North Wabseh, Suite 2801
Chicaga, R, 60614
We are sending you,., EAﬂndwd E]Underiop-[;.mm
Copy of latter gcﬁmnoolﬁor 0
Prepared hy;
v oda04 1BM Party Wax: 1.0, G1.1, S1.0,
S81.1,81.2 83,1, 534, 83.5) )
Thess arw 'uduck-dbﬂow:
For lnfonmation

caples for distribution

L1 For your usa :} Approved os noted . zgaxbmn o
B As 3.0 oomd:agmta

T s ﬁ__DPrhhmhmodaM'ioantnm

Copy to: m&%;
‘Fio~ Prima
Alloc ) -a;..:..uE S
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Buttarazzl, Jamas
From: ; Buflerazzi, James
Sant: Wodnesday, Janueary 19, 20052:02PM
To: Saml—lunmer(E-ma! ); Dala Clark
Ce: Tim Soyder E«naﬂ);EIahoCarrd!(
Sublect: Teump - 1BM Wall Drawings Ramoving PmpmthaFmDowmm
Suson, :
Attad\edp:maﬁndmhadmuwaudwmmvlm uiyﬁmfmmmodowmmu. Wa ha award, -
mmmmmmw&mmmwmmm fotlow, vehm oda
Sincerely, )
Jomes P. Butisraz, P.E, )
WWW
Bovia Lend Loese, Inc. -
owmmwmmm.sumaso
Chicago, IL-60608
Telephono: 312.245.1483
outnlm312245.1370
31-14-65 M Tompd 2 Sussn Hameiar i
< Wall Bracing-.  01-19-05 I8M ..,
- r
-+ 713552
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EXHIBITD
RO G CHEDULE P

Schedule approved by the City with a completion date of no Iater than November 23, 2005,
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Bovis
Lond Lesse

From:
James P, Bultarazd
Bovis Lond Lecss, Inc,

Ona North Wacker, Sults 850, Chicago, IL. 60808
T . .

_Prime Group Realty Trust

Latter of
Teansmittal

Tronsmitta! Number: 14

Dals: Job Nomber:
Decomber 22, 2004 52084800

Rez .

350 North Wabesh, Sulte 2601

Frurnp M__!MATW

Chicago, 11 60841

Podeatran Walkwry Pians & Detoia
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. RECEIVED -
1220 N. ELLIS
BENSENVILLE, 1L. 60102 OEC 10 2004
630/595-2700 Bovis
12/08/04 (REPLACES PREVIQUS DRAWINGS DATED 11/2404) .
RE: TRUMP HOTEL ANB-PLAZA
) 401 N WABASH

'CHICAGO, il.. .

TEMPORARY PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY

1BM PARKING GARAGE TO IBM PLAZA -

‘BOVISLEND LEASE
PAGE 1: COVER PAGE AND INDEX . PAGE 14: CALCS.
PAGE 2 PARTIAL PLAN - SQUTH & WEST PAGE 15:CALCS ) :
PAGE 23: PARTIAL PLAN-NORTH & EAST - -PAGE 16: SHORING LOAD TABLES .
PAGE 4: SHORING PLAN — SOUTH & WEST . PAGE 17: ALLOWABRILE LUMBER STRESSES _
PAGE 5:SHORING PLAN —~ NORTH & EAST PAGE 18: CALCS. .
PAGE 6: ELEVATIONS A" AND "B - PAGE 15: CALCS.
PAGE 7:ELEVATION*C’ . PAGE 20: WIRE ROPE ATTACHMENT .
PAGE & WALKWAY SECTION*D” - PAGE 21: WIRE ROPE SPECS.’ i

"PAGE 8: WALL PANEL DETAILS PAGE 22: TURNBUGKLE SPECS.

PAGE 10: ENLARGED PLAN — TOWER #1 PAGE 23: EYE NUT SPECS.
PAGE 11: ENLARGED PLAN - TOWER #2 . PAGE24: ANCHOR 8PECS.
PAGE 12: ENLARGED PLAN .- TOWER ¥3 PAGE 25 ANCHOR SPECS
PAGE 13: ENLARGED PLAN - TOWER #4

PAGE 26: BEAM CLIP.SRECS..

1) WALKWAY IS DESIGNED FOR ALLIVE LDAD OF 85 POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT AND A
n LR meoe I G |
. DRAWINGS IS A MINIMUM OF SOUTHERN
YELLOWPINE #2 OR BETTER. (SEE PAGE 17) . : .

STRENGTH -OF 38,000 pei. : . Lo
4} ALL CONCRETE BARRIER PADS SHOWN ON THE ENCLOSED DRAWINGS SHALL HAVE
A MINIMUM 28 DAY-COMPRESSAVE STRENGTH OF 3000 pst, ]
5) ALL %" WIRE ROPE TIE-DOWNS (GUYS) SHOWN ON THE ENCLOSED DRAWINGS
" SHALL BEINSTALLED WITHA MINIMUM OF 3 FIST GRIPS PE PR :
TURNBUCKLES. (SEE PAGE20) - i
6) STRUCTURE SHALL BE PAINTED AS SHOWN ON PAGE 8. i
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milfion in debt for about $500,000 in cash, $48 million in new noles, and $15.7
million in the reorganized company's stock.

Trump Hotels recently reported a second-quarter loss of $17.6 million, or 59
cents a share, compared with a loss of $10 miliion, or 46 cents a share, in the
period a year earlier -- one yardstick of just how badly the company has been
performing. Moreover, Trump Hotels' cash reserves are shrinking. The company
said in its quarterly filing that it has $81.1 million on hand, down from $124.3

million in the first quarter of the year. The company had $106 million in cash on
hand at the end of the second quarter last year.

In an interview last night, Scoit C. Butera, executive vice president of Trump
Hotels, declined to say exaclly when a reorganization agreement was reached
with bondholders but said that disciosure of the agreement was made in a limely
fashion consistent with regulatory requirements,

May 6, 2004, Thursday Late Edition - Final

SectionC Page1 Column4 Desk: Business/Financial Desk Length:
898 words

Market Place; Trump Hotels Digs Deep for Cash To Try to Prop a Teelering
House

By TIMOTHY L. O'BRIEN and ERIC DASH

Veleran gamblers know better than to bet against the house. But what if the

house is owned by Donald J. Trump, whose cash-starved casino holdings are
struggling to stay afloat? *

Mr. Trump is essentially placing a high-slakes bet that his casinos will generate
enough cash over the next few weeks {0 make a $73.1 million debt payment that
is due at the end of the month. It will be a tight squeeze, even for someone with
the feline financial dexterity of Mr. Trump. Bankruptcy looms.

Buried at the botiom of he unaudited first-quarter eamnings report that Trump
Hotels and Casino Resorls released last Friday was a sobering figure: $91.4

million, the amount of cash that two of Mr. Trump's Atlantic City casinos can tap
to help meet the debt payment.

Though that cash trove exceeds the debt payment, it is not unencumbered. New
Jersey gambling regulators require casinos to keep areserve known as "cage
cash” to cover unexpected payouts to winning bettors and to provide a cushion
for tax payments and payroll. The cage cash reserve at the Trump Taj Mahal
and Trump Plaza, the casinos responsible for this month's debt payment, is

11943
' i TOB-EF-00005615



about $50 million -- meaning that only $41.4 million of the casinos' cash can be
applied to the $73.1 million tab,

The rest of the debt will have to be paid out of the two casinos' fresh cash flow,
which averaged about $12 million a month in the first quarter. Before the Borgata
casino opened in Atlantic City last year and began eating into the market share
of Trump Hotlels and Casinos, the two casinos had free cash flow of about $18
million a month from April through June.

That suggests that if the Trump casinos somehow manage to ante up all their
available cash, fork over the entirety of April and May's cash flow, and dodge
other unforeseen expenses for the rest of the month — they will have $65 million
to $77 million on hand in a few weeks to pay a $73.1 million obligation. It is
enough to make even reckless gamblers queasy.

Trump Hotels reported its eamings on Friday evening, an hour after the stock
market closed and when most of Wall Street was already on its way home for the
weekend. While the company's filing crept in like the fog on little cat feet, its -
finances are hardly elusive. Mr. Trump's company reporied a first-quarter loss of
nearly $49 million, about twice its loss a year earlier. Trump Hotels has
spultered along so-weakly that it has been unable to spend money on upgrading
to fend off the Borgata's advance (lhough, as the company's proxy filing on
Friday showed, Mr, Trump stili managed to receive a‘$1.5 million salary last
year).

Of course, one way out of this mess is to find a friendly outsider with deep
pockets. Mr. Trump is contemplating just thal. He says he is willing to cedé
control of the company and his job as chief executive to secure a $400 million
cash infusion from an investment bank, an arrangement that would be sub;ect to
the approval of the company's wary and battered bondholders.

A spokeswoman for the New Jersey Division of Gaming Enforcement, which
regulates the state's casinos, monitors their finances and sels cage-cash
guidelines, said that the agency believed that Trump Hotels was “financially
stable."

Andrew M. Susser, an analyst at Banc of America Securities, said he expected
the company to make. the debt payment, but that it would need to draw upon
April and May-revenue to do so. "Liquidity is cerlainly tight around coupon time,"
he said.

Mr. Trump has another Aflantic City casino, the Trump Marina, as well as small

11955
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casino operations elsewhere that he might consider as possible lenders, but
those casinos are already saddled with debi. Moreover, bond covenants and
gambling regulations hinder the casinos’ ability to share their funds.

Trump Hotels was supposed to make its debt payment on May 1, but it invoked
a 30-day grace period. Barbara Cappaert, an analyst at KDP Investment
Advisors, caulioned that the delay might reflect Mr. Trump's high-stakes
negolialing tactics as much as the company's current financial hardships.

"By withholding it, it shows immediately that they need to restruciure anditis a
carrot for bondholders," she said. "The implicit threat is that if they don't come to
an agreement, the company would dissolve."

Even if Trump Hotels has the cash to make its payment this month, it faces other
coupon payments this fall and thereafter. Marvin Roffman, an analyst and
longtime critic of Mr. Trump who predicted the Trump Taj Mahal's 1991
bankruptey, is once again gloomy about Mr. Trump's prospects.

"He continues to see erosion in market share, his working capital is gone and the
interest rate meter is starting to tick up,” Mr. Roffman said. "He is caught
between a rock and a hard place. Now, he knows how his ‘Apprentices' feel."

Images: Photo: Trump Hotels will tap the cash reserve at the Trump Taj Mahal,
above, to help meet a large debt payment due this month on it and another
Atlantic City casino. (Photo by Bloomberg News)

May 1, 2004, Saturday Late Edition - Final

SectionC Page2 Column 1 Desk: Business/Financial Desk Length:
800 words

Trump Hotels Reports Loss of $49 Million for First Quarter
By TIMOTHY L. O'BRIEN and ERIC DASH

Trump Holels and Casino Resorts, the centerpiece of Donald J. Trump's
struggling casino empire, reporied a quarterly loss of nearly $49 million
yesterday, further undermining the company's tenuous financial position and

complicating its ability to meet hefty debt payments due at the end of this month
and in the fall.

Trump Hotels has about $1.8 billion in debt that has drained the company of the
cash il needs to maintain is properties and compete effectively in the Atlantic
City gambling market. Over the iast few months, the company and its

1196,
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REED SMITH LLP

Forméd in the State of Delaware
Princeton Forrestal Village

136 Main Street, Suite 250

P.O. Box 7839

Princeton, New Jersey 08543-7839
(609) 987-0050

DEBEVOISE & PLIMPTON LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022

(212) 909-6000

Attomneys for Defendants

DONALD J. TRUMP,
Plaintiff,

V.

TIMOTHY L. O’BRIEN, TIME WARNER

BOOK GROUP INC., and WARNER
BOOKS INC,,

Defendants,

Pursuant to R, 4:17, Defendants Timothy L. O’Brien, Time Warner Book Group .

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION: CAMDEN COUNTY

DOCKET NO. CAM-L-545-06
CIVIL ACTION

DEFENDANTS? FIRST SET OF
INTERROGATORIES

Inc., and Wamer Books Inc. (collectively, “Defendants™), by and through their

undersigned attorneys and in accordance with the New Jersey Court Rules and the

definitions and instructions below, bereby propound this First Set of Interrogatories.

Defendants request that Plaintiff Donald J. Trump answer the following Interrogatories

within sixty (60) days of service. Such answers shall be served at the offices of

1127a



Defendants’ counsel, Debevoise & Plimpton LLP, 919 Third Avenue, New York, New

York 10022, or at such other location agreed by the parties.

DEFINTTIONS

1. “Plaintiff,” “you,” or “your” shall mean Donald J. Trump.

2.‘ “O’Brien” shall mean Timothy L. O’Br{en.

3. “Complaint” means the Complaint and Jury Demand in the instant lawsuit,
Docket No. CAM-L-545-06, served on February 8, 2006. '

4. “Book” shall mean TrumpNation: The Art of Being the Donald, written by
O’Brien and published in October 2005,

5. “Properties” shall mean all properties and assets, tangible or intangible,
directly or indirectly controlled, owned, or otherwise possessed, in whole or in part, by
you or a2 Trumnp-related entity (as defined below), or bearing upon your net worth, or
otherwise relating to this lawsuit, including but not limited to all properties and assets
relating to:

a, the “real estate holdings,” “residential, commercial, casino and
golf course properties,” “business ventures in the entertainment,
publishing, apparel, cosmetic, consumer and educational fields,”
“cash and personal investments,” “Trump’s brand name,”
“numerous extraordinary properties in New York and around the

country,” “entertainment businesses,” and “various.real estate

TisggT *

Fom
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venh&es,” which are referred to in paragraphs 3, 23, and 28 of the
Complaint;

“Trump Place,” which is referred to in paragraph 21 of the
Complaint;

“Trump Intemational Hotel and Tower/Chicago,” “Trump
International Hotel and Tower/Las Vegas,” “Atlantic City
casinos,” “Trump National Golf Club and Residences/Los
Angeles,” “Trump World Tower,” “Trump Park Avenue,” “The
Mansion in Palm Beach,” “Trump National Golf Club in
Bedminster, New Jersey,” and “Trump National Golf Club and
residences in Westchester, New York,” which are referred to in
paragraph 28 of the Complaint;

“The Apprentice,” “Trumped: The Radio Program,” and the “Miss
Universe and Miss USA Pageants,” which are referred to in
paragraph 23 of the Complaint; and

the properties listed on page 155 of the Book, including but not

" limited to: (f) 40 Wall Street; (ii) Trump Tower; (iif) Chicago

skyscraper; (iv) golf courses; (v) West Side Yards; (vi) “Other
Land”; (vii) “Condo inventory™; (viii) Shopping centers; and

(ix) Palm Beach real estate.

6. “Trump-related entities” shall mean ali corporations, organizations

(including but not limited to the Trump Organization), joint ventures, partnerships,

1198a



Iimited partnerships, lnmted liability companies, real estate investment trusts, investment
vehicles or other entities in which you directly or indirectly own or control—or, in the
past, directly or indirectly owned or controiled—any interest, in whole or in part, and all
affiliates of those entities, including but not limited to entities or affiliates relating to the
Properties.

7. “Document” is used in the broadest sense and, as used herein, shall be
undersfood to mean: (a) any written or graphic matter of any kind or character, however
produced or reproduced; (b) any electronically or magnetically recorded or stored matter
of any kind or character, however produced or reproduced; and (c) any other matter of
any kind or character constituting the recording of any tangible information or thing, or
stored in any retrievable way, by any means of communication or representation or data
retention. “Documeni(s)” refers to all materials on the subject matter of the request,
whether originated or received by you z‘and whether internal or otherwise, and shall be
deemed to refer to all eriginals, unidentical copies, and drafts (including any preliminary
or unexecuted drafts, including those marked to show as revisions of earlier drafis) of any
writing, record, or paper of any type or description, however produced or reproduced,
whether. handwritten, typewritten, printed, dictated, photocopied, photographed, or
recorded by any other means, however produced, now or formerly, in the actual or
constructive possession, custody, or-control of you or of which you have any knowledge.
“Docilment(s)" includes, but is not limited to, any and all correspondence, papers,
records, tables, charts, analyses, evaluations, graphs, schedules, reports, memoranda,

notes, notations, work papers, scrapbooks, lists, calendar entries, diary entries, letters
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(sent or received), appointment books, desk calendars, affidavits, statements, tabulations,
summaries, opinions, telegrams, telexes, cables, messages (including but not limited to
reports or recordings of telephone conversations or conferences), other records of
personal conversations, conferences or interviews, studies, books, periodicals, magazines

L]

booklets, circulars, bulletins, instructions, files, transcripts, minutes, records of inter- and
infra-office communications, records of any other type of communications,
questionnaires, contracts, agreements, assignments, licenses, ledgers, Journals, statistical
records, books of account, financial statements, orders, invoices, statements, bills, checks,
vouchers, notebooks, receipts, acknowledgments, drawings, plans, manuals, descriptions,
printed matter of any form, manuscripts, articles, publications, data processing cards,
computer generated matter or printouts, photographs, photographic negatives,
phonograph records, tape recordings, wire recordings, sound or video recordings, floppy
disks, hard disks, CD disks, CD-ROM disks, WORM disks, ROM chips, flash memory
chips, permanent RAM chips, data processing input and output, microfilm, microfiche,
any mechanical recordings, transcripts or logs of any such recordings, all other datd
compilations from which information can be obtained or translated if necessary, all other
records kept by electronic, photographic, or mechanical means, and any other refrievable
intelligence, however recorded, memorialized, or preserved. If a document has been
prepared in severat copies, or additional copies have been made, or copies are not

identical (or, by reason of subsequent modification of a copy by the addition of notations

or other modifications, are no longer identical) each non-identical copy is a separate

document,
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8. “Corxmtinications” means every contact or statement of any nature,
whether oral or written, from one persor to another, whether in the form of facts, ideas,
inquiries, or otherwise, and any evidence of such contact, including without limitation
any correspondence, memoranda, notes, diaries, daily calendars, electronic mail
messages, voicemail messages, “instant messages,” text messages, computer files,
electronic or magnetic media, or other documents or materials conceming or relating to
such contact.

9. “Person” shall mean any natural person, group of natural persons acting as
individuals, group of persons acting in a collegial capacity (e.g., as a committee, board of
directors, etc.), trust, corporation, parmership, limited partnership, joint venture, limited
liability company, government or governmental agency, any other incorporated or
unincorporated busiiess, government, or entity, as well as any “person” acting by or
through, directly or indirectly, any other “person” as well as any “person” by whom such
“person” was controlled.

10.  “Date” shall mean the exact day, month, and year, if ascertainable, or, if
not, the best available approximation, including an event’s temporal relationship to other
evenls.

11.  The word “any” shall be construed as the totality of all, any, each, and
every, and the word “all” shall be construed as the totality of all, any, each, and every.

12. When referring to a natural person, the use of “identify” or “identity of”
shall mean to set forth: (a) his or her name; (b} his or her business position and aﬁlia.ﬁon;

and (c) if he or she is not currently employed by you, his or her last known business and
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home addresses, including telephone numbers. If any of this information is unavailable,
provide other available means of identifying such person. Once a person has been fully
identified in your answer, such person may be identified thereafter by name alone.

13. When referring to any entity other than a natural person, the use of
“identify” or “identity of” shall mean to set forth: (2) its name and principal business
address; (b} the nature of its business; and {c) the name and position of the individual
purporting to act or speak for it or on its behalf. If any of this information is unavailable,

provide other available means of identifying such entity. Once an entity has been fully

identified in your answer, such person may be identificd thereafter by name alone.

14, When referring to documents, the use of “identify” shall mean to set forth:
(a) the type of document (c.g., letter); (b) its date; {c) authors; (d) recipients; (€) title, if
any; and (f) subject matter. If a document is no longer in your possession, custody, or
control, so state, identify the document to the best of your knowledge and state what
disposition was made of it, when, and by whom.

15. When referring to communications, if the communication was in the form
of a document, the use of “identify” shall mean to set forth (as defined above) the
document and specific language that constitutes the communication; and, if the
communication was oral or otherwise not in the form of a document, “identify” shall
mean {o set forth: (a) the time, date, and place of such communication; (b) whether it was
in person or by some other means; (¢) each person who was present at or’who
participated in such communication; (d) the words of such communication; and (e) each

document replicating or summarizing such cornmunication.
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16.  “Relating to” shall mean referring to, discussing, reflecting, dealing with,
analyzing, evaluating, estimating, constituting, conceming, describing, evidencing, or

pertaining to, in any way either directly or indirectly, and either in whole or in part.

INSTRUCTIONS

1. These interr;)gatoriés are directed to you and cover all information in your
possession, custody, and control, including information in the possession of your
employees, agents, employees, affiliates, attomeys, accountants, representatives, financial
or business advisors, or other persons directly or indirectly employed or retained by you,
or anyone elsé acting on your behalf or otherwise subject to your control.

2. Each Intenogato}y shall be construed as being inclusive rather than
exclusive, T.)ri'nging within the scope of the Interrogatory all responses that otherwise
might be construed to be outside of its scope. Thus, unless theé content of the
Interrogatory specifically states otherwise, references to the singular include the plural,
and vice versa; references to one gender include the other gender; references to the
preécnt tense incIu.de t-he pa-st; and disjunctive terms or phrases should be read to include
the conjunctive and vice versa.

3. In accordance with R, 4:17-7, these Interrogatories are continuing in
nature. You are obliged to change, supplement, and correct all answers to Interrogatories
and responses to the production request to conform to available information, including
such information as first becomes available to you after the.answers and production of

documents hereto are filed and made, should additional information become known or
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_ should information supplied in the answers or documents prove to be incomrect or

incomplete.

4, The answers to Interrogatories provided should first restate the questions

asked and also identify the person(s) supplying the information. The person supplying
the information shait certify to all such-responses.

5. In answering these Interrogatories, furnish all information that is available

to you or may be reasonably ascertained by you, including information in the possession

of any or your agents or altorneys, or otherwise subject to your knowledge, possession,

custody, or control, ’

6. When Interrogatories contain separately numbered or lettered paragraphs,

each separately numbered or lettered paragraph should be treated separately and a
Scparate response furnished.

7. Each Interrogatory shall be construed independently and not with

reference to any other Interrogatory for the purpose of limitation and shall be construed
as being inclusive rather than exclusive. Questions regarding the interpretation of these

Interrogatories should be resolved in favor of the broadest possible construction,

8. In answering these Interrogatories, if you encounter any ambiguity in

construing either the Interrogatory or a definition or instruction relevant to the inquiry

contained within the Interrogatory, set forth the matter deemed ambiguous, and set forth

the construction chosen or used in answering the Interrogatory.
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9. If you object to any part of an Interrogatory, answer all parts of such
Interrogatories to which you do not object, and, as to each part to which you object,
separately set forth the specific basis for the objection.

10.  Ifyou claim any form of privilege or other protection from disclosureasa
ground for withholding information contained in a non-written communication that is
responsive to an Interrogatory, or any part thereof, state the following with respect to the
non-written.communication: (a) the date thereof; (b) the identity of each of the
participants in the non-writien communication; {c} the identity of each person present
during all or any part of the non-written communication; (d) a description of the non-
written communication sufficient to identify the particular communication without
revealing the information for which a privilege or protection from non-disclosure is
claimed; (e) the nature of your claim of non-discoverability (e.g., attorney-client
privilege); and (f) each and every fact on.which you rest your claim of privilege or other
protection from disclosure, stated with sufficient specificity to permit Defendants to make
a full determination as to whether your claim is valid.

11.  If you claim any form of privilege or other protection from disclosure as a
ground for withholding information contained in a document that is responsive to an
Interrogatory, or any part thereof, set forth with respect to the document: (a) the date and
number.of pages;-(b) the identity of the author(s) or preparer(s); (c) the identity of the
addressee, if any; (d) the title of the document; (€) the type of document or other tangible
thing (e.g., letter, memorandum, telegram, chart, report, recording disc); (f) the subject

matter {(without revealing the information as to which privilege or protection from non-
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disclosure is claimed); (g) the identity of each person who has received the document or
to whom knowledge of the contents of the documnent was communicated; (h) the identity
of the present custodian(s); (i) the nature of your ¢laim of non-discoverability (e.g.,
attorney-client privilege); and () each and every fact on which you rest your claim of
privilege or other protection from disclosure, stated with sufficient specificity to permit

Defendants to make a full determination as to whether your claim is valid,

12, Ifyou claim any form of privilege or other protection from disclosure,

other than as set forth in Instructions 10 and 11, as a ground for not answering any

Interrogatory or any part thereof, set forth: (a) the nature of Your claim as to non-

discoverability; and (b) each and every fact on which yourest your claim or privilege or

other protection from disclosure, stating such facts with sufficient specificity to penmit

Defendants to make a full determination as to whether your claim is valid,

13. Ifyouknow of any responsive document, communication, or information,

but cannot give the specific information or the full information called for by a particular
Interrogatory,
tvery person you believe to have the required information.

14 Ifyou answer any Interrogatory by reference to records from which the

answer may be derived or ascertained, you shall identify such records in sufficient detail
to permit the interrogating party to locate and identify the records and to ascertain the
answer as readily as you could, including but not limited to by Bates number or file path.

15. Al documents, including electronically stored documents, shall be

produced in their native format,

11

" 1207a

P

so state and give the best information you have on thé subject, and identify -

-’
o



- 16,  Please attach.wﬁtten material to any answer for which written material is
requested and/or available. If such written material is not available, state where it may be
obtained. Label the written material with the number of the Interrogatory to which it
pertains.

17.  Tothe extent you 'contend that you lack of sufficient information to
respond fully to any Interrogatory, you shall: (a) respond to the extent able; (b) describe
the information preventing a fuller response; and (¢} explain why you are unable to obtain
that information.

18.  If you object to any Interrogatory on the grounds that the information ™

" sought is not available in the manner requested, provide data and/or information from
which the information counld be derived or (;btained in the manner sought.

19.  On each Interrogatory response, list the name and title of the person-or.
persons who prepared the response or who is responsible for the information contained
therein.

20. Unlessa rﬂqﬁest specifically states otherwise, the information sought in
these Interrogatories covers the time period of January 1, 2000 to February 8, 2006.

21.  These Interrogatories are submitted for the purpose of discovery and are
not to be taken as waiving any obligation to introduce at trial evidence on subjects
covered by these Interrogatories or an admission of lthe admissibility at trial of any

evidence pertaining to any of the matters covered by these Interrogatories.
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INTERROGATORIES

L Identify each communication that you allege to have been defamatory,

including but not limited to the specific words alleged to have been defamatory.
Answer:

2. Set forth your net worth within $50 million, or as precisely as possible, as
of-each of the following dates: (a) Augnst 1, 2004; (b) March 5, 2005; (c) April 21, 2005;
(@) April 25, 2005; () October 26, 2005; and (f) as of the date of Your response to these
Interrogatories. For each of these dates, set forth how you caleulated or arrived at the net

worth you set forth. If you are unable for any of these dates to set forth your net worth
within $50 million, explain why you cannot.

Answer:

3. As of the first day of each year from 2000 to 2005, and also as of April 21
2005 and October 26, 2005: (a) identify each of your as;ets and liabilities; (b) specify the
value that you assigned to each asset apd liability at the relevant times as well as any
alternative valuations and responses thereto; (c) explain the basis for the value that you

specified for each asset and liability; (d) cxplain the terms of your ownership interest in
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each asset as well as the terms of your obligations regarding each liability; and (g)
identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,

Answer:

4. Set forth the complete factual basis for the claim contained in paragraph 3
of the Complaint that “the value of Trump’s brand name alone is huge, amounting in
itself to hundreds of millions, if not billions, of doliars of value,” specify any alternative
valuations and responses thereto, and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,
including but not limited to any financial statements {audited, unandited, or compilations)
or other documents that assign a particular value to the Trump brand name.

Answer:

5. Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 6 of the Complaint that O’Brien referred to Trurap as a “financial
pornographfer],” and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

14
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6. Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 6 of the Complaint that “O’Brien knew that the statements in his book about
Trump’s net worth were false—and subsequently admitted on at least two occasions that

those statements were erroneous and that Trump was worth considerably more than $150

million to $250 million,” and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto, For each

of these two alleged occasions, set forth: (a) the exact words, if known, and, ifnot
known, the substance of it; (b) the date it was made; (c) all persons present when it was
made (if oral); (d) all persons to whom it was made or provided (if written); (e) the place

where it was made; (f) the method ofits communication; and (g) all persons, to your

Imowledge, with whom it was discussed.

Answer:

7. Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 7 of the Complaint that “Warner also knew that O’Brien’s statements about
Trump’s net worth were false and knew or should have known that O’Brien was an
unreliable and irresponsible reporter who had a history of using his position to pursue

malicious personal vendettas against the subject of his reporting,” and identify and attach

all documents relevant thereto,
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Answer:

8. Set forth the comp.]ete factual basis for the allegations contained in
paragraph 21 of the Complaint that O’Brien: (a) “scarcely glanced at any of the thousands
of pages of documents made available to him” on April 21, 2005; and (b) instead spent
“most of the time . . . inappropriately [trying] to pressure [Michelle] Scarbrough to go on

a date with him.” Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

9. Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegations contained in
paragraph 22 of the Complaint that “O’Brien continued to harass Ms. Scarbrough” and
that he “admitted [to her] that Trump’s ownership of Trump Place . . . was by itself worth
more than $500 million,” and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:
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10.  Identify all communications between Michelle Scarbrough and any

individuals relating to O’Brien or any of the other Defendants, and identify and attach all

relevant documents thereto.

Answer:

11, Set forth the facts and circumstances swrounding the June 2005 sale of
Trump Place and/or the “West Side Project” as referenced in paragraph 26 of the

Complaint, including but not limited to information on any payments or funds due to you

. as a result of the sale, and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,

Answer:

12, Set forth the complete factual basis for the claim contained in paragraph

28 of the Complaint that, “prior to the publication of the book, Trump had invested
dpproximately $380 million in cash . . . in various real estate ventures,” including but not
limited to the following information for each investment: (a) the identity of the real estate
venture; (b) the identity of the investor (e.g., you or a specific Trump-related entity); (c)
structure (e.g,, LLC, LLP, or Inc.); (d) amount invested; (€) specific source.of funds; (f)

accounts from which fimds were withdravn; (g) any related loans or other indebtedness
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or liability for which'you or any Trump-related entity were liable, potentially liable, or
guaranteed; and (h) the identity of any other parties to the transaction. Identify and attach
all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

13,  Set forth the complete factual basis for the claim contained in paragraph
28 of the Complaint that, at the time of the book’s publication, you maintained -
“approximately $117 million in cash,” including but not limited to the accounts in which
such funds resided and whether such fonds were in anyway encumbered or pledged, and

identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

14.  Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 32 of the Complaint that O’Brien made “false statements about Trump’s

relationship \\{ith his children,” and identify and attach. all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:
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15.  Identify any individual known to You or any of your agents who

approached O’Brien at the Coliseum Books event referenced in paragraph 32 of the

Complaint. State the substance of what the individual said to O’Brien.

Answer:

16.  Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 33 of the Complaint that O’Brien has a “history of anti-Trump reporting,” and
identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

:J

7. Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 36 of the Complaint that: (8) O*Brien “resorted to unprofessional and unethical
tactics, including physical and verbal harassment, to intimidate sources into providing
information”; and (b) “Trump received complaints from business associates, employees
and former employees that O*Brien was using harassment and threats to try to pressure

them into making false, defamatory and misleading statements about Trump.” Identify

all individuals that O’Brien allegediy harassed, intimidated, or threatened, as well as
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those individuals reporting such allegations. In addition, idenfify and attach all
documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

18.  Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegations contained in
paragraph 37 of the Complaint (upon information and belief) that: (a) “various persons
have filed complaints with the New York City Police Department after being stalked and
threatened by O’Brien’; (b) “O’Brien has threatened sources by telling them he can
‘settle scores’ with enemies by writing negative articles about them™; (c) “O’Brien has
been accused of atternpting to use his position as a reporter to obtain dates, or other
entanglements, with women™; (d) “O’Brien was terminated by the Wall Street Journal for
violation of company policy”; (€) “O’Brien has been accused by sources and subjects

alike of a volatile, uncontrolldble témper™; and (£) “it has been reported that O’Brien has
boasted that “access to the /New York] Times pages to settle personal scores was a fringe
benefit available to New York Times reporters.”” Identify and attach all documents

relevant thereto, and identify all witnesses with information relating to these allegations.

Answer:
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19.  Set forth the complete factual basis for the allegation contained in
paragraph 38 of the Complaint that Warner “knew of O’Brien’s longstanding personai
animus toward Trump and O’Brien’s Jayson Blair-like proclivity for substituting fiction

for fact in his report,” and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,

Answer;

20.  To the present, set forth the nature and amount of, and facts and data
supporting each and every claim of damages in this action, including a description of: (a)
the method used to calculate the total amount of such damages; (b) the source of all facts
and data supporting such damages; (c) all persons involved in making such calculations
of damages; and (d) all persons with knowledge of such damages or any data used to

calculate such damages, Identify and attach hereto copies of all documents on which you

relied'in calculating such damiages.

Answer:

21, To the present, set forth the details of any deals that you believe were

prevented or interfered with because of the allegedly defamatory statements referenced in

your Complaint, including but not lirnited to transactions, purchases, sales, transfer of
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real or other assets, or other arrangements. Specify the nature and basis for your belief,
and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

22.  Identify any accountantis or accounting firms, attorneys or law firms, or
other financial or legal professionals that you or any Trump-related entity have retained

in the past five years.

Answer;

23. . Identify any financial institution, any labor union or entity related to or
affiliated with a labor union, or any other person or entity from whom or which you or
any Trump-related entity has received or to whom or which you or any Trump-related
entity has extended loans, officer loans, advances, lines of credit, letters of credit, debt
financing, or any other type of extension of credit. Set forth the details relating to each
such instance, including but not limited to: (a) total amount received or extended; (b)
terms and conditions, including applicable interest rate and repayment period; () whether
secured or unsecured; (d) collateral, if any; and (e) cuzrent amount outstanding, if any.

. Identify and attach-all documents relevant thereto,
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Answer:

24, For the period of January 1, 1990 to February 8, 2006, identify any family
member, family trust, or estate of a deceased family member, from whom or which you
or any Trump-related entity has received or to whom you or any Trump-related entity has
extended loans, officer loans, advances, lines of credit, letters of credit, debt financing, or
any other type of extension of credit. Set forth the details relating to each such instance,
including but not limited to: (a) total amount recejved or extended; (b) terms and
conditions, including applicable interest rate and repayment period; (c) whether secured
or unsecured; (d) collateral, if any; and (e) current amount outstanding, if any. Identify

and attach all documents relevant thereto. .

Answer:

25.  Set forth the details relating to any real estate transactions — not already

detailed in your answer to Interro gatory 12 — in which you or any Trump-related entity

participated, including but not limited to the following information for each transaction:
() the identity of the real estate; (b) the identity of the investor (e.g., you or a specific
Trump-related entity); (¢) structure (¢.g, LLC, LLP, or Jnc.); (d) amount invested; ()
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specific source of funds; (f) accounts from which funds were withdrawn; (g) any related
loans‘or other indebtedness or liability for which you or any Trump-related entity were
liable, potentially liable, or guaranteed; and (h) the identity of any other involved parties.
Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

26.  If youhave been involved in any lawsuit, other than this litigation, set”
forth for each lawsuit: (a) your role in the case; (b) the nature of the case; (¢) your
attorneys in the matter; (d) the other parties to the case and their attorneys; (€) the coust
and docket number; and.(f) the disposition of the case.

Answer:

27.  Identify all persons with knowledge, information, or documents
concerning your net worth (past or present) or any other subject matter of the foregoing
interrogatories, and state with particularity for each such person the substance of such

knowledge and information as well as how it was acquired.
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28.  Identify every representation made by you or on your behalf regarding

your net worth, including any reference to an estimated value or to a general
classification of your wealth (e.g., billionaire or millionaire). In addition, identify and

attach all documents referencing or supporting each representation.

Answer;

29.  For the period of January 1, 2000 to the present, set forth the details

relating to all estimates of your net worth of which you are aware, including estimates
contrary to your own estimates, and identify the individnal or entity making each

estimate. In addition, identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,

Answer:

30.  Forthe period of January 1, 2000 to the present, identify all

communications in which anyone has questioned you or any of your employees or
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representatives, directly or indirectly, and whether in writing, orally, electronically,
telephonically, or otherwise, about your net worth or more generally about whether you
are a millionaire or billionaire.

Answer:

31.  Identify all individuals who created or contributed to the content of the
brochure left in guest rooms at Mar-a-Lago, which estimated your net worth at $9.5
billion (referenced on page 154 of the Book). Set forth the complete factual basis for that
estimate, including but not limited to the sonrce(s) of information used in connection with
the estimate, and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

32.  Identify every instance relating to your business dealings and those of any
Trump-refated entity in which you exaggerated or misrepresented the truth. In addition,

identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.
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Answer:

33.  Identify every instance in which someone else claimed, in relation to your
business dealings and those of any Trump-related entity, that you exaggerated or
misrepresented the truth, including: (a) the identity of the claimant; (b) date; (c) nature of

claim; and (d) resolution, if any, In addition, identify and attach all documents relevant

thereto. :

Answer:

34.  Identify every instance in which your accounting books or those of any -
Trump-related entity did not comply and/or were found not to have complied with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and state the reasons therefor,

Answer:

35.  Set forth the details relating to every instance from 1975 to the present in

which: (a) you or anyone on your behalf (inclnding your attorneys or other
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representatives) threatened a;ly individual or entity with a lawsuit claiming defamation
(libel‘or slander) and/or filed such a lawsuit; or (b) you or any Trump-related entity were
threatened with or actually were sued for defamation (libel or slander). Identify and
attach all documents relevant thereto, including related communications and any
pleadings. If a lawsuit was filed, state: (a) the court and docket number; (b) all parties to
the lawsuit and their attomneys; and (c) the disposition.

Answer:

36.  Set forth the details relating to all contracts to which you or any Trump-
related entity has been a party, and which were in effect at any point during the period
J anuary 1, 2004 to Febmary 8, 2006 gnd were worth or involved payments exceeding
$25,000, including: (2) the nature of the contract; (b) date; (c) other parties; and (d)
current status of the contract. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer:

37.  Set forth the details relating to all speeches, lectures, or other addresses
you have made and, if any, the remuneration you received for each, including but not

limited to in connection with the Learning Anuex. For each, identify and attach all
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documents relevant thereto, inchuding: (a) any contract; (b) a text of the address and/or
notes used in delivering the address; and (c) any audio, video, or other recordings.

Answer:

38.  Identify all communications that you made about O’Brien or the Book,
and identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Answer: )

39.  Identify all of your communications, including but not limited to in any of
your books, periodicals, articles, letters, blog postings, or public statements, in which you
included information gathered from a confidential or unnamed source and did not
disclose the source’s identity.

Answer:

40.  Identify each person you believe to have knowledge regarding the factual

allegations set forth in the Complaint,
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Answer:

41. . Identify each person likely to have discoverable information that you may

use to support your claims, identifying the subjects of the information.

Answer:

Dated: Aungust 21,2006

REED SMITH LLP

o 3t
]ﬁfenl Picco, BEsq.
es F. Dial, Bsq.
136 Main Street, Suite 250
Princeton Forrestal Village

Princeton, New Jersey 08540
(609) 987-0050

Mary Jo White, Bsq.

Andrew J. Ceresney, Esq.

Andrew M. Levine, Esq.
Of Counsel

DEBEVOISE & PLIMPTON LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022
(212) 909-6000
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CERTIFICATION IN LIEU OF QATH OR AFFIDAVIT

I hereby certify that the answers to Defendants’ First Set of Interrogatories are
true and correct. [ am aware that if any of the foregoing statements made by me is

willfully false, I am subject to punishment,

Donald J. Trump

DATED: , 2006
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Colleoquy 4

THE COURT: -- on the record under L-545-06.
Counsel, your appearance for the record?

MR. TAMBUSSI: Your Homor, William M.
Tambussi of Brown and Comnery, with Mark Ressler of
Kasowitz -- Kasowitz, Benson, Torres and Friedman of
New York. Mr. Ressler will be arguing the substance --
substantive motion on the shield privilege.

MR. MELODIA: Good morming, Your Honor. Mark
Melodia from Reed Smith for the defendants. And with
me is Andrew Ceresney from the Debevoise Firm, who has
admitted pro hac vice. And Mr. Ceresney will also be
arguing on the substance of the privilege motion and we
can decide whether the motions Your Honor wants to heaxr
this morning, in terms of discovery issues and the
like. .

THE COURT: Okay. Gentlemen, you did send wme
quite a bit of paper and I think you focused on the
issues rather well. I don’t know how much oral
argument really is needed.

I think the first thing we should talk about
and we have to talk about is the conflict of laws
issue. And, again, I‘'ve read everything and, quite
frankly -- well, it appeared that there is a conflict
in the laws. And we all know how strong the shield law
in New FErsey, it’s an absolutely privilege and it’s

Ressler - Argument 5

rather extensive. Whereas New York, on the other hand,
during the absolute privilege aspect of the statute, it
seems to be somewhat aligned with New Jersey, but a
little bit, I think, more liberal as far as allowing
for disclosures.

But then we have another aspect of New dJersey
law that talks about non-confidential sources and we’ll
be talking a little bit about what is and is not non --
confidential or non-confidential, I've had the
opportunity to read the entirety of the book a couple
times in preparation for the motion.

So let’s talk about that aspect where we’re
talking about actual conflict. Is there actual
conflict between the laws of the two states? Hear from
the plaintiff first.

MR. RESSLER: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: And again, please, don’t txry --
don’t rehash what you have in the papers. I -- I see
that there’s potential conflict in the laws.

MR. RESSLER: Judge, I think Your Honor's
comment is on the mark. I mean, I think that the Hew
Jersey :statute probably is more -- can be interpreted
as being more encompassing and more protective with
respect to the absolute protection.

Our view is that the result is the same under
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. Ressler - BArgument 6

either state’s shield law, as well as the fact that we
just applied the restatement of the conflicts of laws,
which applies the most significant relationship test.
And we came out believing that New York actually has
the most significant relationship, if you apply that
test, based on the fact that Trump is domiciled in New
York, which is really the key in the defamation
context, as well as the fact that the defemdants do
theixr business in Wew York, Trump’s -- has a real
estate empire all over the globe, but,, you know,
primarily it‘’s in New York, Trump Plaza and Trump World
Tower, etcetera.

So we believe that under that wmost

significant relationship test, New York -~ New York
shield law should govern. But again, we view the
result being the same, whether it’s New Jersey -~ the

New Jersey statute ox the New York statute.

THE COURT: No, I‘m necessarily sure that I
agree with you there, but there are substantial
contacts with New York. But -- but look where we're
sitting. This is pretty far from New York, about 90
miles southwest of New York. He picks the forum, puts
himgelf in our courts. -
MR. RESSLER: Right.

THE COURT: New Jersey has a substantial

¢

Lol WE

Ressler - Argument 7

governmental interest in the protection of journalists,
in fact, one of the strongest interests in the United
States to protect journalists. So, if that’s, in fact,
the interest-of New Jersey, low can I possibly accept
New Jersey law and why should accept -- I mean, strike
that -- New Jexrsey -- New York law. Why should I
accept New York law? Wouldn’t that go against the
public policy and the interest of the State of New

Jexrsey? :

‘MR. RESSLER: dJudge, I appreciate that.
You’'re absolutely right, Mr. Trump wanted to be in New
Jersey -~

! THE COURT: Isn't that one of the important
aspects of -the conflicts, as set forth in the
Restatement?

MR. RESSLER: ' It is -- I mean, it -- well, in
the restatement,  again, we -- we think that the most
significant relationship test is -- is the --

THE COURT: O’Brien lives in New Jersey, if
I'm not mistaken.

. MR. RESSLER: -2 is the proper test. He
‘does, but he:i-- .- .
© -+ THE COURT<: * Ckay.
MR.: RESSLER: ~ -- ‘he carries out his business

' for the New York'Times,~as he says in his papers, in

1231a ,
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Ressler - Argument 8

New York. So ~- and -- and I guess the key point with
respect to the defamation context, in terms of the
conflict of law is -- is where the plaintiff is harmed,
where the injury is sustained. Now, Mr. Trump --

THE COURT: Yeah, but -- but -- but you have
to understand New York has a dual interest and their
statute sets Fforth a dual interest, the absolute
privilege is accorded to protect the interests of the
journalist. Non-confidential source bazlance test, much
like we have in the constitutional test, deals with the
litigant.

So we’re looking at the public policy of the
two states. New Jersey it's protect the journalist and
really doesn’t care about who the litigant is. New
York has a different view. So we have, on the positive
side for the defendants, Mr. Trump selects New dexrsey
to litigate the case. He has real estate holdings in
New Jersey.

MR. RESSLER: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Mr. O‘Brien is a resident of the
State of New Jersey, not you -- New York. So how do we
overcome those three variables? And the fact, most
importantly he picks this as a forum for some -
unspecified reason. I still don‘t know what the reason
is, it ?ade nO sense to me. But hey, listen, it’'s

Ressler - Arqument 9

here. The book was distributed in 50 states rlus
probably translated into Qod knows how many languages.
He probably could have filed suit in Tokyo.

MR. RESSLER: Well, Mr. Trump wanted to file
in New Jersey, he has very important business
interests, as Your Honor correctly alluded to, in New
Jersey, he’s got real estate holdings in New Jersey.

So there’s no question that this is the -~ this is the
forum he selected, Your Honor is absolutely right, and
-~ and we want to be here. But, again, we ~- we viewed
-~ and the reason we said in our yapers that we believe
New York law applies is because of the injuries
gsustained by Mr. Trump primarily occurs in New York. I
mean, that’s where he carries on his business, the
Trump Organization is based there. It‘s the media
capital of the country.

THE COURT: Well, we talked about another
aspect of the restatement, where diq the tort occur,
where did the injury occur. The injury occurred,
theoretically, throughout the 50 states. Where did the
toxt occur? The tort occurs at the time of
publication, Which, as we all know from the book, is
New York, because it tells me about: the third page in.

All right. I understand your position. With
respect to New York now, when we‘re -- You can sit down
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Ceresney - Argument 10

now.

MR. RESSLER: Thanks, Judge. :

THE COURT: Talk about New York. I just gave
you the three variables for New Jersey.

MR. CERESNEY: And Your Honor, my usual
approach to these things is when --

" THE COURT: -- cduickly, I'm telling you,
because you’re gonna wake a mistake by doing that.

MR. CERESNEY: Yes, exactly. Well, Your
Honor, I mean, when you‘ve made the point so
eloquently, it‘s hard for wme to --

THE COURT: Okay. Well, --

MR. CERESNEY: -- to make it --

- THE' COURT: -- forget that, take the hip
waders off and start talking to me. Let’s talk about
New York for God's gakes. You got --

MR. CERESNEY: Sure. )

THE COURT: You got Gotham City, what a
beautiful picture of Donald Trump and all these fine
buildings that I just saw Saturday when I was in the
city. You know, this is a book that primarily deals

‘with the City of New York. Donald Trump is a resident

of the City of New York, despite the £act that he has
holdings in New Jersey, holdings in Florida and God
knows w?ere else, Chicago as well. We have that.

wo-anuldwH

Ceresney - Argument R 5 X

We have a tort that occurs in New York,
publication; alleged tort that occurs in New York,
publication of the book. We have Mr. O'Brien, who has
his éntire professional life in New York and his
credibility stems from his relationship and his
acceptance of his relationship with New York. 1 think
one of the notations I made -- let me just see if I can
find it here.

®Tt would appear that, although, in New
Jersey’s absolute privilege purpose im to protect the
journalist, O’Brien is a New York journalist, his
professional association with the press and the
publications of New York is where he has gained his
professional reputation.” ;

He says it in the back of the book. I mean,
yeah, I love it when we just read the dust covers when
you go in Borders or --

MR. CERESNEY: Sure. :

THE COURT: -- Barnes and Noble and you say,

"Oh well, tell me a little bit about this author, I
don‘t know Tim O’Brien” -- I do, because I read the New

York Times ~-- but what -- what is it that O’Brien says
he is? He’s a staff writer with New York Times, he'’'s
written about leading business personalities, computer
scam, ‘Rudsia, the art world, Wall Street, terroxism,
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Ceresney - Argument 12

money, politics and Donald Trump. Prior to joining the
Timeg he was a reporter with the Wall Street Jourmal.
O'Brien has also contributed to other publications,

including Talk Magazine, where he was a senior feature
writer.

MR. CERESNEY: Well --
THE COURT: And it talks about he -~
MR. CERESNEY: Of course, my opinion, Your
Honor --
THE COURT: He lives outside of TrumpRation.
MR. CERESNEY: Outside of TrumpNation.
THE COURT: Inferentially, New York.
MR. CERESNEY: That’s right.
THE COURT: And it says also knows New York

City. So -- and Talk Magazine, by the way, is a
defunct --

MR. CERESNEY: It is.

THE COURT: -~ magazine that was published
out of New York.
MR. CERESNEY: All -- all true, Your Honor.

But all irrelevant to the conflict of laws here.
Because what Your Honor put your finger on is the exact
issue here, which is, first of all, he brought suit-
here and the irony, of course, is hers asking to apply
a law that states where he could have --

I

Ceresney - Argument i3
THE COURT: But if that --
MR. CBRESNEY: -- filed it in any --
THE COURT: -- wag all the -- that was all

the .gravamen of where we apply the law,
file suit here, we wouldn’
we wouldn’t have the resta
had headaches when we we'r
issues.

everybody would
t have any conflict of laws,
tement and we wouldn’t have
e all in law school about the

*

which is, as Your Honor had wentioned, the strongest ,
one of the strongest in the nation trumps that.

But even if it didn’t, even if the
significant relationship --

THE COURT: Pardon the .pun? .

MR. CERESNEY: Exactly. The -- even if the
significant relationship test governed,. Your Honor, I‘d
point Your Honor to Sack on Defamation, which talks
about: L :

"In several cases courts have refused to
apply the law of the Plaintiff’s domicile, where the
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Ceresney - Argument 14

plaintiff has sued in another state. The state where
the defendant is domiciled or where the defendant’s
place of business is located and where another state,
typically the forum, has a significant relationship to
the parties or the issues."
. Now, that is specifically applicable here.

You pointed out that Mr. O’Brien is a resident of New
Jersey and, in fact, the book jacket says that. Mr.
Trump has extensive business dealings here. As you
pointed out, his reputation, according to him, is
international and any damage allegedly that occurred
here, as you pointed out, could occur throughout the
world, in theory. And we would argue obviously no
damage occurred here. So, even under that test, we
think New Jersey applies.

But, Your Honor, your point about it not .
really mattering is exactly right, because section 139
of the restatement specifically says you apply in a
privilege situation -- which this is -- you apply
significant relationship’s test unless, gquote,
radmission of such evidence would be contrary to the
strong public policy of the forum."

THE COURT: Sure. And that’s a big -~ -

VOO0 AW

MR. CERESNEY: and -- .
THE COURT: That’s a -- that's a -- T .
I
Ceresney - Argument 15

MR. CERESNEY: That’s huge.

THE COURT: -- big aspect of what’s going on
here.

MR. CERESNEY: Game over, Your Honor, I
think. ’

What you have going on here is you have New
Jersey in Maressa specifically saying that this is such
an important public policy, that it will overxcome the
rights of the plaintiff to xecover in a libel action if
the shield statute ~-

THE COURT: Now, I -- I --

MR. CERESNEY: -- covers it.

THE COURT: I know you’ve alleged that Mr.
O’Brien sometimes writes in New Jersey, but when you
look at the balance of the public policy aspects, the
way I view it -- again, I use a totality test, I can’t
help it, my background’s being a criminal judge, we all
know that. But I look at the totality of the
circumstances in a situation like this, what’s the
public interest -- the public policy interest in New
Jersey? A protection of the journalist.

. But is he a New York journalist or is he a

New Jersey journalist? And when we’re looking at
that, would it really impair the public policy for the
State of New Jersey to apply New York law to this;

=

12355 i




wE-JAO N, WHNH

WU

HREEERESEREREH

N
(500

Ceresney ~ Argument 16

when, although he is a resident, he certainly is a
journalist in New York. As I’ve said, he states his
professional reputation, he obtained his reputation by
being a New York journalist and merely living across a
body of water would not change that.

And ~- and, again, -- so when we’re looking
at public policy here, we‘re looking at the public
policy of the State of New Jersey, the forum where --
where he selected and I'm saying to myself, "Well, wait
a second.” Remember, yeah, I think the case law says
it's a totality test. So I look at the quality of the
elements. And by the way, if we looked at quantity,
New York would be applicable.

If we look at the quality of what’s going on
here -- and -- and again, another factor -- and I know
you probably don’t realize it -~ when you -- when you
read through the entirety of the book -- and T don’t
know if you gentlemen have done that and I'm not gonna
put you on the spot --

MR. CERESNEY: We have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. You have or have not?
MR. CERESNEY: We have. We have.

THE COURT: A couple times probably. -
MR. CERESNEY: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: At least. If you look at the

Ceresney - Argument 17

number of references to where the interviews took place

MR. CERESNEY: Yeah.

THE COURT: -~ or where the -interview --
well, most of it occurred in New York City and we --
we‘re talking about the work here. I know we’re -- I
just want to tell you what further contacts there are.

MR. CERESNEY: Sure and here's where I gat --

THE COURT: Short of being in a Ferrari in
West Palm Beach speeding through and didn’t get a
ticket and --

MR. CERESNEY: 1It’s ~-- here’s what we did,
for example, --

THE COURT: o ahead.

MR. CERESNEY: You -- you said that the
policy is to protect the journalist.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. CERESNEY: I think that the -- that’s too
narrow, with all respect, a too narrow of a conception
of what the policy is. It --

THE COURT: Well, it‘s to protect the
litigant?

MR. CERESNEY: It’‘s to protect --

THE COURT: In -New Jersey?

MR. CERESNEY: -- the sources. It‘s to
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Ceresney - Argument 18

protect the public, who has a right to this
information. .

THE COURT: We’re not-gonna get there yet,
because we’re gonna be then talking about what is and
isn’t news.

MR. CERESNEY: That’s right, Your Honoxr, and
we’re happy to talk about that. I think that the --

THE COURT: Well, not right now.

MR. CERESNEY: Okay. And -- and --

THE COURT: We’ll get to that.

MR. CERESNEY: 2And we will. But let’'s just
assume for the moment that this is news. They’'re --
it’s not just the journalist that the statute is
intended to protect. I think that that, with all
respect, is too narrow a conception of this. What this
is, a desire to protect the-confidential sources and

. the news-gathering process, so that.the public can

benefit from the information that is received through
that process. It’s a much larger policy than simply
the notion of Mr. O’Brien being protected.
I think that’s clear from Maressa, Your

Honor. If you read Maressa -- and I know Your Honor
has probably many times, I certainly have -- it comes
through that this is not just a policy which protects
Mr. O'Bﬁien, it’*s a conception that the legislature has

Ceresney - Argument 19

niade a judgment that there is a benefit in a news-
gathering process that is unhindered and un -- and
unhampered by anybody looking at the -- the -- that
actual process. And that people who fear retribution,
confidential sources, should be encouraged to come
forward, knowing that this broad statute would apply.
THE COURT: Well, if this is a category of
news, whether I use the New Jersey law or -- ox the New

. York law, you're still protected with an absolute

privilege, right? )

MR. CERESNEY: I -- I agree.

THE COURT: If it’s a confidential source.

. MR. CERESNEY: I agree. BAnd that’s why the

first thing. I.-was gonna say --

THE COURT: In fact, your adversary agrees,
it*s -- no watter what the law is that I apply, the .
outcome is the same. So, is it -~ don’t you agree with
that? Tt

MR. CERESNEY: I actually agree with that,
but -~ L
THE COURT: If it's news?
MR. CERESNEY: -- for a different reason.
Because I think, .certainly on the confidential souxces,
it‘s absolute .and we don’t have to even go any further.
And on the non+con§iaential sources, I don't think he

-
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Ceresney - Argument 20

wet his qualified -- his burden of overcoming the
qualified --

THE COURT: You just made a broad statement
that I don’'t agree with. You said it qualifies as
news. I forget how you just said ik, but --

MR. CERESNEY: Confidential source.

THE COURT: There -- there are -- there’s
marked differences in the languages of New Jersey
statute and even the absolute privilege statutes in the
State of New York. BAnd actually, it‘s a broader view
of -- or a more narrow view in New York of what’s the
news as opposed to what’s defined as news in New
Jersey.

MR. CERESNEY: That's right.

THE COURT: But --

MR. CERESNEY: I agree. But my point is, the
result here is the same, Your Honor, because here the
confidential sources, at least on the confidential
source information, given the nature of these
confidential sources hexe, both New York and New Jersey
would protect those absolutely. Forget about the
language, the result is the same under both, under the
confidential sources.

On the non-confidential sources -- and,
actually, what we tried to do, Your Honor, because this

Ceresney - Argument . 21

is obviously a little bit of a -- of confusing, as in
our brief we had a chart where we sort of tried to put
the different categories and what would be the
privilege that would apply under those different
categories, and it’s on page 33 of our brief. But for
the non-confidential information, what we’re talking
about in New York is a qualified privilege and what
we're talking about in -~

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not -~

MR. CERESNEY: -- New Jexrsey --

TEE COURT: -- sure I got a constitutiomnal
test,

MR. CERESNEY: Right. And the absolute
privilege. 2And I don’t think they‘ve met the qualified
privilege here anyway with regard to the non-
confidential information. They haven’t shown
materiality, criticality or exhaustion. And we can
talk about that later, to the extent Your Honor gets
there. I don’t think he should, because I think New

Jersey law applies; but even if you do, don’t think
they’ve met that.

So our -- you know, my point, Your Honor, is
New York law, even if it applies, you know, we still
are protected here and the information would still be
privileged. But I think it‘s clear that because the

}238a
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Ceresney / Ressler - Argument 22

policy of New Jersey is so broad, because it applies so
strongly, because the legislature has made such a
strong statement, as indicated in Maressa, that New
Jersey has to control here. 2and he's filed suit here,
s0 ultimately it -- if that’s the ruling, it’'s
certainly not any inequity to him.

THE COURT: Any response?

MR. RESSLER: Judge, just one response with
respect to counsel’s statement that the sources -- the
sources are ultimately among the parties who really
have the crucial interest here. I don't know where
they live. For all we know, they’re New Jersey -- I
mean, they're New York residents and they work in New
York and they live in New York. : If defendants want to
tell us where they live, that would be a start towards
disclosing who they are. But of course, you know,
we‘re in a catch-22, this whole hearing is about our
need to know who those sources are, their names, from
there we would £ind out, you know, what -- what
jurlsdlctlon they live in, work in, etcetera.

So, I think it's dAifficult to say that the --
the statutes protect the sources and we’re supposed to
decide which statute applies based on protecting the
sources, when we don’t even know where the sources live
and where they work.

!

Findings by the Court 23

THE COURY: We’rvre talking about -- when you
talk about sources, I categorize a source as page 154
sources --

" ° MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: -- or other confidential sources
that have beén referred to throughout the book. And
there are not a lot of them, but we certainly don’t
know where the page 154 sources live. BAnd we’ll talk
about whether or not they’re confidential or non-
confidential in a moment, because I‘m -- I -- I tell
you, in weighing everything, there’s no doubt there was
a conflict in the laws.

There’s no doubt about that New Jersey public
policy is a strict policy to protect journallsts.
There’s no doubt about it. Very little in dispute as
to, well, where the situs of the tort eccurred and that
the tort occurred in New York, it was published in New
York. But for the publlcatlon, we wouldn't be sitting
here today. No question that damage was done to the
plaintiff in New York, as well as throughout the 50
states in the United States and maybe 1nternationally.

. There’s no doubt that the plaintiff is a
rYesident of New York. There’s no Qoubt that the
journalist is a New York journalist that relies upon
that reputation as a Wew York journalist in his ties to
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Findings by the Court 24

New York. To not only wmarket himself, but to -- to
continue to do what he does. He doesn’t use the New
Jersey press in any way, shape or form, other than the
fact that the New York Times may be actually printed in
New Jersey and disseminated throughout the world.

The majority of the contracts are with the
state of New York. Again, but for the selection of
this -- the forum here -- ang, again, I shake my head
every time I -- I look at this case, say why was it
even filed here, T have no idea why it was filed here.
The fact that O’Brien is a resident of the State of New
Jersey -- which is an important element, but what is it
that -- that New Jersey law set -- set out to do? It
set out to protect journalists, New Jersey journalists
for the most part.

And I know he’s a resgident and he happens to
be a journalist, but he’s a journalist in New York, not
in New Jersey. BAnd -- and when you -- when you gee --
when you rely upon that, when you reach out and you
reach out and you associate yourself with a stake, you
rely upon that state for your reputation and your
credibility. You then cannot hide by the river or a
bridge or a tunnel to protect yourself when you make an
alleged defamatory statement. BAnd -- and that, T
think, gentlemen, is the gravamen of -- of what I‘m -~

Findings by the Court 25

You're done talking and I‘m just starting.

MR. CERESNEY: Okay, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So, when I say that are more
contacts -- I mean, you -- essentially, you look at the
conflicts laws, it all boils down to a gqualitative
analysis of who has the most contact in this particular
case. And -- and I recognize that New Jersey has a
balanced approach to things; it talks about the
absolute privilege; it talks about non-confidential
sources; it protects, to some degree, the rights of the
journalist, as New Jersey does.

But New York has a more balanced approach in
wy view, because it also protects the litigants in
regard to mon-confidential sources. It also has, T

believe -- and no disrespect intended to the
legislature of this great state; which had the wisdom
to appoint wme and then reappoint me later on -- I think

that the more-balanced view of this particular conflict
rel -- would require me to rely upon New York law.
Again, but for the selection of the forum -- and, again
-- and I'm not diminishing that Mr. O’Brien lives in
New Jersey -- but, but for the selection of this forum,
we wouldn’t be having this conversation. I -- I hazard
a guess that no one would be yelling about conflicts of
law in New York, they wouldn’t-say, "Well, New dersey
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law applies, because Mr. O’Brien resides in New
Jersey." .

So, it would not frustrate the intent, I
don’t believe, the public policy intent of the State of
New Jersey to apply New York law in this particular
instance. Again, well lots of the variables I referred
to, where the interviews took place, the book is
actually marketed as TrumpNation, he lives -- O’Brien
lives outside of TrumpNation, also known as New York
City. The book is marketed as a metropolitan New York
type of publication. So, gentlemen, when I apply what
I believe the law to be -- and I -- I note that this
will probably be reviewed by an Appellate Court and I
‘certainly encourage it. I never professed to be
perfect in my decisions, I only do the best job that T
can.

Gentlemen, I -- I do find that New Yoxk law
would be applicable when I balance everything, when I
balance all of the areas that I‘m reguired to look at
with respect to the conflict of Iaws, the interest of
interstate comity. Would it frustrate New Jersey’s
purpose in the shield law? No. The interest of the
parties certainly -- the interest of the parties is-to
redress an alleged grievance of libel and defamation.
‘And, ceftainly, applying New York law would not

Findings by the Court 27

frustrate that purpose. .
And then, that’s what tort law is all about,
to--- it's preventative, it serves as a deterrent. The

tort did occur in New York. The injury occurred in New -

York and elsewhere, granted. Allegedly. The interests
of judicial administration certainly that would not be
impaired by me utilizing New York law to determine this
particular issue. BAnd the competing interests of the
state -- the states have a very similar interest in
protecting journalistic integrity and sources, as
counsel have said, but also New York State law, again,
if this is news, New York State law cexrtainly takes
into consideration the interest of the litigant.
and by the way, now I want the Appellate

Court to know that when we talk about the issue of
news, whatever my determination is on the issue of
news, I want the Appellate Court to apply -- and we're
talking about the competing interests of the states.
Because in the even this Court makes a determination,
having heard argument, that this is not news, certainly
the new -- the -~ counsel’s -- plaintiff’s counsel’s
assertion that the -- the determination would be the
same no matter what state it was wmight, in fact, be
appropriate.

’ - But I -- I draw counsels’ attention to the
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Ressler - Argument 28
fact that when I read the law and I compare the
definition of news in New York to the definition of
news in New Jersey, I find separate and distinct
definitions. And now, I want to hear from you about
the -- first of all, is this news? And I'm holding up
the book here, Exhibit A it says on the book. Is it
news?

MR. RESSLER: Judge, this is -- this is not
news.

THE COURT: What’s news?

MR. RESSLER: This isn’t even close to news.
Under --

THE COURT: Other than Iverson got traded and
Trump didn’t fire Miss USA, that’s --

MR. RESSLER: Let’s --

THE COURT: I guess that’s news. It’s a
relatively recent event, it occurred vegterday, and
it’s being reported today.

MR. RESSLER: Judge, news in New York is
defined in the statute and Your Honor is correct, based
on the last comment --

THE COURT: Well, is it news that Marla
Maples had to be moved from St. Regis at the time that

the hotel was sold to some other location? Is that
news?
I

Ressler - Argument 298

MR. RESSLER: It‘s not news, based on --

THE COURT: Happened awhile ago.

MR. RESSLER: It's not news, based on the
definition in the -- in the New York statute. Which
says that news shall mean, "information or
communication concerning local, national or world-wide
events or other matters of public concern or public
interest or affecting the public welfare."

The New York legislature clearly intended for
news Lo touch upon matters of public concern and public
intent -- or public interest, affecting the public
welfare. This book is a gossipy, sensaticnalist book.
it talks about things like whether Donald Trump uses
Viagra. You can open it up to.a random page -- Do you
believe in God? Did you get stoned in college? Do you
think Lera Jing (phonetic) sucks up to you koo much?
The book repeats the F-word --

THE COURT: Do you know the answers to all
those questions? If you do, send those responses to
the address in the front and you could win a prize --

MR. RESSLER: Exactly.

- - THE COURT: -~ if Mr. O'Brien indicates in
his. book.
e MR- RESSLER: And -- and that’s a good point.
You know, this -- this book contains --

12423
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THE COURT: And by the way, I'm -- I -- for
those of you that don’t know that, that’s what is
actually a section here that Mr. 0‘Brien invites people
to take the TrumpQuizzes in each and every chapter, and
depending on how well you do, you could win a prize. I
think it’s something like dimmer with his -- O'Brien’s
mother or something.

MR. RESSLER: Correct, Judge. »5And these --
these quizzes -- and Your Honor is referring to these
quizzes at the end of each chapter -- and with all due
respect to Mxr. O’'Brien, this is a juvenile attempt at -
- at humor. Maybe sowme people find it funny, maybe
not, but the bottom line is --

: THE COURT: I found it funny at times. I
mean --

MR. RESSLER: At times. The -- the Viagra
comment might have been --

THE COURT: I liké the areas, but go ahead.

MR. RESSLER: But the -- but the bottom line
is that this isn‘t news. You know, news and -- and we
-~ news doesn’t have these kinds of questions. News

doesn’'t repeat the F-word and makes gynecological
references throughout.

And what -- what’s actually interesting,
Judge, is even in the -- even in this chapter that the
i
PR S
. . L}
Feoos
Ressler - RArgument . 31

- defendarits claim, you know, was printed in the Rew York

Times,  this “TrumpBroke" chapter, chapter 6, you know,
that chapter itself is replete with scatologlcal
references. You open up a page and it talks about --

THE COURT: Well, that’s rather newsworthy,
it’s of some ~-- it was the -- his net worth, it is
talking about net worth, because that’s relatively
recent in conjunction with the publication of the book.

MR. RESSLER: But whether -- whether Donald
Trump is -~ is worth 150 to 250 million or a billion
-dollaxrs is -- is not what the New York legislature had
in mind when it talked about local, national or
viorldwide events, matters of public concern, public
interest, matters affecting the public welfare. It
affects Mr. Trump, it affects his reputation, his
ability to -trans -~ tradsact with business, there’s no
question about that, but it doesn’t affect what the New
Ybrk.legislature was focusing -- focusing on. And even

. THE COURT. Well, I think there’s a question
about whether or not 1t affects his ability to do
business, that‘s why they re defending the case, they
say‘there 8. N0 damages, but that’s beside the point.
% "+’. MR. RESSLER::Yeah, fair enough, Judge.
"But eveén-in this chapter, I -- again,- the

. ot et e
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book -- the book is -- is replete with these references
to what no one would consider news. Because even in
this "TrumpBroke" chapter, O‘Brien talks about an
intexview; IL.eona Helwsley has a Playbov; referring to
bonald’s girlfriend, Marla Maples, as Marla Meatball,
Marble Meatball, Marla Nipple, Meatball Marla, Maypole
Marla. I mean, every page of the book has this kinds
of -- this kind of attempt at humor.

This is as much comedy as anything else, but
under no guestion, especially when the New York
legislature has defined news, under no question can
this book be described as news and --

THE COURT: Well, you made some reference to
New Jersey law. Let’s agsume the Appellate Division
says Snyder, you'xe all wet, New Jersey law applies,
how about New -- under New Jersey law? 1It’'s -- does it
fit within the definition of news here that —- isn’t
New Jersey law protective of even books like this, that
-~ that have those characteristics?

MR. RESSLER: It doesn’'t, Judge, and New
Jexsey law is clear that news is contained -- and X
think it‘’s seven particular specifically enumerated
news media. And books is not one of those seven.
Newspapexs, magazines, news agencies, press

associations, T.V., radio.
r
- oy
"
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THE COURT: How's A.M. Best in -there, isn’'t -

MR. RESSLER: But not books.
THE COURT: The A.M. Best, X know what A.M.

but A.M. Best was protected by New Jersey law,

Best .
it?

is
wasn’t

MR. RESSLER: It was. Judge, A.M. Besk is a
book only with respect to the Fact that it -- that it
has a spine and it‘s, Yyou know, hardcover bindexrs. But
A-M. Best, as the court in ‘that case -- and T think it
was the Burnett case -- repeatedly called it, it wam a
trade publication. It’s 100 years old, it’s updated
annually, it goes into minute detail about, I think, 21

THE COURT: It’s wholly statistical --
actually, it‘’s a breakdown of the analysis of
statistical they thought that law state was claims --

MR. RESSLER: Right.

THE COURT: -~ things of that nature.

MR. RESSLER: Correct. About 2,100 insurance
companies in the U.S. and Canada and courts rely on --
on thisg book -- and, again I -- I use the phrase book
in terms of the fact that it’s bound with a haxdcover
spine. We have it right here. The courts rely on
this, because this is an authoritative source, court --
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courts use it in this state to set interest rates,
etcetera. This is completely different, Judge. This,
I'm now holding up the Best trade reports, is
completely different from TrumpNation.

{Pause)

THE COURT: Well, Chapter 6 did have some
facts in it, didn’t it?

MR. CERESNEY: It did, Your Honor, and that’s
where I was gomna go first. I mean, I think what we’re
-- we have to define what we‘re talking about here.

The allegedly defamatory statements here are
really -- and we know that it’s actually now even more
clearly than we knew it before, since there was some
ambiguity I think before -- but in the'defendants’ supp
~~ in the plaintiff’'s supplemental interrogatory
responses yesterday they specifically only identified
the statements in -- at least the written statements,
as far as what is allegedly defamatory. They allege --
they identified really only this page 154 reference to
the confidential source. So that’s all we‘re talking
about, Your Honor, when we’'xre talking about is it a
matter of public interest. That’s what we’re talking
about, Your Honor. - -

VENAU R WN

and I -- it ~-- I think that's -- if what ~--
if that’s what we’re talking about, even if we’re ’
Ceresney - Argument 35

talking about the broader book, I would say the answer
it’s still news, but I think that’s all we’re talking,
Your Homor, because that’s the allegedly libelous
statement:. 2And the New --

THE COURT: Well, yeah, that’s an allegedly
libelous statement, but there may be other -- there are
-- there are other confidential sources -- and we’ll
talk about -~ I can tell you --

. MR. CERESNEY: But the --

. THE COURT: -- where each and every
confidential source is referred to in this book. And
you made a statement about what page 154 is and we’ll
talk about whether or not that’s a confidential source
or an anonymous source or what kind of source it is;
because, frankly, your client never identified what
kind of source it Wwas.

MR. CERESNEY: You -- you --

THE COURT: I lost you. Right?

MR. CERESNEY: You lost me, Your Honor. T

mean -- o .
“ _ THE COURT: Did you read every footmote in

this book?

) MR. CERESNEY: Yes.

_ THE COURT: Okay. Every time he refers to an

anonymous - source he says it‘s an anonymous source, he
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Ceresney - Rrgument 36

puts a footnote next to it.

MR. CERESNEY: That's right.

THE COURT: Every timeé he says it’s a
confidential source, puts a footnote next to it. I
challenge you to find on 152 any reference to the
anonymity or confidentiality. None whatscever. He
said "three people close to Donald Trump say."

MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: Nothing! 2And this guy is really
precise. Mr. O’Brien is extraordinarily precise in his
footnotes, chapter and verse, tells me everything that
I want to know about where the information came from.
Never says -- in retrospect it’'s confidential, he says
it today, he says it in the litigation, never once does
he say it in the book. He doesn’t -- where is it?

MR. CERESNEY: Well --

TEE COURT: Counsel, youfve got three people

MR. CERESNEY: Your Honor --

THE COURT: -- sitting there.

MR. CERESNEY: Your Honor, I don‘t think
there's any requirement for him to say in the book that
these are, quote, confidential --

THE COURT: Wait a minutet

MR. CERESNEY: -- report ~-

VWA AWM

Ceresney - Argument 37

THE COURT: Listen! I love lawyers, I was
one of ya and I still am a lawyer, but when you have --
include something in there, you go to great lengths to
identify who’s confidential and who is not and you
completely don‘t say anything -- and take a Look at
page 154 -- but let’s go through the -- the footnotes,
if you want. And T can tell you each in it, because I
-- I always find thig stuff interesting. I -- page 254
of the book, footnote number 44, Chapter 4 "TrumpLand;"

"Author interview with confidential source
March 31, 2005." .

Let’s see what that one --

MR. CERESNEY: Your Honor, let me explain why
he didn't put them -~

THE COURT: Wait a minute! Well, let me --
let’s -~ -

MR. CERESNEY: Well, here’s why he didn’'t,
Your Honor. I think the Court --

THE COURT: You know that he didn’t.

MR. CERESNEY: -- should understand.

THE COURT: Right?

- MR. CERESNEY: I know that he didn’t and the
reason why is because he didn’t want to put the date of
the actual interviews, because he was concerned -~

THE COURT: That’s a great -- .
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Ceresney - Argument 38

MR. CERESNEY: -- about put -- about somebody
triangulating and figuring out who the source is by
having the date of when the interview had. Maybe
somebody was looking at his --

THE COURT: Well, you --

MR. CERESNEY: -- at -- at who knows,
whatever information ~-

THE COURT: Maybe. You said maybe.

MR. CERESNEY: No, but that would be --

THE COURT: You don’t know.

. CERESNEY: I believe that would be his
statement about why he didn’t do that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But he could have said -- what --
anonymous source ~-

MR. CERESNEY: 2&And, in fact, in his --

THE COURT: -- not wishing to be identified,
like he says -- XI’'1l1l tell you where he says that.
Where it says:

"Interviews in 2005" -~ nuwmber 2 -- page 254,
footnote number 51: "Interview in 2005 with .two former
Trump Organization executives who requested anonymity."

Why is it such a big problem to not have it
on page 154, when he has it in footnote number 51, ---

MR. CERESNEY: But Your Honor --

THE COURT: -- as set forth -- wait a second!

Ceresney - Argument 35

I mean, you know, it’s really good when you get painted
in a corner by your own work.

MR. CERESNEY: But there’s no -- but there
was no requirement under any shield statute, New York,
Wew Jersey, any shield statute that they specifically
say that these sources in the book -- like, for
example, Your Honor, this was a newspaper report. In a
newspaper report he doesn’t have to say that these are
sources who have requested confidentiality, who have --
who have forbidden me from revealing their identity.

' Tt is obvious from this -- £rom this port --
from -- from the book and if you look at his
certification, Your Honor, there's no issue of fact on
this. Paragraph 6 of his certification submitted in
support of this motion says:

"Y promised confidentiality to three
individuals who'-- with direct knowledge" ~- and it
goes on to say "it is my understanding that these three
individuals fear retribution from Trump if their
identities are revealed."

THE COURT: Yeah, but -- but you're -- you're
making that statement in this day and age, post-
litigation initiated. You know what‘s the truest ex --
the truest indicatér of how the -- or what he
considered these people to be? Look at what he wrote

1247a

*



wo-nnkWN -

bhEBvovwaurwnr

i3
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when he wrote it, when he published it, what he did do,
what he didn’t do. It’'s the omission and the silence

on page 154 that causes me more concern than anything
else.

When I look at how -- your -- your author was
extraordinarily precise -- and, again, I went through
each and every -- I went through each page, I ~- I
highlighted which were confidential sources, what the
confidentiality was that was talked about, including,
you know, in one case I think I already talked about
moving Maples from the St. Moritz. Let’s see, one
other was reliance upon f£ind -- family money to bail
him out. A couple others were, let’s see:

"Donald’s foray into Atlantic City and steps
to expedite its process with meeting with the New
Jersey -- by meeting with the New Jersey Attorney
General."

Stashing Marla, I have. We’re talking about
-- and, again, anonymity? He put in the footnotes.
And, again, he didn’t have to --

MR. CERESNEY: Let me just --

THE COURT: -- worry about triangulation had
he just said broadly that these people -- but you --~
see, we got off on anothexr tangent here.

MR. CERESNEY: We clearly d4did, Your Honor.

I

Ceresney ~ Argument . 41

THE COURT: I was on the news, but you --
MR. CERESNEY: But -- but let me just read

you this --
THE COURT: You -- you saw me smile -
MR. CERESNEY: I did.
THE COURT: -~ at you when you said
confidential.

MR. CERESNEY: I -- I did, Your Honor, and I
-- and I took your cue to --

THE COURT: You sure baited me.

MR. CERESNEY: T too your cue, Your Honor.
But I think if you look at the language in the New York
statute, you are, with all respect, importing into the
statute a requirement that’s just not there for the )
application of the confidential aspect of the New York
statute. It says -- it says: ’

"Having temporary -- refusing or failing to
disclose any news gbtained or received in confidence or
the identity of the source of any such news coming into
the person‘’s possession in the course of gathering or
-obtaining news for publication.®

- It says nothing about having to identify at
the time of the publication that this.individual has
requested anonymity --

THE COURT: I agree with you.
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MR. CERESNEY: -- and doesn’t -- and -- and
80, therefore --

THE COURT: 1 agree with you.

MR. CERESNEY: -- I think that this, it would
be a re --

THE COURT: That's what the statute says.

MR. CERESNEY: It is what the statute says
and I think it would be a -- it would indeed be going
very far beyond the statute to requixre there to be in
the actual publication -- forget about, you know,
there's -- there’s really no issue of fact here, no
issue of fact that’s -- there’s nothing -in the record
to the contrary-that these people have not requested
anonymity. He has said it undexr oath, he has said it
in bis certification, that is clear to -- to everybody
in this court.

THE COURT: Well, don’t you think it’'s a
question of fact when he took the time in each and
every time he talked of an anonymous source Or --

MR. CERESNEY: I -- I do not.

THE COURT: -- a confidential source, the
footnote it completely -- doesn’t even say it in the
body of the text of the book, he has said -- and -- and
I spoke anonymously to three execute -- didn’t even say

that, it just says I talked to three executives and -
i

Ceresney - Argument 43

they gave me the numbers.

MR. CERESNEY: But there’s no dispute that --

THE COURT: That they thought that's what --
again, they stated their opinion they thought --

MR. CERESHEY: But --

THE COURT: -- that’s what it -- it was.

MR. CERESNEY: That’s right. But -- but
there’s no dispute about the fact that these
individuals had requested confidentiality, had a
confidential request, and he put in a certification to
that effect at the tiwme and the statute requires --

THE COURT: ' Well, let’'s-go back to the news
issue. o T :

MR. CERESNEY: - Let’s go back to the news,
Your Honor. - .
THE COURT: But I‘m glad I got that out on
the record, because if the Appellate Court looks at
this, T want them to know that, listen, this -- Mr.
O'Brien went to great lengths to make sure that he
footnoted everything, the interview dates, Playbov
magazine, whoever he -- wherever he got information
from, he was very careful ‘in what he did. BAnd he --
all of & -sudden,:he --:lic:had a lapse in his being
careful -- o Cor e :

" MR. CERESNEY:". Well,” what --
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THE COURT: -~ in this particular paragraph.

MR. CERESNEY: What I‘m saying Your Honor is
it was a conscious decision not to do that. Because to
do that -- these three confidential sources are the --

you know, they -- as he says in his certification --
fear retribution because of their --

THE COURT: Yeah, but --

MR. CERESNEY: -- who they are.

THE COURT: I understand.

MR. CERESNEY: And so to put a footnote with
a date --

THE COURT: Okay. So let’s talk about the

MR. CERESNEY: Sure. » ]

THE COURT: Yet’s go back to the news. TIs it
~- is this news? And -- and do I look just at page 152
or do I look at the totality of what I have in front of

me, this book, to determine whether or not the book is
news?

news then.

MR. CERESNEY: Yes. Your Honor, I-think
actually, if you look at either it’s still news. But
let’s just focus on 154 for a minute, because I think
that is the clearest example of this. And one of the
things you said, Your Honor, actually is striking,
which is he did footnote very -- almost all of his

!

Ceresney - Argument 45

sources in there, with the one exception that --
THE COURT: Pretty much.

MR. CERESNEY: -~ you talked about. And the
reason -- there’s a reason for that one. But there is
-~ this is written not as a -- ag a book which is just
simply no sourcing to whatever -- he’s done a lot of

research, extensive reporting. It‘s an extension of
his report that he did for the newspaper. He took his
files that he used for the newspaper, he took his
interviews that he did at the newspaper, he -- he did
additional interviews, merged those files and
essentially used the same exact methods for the book as
he did for the newspaper reporting.

And, you know, when we talk about the topics
at issue here, the statute -- the New York statute,
Your Homor, you read the -- T think you read the
definition before. It says, "matters of public concern
Or -- or public interest or affecting the public
welfare." So you have that word -~ those words public
interest in there between public concern and affecting
the public welfare. TIt’sg obviously much broader than
just the notion of some public -- significant public
event like whether we should get out of Irag or not,
it’s much broader than that.

As Your Honor pointed out when you first came
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on the bench this morning, the types of news that’s
been reported in the past couple of days really
illustrates a point that news is -incredibly broad. BAnd
the people who make that determination of what is news
and what is news are not courts, they’xre not Mr. Trump,
most certainly, they are the newspapexrs, they are the
journalists in this country who make the decision about
what is of interest to the public.

and if you look at some of the things that
have been of interest to the public in the past few
days: the Miss USA Pageant, whether article in the New
York Times on sperm whale vomit; Your Honor, there --
there are issues of much less public interest,
certainly, than this issue here, which is Trump’s net
worth, which had been reported in the New York Times.
In fact, if you lock at our brief, Your Honor --

THE COURT: Sort of a report about it -- look
in the book, it tells you every place where --

MR. CERESNEY: Every place. Washington Post

THE COURT: -- Forbes wagazine, the
controversy as to what his net worth was in any given
year, as to whether or not he met the top 20 or
whatever number it was Forbes utilizes.

MR. CERESNEY: All over the place, Your

¢

[
)
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Honor. It is -- it is a matter -- it -- I don’t know
how it makes any sense that it’s a matter of public
interest, ultimately. 2And it’'s not for the Court and
it’s not for Mr. Trump to determine it.

Now, -what you’re focused on, Your Honor, I
think, what it really comes down to -- and I would
submit, by the way, that lots of those other issues
that are in the book, Mr. Trump’s business activities
over time; his involvement with casinos, the other
aspects of his business activities, those are also of
public interest., In fact, Mr. Trump himself has
written numerous books on these issues that people buy
and because they’'re interested and -- and they axre --
they sell because they’re public interest.

But what .you’re focused on, I think, which is
what -~ what -- which you have sort of pointed out with
the quizzes and with some of the comments about the way
that the book is writtenm, is the tone of the book. The
tone of the book, really, that’s really what -- what
you're focused on. And I think, ultimately, the tone
of the book is irrelevant, it‘s the content of the
information that’s- being conveyed. Tone is not
something that eénters into the equation as to whether
it is news ox not. .

I wean, you look at some of the articles that
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we just talked about, about the Trump USA Pageant. I
mean, you know, this -- some of the articles
surrounding this issue are, you know, the idea of
people being rehabilitated, do they have the right to
be redeemed. Those -- obviously, those are lighter
articles, those are lighter tones, but those are still
news, those are still reporting on information to the
public,

And -- and I think that these quizzes don’t
transform what is news, what is a matter of public
interest into something that ig -- is not. They are --
if -- it‘s -- it's a tone that’s used to make the book
more readable, it‘s a tone to make a point about Mr.
Trump’s role in all of these activities. But it does
not undermine the fact that it conveys information
about modern matters of public interest.

And Your Honor talked about New Jersey law on
this before, and when you -- when You were talking to
Mr. Ressler --

THE COURT: So it -- the -- the tone ig -- is
-= would it be fair for you to say it has the
characteristics of entertainment and news in it?

MR. CERESNEY: I don't know if that's -~ I
think what -- what it is, is it makes it more readable,
Your Hogor, or at least it’s a tone that conveys in --

Ceresney - Argument 49

it conveys -- it's a tome that conveys some information
about which Mr. O’Brien is -- his views on certain
things are, but it does not undermine, in any respect,
the fact that it is an issue of public interest in the
~- in the matter in which it’s conveyed. I -- that'’s
what I would say.
And the word entertainment, Your Honor, the
reagson X don't sort of agree with that, because thexre’s
no definition of what entertaimment -- it could be that
things -- certain things that are entertainment are
also news. There could be a fair amount of overlap
between those two things. But the statute doesn’t deal
with entertainment, it deals with news and it --

THE COURT: Well, what do you think the
primary function of the book ig? :

MR. CERESNEY: To convey information, Your
Bonor. To convey impressions about Mr. Trump -- Mr.
O'Brien says it better than I can, Your Honor, in his
certification. He says these -- he says, and I quote:

"That TrumpNation evolve" ~- this is
paragraph 7 of his certification:

"TrumpNation evolved from my 2004 reporting in the
Times about Trump. My goal: in writing the book was to
leverage my previous.reporting for Marriage Trump
Biography, the Wall Street Journal, Bad Bet and the

e e o L LA DAL
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Times, to provide the public with extended information
about Trump’s business career and persona, while
detailing how he became a social phenomenon, with
traction in different business and cultural realms. I
also wanted to use Trump’s life and career to report
more broadly on areas of public interest on which I
have reported for the Times and other publications,
including on Wall Street and the financial woxrld, the
real estate and casino businesses, the cult of business

figures and the broader cultural fascination with
wealth."

I mean, I think that says it better than I
could ever say it, Your Honor. &And I think the -- it’s
-- it’'g --

THE COURT: 1It’s because he’s a professional
writer.

MR. CERESNEY: He is a writer, Your Honor,
and -- and that -- those are his words. 2and -- and
ultimately that was what he was trying to do with this
book and I think, you know, we can all sit here and
talk about the tone, but it does -- that was the intent
and that was what it intended to accomplish. And I
think, clearly under New York and New Jersey, it’s --

THE COURT: So, as I -- as I said to you when
I was talking to you about the comfidential sources,
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lack of confidential sources, failure to identify
someone as anonymous oxr confidential, the same could
hold true with how it is that Mr. O‘Brien presents the
book, what he wish -- how he attempts to market it.
He's attempting to secure financial benefit from the
sale of the book and how it is -~ what he says about
the book and what he does to market the book later on
comes back to sometimes bite him.

Because -~ and, again, that’s what wy
observation is in retrospect. When -- so let’s say,
"Well, now we have litigation and there’s various ways
-- it’s an ambiguous. enough where I can argue now that
it -- it’s news .and not entertainment." When you
utilize the entertainment aspects to try to market it
and make money f£rom it ~- and that's where I -- and, °
again, I'm looking -- you're -~ you say a lot’ of things
thdt are absolutely correct about the statute and --
and what constitutes news and then it gets spun into,
well this could be news.

But, again, I have to look at what O'Brien
intended when he wrote the book. And I know what he
says he intended, but the book in itself speaks for
itself. And we’ll talk about what the book says about
what it is.in a moment. But I -- I want to hear from
plaintiff’s counsel.

1?53a
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MR. RESSLER: Thank you, Judge.
First of all --

THE COURT: And by the way, you keep seeing -

~ citing People versus LeGrand, I‘m not so sure that
that’s the good law.

MR. CERESNEY: 2And yeah, it's certainly not,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: No, I -- and -- and T don‘t know
why you kept citing it. I'm looking at it and saying
this isn‘t -- really is not good law any longer.

MR. RESSLER: Well --

THE COURT: Well, I mean, I recognize there’s
lots of nice dicta in there that helps you out, --

MR. RESSLER: Well --

THE COURT: -- but doesn‘t help the Court.

MR. RESSLER: Right. I wean, Judge, T -~ I
mean, in terms of this divide between news and
entertainment, I think the New York legislature, like
the New Jersey legislature, for that matter, they drew
the line by omitting books from the specifically
enumerated kinds of media that are protected by the
shield law. And -- and that‘s precisely why they did
it. .

The -- the statute is clear, again,
newspapers, magazines, press associations, wire T

7
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services, you know, the -- the kinds of media that
everyone traditionally views as news media. 2And then
if you go to paragraph D of the New York shield law, it
specifically says that there’s protection for
journalists:

"Refusing or to failing to disclose any news
obtained or received in confidence or the identity of
the source of any such news coming into such person’'s
possession in the course of gathering or obtaining news
for publication or to be published” -- and here’s the
point -- "in g newspaper, magazine or for broadcast by
a radio or T.V. station." Not in a book.

THE COURT: How come you didn’t finish
reading the good stuff?

MR. RESSLER: Well --

THE COURT: Why don’t you xead the rest of
this stuff?

MR. RESSLER: Well, it says --

THE COURT: 1It's good.

MR. RESSLER: -- "public dissemination by any
other professional" -- that’'s fine, Judge -- "or any
other professional media or agency which has as one of
its wain function ar --

N THE COURT: Stop! "Has as one of its main
functions.® Go ahead.

12543
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MR. RESSLER: "The dissemination of news" --

THE COURT: "To the public." You could stop
there. So the main function. What's a main function
in this book?

MR. RESSLER: It’s not disseminating news.

THE COURT: Doesn’t look like it to me
either.

MR. RESSLER: And that’s why books are
omitted. Because publishers, that’s not their job is
to disseminate news, their job is to publish books.

: THE COURT: I mean, even if I get past to
say, well, it’s -~ it's -- you know, if there even were
news, the might.-- the main function of this book is
not- to disseminate news to the public. It certainly --
again, some of it is news in there. The -- the
relatively recent disclosure that his net worth has
been puffed greatly from 150 willion to 250 million,

where Trump allegedly says it’s 5 to 6 million is -- is
it wrong? Well, that’s -- that’s a public interest,
certainly.

But is the main function of this book the
dissemination of nmews to the public? Aside from the
fact that you’'re right, that both legislatures had the
ability to include books in their ghield laws, but
didn’t do it. Put -- easy to put that woxd in,

'
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wouldn’t have cost the legislature too much additional
to put that five-letter word, books ox book -- four
jetters -- in -- in there. But that’s the problem,
itfs not the main function -- this is not the

dissemination of news to the public. The dust cover, I
love dust covers:

nSo step right up, ladies and gentlemen, to
the shocking, hilarious, riveting and completely true
story of America’s favorite billionaire bad boy, bad
hair and all, from the massive egos of the New York
mayors he courted or defied, to the glamour queens he
loved and lost, to the talking dolls, colossal casinos,
personal Oz he created out of smoke and mirrors,
prepare to enter TrumpNation."

He says in the prologue, also known as smooth
operator. Page 9:

nSo, but I think it might be interesting to
see what would happen if everybody in America struck it
rich. So this book’'s a field guide to TrumpNation.
Tt’s a cookbook of msorts meant for all of those who
want to make it-really, really, really big and become
really,. very, -very; :very rich. .

Each chapter will include challenging book --

Trump -- ‘TrumpQuizzes that are secretese" -- this is
the tone that defense counsel was talking about -- "of
1255a i
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becoming a billiocnaire just like Donald. These quizzes
can‘t be found in any other Donald -- any of Donald’'s
bocks, that’s because he knows that if You’re able to
unlock the recipe behind 2ll of his highly classified
but surefire money making strategies, socon there would
be no money left. v

And then it goes on and talks about the
quizzes and where You send your quiz answers to. Oh,
that’s -- it talks about the prize. It wasn’t a dinner
with the author's wother, but rather "free Passes to
the final season 12 of the Apprentice and a copy of How
to Get Rich signed by my mom.* I knew that his mothex
had something to do it.

So, I mean, it’s -- it’g being warketed ag
entertainment and, although, it coulgd include some news
in it, the main function I see of what this work ig --
and I call it a work, what this work is, what the book
is, the main function is not the dissemination of the
news to the public, but the marketing of something that
is, in and of itself, has some public interest. Nobody

n’t public interest,
d in New York’s laws,
it focuses on the totality of what

we’'re dealing with
and not merely bits and Pieces. It looks at the whole
and not the individual parts.
'

Findings by the Court 57

Aside from that, I don‘’t really f£ind that the
main function was the dissemination: of the news. I

don‘t necessarily agree that this book is news. And we
know, in -- and counsel for the .defense says to me,
"Judge, the tone of the book is what matters® and --
and talked about what I started kidding around about
this morning, but T did S0 with all the truth in the
world ~- that Iverson -- Iverson’'s trade is certainly
not tantamount to whether or not we’
out of Iraq or what happened in Irag yesterday.
Certainly we, on our own scales, figure out what's
important in the world from what’'s less important in
the world. Cextainly, if you’re a sports fan Iverson's

trade is important, but T'q no -- it pales by
comparison to what happens in a war zone.
When we deal with cases that we have -- I

mean, we all know that -- that the lines between news
and entertainment have -- have been blurred.
one only has to watch the Today Show today and
it to -- and, again, to the -- I do be -~ I watch that,
in -- in the morning I get up -- the Today Show, back
in the .times of Tom Brokaw and Barbara Walters to see
what’s happened to the news. Because now we have
entertainment that’s marketed as news. You have Extra

Extra and these other things that follow the network

compare
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news. You -- you look at the news stands, you look at
the National Encquirer and one of the other things you
do when you check out your groceries.

What’s the news anymore? I mean, the -- the
distinction has become blurred. Because it's
entertaining to read some of these things, but are they
traditionally what the news was? Are they the
traditional reasons why the shield laws were put in
effect? Probably not, but that certainly can be
utilized by the -- the press to protect their sources.

But New York recognized that and New York I
think gives broad discretion to the Court. Queen
County court in -- in -- In xe Sullivan talked about
the blurring-of the news and entertainment and it says:

"Furthermoxe, in this age of participatory
journalism, where news commentaxy and sensationalism
have become one, the role of a journalist in the
public’s mind has become so entangled that it is often
difficult to distinguish between news and
entertainment. Although the news-gathering privilege
is a fundamentally-protected right, it should not be
congidered absolute or, for that matter, the unwritten
eleventh commandment."® .

And that’s where we find this book, because
it does have some alleged Efactual information. I think

!

[
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the defense says that it’s not even a fact it’s

_somebody’s opinion in there. I guesas that may have

been part of your-application to Judge Vina in the
past. N .

But it certainly does not, in the totality,
look to be news, it doesn’t -- either doesn’t meet the
definition that I see of news. BAnd I think when we
look at In_xe .Sullivan, it gives this Couxrt broad
discretion, gives a court broad discretion to make that
determination, based upon total —-- ‘totality and, again,
based upon how it’s marketed and what Mr. O’Brien said
about the work.at the time the work was published.

. (Pause)

THE COURT: I'm sorry. Anything else that
anybody else wants to add?

. MR. RESSLER: I'd just like to add gomething,
Judge. Following up on what Your Honox just said about
what the intent was by O’Brien and how it was marketed.

Now, defendants gave us a bunch of documents
that didn’t really bear on any issue in this case as
part of the document production, but we went through
thousands of.documents and we did find some very
crucial emails-that ‘Q’Brien himself wrote at the time
he was writing this book and at the time he was
marketing-this.book. B2and the notion that, as O'Brien

1257a

n adleremr

7



-

Lo, WwNnE

VROIaUuds WK

Ressler - Arqument 60

says in his declaration or affidavit he submitted, that
he viewed this as news, is absolutely not the case.

Because contemporaneously with his working on
this book and marketing this book, him, O'Brien, said
in no uncertain terms, this is not news. He said thak
Lo numerous people as part of his promotional campaign.
There’s one email he sends to Bob Wright, who is the
head of NBC, and he tells Bob Wright this book spoofs
Donald Trump. And in many respects, that’s what it is,
it's a spoof of Donald Trump. You see the picture of
Trump on the cover. and it’s like that on page after
page. And he specifically makes it clear that this
isn’t news.

And another email he says to someone he’s
trying to attract interest among T.V. programs in the
book, so they can invite O’Brien on as a guest. And he
says, look, this book, it's toco ootray for the New York
Times. That’'s O'Brien’s word, that’s not -- that’s not
my word. But I think cotray means it‘s too out there.
In other words, it‘s far afield from news, because it‘s
not news.

And another email -- and, again, these are
O’Brien’s woxrds. He says what I‘m trying to do is ~-
is tap into Trump’s mojo. You know, again, that’s not
news, that’‘s entertainment, it’s gossipy, it’s

/
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sensationalist, and these are O'Brien’s words.

Now, with respect to the promotional campaign
that Your Honor wmentioned. It seems to us, how unfair
would it be, how wrong would it be to expand the shield
law to encompass books, when Tim O’Brien didn‘t only
publish a book, he went out around the country
marketing this book, he was on more than a dozen T.V.
- I'm sorry, radio stations around the country, from
Wichita to California to New York, talking about this
book. He was on a bunch of T.V. shows talking about
this book. He went into a bunch of bookstores and gave
question and answer sessions and book signings talking
about this book. and at each stop along the way, as
part of this promotional campaign, he kept repeating
the defamatory statements, he kept taking shots at -
Donald Trump saying that he wasn’t close to being a
billionaire.

Rnd now he’'s effectively saying, hey man, I'm
protected under the shield law, because I'm a reporter
for the New York Times. That would be, it seems to us,
a completely improper extension of the shield law,
which is supposed to encourage reporters to feel
confident and to feel protection when they actually
report on news.

And a final point, Judge, with respect to the
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news factor and emboldening reporters to discharge
their obligations to report news, it relates to
anonymous sources. Now, as -- in addition to these
emails -- and we‘re happy to hand these up to Your
Honor, because we have -- we have sets of these emails
that I have been referring to -- we also looked at the
New York Times only policy with respect to the use of
anonymous sources. And it’s right on the internet.

And -- and the Times, in the wake of these
Jayson Blair type scandals, Judith Miller type
scandals, and even before that was acutely aware and
sensitive to the issues created by reporters who use
anonymous sourcing when they shouldn’t or use anonymous
sourcing in an improper way by failing to tell the
reader what the motives might be for the anonymous
source to say something about someone in the newspaper.
And this is from the New York Times’ integrity manual
about the use of anonymous gources:

tOur peolicy on anonymous sources is a good
one and bears repeating. We resist granting anonymity
except as a re-last -- as a last resort.”

and then it continues: "Some areas of
coverage notably involving national security, -
intelligence or sensitive diplomacy and stories that .
reflectidissent within governments, companies and other

Ressler - Argument ‘ 63

institutions necessarily depend on the ability to

protect sources. The problem is, the credibility of
those necessarily aronymous sources and of our work is
undermined by the casual use of unnamed sources where
no such protection is called for."

Tim O’Brien’s use of anonymous sources in
this TrumpNation book violates the New York Times
policy, which is further indication that this is not
news and that the anonymous sourcing here would never
have passed mustexr, not only under the Times’ use of
anonyimous sources and their policies governing
anconymous sources, but of wmost newspapers. and there’s
no guestion, following the Times' directive as to when

anonymous sourcing should be used -- this isn’t an
issue of national security, intelligence, sensitive
diplomacy or -- or a stoxy that reflects dissent within

governments, companies and other institutions.

So, in every respect, Judge, the promotional
campaigning at issue here, the use of the ancoymous
sources; the content of the book, most important, this
is not news and it‘s in a specific kind of wedia, a
book that’s not even protected by the New York statute.

MR. CERESNEY: Your Honor, can I address some
of these points? '

' . THE COURT: Yeah, absolutely.

125%a
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MR. CERESNEY: I don‘t -- Let me start with
the last one. I don’t know when this policy was
amended, I believe it was recently amended. But in any
event, you don‘t have to look at the policy, because
this did appear in the New York Times, Your Honor. 1In
2004, the same -- virtually the same identical
paragraph appeared in the Times. Of course, Mr. Trump
didn‘t bring suit then. One wonders how any damages
could flow from a later book on -- when it appeared in
the New York Times with a much larger circulation.

THE COURT: Well, that’s an argument for
another day.

MR. CERESNEY: It is indeed. But in any
event, Your .Honor, this clearly did not violate the New
York Times’ policy at the time and I would submit it
still doesn’t violate that policy, but -- and it’s also
irrelevant to the resolution of this.

But back to the issue of the statute, Your
Honor. I heard what you said and I heard your view,
obviously, of the book, in general. BRut T think if you
-~ the one thing I think that was missing from your
rendition of the statute is, you were talking about
what the main function of the book was. The statute,
though, doesn‘t say it has to be the main function, it
says one of the wain functions is disgeminating the

Ceresney - Argument 65

news to the public, one of. There could be multiple

functions. It could be -- it could also be somewhat
entertaining --

THE COURT: Well and I recognized that,

that’s why I quoted In re Sullivan, I said the -~ the -

- evérything has become biurred.

MR. CERESNEY: ‘That’s right. Everything ~-

THE COURT: And you have to look at it in its
totality when you're reading this in totality, again,
taking into consideration what the author says about
what the work iz. That‘'s why I said to you, when you
look at it in its totality, you look at some of the
historical pexspective, his relationships with women,
what foods he eats, what nedications he takes, his
various and sundry business dealing, the fact that he
likes the whole -~ he has attachment to property. For
example, he doesn’'t like to get rid of -- to keep
thinking that I can get another dollar for it. Either
that or there is an emotional attachment, I‘m not
really sure what O’Brien was trying to tell me in that
paragraph.

* MR. CERESNEY: But those are all things of
interest to the public. He frankly got those things in
his own books, Your Honoxr. He writes about those very
things that he thinks the public is interested in and

12604
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they -- and they are. »And, in fact, if you apply that
standard to lots of other articles about celebrities --
and in People magazine as a whole would probably not
cover -- not be covered by the shield law, but we all I
think would agree it is and it clearly is under New
vork law. Each and every thing you just mentioned, I
think, itself is a matter of public interest, that’s
what it defines as news. It‘s not the tone --

THE COURT: But I didn’t f£ind that this was
the main function of. the book or one of the main
functions. The main function of the hook is defined by
-- by the author and -- and I don’'t -- I won’t even
necessarily -- although O’Brien may have called it a
spoof, I don’t necessarily see it as a spoof, this is
not the National Lampoon book here, but it's certainly

MR. CERESNEY: I mean, and the statute
clearly covers --

THE COURT: It deals with each -- other than
the dissemination of news in the traditional -sense,
when we look a historical perspective of -- of whexe
the privilege came from and how it came to be.

' MR. CERESNEY: I understand that would be. the
historical perspective, Your Honor, but the 'B1
amendme?t T think changed that perspective completely.

Ceresney - Argument 67

And Your Honor recog --

THE COURT: I still think we have to look --
again, my decision is not based upon the history of how
this shield law arose, but recognition that, certainly,
this is not traditional application, certainly
plaintiff‘s counsel is well-founded in saying books --
books could have easily have been included not enly in
New Jersey’s law, but in New York's law. But, again,
my view of what, overall, where In re Sullivan says to
me look at the book, basically, look at it in its
totality, everything gets mixed up and you wake a
decision based upon the totality of the evidence of
what 3t is. And I don’t think that one of the main
functions-is the dissemination of news.

MR. CERESNEY: It -- Your Homox, I would beg
to differ that that’'s what -- that’s what --

THE COURT: I know that and maybe an
Appellate Court’ll -- will agree with ya.

MR. CERESNEY: You know, and I think here,
particularly here, when we're talking about a book
which is a direct extension of reporting for the Times
.~ if we were talking about, Your Honor, some book that

. had, nothing to.do witli-earlier reporting, did mot --

: THE COURT: Heé .didn‘t have any guarantees
when he wrote this book that it was gonna be published

g
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at all, accepted for publication. He didn’t have any
guarantees by the New York Times that they were gonna
be involved, that Tiwme Warner was gonna be involved, -~--

MR. CERESNEY: Well, he had --

THE COURT: -- right?

MR. CERESNEY: He had a book contract, Your
Honor. He had a --

THE COURT: Well, he had a -- but he -- but
at the time he wrote it?

MR. CERESNEY: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CERESNEY: He already had a signed book
contract, Your Homor. And it -- and he - and he had
been, you know, -- I mean, there’s obviously provisions
in there about you’re gomna provide the book by X date
and that it’1l be published, assuming it meets certain
minimal criteria. So, T mean, he had a -- he had an
indication it would be published. He didn’t have an
indication it will be excerpted in the Times, but then
it was. Bnd that -- you know, it -- I just worry that
we're losing here, Your Honox, the forest from the
trees here. You read the brologue a number of times
and -- -

THE COURT: No, I --= T —- T read that because
-- I copld £ind you other sections, I’11l be glad to go
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through it.

MR. CERESNEY: But all those are tone issues,
Your Honor, I think.

THE COURT: You’re right.” .The tone issues --
but the tone sets what the book is. You can’t say I
speak in this tone and I'm not sarcastic!

MR. CERESNEY: But sarcasm doesn't take it
out of the First Amendment context, it doesn‘t take it
out of the shield statute. You can report on news with

sarcasm --

THE COURT: But it tells you --

MR. CERESNEY: -- a newscaster --

THE COURT: -- what it is -~ what appeal is
it having? Where is -- what -- what audience is it

directing itself to?
MR..CERESNEY: The public.

THE COURT: What is it that draws interest in
the book?

MR. CERESNEY: The public.

THE COURT: 1Is -- ig it really the news?
- CERESNEY: Yes.

THE, COURT: Not really.
- CERESNEY: It's the Trump-sized

BH5

revelations.

THE COURT: It’s the People aspect, the
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People magazine aspect of the case of -- of the
publication that draws. It’‘s -- oh, yes, it’s in
public interest because’ people like to hear about that
stuff.

MR. CERESNEY: That’'s correct.

THE COURT: Gossip is a public intexest.

MR. CERESNEY: National Enguirer.

THE COURT: I -- I -- there’s very little out
there that’s worth buying or locking at that doesn’t
have some public interest. But does that make
everything -- does that give everything a protection?

I don't think so.

MR. CERESNEY: It gives -~ it gives
everything that could be possibly characterized as a
matter of public interest protection, Your Honor. I
think that that --

THE COURT: Well, that’s --

MR. CERESNEY: -- was the intent --

THE COURT: -- really overly broad and I
think it goes -- applies against the case of -- of what

the statute is written for. But go ahead, I'm -- I'm -

- that’s one of its main functions, it goes to that --
that’s why I made for the plaintiff complete reading
the -- the --

MR. CERESNEY: That’s right.

[
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THE COURT: -- strike that, because that’'s

. what I focused on that and the definition of news when

T looked at In re Sullivan.

o MR. CERESNEY: Well, but what I focus on in
this book, Your Honor, is it‘s not somebody who went
out and just sat down at their computer and just wrote
a work of fiction or wrote a work of ~- just -~ just
off the top of their head. He interviewed many, many
sources --

THE COURT: Oh, sure, he took --

MR. CERESNEY: -- and there are revelations
in this book- about Mr. Trump, which you, you know, I
think have recognized, there are revelations about his
business activities in the past, there are revelations
that come from interviews of him personally. )

. -THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MR. CERESNEY: BAnd, in fact, those were done
specifically for this book. People might read this
just to-hear what Donald Trump has to say about a
numbexr of different things and that’s a mattexr of
public interest. The fact that it's presented in a
tone that is sarcastic in some aspects of it does not
take away. from the fact that one of its main functions
is to disseminate news, to disseminate issues of public
-~ matters of public interest. And there are wmany in
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here.

And, specifically, the allegedly libelous
claim, which appears on page 154 -- and that really, I
think, should be the only thing we’re talking about --
but, in any event, Your Honor obviously disagrees with
me on that -- but that appears identically,
egsentially, in the New York Times a year earlier and,
in fact, it appeared, as Your Honor indicated, in many,
many prominent publications.

I just am concerned, Your Honor, that in this
situation where you have a sarcastic tone in the book,
the Court is taking it upon itself to determine what is
news to the public and what is not. T think it’'s clear
that, broadly speaking, this -- these are issues of
public interest, the public is interested in these
issues. The book did not sell very well, but that
inevitably may -- thak may go to damages, but it does
show that there was at least some interest in it and it
did -- it was bought some people.

And ultimately, Your Honor, I think we all
would agree that these are things, while you -- you and
I might not be interested in them very much, there are
many who are. And that's why magazines like the -
National Enquirer exists, that's why People exists. .
But eve? beyond that, that’s why Business Week exists-

Ceresney. - Argument / Findings by the Court 73

and those are the types of things that are also
discussed in this. Like the transactions he engaged
in, like the debt on certain of his properties. Some
of those things are -- are talked about in there.
Specific aspects of purchases and sales of properties,
transactions he dealt with over time. The fact that he
bhad dealings with the ~- with the mon -- with some
potentially allegedly people affiliated with the mafia
early in his career.

I mean, all of these things are things that
come out in this book and that are revealed in this
book and that ultimately are matters of public
interest. &And so, I think even under New York law,
you're dealing with issues of public interest and those
-- I don’t see how you can read them out of this -- of
the statute. :

THE COURT: Any response?

MR. RESSLER: No, Judge .

COURT: All right. As I indicated, first
of all, I've made g finding that plaintiff’s counsel is
correct, the statute could have easily included the
word books. I’ve already made a determination and I
appreciate counsel‘’s arguments, they really make me
think there’'s still a question -- I never come out here
with a predetermination, I listen carefully to what‘s

1264a

e




woSaumbkWnH

WmIR U W

Findings by the Court 74

said.

T took an enormous amount of time to xead
through the book, like, a couple times and -- to try to
figure out exactly what it was and recognize it for
what -- it -- it certainly -- as I said to you before,
anything worthy of -- of marketing or buying has to
have some public interest in it, but that in and of
itself doesn’t make it news. So, containing factual
information, be it historical or of recent events,
certainly does not, in and of itself, if it’s included
in the book, make it news.

What’s one of the main functions? 2And as I
said, and In_xe Sullivan seemed to -- to be congistent
with what I felt, that -- that everything -got.-- gets
blurred lots of times, things get blurred in this day
and age when you have a book like this. It contain --
contains facts, contains newsworthy -- what would
ordinarily be newsworthy information, if published in a
newspaper, which some of it has been and there’s plenty
of article -- newspaper articles that are referred to.
There -- again, looking in its totality, I don't f£ind
that its main function is the dissemination of news,
nor do I find it to be news in the sense as defined by
New York law. . :

as I said, in its totality, not only based

4
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upon what I read, what T saw, the tone of the book, to
some degree you‘re right, has -- has a bearing on it,
but the tone was put in the book by the author and the
author was attempting to wmarket it as entertainment
more so than it was news. Bnd I‘m looking at his own
spin, what I perceive to he a spin on the book, from
what he wrote in the book. A lot of what I‘'m deciding
today is based upon what the author 4did and didn’t do,
what the author said and didn’t say.

Accordingly, I do f£ind it to be news, but T -
- T want to, again, make another point so as a result -
- mot news, -rather, it is not news. It is not subject
to the shield law. Accordingly, based upon that
analysis, the shield law cannot be utilized to prevent
the discovexry.

However,- I still want to wake an additional
finding and I want to go back to page 154 and go back
to the argument T was having with defense counsel. B2And
T say, even if a reviewing court says, swell, Judge,
you know, you're all wet; that was, in fact, news.
You're wrong." I.look at what was not said on page
154, going back to the argument. I invite you to argue
with me about it.

That glaring omission, the failure to
jdentify these three sources as anonymous sSources --
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and I know what you said, I heard you say it -- or
confidential sources, when this author has gone to
great lengths to articulate in his footnotes or in the
body of the text, who is and who is not one that would
be a confidential source, I reach the conclusion that
those sourcez on 154, even if this were news, are non-
confidential sources. That, in the alternative, if a
court disagreed with me, the -- and the reviewing court
disagrees with me, I then look at that. Again, I'm
relying upon what O‘Brien said or didn’t say in regard
to those three sources.

Is there anything else that you want to add
to me, because I know that You -- we got into that
discussion a little bit earlier than I had anticipated,
but it’s an interesting discussion. And I'm trying to
ascertain why these people -- and Yyou gave me some
views, say, "Well, Judge, the law does not require you
to footnote it, italicize it, identify it," but you
have to look at the intent of the parties. And all ¥
have to look at the intent of the parties is-the
evidence that I have before me. And the evidence is
indicative that there‘s an omission of this nature,
that the author did not consider that to be a
confidential or anonymous source.

No, I -- I can’t be left with any other

OOV RWNE

" jumped on the bandwago
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conclusion, because ¥ -- again, I went through it, I
read through the paragraphs -- that chapter 6,
unfortunately, I must have read about six times to try
to figure out if I could throw any reasonable inference
of -- of confidentiality expectation, other than the
fact that these individuals were not named. I mean,
that -- that gives me some idea, '

MR. CERESNEY: Right. Well, Your Honor, I
think -~ I tend to think of two things. First, I don’t
think that there’s any dispute of fact on this now.

And if you wanted to hold a hearing, you obvious -

THE COURT: Well, plaintiff’s -- wait! He
n. Plaintiff’s counsel is
shaking his heagd yeah.

MR. CERESNEY: Well, I don’t know how he had
a basis to dispute’ that. The point is, there’s a sworn
affidavit certification from Mr. O’Brien saying that
these three sources have requested confidentiality and
fear retribution. That's what’s in the record on this.

But T don‘t think there’s any basis at zll to doubt
that under the statute these people, this information,
this news ---and I would emphasize this is a matter of
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public interest -- this news was obtained or received
in confidence.

wOr the identity of the source of any such
news coming in such" -- that -- because these -- the
jdentity of the source and this -- not the news, but
the identity of the source was received in confidence.
And the point being, the omission from the book of a
footnote cannot be what this statute turns on, it must
_. what -- what you're effectively importing into this
is a requirement that when a writer specifically wants
something protected by this particular aspect in the
gtatute, that writer has to specifically say that this
particular source has requested anonymity for the
following reasons and here’s why. And that is nowhere
in the statute and would impose a great burden. What

about -- what about a newscaster? Does a newscaster,
when the newscaster says -- does he have to footmnote
what he says in the news -- in -- in the news report?

No. I wean, absolutely not. Newspapers don’t have
footnotes, Your Honor.

_ The point is that there is no dispute that
these people have asked for confidentiality, that is --

wpoaankewhH

there's a certification to that effect, we can -- if
Your Honor wants to hear testimony on it, obviously
that’s possible. I don‘t -- T don’t see any reason f£or
I
Ceresney - argument 79

that. 2and the point is, just simply having -- not
having a footnote doesn’t take it out of the scope of
the statute. I don’t -- and I don’t see how it could
be read -- " .

THE COURT: No, I just recon -- I‘m just
pointing out to you what I -- what was glaring to me.
MR. CERESNEY: &And I understand that, Judge,
and -- ’

THE COURT: 2and -- and, again, you're talking
about an author who was enormously careful in -- in
making sure.he identified people where there was

_ confidentiality or anonymity expected from anyone. And

-~ and, again, I --

MR. CERESNEY: But we can put in the
certification as to the reason, Your Honor, if that
would help. I mean, I -- I‘ve made a proffer that --
‘ THE COURT: No, I'm just telling you that
that’s not -- that’s not the basis for my .
determination, I already told you the basis for my
detexrmination. I‘m just making arg -- I -- I was
talking about an alternate finding, because I have a
situation where, despite the fact that I do have a
certification, it would appear, based upon what I read
and what I.didn't read, . that. -~ that:these individuals
had not been identified -as confidential sources.

B
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Now, I know that you have a certification you
have provided me with.

MR. CERESNEY: Yeah. Now --

THE COURT: But I‘m -- I'm concerned about
the veracity of it, in light of what was written and
what wasn‘t written in this book. That's what my
concern was. And if it was -- certainly, if it’s a
non-confidential source, when you talk about the
constitutional test or the test for non-confidential

sources, the -- there’s no doubt in my mind that if
these people were not considered to be confidential
sources, that certainly the -- the information is

highly material and relevant, because this is the
gravamen of the cause of action. .
We know that Donald Trump’s a public figure,
which has to prove clearly and convincingly actual
malice, a huge burden that he's gonna have to overcome
to be able to prevail in this case. - This is critical
and necessary to maintenance of his c¢laim? Absolutely.
And is it obtainable from some alternate source? I
don’t think that there is any alternate sources, but --
MR. CERESNEY: Although he hasn’t tried vet,
Your Honor, obviously. He hasn't deposed anybody, -
including any -- my understanding is he -- he thinks he
knows w@o they are, so he hasn’t tried to depose

.
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anybody, though. I mean, and that -- that clearly is
not worked uwp and I think one of the courts, Judge -- a
decision -- and he hasn’t worked up a sweat, so to
speak. .- -
' But going back, Your Honor, to -- to one
thing that you said. And T -- T think ultimately here
what we’re talking about is -- and I know what you said
about the veracity of Mr. O’Brien, I just don’t see any
basis for doubting that. We didn‘t put in the
certification the reason why it wasn’t footnoted, that
wasn’t an issue that was certainly briefed at all by --
by plaintiff’s counsel and not something that was
raised as an issue. If that concerns Your Honor, we
could certainly put in the certification on that. But
I think, ultimately, that the certification that you °*

have, which is under oath and there’s no basis to -- to
deny that.

I mean, I guess -- I guess I'm just wondering
why it would be that Mr. O’Brien, at the time of the
publication, would -- would put in a paragraph talking
about three scurces and not identify them if they
didn’t ask for conf -- confidentiality. I mean, he did
identify all other sources who did not recuest such
confidentiality through footnotes. And we've
identified those in our privilege log and we’ve made
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those clear. I think -- you know, I -- I just don’'t
think your point about how careful he was, actually I
think supports this notion. Because he made a specific
determination not to include that for a specific
reason.

The other question I have for Your Honor is -
- is, obviously, I understand Your Honor’s ruling on
this.

THE COURT: I‘m not done, I want to just hear
from them about the one issue and then we'll -- .

MR. CERESNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: -~ you could ask me for
clarification. ' Go ahead.
’ ) MR. CERESNEY:®' Yeah.

THE COURT: Anything you'd like to say about
that?

MR. RESSLER: No, Judge. I mean, I think
Your Honor's point is well-taken. I opened up to
thought ~- footnotes on page 254, vauthor interviewed

confidential source" is reference in footnote 44 --

THE COURT: Oh, just -- and just looking at
it, I =aid that's so -- I wean, there just is something
that was glaring to me as I run through the -~ the-
entire book a couple times. And why didn‘t he just .
simply say these people wanted anonymity, could have ~

Colloquy. 83

put one word in there. Not three anonymous sources.
pPidn’t even mention it, but. All right. Well, wmy
ruling is not based upon that, but I‘m just making that
obsexrvations. '

Go ahead, what did you want to ask me for
clarification?

By the way, I wanted to make one other point

. .before you ask me for clarification. There’s anothex

difference between New York and New Jersey law. WNew
vork law does not protect the editorial process ‘and,
accordingly, is gonna be -- there’s some discovery
requests. And we look at-Green baw Asgociates versus
New York Post, it was a 1980 case. It's not protected
by the shield statute. It wouldn’t be in any event,
based upon my determinatjons today, but I just wanted
to make that clear as well. -

But what -- what do you need for
clarification?

: M. CERESNEY: Yes, Your Honor. Obviously,
ag you indicated, we do intend, obviously, to seek
appellate review of this decision, which I think --

. THE COURT: Yeah, I know you’re gonna.
MR. -CERESNEY: -~ you invited.
.o THE COURT+ And I don’t -- well, listen. I'm
not -- I‘m never offended by that, I would -- I would
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hope that you would. I want to make sure I got it
right.

MR. CERESNEY: Okay. And I guess there’s two
issues on that. One is, I wondered whether Your Honor
was intending to make an alternative finding, if New
Jersey law applied, in which case we could, in theory,
raise that issue on appeal as well, because I do think
that the choice of law issue, if New Jersey law does
apply in this case, I do think that there is --

THE COURT: You win if New Jersey law
applies.

MR. CERESNEY: Yes.

THE COURT: And there’s no doubt about it and

MR. CERESNEY: That‘s correct. Although, I
think we win --

THE COURT: -- the New Jersey law is so
stxict, despite the fact that may even consider this to
be part entertainment, part news, I think the fact that

it’s -- it's -~ it isg, in fact, part news, I think
that’s enough to save the day, because New Jersey’'s law
is written so strictly, I couldn’t -- it -~ T can’t
make a finding that’s consistent with new -- the -

finding under New York law. There’s no doubt: about it.
That’s why it‘s so important to make the

I

Colloguy 85

‘threshold determinations as to conflict, as to the

applicability of New York law. T don’t want to back

into the decision, I‘'m just saying that’s ultimately
where I came to and I looked at -- T - I did analyze
it from both perspectives.

MR. CERESNEY: aAnd T figured that. I

appreciate you making that finding.

THE COURT: There's no question about it. I
mean, New York -- New Jersey law would prevent the
disclosure of the confidential sources or alleged
confidential sources.

MR. CERESNEY: And just to be clear. I think
our view is in light of that, which I agree with,
obviously completely, the choice of law analysis would
require the application of New dergey law, since I
think to admit that evidence before a jury here in New
Jersey, would violate the public policy of the state
under Maressa and under the statute. I know you've
ruled to the contrary, --

THE COURT: I know it --

MR. CERESNEY: -~ but T want to just -~

THE COURT: Look, I know what your position
was.

MR. CERESNEY: I want to make our record on
that. - -

1.270a
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THE COURT: And I appreciate that.

MR. CERESMNEY: And second, I would ask that
Your Honor stay this order pending our -- the appellate
review, to allow us to seek review. )

THE COURT: Well, you have to have an order
signed in oxder to take the appellate review, but stay
the execution of the order. :

MR. CERESNEY: Stay the execution.

THE COURT: So, certainly, I'll stay the
requirement that you have to -- you're compelled to
give that discovery umtil you’ve had an opportunity to
present the application for interlocutory review. A2And
I -- I suggest that they probably may take it, because
it‘'s a -- .

MR. CERESNEY: Until they --

THE COURT: It has a constitutional dimension
to it. By the way, the findings that I made with
respect to the non-confidential source would also apply

with respect to constitutional aspects of the -- of the
law. 8o if we're looking at it from a constitutional
pexrspective, based upon what I said about the -- the
necessity for the information -- I know you made a
point of saying, "Well, he hasn’t really tried to £ind
an alternate source," I still. find that -~ that
constitutional shield would not prevent -- that's
L
Collogquy B7

qualified privilege in this particular instance --
would not prevent a disclosure.

MR. CERESNEY: Okay. -

THE COURT: Is there anything else further
from counsel?

MR. CERESNEY: One other thing on that --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. CERESNEY: -- one last point.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. CERESNEY: dJust to clarify. On the
qualified privilege, because I Jmow Your Honoxr wants to
make the complete findings here. I know you -- oI the
gualified privilege, if it applies -- I'm sorry, Your
Honoxr -- ) )

THE COURT: That‘s okay.

MR. CERESNEY: On the --

_THE COURT: You’re right, I do.

MR. CERESNEY: On the gualified privilege, if
it applies, I think you've ruled that the confidential
-~ quote, -confidential sources, the page 154 sources,
would. be critical material and exhaust -- and that
they’ve exhausted. I know you’ve ruled on that.
There's just another aspect to it. I know you've also
ruled . editorial processes are not protected by the
qualified --
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THE COURT: Correct.

MR. CERESNEY: -- privilege. I understand
that. There’s sort of a -- a middle --

THE COURT: And by the way, they would be
under New Jersey law as well.

MR. CERESNEY: That’s right. And so but then
there’s a middle ground of non-confidential sources,
that is things that we -- You know, are cited in the
book in the footnotes or for which, you know, didn‘t
request anonymity, interview notes and other things
related to those sources. Our view is that’s actually
different from the confidential -- confidential
sources, because he knows who those sources are and can

-seek the information that those sources provided from

other sources. And so we don’t believe he’s exhausted
or that those are critical), that category, that is the
non-confidential source, the documents that relate to

that non-confidential source informations and drafts,

those types of things we just don’t think would -- it

would apply to.

And I think, Your Honor, I -- I assume would
have to make further findings on each of those
documents to determine whether, in fact, there’s been
criticality or exhaustion or materiality.

MR. RESSLER: Judge, I don’t think that's

7

.- O'Brien.

Colloquy 89

accurate, I think -- I think to the extent that counsel
is suggesting the editorial process is protected, I
don’t think that‘s the case,

THE COURT: Editorial process is not
protected.

MR. .RESSLER: It‘s not protected. So that --

MR. CERESNEY: I'm not referring to -- just
to clarify. I'm referring to interview notes, with
interviews with non-confidential sources.

MR. RESSLER: No, the -- no. No, those --
thoge should be produced, based on Your Honor’s ruling
under New York law.

THE- COURT: Yeah, that's —- I -- T expected
those to be produced. Yeah.

MR. CERESNEY: Those aren’t editorial
processes, Your Honor, those are when you're actual --
I mean, I think -- ag T undexstand editorial process --
I mean, it may be -- I -- g misunderstanding, but I
think editorial process is communications between the
writer and the editor about decisions about how to edit
-- edit to the.--

THE COURT: Your internal works of -- of Mr.

..+« MRZ. CERESNEY: Right. But I think -- no, I -
- no, I think.it’'s -- it’s drafts of the book, edits to
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the drafts of the book. Whereas, as I understand it,
interview notes --

THE COURT: Going between the author, his
agent and the --

MR. CERESNEY: Editox.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. CERESNEY: Right. I think this is a
different category. This is the author interviewing a
non-confidential source, taking notes on that
interview. That'’s a separate category, that’s not
editorial process, Youxr Honor, that’'s the intexrview --
that's, -- that’'s information obtained from the -- the
non-confidential source and then memorialized in
interview notes. That’s different --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. CERESNEY: ~-- as I understand it, under
the statute, that would fall into C in this. In other
words, an editorial processes is not covered, I think
you've ruled, at all by the statute. In the New York
gtatute, subsection C covers non-confidential
information. I would argue that’'s non-confidential
information. &And I guess the point I'm making is, he
is -~ -

THE COURT: It is not confidential, there’s
no doubt about it.

[
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MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: Nobody disputes that. '

MR. CERESNEY: B2And he needs to overcome the
qualified privilege as’ to each of those documents and
he needs to show materiality, criticality and
exhaustion. And I understand what you’re saying about
the confidential sources, and I disagree on that,
obviougly, but --

THE COURT: I know.

MR. CERESNEY: -- the non-confidential
sources, I think he knows_their jidentity and can go to
them and ask them what they told Mr. O'Brien. He
doesn’'t need our notes for that. And it's certainly
crit -- he hasn't shown it’s critical to his case,
particularly the -- .

THE COURT: Let me ask you a question. I
could interview you and you could give. me an intexrview
and I take down the information and put wy own spin on
jt. BAnd you get conflicting information. He deposes
you and then he gets my notes and your deposition is in
conflict with my notes. You don‘t think that’s
waterial? . T . :
MR. CERESNEY: Well, we would have to see

- when it -- what happens in.the deposition first. You

wouldn'’t know that until he said it. .If he ---if at
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the deposition he says something, you know, completely

THE COURT: It wouldn’t matter, he can’t --

MR. CERESNEY: -- consistent,

THE COURT: -- there’s no template to -- even
if it’'s consistent.

MR. CERESNEY: Well, but he has to txy to --

THE COURT: He still has the right to the
information.

MR. CERESNEY: But he hasn’t even said he's
gonna depose these people. In other words, you're
hypothesizing things -~-

THE COURT: I'm -- I'm just -- I‘m trying to
put a real-life example on what we‘re talking about
here.

MR. CERESNEY: nnd if -- if we were to use
that example --

THE COURT: Say, you want his -- he wants
0’Brien’s notes about an interview with a non-
confidential source.

MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: And you're saying, Judge, I still
want to -~ I -- I still want there to be a protective
order and can’t get it.

MR. CERESNEY: Right. And I‘m saying that'-

&

Colloquy ’ 93

the reason --

THE COURT: Without showing that he’s had an
opportunity to first talk to the person that was
intexviewed. . -

MR. CERESNEY: Exactly. B2nd certainly with
regaxrd to interviews that don‘t relate to net worth.
They have nothing to do with anything in this case.

MR. RESSLER: Judge, I'm not --

MR. CERESNEY: And my -- my -~ I‘d like to
finish. My -- my point is just, there’s a specific --

THE COURT: Now you’ve raised another issue.
Is it relevant to this particular inquiry? The answer
is, well, listen, if it doesn't talk about net worth,
the gravamen of the complaint is what’s the net worth,
certainly it’s not relevant, so on -- on thoge grounds,
under 401 it would'be -~-

MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: I‘m not applying the Rules of
Evidence of New York, I'm using New Jersey.

MR. CERESNEY: And all I'm trying to say is,
these are nuance determinations. You don’t have to
make these decisions today, I guess is what I'm saying.
All T guess we -- we want Your Homor to do is to focus
on the fact that yvou’re not making that -- that
category of decisions today. You're saying
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confidential --

THE COURT: I‘1l be glad to give you some
direction. I‘m saying to you, if it’s not relevant,
the likelihood of me allowing the discovery is limited.

: MR. CERESNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: If it is relevant to net worth,
if it’s an interview with somebody not a confidential
source that deals with the worth of an individual, the
likelihood is I‘m gonna make you produce those notes of
Mr. O'’Brien, because not only will Mr. O’Brien’s notes
and the correctness of those notes be in question, also
whether or not there’s an inconsistency from what was
said and what was written as to whether or not actual
malice  took place, whether or not he was re -- he -- he
published in reckless disregard to the truth.

and the-reckless disregaxrd may be provable by
obtaining the notes of what was said and by comparison
of what those -- what the interviewee stated to Mr.
O'Brien. So, he -- the interviewee says, "I think that
that’s what his net worth is, I‘m not really -sure."”
nnd then O'Brien writes his net worth is so and so, he
writes it as a fact when -- when the interviewee was --
was hedging, for example. BAgain, I don’t know what:
transpired, so you -- you’'re right in some instances
and -- and you’'xe. not so right.

’
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MR. CERESNEY: Right.

THE COURT: I‘m just trying to give you
guidance so I don’t have to deal with -- and it --
“77" MR, CERESNEY: It ~- and I think that’s all
we --

THE COURT: My ruling will be relatively
consistent with that; but, again, I remain open to the
arguments, if you show me that --

MR. RESSLER: Judge, I -- I --

THE COURT: -- wait a second -- it’s not
relevant or it‘s —-

* MR. RESSLER: I certainly hope and we’re
certainly gonna try to work these kinds of issues out,
based on Your Honor’s ruling. It seems clear to me
and, obviously, if Tiwm O’Brien has notes of an
interviewee that deal with our claim, then obviously
those are notes that we’re gomna want. So when we
depose Tim O’Brien, we’xe gonna say, "It’s funny that
you wrote XYZ .in your book, but that’s not what the
notes reflect.® I mean - and I think Your Honoxr was -
- was driving to that point. Bukt, you know, hopefully

.we'll be able ‘to.-work some of this out.

The only-other point I wanted to mention --
THE COURT:" Well, I hope you meet and confex

. .about that stuff, I mean --
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MR. RESSLER: There’s no question about’ it.
THE COURT: But I‘m just trying to give you
guidance as to where I'm likely-to go at that time and

MR. RESSLER: No, and that’s not -- and
that’g --
THE COURT: I don’'t like to prejudge
anything, but I'm gonna try to give you some quidance,
because I don’t want to micro-manage this case, I‘ve

got enough cases I micro-manage.

MR. RESSLER: No, we appreciate that.

THE COURT: Some from Mr. Tambussi‘s firm.

MR. RESSLER: The guidance is helpful and
hopefully is gonna shorten meeting for sessions.

I just want to make one £inal point. And
that is, Your Honor's cowments and counsel's comments
with respect to how this would unfold under New Jersey
law. Obviously, as we state in our papers, we view the
result being the same. We think that --

THE COURT: I know you do.

MR. RESSLER: We think that these sources
would have to be disclosed under New Jersey shield law,
that New Jersey shield law doesn’t apply, because only
books are covered. There are various other arguments
that T could wake now. I don’t think it s necessary to

/
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do so, based on Your Honor’s ruling. We make them in
our papers. I could expand upon them.

But I -- I just wanted the record to be clear
that, obviously, from Trump’s perspective we believe
that the New Jersey shield law would -- would
absolutely apply here and that the rationale that the
Supreme Court of this state used in Maressa, where it
emphatically endorsed the shield law, wouldn’t apply
here at all. That ~- that to apply that rationale here
would really make a mockery of what the Supreme Court
was talking about in Maressa, for a variety of reasons,
including the fact that the Maressa court was really
focused on the pressure of deadlines, that reporters in
those seven specifically-enumerated news media operate
under, that doesn’t apply here at all. O’Brien had all
the time in the world to write this book and -- and
verify the statewents that we claim are defamatory
about what Trump’s net worth is.

I could go on, but I don’t think I need to,

Judge. I just wanted to make that clear for the
record.

THE COURT: No, I ‘see one -- I did look very
carefully at the New Jersey law, because I did
recognize that that would be the subject in the event I
did find that New York law did apply, that certainly

1276a
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you'd like me to make the record clear and complete.
and I even looked at the fact that, well, 0’Brien
wasn’'t really as an employee of the New York Times when
he did this, he was -- well, we’ll call it o freelance.
When I looked at that, even to try to see if he would
fall outside the shield law, well even that satisfied
me that that would be covered as well.

I looked at a number of cases and the
conclusion I came to is if New Jersey law applied in

" this particular instance, there would no -- be no doubt

in wy mind the shield law would apply. And the
editorial process would likewise be protected. 8o,
does that help you?

MR. CERESNEY: Yes. It does, Your Honor.

“PHE COURT: It helps him. 2nd note that the
Appellate Court, when they review this, should look at
the -- the papers that plaintiff hag filed with respect
to the applicability and their argument that the
outcome would have been the same.

MR. RESSLER: Yeah and we based it primarily
on the fact that when -- when the statute requires
somebody to be a professional journalist, they have to
be a professional journalist for the part -- -

THE COURT: Well, that’s the New York statute
that used professional journalist. We don't have that

WO W
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same law here in New Jersey.

MR. RESSLER: The -- good point, Judge. The
-~ the New Jersey statute requires that some --

THE COURT: Somecone connected to -- I wmean --

MR. RESSLER: That somebody be employed by --
one -~ .one of the specific news media. So what OfBrien
is basic -

THE COURT: Yeah, but In re Knapp, by the
way, that person wasn’t employed by the news media, it
was like a --

{Tape change malfunction)

MR: RESSLER: Under -- under the defendants’
theory, so long as they’'re employed by one of the
enumerated kinds of news media, you could go out and
write a book and gain protection of the shield law.
That means I could be a photo editor at a golf magazine
or a porno magazine or a professional wrestling
magazine, go out and write -a book about a public-
figure, rely on anonymous sources and then, when I'm
sued, say, "I don't have to reveal my sources, because
I'm protected by the shield law, because I‘'m a photo
editor at a porno magazine or a golf magazine or a
professional wrestling magazine." That’s not what the
legislature, in our view, intended. ,

So, we -view the statute as clearly saying you
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have to be employed by the news media that actually
publishes or broadcasts the particular work in dispute.
So here, O'Brien -- of course he’s employed by the New
York Times, but the work in dispute in this case, it
wasn’t published in the New York Times, it was a book.
This -~ this is what’s in dispute. This was a Warner
Books book. So, and that -- and that’s our position as
to why we would still be protected under the New Jersey
law.

MR. CERESNEY: BAnd we obviously disagree,
Your Honor. We --

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CERESNEY: And agree with Your Honor.
One additional thing, Your Honor. We actually have,
obviously, a number of other discovexy issues,
including the tax return issue.

THE COURT: Oh, by the way, ¥ had -~ I had a
motion to quash a subpoena, I believe.

MR. CERESNEY: That’s another issue, Your
Honor, that we want to raige today.

THE COURT: Well, let me do this. TILet me
take a break, because now we're -- we’xre done this
aspect of the case. BAnd at this point, it‘s really-

case management, it’s no longer dealing with this
particular aspect of the case. :
+

Colloquy T 10t

MR. CERESNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: We’ll take a break and then tell
me what you want to talk about, so I could just get
different parts of the £iling documents that I wmight
have a need --

MR. CERESNEY: Yeah. Your Honor, we sent a
lettexr yesterday which I think identifies the four or
five issues and I‘'1l just enumerate them. One is the
tax return issue. And we have the tax return with us
and I think, you know, Your Honor --

THE COURT: The over-redaction?

MR. CERESNEY: Yes. &and this -- this goes
beyond case wanagement, I think, Your Honor, this is
actvally, in our view, a violation of Your Hopor’s
court order.
know, the plaintiffs come to you with unclean hands
with regard to their motion to compel on the privilege
and then their non-compliance with the court’s order.
I think when -- we should talk about that, I think;
and, obviously, you -- you’ve stayed the motion to
compel. now until we staxrt appellate review, so there’s
not obwviously immediate enforcement, but --

THE COURT: Okay. So you got over-redaction
tax returns. . 1 SR .

MR. CERESNEY:. We’ve got the tax returns.

In some respects our view ig that, you °

. pderr
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We’ve got issues with the Weiser production and the
redaction log. Which didn’t have any specificity at
all to challenge the basis for the redaction. You've
got --

THE COURT: You're saying that the privilege
log wasn't specific enough?

MR. CERESNEY: Not at all.

THE COURT: Okay.

. MR. CERESNEY: The redaction log, rather.
and then we’re missing a fair amount of the production.
We were told that we were gonna get a second batch of
Weiser documents and we don't -- we’ve actually asked
when you expect that and we haven't been told. And so
wefre awaiting that and that was supposed to be
produced December 1st.

The third issue is the motion to quash you
mentioned. Which is currently returmable January 19th,
though our --

THE COURT: I think since you are here, maybe
I’d help you get xrid of that. .

MR. CERESNEY: That’s right. Exactly.
Fourth, the - the issue of plaintiff’s own production
and the time Fframe issue. Your Honor had expanded -the
time frame at our last appearance to include an

additional two-year -- I'm sorry, a three-year periodﬂ
']
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Tn response to that we got two documents. And that

'seemed to us to be highly questionable, since it was

the plaintiff who.claims those were extremely
burdensome to expand the time frame. BAnd that was, you
know, one of the main bases for the cobjection. Aand so
we sought clarxification from them and we haven’t gotten
it and we would ask Your Honor to seek clarification on
that.

And f£inally on the interrogatories. We had
tried to meet and confer on this, Your Honoxr. We had a
meet and confer November 15th. We agreed they would
come back by December 4th to supplement their responses
on December —— and we actually gave them that two-and-
a-half weeks because of the holiday and they asked for
it, we wanted it earlier, we thought we were being
correctly understanding and the like. On December 4th
we get a letter that says that we’ll .get them in the
immediate future. We did get the responeses yesterday,
it just so happens, coincidentally, in advance of
appearing before Your Honor.

T We’re not gonna raise the issues that we
gtill have in the interrogatories today, wefll leave
that for another day, but there’s one issuve --

THE COURT: You have'to lock at what you got.
o MR. CERESNEY: ‘That’s right. Exactly.

‘1279
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There’s one issue that T think is blare -- is glaring
that I think we do want to raise, and it's an issue
Iour Honor has Focused on before. 1It‘s the lost
corporate opportunities or lost corporate deals, which
are the crux of their claim of damage --

THE COURT: Yeah, I said -- before T said
specify what they were, because I had specif -- I said,
well, listen. The allegation was, was damage to the
brand -- the Trump brand and I was kidding around with
You, I said, "What are You gonna show, that the Nielsen
ratings dropped two months after the book was published
in the Apprentice?®

. MR. CERESNEY: Or no one's watching the Miss
USA Pageant. . ) .

THE COURT: BAnd looking at the hook, you
know, the -- what happened on the Apprentice was pretty
important in his career.

MR. CERESNEY: That's right.

THE COURT: But --

MR. CERESNEY: Yeah. "And we still have
gotten that and there was an interrogatory on that, we
were told we were gonna get supplements on that, it was
not included in the letter. We were told in the letter
they need to --

THE COURT: Yeah, because I said --
F)

Colloquy 108

MR. CERESNEY: ~- confer with their client.

THE COURT: -~ they could specify it -- they
could --

MR. CERESNEY: .Right. :

THE COURT: -~ be specific about what
contracts or lost opportunities -

MR. CERESNEY: It seems to us that should be
obvious. I wean, you should know that by now. You
should have known that when you filed the suit, is our
view. Aand so we would like Your Honor to, you know, --

THE COURT: I guess, by the way, one of the
reasons I limited some of the provisions of the income
tax returns -- because if you remember -- again, I‘1l
go back into this in a minute, but the income tax

returns, I -- I said to them, "Well, how -- how is it
that the -- that the plaintiff

only way he can prove damages i

the Apprentice Nielsen ratings dropping.

And I said, "How are You gonna prove damages,
if you.don’t prove a diminishment of income?" aAnd ¥
said, if I'm not mistaken, there’s standard deviations
in income every year no matter if You’'re -- especially
if you’re in business and that you needed a wide range
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of tax returns to try to ascertain what the income was,
what the standard deviation would be and then to see
whether or not.there was something that would be a loss
outside the standard deviation that potentially could
be attributable to the publication of the book.

and to that, the plaintiff responded, "Wait a
gec -- wait a second, Judge. We can identify the lost
opportunities." So -~

MR. CERESNEY: Right. That was the mid-
October phone call, Your Honor, that --

THE COURT: And that may be in regaxrd to the
-- the other issue of expansion of tax returns. So you
haven’t gotten anything yet. But while -- what -- what
I'm gonna ask you to.do when I take a break hers for
about 10 or 15 minutes, is -- is if -- and you've got
counsel here, I guess some of the people from both
firms are probably here that have a good idea of what's
going on in discovery. -If you -- you folks could talk,
see if you could resolve some of these issues.

Any other issues?

MR. CERESNEY: No, those are the issues we

‘wanted to raise today.

THE COURT: Anything the plaintiff has? For
the good of the order, other than what we’ve taken care
of today?

7

Yo~ s iR

Tambussi - Argument 107

'MR. TAMBUSSI: Well, a lot of it, Judge, has
to do with the -- the motion today and what their
privilege log said and how we don't believe that that

- privilege log was complete. But a lot of that depends

on what the Appellate Division does in this case.

THE COURT: All right. Well --

MR. TAMBUSSI: TIf they take a motion for
leave to appeal, then, you know, all of this is woot.
If they do not, then we're back. And rather than beat
a dead horse -- and then there’s also the aspect,
Judge, as we’re taking this break, that we need to
think about.

: When Your Homor left the issue of what we,
the plaintiff, had to produce by way of personal
jnformation, the Court also recognized that some of
this required -- or may require expert testimony.
Plain -- the defendants have put up some financial
person from affiliate of a law firm in some --

THE COURT: I think they told me they had an
expert already.

MR. TBMBUSSI: Correct. And -- and we will

. be prepared to, also, Judge. Because when we think

about this issue of the tax return, I mean what really
bears on net worth is a technical question that’s far
above my Jevel of understanding of the tax --
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THE COURT: Well, Mr. Tambussi, the tax
return is two -- a twofold reason. X ordered tax
returns disclosed for a couple reasons. Number one --
and that’s why I expanded it. Number one, because it -
- there are aspects of the tax return that would
indicate the acquisition of assets of sale, assets of
depreciation, things of that nature; whereby at least
there could be some verification as to the agsets and
liabilities.

Additionally, because I was unsure as to what
the damages were that were being asserted, as I already
said about the -- the years of the tax returns,
standaxd deviation, whether or not any loss is
attributable to this, that’s why I had ordered the tax
returns to be disclosed as well. Again, that’'s
integrated in the -- the requirement.

You're saying to -- if you want to -- if your
client's willing to be bound by the notion that I‘m not
alleging any diminishment of income that will show on a
tax return, but the loss of prospective profits as a
result of contracts not being entered into because of
the -- my questionable net worth now, that --

MR. TAMBUSSI: And value of the brand. .

" THE COURT: See, that affects the amount of
redaction that has to be done to the return,

L4

”
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MR. TAMBUSST: Absolutely, Judge. And, with
all due respect, we've produced 100,000 page -- over

100,000 pages of documents thus far. fThis production

There’s 70,000 additiona]l pages that are going -- that
we're going through now. 70,000 were produced
Yesterday? December 1st.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TAMBUSSI: Then we have additional pages
that we’re doing now. we are producing those documents
on a rolling basis. Rather than take this piecemeal --
and people come in and suggest that the plaintiff is
acting with unclean bhands. when, in fact, the plaintiff
waited months and months and months and months for the

That seems to me to be the better approach,
rather than to micro-

that comes through. -
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THE COURT: Well, that’s out there now, SO
what I‘m gonna do is, I -- like I said, I‘m gonna take
about a 15-minute break and then maybe you guys cai
confer. If you need more time, I‘ve got the time to
give you today.

MR. CERESNEY: That’s --

THE COURT: As long as your office doesn’t —-

MR. CERESNEY: I --

THE COURT: -- get me involved in some othexr
mess that’s going on out there. I have depositions
taking place in the -- in the --

MR. TAMBUSSI: Maaco case, Judge?

THE COURT: Yeah. And HMO versus a drug

company . . . .-
MR. CERESNEY: And that’s f£ine, Your Honor.
I guess the one thing I1’'d say in response to that is
the order was clear on the tax return. It said the
only thing that could be redacted was personal
information.
. THE COURT: Yes, charitable --
MR. CERESNEY: I think Your Honor --

THE COURT: -- contributions, alimony
payments, whether or not we -- being, again, the -- the
tone, the sarcastic tone was used as to whether or not
he contributed a dollar or two dollars to the -- o

i
.-*. :-_ is
., '
gr-'-
Ceresney - Argument _ 11l

MR. CERESNEY: Contained in the order.

THE COURT: -- presidential campaign fund.

MR. CERESNEY: Doesn’t mean it doesn’t have
legal authority, Your Honor, even if it’s sarcastic.

THE COURT: I know, I agree, I agree with
you.

MR. CERESNEY: And your letter to us, where
you actually indicated that you had -- you were gonna
charge us in the order, that also had legal authority,
obviously. But the point I'm making is Your Honor has
decided the --

THE COURT: I didn’t charge you, did I?

MR. CERESNEY: You did not and we're waiting
for the bill. .

THE COURT: . You're not getting it.

MR. CERESNEY: The point is, Your Honor, this
has been decided, we have stood here and I think we
actually stood.before Your Honor and said we were
concerned about any-broad allowance of redaction here,
because we assumed that they were gonna do just what
they did. We certainly didn‘t assume that there would
be.eight numbers that they would leave on the xreturn.
So-~we have these --

. THE COURT: That was it?
MR. CERESNEY: Do you want to take the

ks
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return, Your Honor? We have it. You can take it back
with you and peruse, it won’t --

THE COURT: Sure, okay.

MR. CERESNEY: It won't take you long --

THE COURT: Did you -- do you have a cop --
obviously, you have a copy of it, you gave it to them.

MR. CERESNEY: It won't take long, Your
Honor, because there's hardly any numbers in there that
are --

THE COURT: He didn't leave a Social Security
number did he?

MR. CERESNEY: He did not, he redacted that
as well, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. TAMBUSSI: dJudge -- Judge, just so the
record is cleaxr, the plaintiff has used the advice of
tax counsel to determine that which is relevant

according to the parameters of Your Honor's order. In
making the determination what to redact --

THE COURT: You had an accountant try to
figure what I said?

MR. TAMBUSSI: No, we had a tax -~

THE COURT: I mean, the Appellate Division --
MR. TAMBUSSI: A tax lawyer.

THE COURT: -~ sometimes shakes their heads;

Tambussi / Ceresney - Argument 113

“What the heck did he say?*"

MR. TAMBUSSI: Foxmer counsel for the IRS.

MR. CERESNEY: Your Honor, the order says
personal information. . It doesn’t say relevant to net
worth. That’s the whole point.  The -~

MR. TAMBUSSI: The whole point of the
arguwent, Judge, was did it apply to net worth or not.

This is the problem that we have in each and every meet
and confer. Your Honor’s orde

r gets reargued at time

and time and time again.

MR. CERESNEY: We agree with that, Your
Honor. And that’s not our -- us rearguing it. You
issued an order, it seems pretty clear to me, personal
information is not, as they -- they submitted in their
proposed order, relevant to net worth. And that’s was
what we were concerned about and that’s why your order
-~ Your Honor ordered this broad -- this limited,
narrow category of information be redacted, because so
that they couldn’t make those -- that -- that’'s a

-judgment that our experts should be making after

getting this information, Your Honor. And there
shouldn‘t.be a confidentiality concern here, because we
have this confidentiality order that --

MR. -TAMBUSSI: We're -- we're gonna, --

THE ‘COURT: I think I‘m gomna hire his

12843
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accountant, because he only paid $38,000 in tax.

MR. CERESNEY: Actually, the 38 -- well, 38
million, I think, Your Honoxr. .

THE CQURT: Oh, thanks. I missed that --

MR. RESSLER: So did Mr. O’Brien, Judge.

MR. TAMBUSSI: That‘s exactly the type of
information that, when it gets published on the
internet, the barn door is left opem. If it‘s not
relevant to net worth, it‘s not something that needs to
be disclosed.

MR. CERESNEY: BAnd I think --

THE COURT: All right. Well, look. I‘1ll --

MR. TAMBUSSY: If the 10-1s are there, Judge,
all the identification, well -- the companies, the
partnerships are there, they have all the information
that they need.

MR. CERESNEY: And I guess on that, the pame
of the corporation doesn’t help us do anything. We
don’'t know what his interxest in that is, what the
income or expenses from that coxporation during the
year are, what his tax basis would be. all that
information is important to value that outfit and --

MR. TAMBUSSI: It doesn’t matter. -

THE COURT: All right. Well, look. Let me
take a break. There is --

!
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MR. CERESNEY: Pretty funny.

THE COURT: Not much on here.

MR. CERESNEY: Exactly. We thought you would
see’ that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CERESNEY: Okay? Thank youn, Your Honor.

THE COURT: See you in a bit. But that still
doesn't mean that you shouldn‘t talk.

: MR. CERESNEY: Okay. We will, Your Honor.
(Brief recess)

THE COURT: _ --- the Trump case. Defense has
raised some very serious issues that deal with the
failure of the plaintiff to comply with the discovery
that I had previously ordered. I did go through this
tax return. It’s pretty easy to go through when you
have all these redactions here. Bnd as I said before I
left the-bench, that it was so important to kmow what
his missed business opportunities were, because they --
they -- the relevancy of the documents contained -- Qr
the information contained.in the tax return are
dgsociated with that!... Because if the:damages are not a
loss of income, but.rather a loss of specific contract
opportunities, certainly the -information contained with
respect to, income is not germane.

But I‘m gonna ‘suggest this to the plaintiffs.

12852
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You have to produce that -- that information and you --
you should do so well in advance of the January 19th
date that I have given you in chambers. I said you’ll
come back here January 19th, 1’11 deal with the wotion
to quash at that point. I want to know what’s been
produced as far as the provision of the information
with respect to damages. Because without that -- if
You get here on the 19th and You haven’t given them
that information, guess what? The tax return, all
these white papers across the income information that
are all across Schedule C, they‘re all gonna have to be
removed, you’re gonna have to give them a full
disclosure of the income. 1It'’s as simple as that,

Because I‘m not gonna go on with the
presumption that -- that My. Trump lost business
opportunities and have to have them delay further their
analysis of their exposure in the case. And why am I
doing this? Because I -- I suggested to both of you
that I thought there was some way to resolve this case
in some meaningful fashion without it being a dollars
and cents issue.

I really -- and I'm ordering and directing
You ko meet prior well in advance of January 19th, -
representatives of each side, if not the parties

themselves, to -- to try to come up with a resolution
Fi
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in this particular case. I think it behooves both of
You to do that. The amount of the discovery is gonna
be enormous, this case is gonna probably end up getting
delayed because of.what I perceive to be -- I really
believe the Appellate Division is gonna take the issue,
because it hag -- well, it doesn’t have constitutional
dimensions, it certainly has important dimensions that
deal with the rights of the press.

So, in the interim, Mr. Tambussi, please
bress your client. I know that the holidays are upon
us, sSo we’‘re goma -- I'mn gomna -- I am gonna expect
within 15 days that you provide them with the specific
information that I had heretofore ordered. And I‘m not
gomna rule on the redactions at the present time until
I get that information. Like I said to defense, if you
don't get the information, You're gonna have to rely
upon income information with respect to the damages and
You're gonna get the information that you need to
calculate your damages. It’s. as simple as that. Aand
S0, a later point in time, if they come up with the
information, oh well, You got what you need.

. The Heiser documents, I understand that
you're gonna continue to produce that information?

MR. TAMBUSSI: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you’ll continue to do so --
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please, have it to them well in advance, at least nine
days in advance of the return date of the motion, so I
could deal with it. The wot -- again, I recognize that
the appellate review may delay this case, ultimately,
and I don‘t want you to have to spend money that you
ordinarily wouldn’t have to spend. . But eventually,
whether -~ whether or not the Appellate Division
upholds my determination or returns it to me for
further hearing, this case is still apparently gonna
proceed and you're gomna have to produce the
infoxrmation.

As far as the intexrrogatories. additional
information has just been provided and we give the
defensé’ the opportunity to review it ‘carefully so that
at least if they have some requests for more specific
answers or to compel additional information, they can
do so in some meaningful fashion, as opposed to having
to do this in the dark. It’s unfair to the defense to
have to do it in the dark.

But again, from the perspective of
settlement, I know that you’ve talked about some emails
that are in existence, Mr. rambussi, and that I -- I
don’t -- I'm assuming you got -- you got them through
the ordinary course of discovery, so the defense is
aware of them?

1
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MR. RESSLER: They were all produced by the
defense, Your Honor.

L THE COURT: Okay. Well, there’s a lot of
documents that had. been produced and maybe if you could
highlight some of those documents and provide some
motivation to the defense to look at it from a
different perspective for settlement, please do sO-
Please also know that Mr. Trump -- let Mr. Trump know
that he may be in a position of having to disclose a
lot of financial information that previously he had not

-been required to provide, and maybe that will sexrve

_some motivation on his part to try to resolve this
case, again, in some wmeaningful non-economic way.
RBecause I think that there’s enocugh latitude on both
sides of this fence to be able to resolve this case 1N
some meaningful fashion.

MR. MELODIA: Your Honoxr, may I --

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. MELODIA: -- make one suggestion, in
keeping with I think- what Your Honor has been
suggesting, in texrms of where the Court is leaning or
likely.to rule -on certain issues.

. THE COURT: I’11l likely --
MR.. MELODIA: But -- but --
THE COURT: I’m likely to oxder that
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additional information be provided in tax returns.

MR. MELODIA: But -- but not formally making
that ruling today, not --

THE COURT: No.

MR. MELODIA: And I’'d suggest that we take
that same approach for the issues that we’ve also
argued here today, that is plaintiff‘s motion to compel
and the privilege issues also be held in abeyance until
January 19th, to see whether or not the parties can
resolve these issues prior to that date. While that
vwould result in some small delay over the heolidays, it
is over the holidays and why not have all issues
resolved on the 19th or at least have all parties
believe that all issues will be resolved on the 19th,
if they cannot conclude this case in settlement.

MR. TAMBUSSI: We‘re txying to understand,
does that mean you’re just asking for a delay of time
before you have to file your notice -- notice of motion
for leave to appeal?

MR. MELODIA: I‘m asking for a delay in the
actual entry of an order in the same way --

THE COURT: Well, I‘'ll tell you what --

MR. MELODIA: -- if Your Honor’s not --

THE COURT: -- somebody's got to draft the

order and send it to me and guess what? Come Friday, -
!

Colloguy 121

if that order sgits herxe, it's gonna sit here until at
least January the 8th, when I come back from Pasadena.
So ~- and then it will end up being on my desk and I‘1ll
have to hold it probably under the five-day rule;
which, liberally interpreted, takes me to the 18th of
January and T --

MR. TAMBUSSI: Understood, Your Honor.

. THE COURT: -- won’'t execute that order until
at least January 19th, as a practical matter.

MR. TAMBUSSI: Understood, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And you could put that in your
cover letter to me that we understand Your Honor will
not be entertaining the execution of this order until
January the 22nd, a Monday. 2and I‘'1l be glad to hold
it until then, because I won‘t get the time to really
fully read it and understand it until that time anyhow.
And I don’'t want to do anything half-baked.

JMR. TAMBUSSI: Understood, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay? Does that help you?

MR. MELODIA: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. That’ll save you the have
-- having to get the transcripts, file costs -- pay the
costs of appeal and maybe you’ll come back here and

tell me that you resolved the case. Nothing would be -
- that would be a great Kwanza present.
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MR. TAMBUSSI: Thank you, Your Honoxr.

MR. CERESNEY: Festivus, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thanks, everybody. Hey, have a
happy holiday. I appreciate the great lawyering that I
get in cases like this, it really makes my -- my
decision to come back to civil a great one. No, I'm
serious. I mean, if anything is a benefit, it's
getting -- having fine lawyering and I really get -- a
lot of good lawyers appear in front of me and you guys,
collectively -- guys, in the politically correct sense,
for all the rest of you that do the work -- you really
do an excellent job for your clienmts. Thanks!

MR. CERESNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. TBMBUSSI: Thank you, Judge.

MR. RESSLER: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. MELODIA: Thank you, Your Honor.
* ¥ % % % % *
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Kasowitz, BENSON, TORRES & FRIEDMAN wr
16833 BROADWAY
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019-6799
212-506-1700 ATLANTA

MARK P. RESSLER HOUSTON
212-506:1752 FACSIMILE: 212-506-1800 NEWARK

SAN FRANCISCO

January 10, 2007

BY E-MAIL AND U.S. MAIL

Andrew J. Ceresney, Esq.
Debevoise & Plimpton LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022

Re:  Trumpv. O'Brien, et al,

Dear Andrew:

Plaintiff Donald J. Trump hereby supplements his interrogatory responses as follows;

INTERROGATORY NOQ. 21

To the present, set forth the details of any deals that you believe were prevented or
interfered with because of the allegedly defamatory statements referenced in your Complaint,
including but not limited to transactions, purchases, sales, transfer of real or other assets, or other

arrangements. Specify the nature and basis for your belief, and identify and attach all documents
relevant thereto.

2]

SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY.NO. 21

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is unduly burdensome. Trump
further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is premature. Subject to and without
waiving any of the foregoing, Trump responds as follows:

Trump believes that defendants’ publication of the defamatory statements identified in
response to Interrogatory No. 1 (“Defendants’ Defamatory Statements™) prevented him from
closing, or interfered with, transactions involving the following projects:

(i) Trump International Hotel and Condominiums in Phoenix, Arizona (the
opponents of which relied, in part, on Defendants’ Defamatory Statements);

(i)  The TrumpStreet Casino and Entertainment Complex in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania (Defendants’ Defamatory Statements were a factor in connection with the

Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board’s denial on December 20, 2006 of Trump Entertainment
Resorts’ application for a gaming license);
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Andrew J, Ceresney, Esq.
January 10, 2007
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(i) 400 Fifth Avenue in New York, New York (Defendants’ Defamatory Statements
were a factor in preventing Donald Trump from acquiring the property);

(iv)  The Moscow Trump International development;
(v)  Trump Tower in Istanbul, Turkey.
INTERROGATORY NO. 31

Identify all individuals who created or contributed to the content of the brochure left in
guest rooms at Mar-a-Lago, which estimated your net worth at $9.5 billion (referenced on page
154 of the Book). Set forth the complete factual basis for that estimate, in¢luding but not limited
to the source(s) of information used in connection with the estimate, and identify and attach all
documents relevant thereto.

SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE TQ INTERROGATORY NO. 31

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing, Trump responds as
follows:

Trump has no information as to the individuals who created or contributed to the
brochute left in guest rooms at Mar-a-Lago that estimated his net worth at $9.5 billion.

As always, please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Mark P. Ressler -

ce:  Mark Melodia (By e-mail)
William M. Tambussi (by e-mail)
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KASOWITZ, BENSON, TORRES & FRIEDMAN LLP

Marc E. Kasowitz

Mark P. Ressler

Maria Gorecki

1633 Broadway

New York, New York 10019
(212) 506-1700

BROWN & CONNERY LLP
William M. Tambussi

William F. Cook

360 Haddon Avenue
Westmont, New Jersey 08108
(856) 854-8900

Attorneys for Plaintiff Donald J. Tramp

DONALD J. TRUMP,
Plaintiff,
v.

TIMOTHY L. O°BRIEN, TIME WARNER
BOOK GROUP INC. and WARNER
BOOKS, INC.,

Defendants,

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION, CIVIL PART
CAMDEN COUNTY

Case No. L-545-06

PLAINTIFF DONALD J. TRUMP’S

OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES TO
DEFENDANTS’ SECOND SET OF
INTERROGATORIES !

TO:  Mark S. Melodia, Esq.
James F, Dial, Esq.
Reed Smith LLP
136 Main Street, Suite 250
Princeton Forrestal Village
Princeton, New Jersey 08540

Mary Jo White, Esq.
Andrew J, Ceresney, Esq.
Andrew M. Levine, Esq.
Debevoise & Plimpton LLP
919 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10022

1292a




Sirs: - ‘ ' g
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the following are the objections and responses of plaintiff

Donald J. Trump (“Trump”) to Defendants’ Second Set of Interrogatories (the “Interrogatories™).

o
Dated: July 31, 2007
'KASOWITZ, BENSON, TORRES &
FRIEDMAN LLP :
®
Marc E”Kasowitz, Esq.
Mark P. Ressler, Esq.
Maria Gorecki, Esq.
1633 Broadway ) ®
New York, New York 10019
(212) 506-1700
. BROWN & CONNERY LLP
William M., Tambussi, Esq. :
‘William F. Cook, Esq. @
360 Haddon Avenue
Westmont, New Jersey 08108
(856) 854-8900
L
Attomeys for Plaintiff Donald J. Trump ' °
L]
®
@
2
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OBJECTIONS

A.  Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information not

currently 'available to Trump, Trump will provide information currently available to him, and
will supplement his answers, if necessary, to these and any other interrogatories, as required by

the Court Rules,

B. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek to impose obligations

on him greater than those imposed by the Court Rules or any order of the Court,

C. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they are unreasonably

cumulative or duplicative, Where a document is responsive to more than one Interrogatory,
Trump will produce such document once.

D. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they are vague, ambiguous, or

confusing,

E, Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they are overly broad, unduly

burdensome, or oppressive,

F. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information neither

relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence,

G. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information or

documents that already is in the possession, custody or control of Defendants, is as readily
available to the Defendants as to Trump, or is ascertainable from public sources,

H. Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek information protected

from disclosure by any privilege or immunity, including the attorney-client privilege, the work-

product doctrine, or any other privilege or protection from disclosure provided by law. Any
inadvertent disclosure of any privileged information shall not be deemed or construed to

constitute a waiver of any of Trump’s privileges or ri ghts.
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L Trump objects to the Interrogatories to the extent they seek disclosure of
information that would violate individual privacy interests, confidentiality agreements, or other
arrangem‘cnts with any individual or entity.

I Trump objects to the defendants’ listed “Definitions™ and “Instructions” because
they purport to impose duties on him beyond those required by the Court Rules.

K. Trump objects to the use and definition of the term “Trump-related entities” on
the érounds that it is overly broad, it renders the Interrogatories unduly burdensome and
oppressive, and it makes the Interrogatories call for information neitlier relevant nor reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

L. Trump objects to Instructions Nos, 9 and 10 because they purport to impose

obligations beyond those imposed by the Court Rules and are unduly burdensome and

oppressive.

M.  Any statement herein that Trump will produce information or documents in
response to an Interrogatory does not mean that Trump does, in fact, have any such information
or documents, or that any such information or documents exist.

N. The foregoing objec;tions shall be considere.d as made, to the extent applicable, in

response to each of the Interrogatories, as if the objections were set forth fully in such response.
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DEFINITIONS

A. In these responses, the “Book” refers to TrumpNation: The Art of. Being the

Donald, written by Timothy O’Brien and published by the Warner Defendants.
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RESPONSES

Interrogatory No. 1

With respect to the Trump International Hotel and Condominiums in Phoenix,

Arizona, identified in a letter from Plaintiff’s counsel dated January 10, 2007 as a transaction

“prevented ..

statements:

- from closing, or interfered with” by Defendants’ allegedly defamatory

Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction
failed to close or was interfered with and the full basis for ca]culgting such loss;
Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe the involvement of any governmental entity or official in the transaction,
including but not limited to the involvement of the State of Arizona or any local

governmental entity or official;

6
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Set forth any government approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attempted
to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff's belief that the opponents of the Trump
International Hotel and Condominiums in Phoenix, Arizona “relied, in part, on
Defendants’ Defamatory Statements,” including but not limited to identifying the
opponents who so relied, explaining the nature of their reliance, and setting forth
the specific defamatory statements that they relied upon and the instances in
which they relied upon them;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiffs belief that Defendants’ allegedly defa‘matory
statements interfered with the transaction or prevented the transaction ﬁ'o'm
closing, including but not limited to identifying any person who informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of
Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity lhat_Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
slatements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential
transaction;

For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied
upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not telating to Defendants’

alleged defamatory statements, which interfered with the transaction or prevented

the transaction from closing;
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m.  Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction.

Response to Interrogatory No. 1

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction” is
vague and ambiguous, Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks
information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responxds as
follows:

Tevfik Arif and Jody Kriss of Bayrock Group engaged in negotiations for, and secured an
ordinance to proceed with, a project to develop a Trump International Hotel and Tower in
Phoenix, Arizona. Trump has been advised by Bayrock Group that opponents of the project
expressed concern about Trump, based at least in part on defendants’ defamatory statements
about Trump; and his net worth that appeared in the Book. The opponents of the project
successfully challenged the ordinance through, among other things, a referendum before the city
council,

The “nature of [Trump’s] participation or interest” in the project was to obtain: (i) a
licensing agreement; (ii) an ownership stake; and (iii) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel
management group for its management of the property. As a result of defendants’ defamatory
statements, the project was cancelled before an agreemerit could be reached for any of items (i}

to (iii} above.
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Interrogatory No. 2

With respect to the TrumpStreet Casino and Entertainment Complex in

Philadelphia,

Pennsylvania, identified in a letter from Plaintiff's counsel dated January 10,

2007 as a transaction “prevented . . . from closing, or interfered with” by Defendants’ allegedly

defamatory statements:

a.

Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff would have had an
ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
Mmanagement agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Explain the nature of Trump Enteriainment Resorts’ participation or interest in the
proposed transaction, including but not limited to whether Trump Entertainment
Resorts would have had an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing
agreement, or a management agresment, and the details of any such ownership
stake, licensing agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction

failed to close or was interfered with and the full basis for calculating such loss;
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Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff, Trump Entertainment Resorts, or others
invelved in the transaction in connection with the negotiation or execution of the
transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belief that “Defendants® Defamatory
Statements were a factor in connection with the Pennsylvania Gaming Board’s
denial on December 20, 2006 of Trump Entertainment Resorts’ application for a
gaming license,” including but not limited to identifying any person who
informed or suggested to Plail;tiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or
agent of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity that Defendants’ allegedly
defamatory statements were a factor in the Gaming Board’s decision;

For each person who Plaintiff belie;res made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants” allegedly defamatory statements, including but not
limited to any Gaming Board member, identify the decision-maker, set forth the
specific defamatory statements that the person relied upon, and explain the nature
of the person’é reliance on the statements; .

Set forth the number of any page in the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania Gaming
Control Board’s February 1, 2007 Order and Adjudication on which the Board

. indicates reliance on Def§ndants° allegedly defamatory statements or indicates
that Defendants’ alleged defamatory statements were a factor in its decision;

Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’
alleged defamatory statements, which interfered with the transaction or prevented

the transaction from closing;
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L Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction,

Response to Interrogatory No. 2
Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps taken . , . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction” is
vague and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks

information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible

evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as

follows:

Trump does not intend to present evidence at trial concerning the TrumpStreet Casino

and Entertainment Complex in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,

Interrogatory No. 3

With respect to 400 Fifth Avenue in New York, New York, identified in a letter from

Plaintiff’s counse] dated January 10, 2007 as a transaction “prevented . from closing, or

interfered with” by Defendants® allegedly defamatory statements:

a. Identify the person from whom Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity attempted to

acquire development and branding rights in connect:on with the property;
Identify each person involved in relevant negotlauons or other communications

relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any

Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;

11
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Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

. Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction
failed to close or was interfered with and the full basis for calculating such loss;
Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;
Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belief that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
statements were a factor in preventing Donald Trump from acquiring
development and branding rights in connection with the property, including but
not limited to identifying any person who informed or suggested tg Plaintiff, any
'I‘rump-rqlated entity, or any employee or agent of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity thai Défendt;.nts’ ailegedly defamatory statements were a factor in any
person’s decision regarding the potential transaction;

For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied

upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

12
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Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’

alleged defamatory statements, which interfered with the transaction or prevented

the transaction from closing;

j- Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction.

Response to Interro gatory No. 3

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it s overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction’.' is
vague and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it secks
information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as
follows:

Howard Lorber of Prudential Douglas Elliman engaged in negotiations with David Bizzi
of Bi & Di Real Estate SpA concerning a possible project to develop a Trump hotel and

condominium at 400 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York. Trump has been advised by Lorber

that it was Lorber’s impression that Bizzi did not proceed with Trump for the project because

Bizzi had concerns about Trump, based at least in part on defendants’ defamatory statements

about Trump and his net worth that appeared in the Book,

The “nature of [Trump’s] participation or interest” in the project was to obtain a licensing

agreement,

13
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Interrogatory No. 4

With respect to the Moscow Trump International development in Moscow, Russia,

identified in a letter from Plaintiff's counsel dated Janwary 10, 2007 as a transaction “prevented

... from closing, or interfered with” by Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements:

a.

Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed -
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff would have had an
ownership stélke in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the-amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction
failed to close or was interfered with and the full basis for calculating sucﬁ lo:s:s;
Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe any.involvement or influence of any Russian governmental entity or
official, whether national or local, in the transaction;

Set forth any government approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attempted
to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

14
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i. Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belicf that Defendants” allegedly defamatory
statements interfered with the transaction or prevented the transaction from
closing, including but not limited to identifying any person wl;o informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of
Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity that Defendants® allegedly defamatory
statements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential
transaction;

] For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatqry statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied
upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

k. Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’
alleged defamatory Statements, which interfered with the transaction or prevented

the transaction from closing;

Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction.

Response to Interrogatory No. 4

Trump objects to this inferrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction” is

vague and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks

information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible

15
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evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as
follows:

Tévﬁk Arif and Constantine Yudin of Bayrock Group engaged in negotiations on behalf
of Trump with certain developers, investors and related persons, including Ilya Haykin,
concerning a project to develop a Trump International Hotel and Tower in Moscow, Russia,
Trump has been advised by Bayrock Group that the developers, investors and related persons in
Moscow did not proceed with Trump for the project because they had concerns about Trump,
based at least in part on'defendants’ defamatory statements about Trump and his net woxth that
appeared in the Book, and that were excerpted from the Book in a New York Times article on
QOctober 23, 2005. b

The “nature of [Trump’s] participation or interest” in the project was to obtain: (i) a
licensing agreement; (ii) an ownership stake; and (iii) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel
management group for its management of the property. As a result of defendants’ defamatory

statements, the project was cancelled before an agreement could be reached for any of items (i)

to (iii) above.

Interrogatory No. 5

With respect to the Trump Tower in Istanbul, Turkey, identified in a letter from
Plaintiff’s counsel dated January 10, 2007 as a transalction “prevented . . . f£om closing, or
interfered with” by Defendants’ aIlegédly defamatory statements:

a. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications

relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
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Set forth the specific location-of the'proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff's participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ovmership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction
failed to close or was interfered with and the full basis for calculating such loss;
Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in

connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe any involvement or influence of any Turkish governmental entity or

official, whether national or local, in the transaction;

Set forth any government approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attemnpted

to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belief that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
statements interfered with the transaction or prevented the transaction from
closing, including but not limited to identifying any person who informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of
Plaintiff or any Tramp-related entity that Defendants® allegedly defamatory

statements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential

transaction;
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j For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied
upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

k. Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’
alleged defamatory statements, which intcrfe.red with the transaction or prevented
the transaction from closing;

L Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction,

Response to Interrogatory No. 5

Trump objects to thi's interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further ofsjects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phirase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiatibn or execution of the transaction” is
v;'igue. and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks
information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as
follows:

Tevfik Arif of Bayrock Group engaged in negotiations on behalf of Trump with certain
developers, investors and related persons concerning a proj.ect to develop a Trump Intemnational
Hotel and Tower in Istanbul, Tufke.y. Trump has been advised by Bayrock Group that the
investors decided not to pursue the project, in part, because they had concerns about Trump,

based at least in part on defendants’ defamatory statements about Trump and his net worth that

appeared in the Book.
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The “nature of [Trump’s} participation or interest” in the project was to obtain: (i)a

licensing agreement; (if) an ownership stake; and (iit) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel

management group for its management of the property. Asa result of defendants’ defamatory

statements, the project was cancelled before an agreement could be reached for any of items (i)

to (iii) above.

Interrogatory No. 6

With respect to the Trump International Hotel and Tower in Kiev, Ukraine, identified

in 2 letter from Plaintiff’s counsel dated J anuary 10, 2007 as a business opportunity “lost, . . .

affected, impaired or interfered with?” by Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements; -

a.

Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications

- relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any

Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaingiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction

was lost, affected, impaired, or interfered with and the full basis for calculating

such loss;
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Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe any involvement or influence of any Ukrainian governmental entity or
official, whether national or local, in the transaction;

Set forth any government approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attempted
to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belief that Defendants® allegedly defamatory
statements affected, impaired, interfered with, or caused the loss of the
transaction, including but not limited to identifying any person who informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of
Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
statements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential
transaction;

For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, ideﬁtif.y the x
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied
upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’
alleged defamatory statements, which affected, impaired, interfered with, or
caused the loss of the transaction;

Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction.
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Response to Interrogatory No. 6

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive, Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction™ is
vague and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks

information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible

evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as

follows:

Tevfik Arif of Bayrock Group engaged in negotiations on behalf of Trump with Igor
Voskoboynikov, who represented the interests of certain Russi_a.n‘and Ukrainian investors,
concerning a project to develop a Trump International Hotel and‘ 'I:ower in Kiev, Ukraine,
Trump has been advised by Bayrock Group that certain of the investors indicated that they were
familiar with defendants’ defamatory statements about Trump and his net worth that appeared in
the Book, and that, based at least in part on those statements, they questioned Trump’s financial
stability and demanded that Trump either contribute additional capital to, or have his name
removed from, the project.

The “nature of [Trump’s] participation or interest” in the Project was to obtain: (i) a
licensing agreement; (ii) an ownership stake; and (iii) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel
management group for its management of the property. As aresult of defendants’ defamatory

statements, the project was cancelled before an agreement could be reached for any of items (i)

to (iit) above,
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Interrogatory No. 7

With respect to the Trump Resort in Yalta, Ukraine, identified in a letter from

PlaintifP's counsel dated January 10, 2007 as a business opportunity “lost, . . . affected, impaired

or interfered with” by Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements:

a.

Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in the proposed -
transactiox}, including but not lir;nited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction
was lost, aff'ected, impaired, or interfered with and the full basis for calculating
such loss;

Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe any involvement or influence of any Ukrainian governmental entity or
official, whether national or local, in the transaction;

Set forth any government approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attempted
to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;
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i Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff's belief that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
Statements affected, impaired, interfered with, or caused the loss of the
transaction, including but not limited to identifying any person who informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of

Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory

statements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential

transaction;

i For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the transaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied

upen, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;
Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’

alleged defamatory statements, which affected, impaired, interfered with, or

caused the loss of the transaction;

Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction,

Response to Interrogatory No. 7
Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly

burdensome, and oppressive, Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the

phrase “steps taken . . . in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction” is

vague and ambiguous, Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks

N

informaticfn neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
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evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as
follows:

Tt;,vﬁk Arif of Bayrock Group engaged in negotiations on behalf of Trump with Igor
Voskoboynikov, who represented the interests of certain Russian and Ukrainian investors,
conceming a praject to develop a Trump Internationat Hotel and Tower in Yalta, Ukraine.
Trump has been advised by Bayrock Group that certain of the investors indicated that they were
familiar with defendants’ defamatory statements about Trump and his net worth that appeared in
the Book, and that, based at least.in part on those statements, they questioned Trump’s financial
stability and demanded that Trump either contribute additional capital to, or have his name
removed from, the project. )

The “nature of [ Trump’s] participation or interest” in the project was to obtain: (i} a
licensing agreement; (ii) an ownership stake; and (iii) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel
management group for its management of the property. As aresult of defendants’ defamatory

statements, the project was cancelled before an agreement could be reached for any of items (i)

to (iii) above.

Interrogatory No. 8

With respect to the Trump International Hotel and Tower in Warsaw, Poland,
identified in a letter from Plaintiff’s counsel dated January 10, 2007 as a business opportunity
“lost, . . . affected, impaired or interfered with” by Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements:

a. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications

relating to the above transaction, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any
Trump-related entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity, and other parties to the potential transaction and their employees or agents;
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Set forth the specific location of the proposed building or project;

Explain the nature of Plaintiff's participation or interest in the proposed
transaction, including but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had
an ownership stake in the proposed property, a licensing agreement, or a
management agreement, and the details of any such ownership stake, licensing
agreement, or management agreement;

Set forth the amount of money that Plaintiff claims he lost because the transaction

was lost, affected, impaired, or interfered with and the full basis for calculating

such loss;

Describe the steps taken by Plaintiff or others involved in the transaction in
connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction;

Describe any involvement or influence of any Polish governmental entity or
official, whether national or local, in the transaction;

Set forth any povernment approvals or permits that Plaintiff obtained or attempted
to obtain for the transaction;

Explain the current status of the transaction;

Set forth the full basis for Plaintiff’s belief that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory
Statements affected, impaired, interfered with, or caused the loss of the
transaction, including but not limited to identifying any person who informed or
suggested to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, or any employee or agent of
Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity that Defendants’ allegedly defamatory

statements were a factor in any person’s decision regarding the potential

transaction;
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j- For each person who Plaintiff believes made a decision relating to the fransaction
in part because of Defendants’ allegedly defamatory statements, identify the
decision-maker, set forth the specific defamatory statements that the person relied
upon, and explain the nature of the person’s reliance on the statements;

k. Set forth all other factors of which Plaintiff is aware, not relating to Defendants’
alleged defamatory statements, which affected, impaired, interfered with, or
caused the loss of the transaction;

1 Identify all communications relating to the negotiation, discussion, or termination

of this transaction.

Response to Interrogatory No. 8

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that the
phrase “steps takcx; . .. in connection with the negotiation or execution of the transaction” is
vague and ambiguous. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it seeks
information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Trump responds as
follows:

Trump, Tevfik Arif of Bayrock Group and Janosk Kulozyk engaged in negotiations for a
project to develop a Trump International Hotel and Tower in Warsaw, Poland. Trump has been

advised by Bayrock Group that Kulczyk expressed concern about Trump, based at least in part

on defendants® defamatory statements about Trump and his net worth that appeared in the Book.

The “nature of [Trump’s] participation or interest” in the project was to obtain: (i) a

licensing agreement; (ii) an ovmership stake; and (jii) fees to be paid to the Trump hotel
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management group for its management of the property. As a result of defendants’ defamatory

statements, the project was cancelled before an agreement could be reached for any of items (i)

to (iii) above.

Interrogatory No. 9

From Janwary 1, 2002 to the ﬁresent, for all offers or proposals to license the Trump name

for any purpose:

a. Set forth the date and specific terms of each offer or proposal, including but not
limited to the licensing offered or proposed and the amount of the offer or proposal;

b. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to such an offer or proposal, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any Trump-related
entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as the person
making the offer or proposal;

c. Specify the role of each person identified in Response 9(b);

d. Identify all communications relating to any such offer or proposal, including but

not limited to negotiations of any terms thereof;

e For each offer or proposal specified in Response 9(a), set forth whether the offer
or proposal resulted in a licensing agreement;

f. For each offer or proposal that did not result in a licensing agreement, set forth all

factors as to which Plaintiff is aware as to why not;
z. For each offer or proposal that did result jn a licensing agreement, set forth the

date and specific terms of each such agreement;

h. Explain the current status of all projects planned or currently in development

pursuant to a licensing agreement identified in Response 9(e);
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i For each licensee of the Trump name, specify the date and sum of each payment
from the licensee to Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as the date and sum of each
payment by Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity to the licensee;

jn Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto,

Response to Interrogatory No. 9

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks inf;)rmation neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to {ead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Subject to and without waiving any of the foregoing objections, Tramp
responds as follows:

Trump refers defendants to the license agreements previously produced to defendants, as

well as the license agreements that Trump will produce to defendants.

Interrogatory No. 10

With respect to the Turkish company Yesil Ingaat or any related entity;

a. Describe t‘he nature of the relatiox;ship between Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity and Yesil Insaat or any related entity;

b. Set forth all licensing or other agreements between Plaintiff or any Trump-related
entity and Yesil Ingaat or any related entity; :

c. Explain the current status of all projects planned or currently in development
pursuant to agreements identiﬁ.ed in Response 10(b), including but not limited to Trump Plaza,
Trump Tower, golf courses, and hotels;

d. Set forth the specific locations of all projects described in Response 10(c);
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e. Explain the nature of Plaintiffs participation or interest in all projects identified
in Response 10(c), incl’uding but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had an
ownership stake, a licensing agreement, or a management agreement, and the details of any such

ownership stake, licensing agreement, or management agreement:

£ Specify all payments that Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity has made to or

received from Yesil Ingaat or any related entity;

g. For each transaction described in Interrogatory Nos. 1 through 8, state whether

Yesil Ingaat or any related entity was involved, and -- if so — set forth the nature of the

involvement;

h. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto, )

Response to Interropatory No. 10

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper.

Interrogatory No. 11

With respect to Bayrock Group or any related entity:

a. Describe the nature of the relationship between Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity and Bayrock Group or any related entity;

b. Set forth all licensing or other agreements between Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity and Bayrock Group or any related entity;
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c. Explain the current status of all projects planned or currently in development
pursuant to agreements identified in Response 11(b), including but not limited to the Trump
Soho Hot;al Condominiums in New York, the Trump International Hotel and Tower in Fort
Lauderdale, the Trump Las Olas Beach Resort in Fort Lauderdale, and a planned development in
or near Denver;

d. Set forth the specific locations of all projects described in Response 11(c);

€. Explain the nature of Plaintiff’s participation or interest in all projects identified
in Response 11(c), including but not limited to whether Plaintiff has or would have had an
ownership stake, a licensing agreement, or a management agreement, and the details of any such
ownership stake, licensing agreement, or management agreement;

f. Specify all payments that Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity has made to or
received from Bayrock Group or any related entity;

g. For each transaction described in Interrogatory Nos. 1 through 8, state whether
Bayrock Group or any related entity was involved, and -- if so -- set forth the nature of the
involvement;

h. Id.entif)} and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interrogatory No. 11

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper.
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Interrogatory No. 12
With respect to any offer or proposal by Vomado Realty Trust or any related entity to
buy from or sell to Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity any share of the partnership that owns or

controls 555 California Street in San Francisco and 1290 Avenue of the Americas in New York,

or any offer or proposal by Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity to buy from or sell to Vornado

Realty Trust or a related entity any share of that partnership:

a. Set forth the date and specific terms of each offer or proposal, including but not
limited to the amount of the offer or proposal;

b. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications

relating to such an offer or proposal, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any Trump-related

entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as employees or

agents of Vornado Realty Trust or any related entity;

c. Specify the role of each person identified in Response 12(b);

d. Identify all communications relating to any such offer or proposal, including but

:J

not limited to negotiations of any terms thereof;

e. Idéntify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interrogatory No. 12

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the diséovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper,
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Interrogatory No. 13

With respect to any negotiations or offer between Steve Wynn and Plaintiff or Trump
Entertaininent Resorts involving the sale, purchase, swap, or other form of transaction involving
any of Plaintiff’s or Trump Entertainment Resorts’ properties, or any proposed partnership
between Wynn and Plaintiff or Trump Entertainment Resorts in purchasing, selling, developing,
or managing any property:

a Set forth the date and specific terms of each offer or proposal, including but not
limited to the amount of the offer or proposal;

b. Set forth the nature of any proposed sale, purchase, swap, partnership, or other
form of transaction discussed in each offer or proposal; -

c. Jdentify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to the above, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any Trump-related entity, and .

employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as Wynn or his employees

or agents;

d. Specify the role of each person identified in Response 13(c);

e. Identify all communications relating to the above, including but not limited to
negotiations of any terms thereof; |

f. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interrogatory No. 13

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper.

32

1323a

Y e

K



Interrogatory No. 14

With respect to any offer or proposal to purchase from Plaintiff or any Trump-related

entity the Gossman Estate in Palm Beach, Florida:

a. Set forth the date and specific terms of each offer or proposal, including but not
limited to the amount of the offer or proposal;

b. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to such an offer or proposal, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any Trump-related
entity, and émployees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as the person

making the offer or proposal;

c. Specify the role of each person identified in Response 14(b); )

d. Identify all communications relating to any such offer or proposal, including but
not limited to negotiations of any terms thereof;

e. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interrogatory No. 14

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive, Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it

seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper.

Interrogatory No. 15

With respect to any offer or proposal -~ from January 1, 2002 to the present -~ to purchase

from Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity 40 Wall Street in New York, New York:
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a. Set forth the date and specific terms of each offer or proposal, including but not
limited to the amount of the offer or proposal,

b. Identify each person involved in relevant negotiations or other communications
relating to such an offer or proposal, including but not limited to Plaintiff, any Trump-related
entity, and employees or agents of Plaintiff or any Trump-related entity, as well as the person
making the offer or proposal;

c. Specify the role of each person identified in Response 15(b);

d. Identify all communications relating to any such offer or proposal, including but
not limited to negotiations of any terms thereof;

e. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interrogatory No. 15

Trump objects to this interrogatory on.the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive, Trump'further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of

admissible evidence. As such, the interrogatory is improper.

Interrogatory No. 16
With respect to O’Brien’s book reading at Coliseurn Books on December 12, 2005 (the

“Reading™):
a. Identify each person known to Plaintiff, or to Plaintiff’s employees or agents, who
attended the Reading;
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b. Identify each person known to Plaintiff, or to Plaintiff’s employees or agents, who
recorded the audio or video of the Reading that Plaintiff produced to Defendants on February 1
and 9, 2007 (the “Recordings™);

c. Identify each person known to Plaintiff, or to Plaintiff's employees or agents, who
asked O’Brien a que;tion at the Reading or otherwise made a comment captured in any of the

Recordings;

d. For each person identified in Response 16(c), identify the question asked or

comment made;

e.  Foreach person identified in Responses 16(a)-(c), specify the person’s
relationship with Plaintiff, or with Plaintiff's employees or agents; )

f. Specify what if any financial or other compensation each person identified in
Responses 16(2)-(c) received from Plaintiff, or from Plaintiff’s employees or agents;

g Identify all communications relating to the Reading, including but not limited to

those among Plaintiff or Plaintiff’s employees or agents and the persons identified in Responses

ho
16(a)-(c);

h. Identify and attach all documents relevant thereto.

Response to Interropatory No. 16

Trump objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and oppressive. Trump further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it
seeks information neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Trump further objects to this interrogatory to the extent it calls for

information protected by the attorney-client privilege and work-product. Subject to and without

waiving any of the foregoing, Trump responds as follows:
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(a) Ignatius Licato, Terry Igneri, Howard Berger, Brendan Finn, and Marc Kasowitz
attended the Reading.

(b") Ignatius Licato recorded the video and Terry Igneri, Howard Berger, and Brendan
Finn recorded the audio of the Reading that Trump produced to defendants.

() Terry Igneri and Brendan Finn asked O’Brien a question during the Reading. Marc
Kasowitz spoke with O’Brien after t};e public question/answer period during the Reading,

(d) Terry Igneri asked O’Brien why he chose to write about Donald Trump. Brendan
Finn asked O’Brien whether he wrote the Book to “lambaste” Trump. Trump refers defendants
to his Supplemental Response to Interrogatory No. 15 of Defendants’ First Set of Interrogatories,
provided by letter dated December 19, 2006, for the information relating to Marc Kasowitz.

(e) The persons.identified in Response 16(b) above were retained by Trump’s attorneys
to record the Coliseum Books event.

() This information is protected by the work-product doctrine.

(g) This information is protected by the work-product doctrine.

(h) This information is protected by the work-product doctrine.
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CERTIFICATION IN LIEU OF OATH OR AFFIDAVIT

Thereby certify that the foregoing answers are true and correct. 1 am aware that i any of

the foregoing statements made by me is willfully false, I am subject to punishment,

Donald J, Trump
Dated; July31, 2006
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ReedSmith

Mark S. Melodia
Direct Phone: 609.520.6015
Email: mmelodia@reedsmith.com

February 8, 2007
SUBMITTED UNDER SEAL

Via Llectronic Mail and Overnight Mail

Honorable Irvin J. Snyder, J.S.C.
Superior Court of New Jersey
Camden County Hall of Justice
101 South Fifth Street, Suite 470
Camden, New Jersey 08103

Re: Trump v. O’B_rien, et al.
Docket No. CAV-L-545-06
Dear Judge Snyder:

We write in response-to plaintiff’s January 26, 2007 letter to the Couit.

S, e

Reed Smith up

Princeton Forrestal Village
136 Main Sireet - Suite 250
Princeton, NJ 08540-7839
©609.987.0050

Fax 609.951.0824

Plaintiff’s letter claims to have been submitted to “secure a final order memorializing thé Court’s
decision on December 20, 2006 regarding the applicability and scope of the newsperson’s privilege to
this litigation.” (Plaintiff’s Jan. 26, 2007 Letter (“Letter”) at 1.} But Trump’s proposed order has
rewritten-the. Court’s rulings in several findamental ways, including: (1) omitting mention of the Court’s

- stay of the order; (2) omitting mention. of the Court’s altémative holding on New Jersey law; and (3)
mandating production in the proposed order of documents or other information not specified By the
. Court ixi its ruling, some of which may be withheld on grounds other than the newsperson’s privilege.

*The Letter thien proceeds essentially to reargue-the Court’s prior orders regarding the production
of Trump’s financial information, including the November 3, 2006 Order requiring thit Tritinp produce
~his 2005 tax return subject only to the redaction of “personal information,” ,an order that Trump has
- -. completely disregarded. As the Court kifows ffom its own review on December 20, plaintiff redacted alt
but 8 numbérs from Trump’s.over 700-page tax return. (Tr. at 106-24 (“Not much on Lere.™), 107-9 to
107-11 (“It’s pretty easy to go through when you have all these redactions here.””).) However, rather
than comply with the Court’s ruling (which has now been revisited Several tiraes), plaintiff persists in

trying to persuade the Court to rescind its Order.
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In addition, the Letter makes the unsupported and baseless claim that Trump has now produced
sufficient financial information in this litigation to allow defendants to calculate his net worth. Nothing
could be further from the truth. The unredacted financial information Trump has produced to date is
insufficient to allow defendants to calculate Trump’s net worth, and does not obviate defendants’ need
for the requested data in Trump’s tax retums. Further, based on an analysis of the documents produced
to date, defendants will in the coming weeks make specific requests for additional financial information

from Trump, his related entities, and third parties in an altempt to secure the. information necessary to
value Trump’s assets and liabilities.

It is worth noting that Trump’s reluctance to provide sufficient information to verify his net
worth — the core issue in the case — is nothing new. Despite the author’s repeated requests for financial
information relating to Trump’s net worth in connection with the Book, Trump provided him with
information that was completely inadequate for estimating Trump’s wealth." In effect, Trump cherry-
picked the documents that he provided to the author and demanded that he blindly accept Trump’s
representations regarding his net worth. In the context of this litigation, Trump once again is attempting
to cherry-pick the information that he provides, wishing to make himself the arbiter of his net worth as
well as what is necessary to calculate it. But in the setting of this litigation, which Trump himself
commenced, he cannot provide self-selected documents and ask that defendants — as well as defendants’
experls, the Court, and the jury ~ accept his representations, particularly when the information produced
thus far to defendants suggests that Trump’s claimed asset valuations are dubious at best. .

Accordingly, defendants respectfully request that the Court: (1) enter deferidants’ proposed form

of order; and (2) enforce the Court’s November 3, 2006 Order against Trump with respect to his
discovery obligations,

- . The Newspersén’s Privilepe Decision

Aﬂ'éi:”"rccpiving‘, DPlaintiff’s proposed draft order, defendants provided plaintiff with a counter-
proposal on January 16, 2007. Consistent with the Court’s repeated instructions, defendants invited
plaintiff to meet and confer with the goal of “present{ing] the court with an agreed-upon. version.”
Despite several conversations with plaintiff’s counsel since that date about other issues, including a
conversation on the very day plaintiff’s Letter was submitted, at no time-did plaintiff propose to discusg
the order or otherwise indicate that it would be submifting our proposed orders directly to the Court

. rather than jn.the fivst ifstance attempting to confer in an attempt to narrow:the issues. In other words,
plaintiff’s reference to “good -faith efforts” involved nothing more than the parties® exchanging draft
orders, and plaintifP’s forwarding of these to the Court without prior notice to defendants.

The documents that Trump has identified in this litigation as having been provided to the author
on April 21, 2005 — before the Book was completed — show only Trump’s ownership in certain
assets, not the financial metrics necessary to value Trump's interest in those praperties, and
contain almost no:information relating to Trump’s liabilities. Based upon the information Trump

provided, the anthor.could not have known that the estimate of the three 2ANONYmMOous Sources was
false, : .
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Defendants are now submitting to the Court a proposed order that attempts to accommodate both
plaintiff’s and defendants’ concerns. Had defendants had the opportunity to confer with plaintiff and
hear their concemns regarding defendants’ proposed order, we would have provided this proposal, which
accurately reflects the Court’s rulings. In particular, there are five critical defects in plaintiff’s proposed
order:

. First, plaintiff's proposed order omits the Court’s clear and unambiguous holding that the
Court’s discovery order regarding the newsperson’s privilege, and defendants’ production obligations
thereunder, be stayed pending appeal. (Tr. at 80-1 to 80-13 (“So, certainly, I’ll stay the requirement that
you have to — you're compelled to give that discovery until you’ve had an opportunity to present the
application for interlocutory review.”).) ’

L]

Second, plaintiff’s proposal excludes the Court’s alternative ruling — which also was clear and
unambiguous — that the New Jersey Shield Law, if it applied, would protect from discovery those
materials that defendants withheld pursuant to the newsperson’s privilege. (Tr. 78-6 to 79-12.)
Contrary to plaintiff’s suggestion, there is simply no prohibition on including such an altemative ruling
in the order, and doing so in no way limits the scope of permissible appellate review,

. Xhird; plaintiffs ‘proposed order specifically identifies numerous categories of documents or
_ information that plaintiff believes defendants must now produce. However, these particular documents

and interrogatories were not specified. in the Court’s ruling, and in many cases, are subject to other-

objections, such as relevance, attorney-client privilege, and work product doctrine. Identifying specific
categories af documents or information that must be produced under this Order would have the effect of
overriding those other objections — a result not contemplated by the Court’s ruling. In comparison,
defendants have proposed a simple and accurate formulation that capturés the full scope of the Court’s.
ruling, requiring defendants to produce “all .responsive documents or other information previously
withheld on the basis of the newsperson’s privilege, unless properly withheld on some other basis.”

Fourth, plaintiff’s proposed language regarding what the New York Shield Law does not protect
under the Court’s ruling — all sources and materials defendants “relied upon or used in any way in
researching, writing, publishing, and promoting TrumpNation” — is overbroad and :ambigumis.2 For
example, O’Brien undoubtedly “relied upon” much of his experience as a New York Times Jjoumalist in
crafting the Book, but the Court clearly was not ordering O’Brien to produce the naties of confidential
sources used for newspaper articles on related topics such as real estate that were not actually used in the
Book. At the same time, defendants recoguize plaintifi’s concerns regarding the use of the term
“newsgathering,” and therefore propose an alternative formulation that accommodates both defendants’

and plaintifi’s concems: “The New York-Shield Law does not protect.from discovery the documents or .

“other information — including confidential and non-confidential sources — gathered or generated in
_ connection with researching, wiiting, publishing, or promoting-the Book.” Defendants also propose

2 Plaintiff extensively quotes the Court’s discussion regarding the Book’s reference to the three
anonymous sources. (Letter at 3-4,) However, plaintiff fails to note that tlie Court explicitly did
not rely on the author’s characterization of the sources in its decision. {Tr. 74-2 to 74-5 (“No,
I'm just telling you that that’s not — that’s not the basis for my detennination, I already told you
the basis for my determination.”).) :
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parallel language for the

provisions regarding the constitutional, common law, and New Jersey
privileges.

Fifth, defendants’ proposal that the Court provide 60 days after the Appellate Division resolves

any interlocutory appeal regarding this Order for defendants to comply with their production obligations
under the Order is perfectly reasonable and well-measured in light of the scope of the materials at issue
in this motion, and in light of the amount of time that plaintiff has taken in his own production of

documents and interrogatory responses. Indeed, it took plaintiff 69 days to supplement 2 of his
interrogatory responses following defendants® objections to his initial responses.

Accordingly, defendants res

pectfully request that the Court adopt their proposed order relating to
the newsperson’s privilege,

quintift’s Disregard of the Court’s November 3, 2006 Order

The Court’s December 20, 2006- rulings included several rulings relating to pldintiff's discovery

obligations. (Tr. at 107-11 to 108-1 1, 109-1 to 109-19.) Trump does not seem to contest these rulings,
and in fact, he has now produced additional documents from Weiser (many of which were improperly
redacted), and provided the names of five deals that he claims were lost as o result of the Book (though
Trump notably has failed to provide any support for these cIaims)J. Nevertheless, under the guise of
opposing the portion of defendants’ proposed order that addresses these rulings, plaintiff again attempts
to reargue the Court’s prior tax return ruling. In fact, Trump goes even further, claiming that he: has
produced “all that defendants need” to calculate his net worth. (Letter at 11.) Each of these arguments
should be quickly dismissed. . '

In its November 3, 2006 Order, the Court ordered Trump to produce his 2005 tax return, subject
only to the redaction of “personal information,” such as alimony and charitable ‘contributions. But, as

REDACTED
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the Court knows, prior to producing 'that return one-week late, plaintiff redacted all but 8 numbers,
including all financial data on the Schedules C (Profit or Loss from Business), D (Capital Gains and
Losses), and E (Supplemental Income and Loss). The Order contained a comparable provision relating
to the Weiser documents, permitting orily the redaction of “personal information™ used in preparing the
2005 tax retumn. But plaintiff similarly redacted critical financial data in the Wejser production that
went well beyond what the Court permitted. For example, Trump fully redacted all of the financial
information contained on his 2005 K-1s — the form provided to a partner in a partnership or a
shareholder in an § corporation listing the individual’s share of income, deductions, credits, etc. — that
were within Weiser’s possession. Plaintiff’s production clearly violated the Court’s November 3 Order,
which Trump has continued to ignore. )

This time, Trump atgues‘that the information he has produced thus far moots his tax return
production. He cites, among other things, to a 2003 net worth statement produced by his accountants,
Weiser LLP, and to a 2002 New Jersey Casino Control Commission submission. Trump disregards that
these financial statements reflect valuations that he himself has assigned to each of his assets. For
example, the Wejser net worth staténient is 4 compilation that purports to be “limited to presenting in the
form of financial statements information that is the representation of the individual whose financial
statements are presented.” This compilation — and the Casino Control Cominission submission — are
nzither audited by. the actountants rior otheiwise opined upon. In addition, the 2003 Weiser net worth
statements also idéntify’ numerous départures from Generally- Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP”) in their presentation: .

o 'I‘rump als_o;.s:pAeﬁds,,'ﬁv'e.j\)“ages describing how he has ‘provided -defendants with-éxtensive

: information.on the. entities, thirgugh Whicki-he-does business, as well as their ownership structure; * (Letter

at 6-10.) He spends four of thiese pages‘listing 143 pass-through. enfities in which he holds interests.
(Letter. 7-10.)  But- identifying the: entities through which Trump does business; as well 4s their
ownership structure, is-only the:first stép in valuing T¥ump’s assets and Habilities. By analogy, it is
impossible to calculate a haseball player’s-lifetimé batting average simply by knowing the teams for

_ which he played: To value Frunip’s investments, defendants must understand, among other things,

Trump’s incoime from-thesg varjous entities qver time. With regard to “certain of his redl estate
praperties, défendants must obtain sufficient information. to understand, among other. things, their cash
flow. Indeed, the.list of entities provided in: Trump’s recent submission to the Court raises more
questions thap it answers,,parficilarly: givén that- Tramp has produced absolutely no financial
information for many of these entities. S .

4 In a February 2, 2007 Jétter to the Court, plaintiff attached (for no apparent reason) 2 nét worth
statement preparéd by Weiser purporting to reflect Trump’s net worth as of June 30, 2006. This
net worth statement, Iike the one referenced by Trump in his January 26, 2007 letter, is only a
compilation: and 1ot an' audited financial statement. Morcover, plaintiff’s letter overstates by
almost $1 billion the' net woithi set forth i the Weiser statement: he claims that the statement
piovides a net worth ‘of :$4.8 ‘billion, when it actually reflects ‘a- net worth of $4.0 billion.
Tronicaily, in his letter, plaintiff neglected to subtract the outstanding liabilitiés from the assets
and therefore misstated the estimate. Even at that, this shows that Trump inflated his net worth.
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While this certainly is not an issue that the Court needs to reach now, there is no basis for
Trump’s claim that he has produced information sufficient to value his net worth. Based upon a close
review of the materials that already have been produced, defendants plan in the coming weeks to request
specifically the information that may enable defendants, if Trump and others comply, to determine his
net worth. The requested information, which will supplement the information provided in the
documents already produced, will be.critical for any expert to fully and responsibly engage in the
complex endeavor of valuing Trump’s assets and liabilities. To take just one example, in order to
determine the tax bases of asscts kield by partnerships or S Corporations, it is necessary to have either
tax returns of those entities or financial statements prepared on the income tax basis of accounting. But
for nearly all of the partnerships and S Corporations identified in plaintiff’s January 26, 2007 letter to
the Court, Trump has produced neither the tax retums of these entities nor financial statements on the
income tax basis of accounting {or any other basis for that matter).

At the same time, as the Court recognized in its ruling ordering production of Trump’s 2005
personal tax retun and related workpapers, the 2005 return — in unredacted form ~ contains-information
critical to assessing Trump’s net worth ¢laim. They are sworn statements and therefore the most reliable
source of such information. In addition, there is also specific information in the tax retuns which
defendants have not obtained from other sourges. For example, the tax retums provide jnforntation on

Trump’s income from business assets over fime, a critical factor in valuing these assets. We are not
aware of any other source for this information.

Moreover, despite Trump’s identification of five deals that he claims were lost as a result of the
Book, the tax returns also remain relevant to Trump’s damtages claim. Even though plaintiff has
identified these five deals, he has not relinquished his claim of damages to band name and reputation
from the Book, and overall income-and financial success are among the main indicia for measuring'these
intangible factors. Indeed, insofar as plaintiff alleges damages to his brand name, muich of the income
derived from thatbrand name is through licensing activities or other business endeavors to which Trump
lends his name, To understand whether these business activities have been affected by the Book, it is
necessary, among other things, to evaluate the history of these activities as reported on Trump’s personal
tax returns over time. More specifically, Trump’s 2005 tax return identifies approximately 45 Schedule
C (Profit or Loss from Business) activities and approximately 22 Schedule E Part I (fncome or Loss
from Real Estate and Royalties) activities, but plaintiff has redacted from his tax return all financial
information for these entities. In the absence of complete tax return data for these activities, it is
impossible to evaluate the reasonableness of plaintiff’s purported damages to his brand hame.

Defendants also object to Trump’s redaction of numerous documents from the Weiser production
that appear to be important for valuation purposes, and that certainly do not qualify as “personal
information” ‘within the meaning of the Court’s November 3,2006 Order. By way of example, Trump
fully redacted the financial data contained in his: (1) 2005 Form 1120 for 40 Wall Street
(WEI000074133-WEI000074134) (Exhibit B); (2) 2004 cash flows and 2005 income statement for
Trump Park Avenue (WEI000080019- WEI000080021, WEI000090162-WEI000090171) (Exhibit C);
{(3) 2005 K-1 for 845 UN Mgr Corp. (WEI000074143-WEI000074149) (Exhibit D); (4) 2005 trial
balance conversion for Trump International Hotel and Tower in Las Vegas (WEI000091572~
WEI000091579) (Exhibit Ej; (5) 2005 tax document for Trump International Hotel and Tower in
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Toronto (WE1000074131-WEIOODO74]32) (Exhibit F); and (6) 2004 disclosure checklist for personal
financial statements (WEI000087792-WEI000087795) (Exhibit G).

Furthermore, in certain instances, plaintiff’s extensive redactions make it altogether impossible
to understand even what plaintiff has redacted. For example, WEI000080104 to WEI000080177 are
completely blank pages, except for the markings “REDACTED” and “Confidential” (Exhibit H), and
plaintiff’s redaction log describes these 74 pages only as involving “Client Workpapers” redacted by
reason of “Court Order” (Exhibit I). Indeed, the difficulty of evaluating plaintiff’s redactions of the
Weiser production is compounded by the patent insufficiency of plaintiff's redaction log, which
describes the documents in an extremely generic manner and lists “Court Order” as the “reason” for
almost all of the redactions. (See id.) For defendants and the Court to assess the permissibility of

plaintiff’s redactions, plaintiff must produce a redaction log that contains meaningful descriptions and a
clear statement on the basis for each redaction.

In sum, defendants respectfully request that the Court: (1) adopt defendants’ proposed form of
order, inciuding the stay pending appeal and the Court’s alternative finding under New Jersey law: and )
(2) enforce against plaintiff the Court’s November,3, 2006 Order in connection with the 2005 tax retwrn
and the Weiser documents, requiring Trump to remove the redactions fom all information in these
documents that is not truly “personal information” and to produce a redaction log containing sufficient
detail to evaluate the permissibility of plaintiffs redactions.

We apprectate the Court’s consideration.
Respectfully submitted,
aon DI [ 2A—

Mark S. Melodia

cc:  William M. Tambussi, Esq. (Via Electronic Mail and Overnight Mail)
Mark P. Ressler, Esq. (Via Electronic Mail and Overnight Mail)
Andrew J. Ceresney, Esq. (Via Electronic Mail aud Overnight Mail)
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INTRODUCTION

In July 2004, upon the enactment of the Penusylvania Race Horse Development

and Gaming Act (“Act”), 4 Pa.C.8. §1101, et seq. as amended, Pennsylvania embarked

on an expansive initiative providing for legalized slot machine gaming at a limited
number of licensed facilities within the Commonwealth, The primary expressed
objective of the legislation is to protect the public through regulating and policing all
activities involving gaming. Other objectives include enhancing live horse racing and
breeding programs, entertainment and employment in the Commonwealth, providing a
significant source of income to the Commonwealth for tax relief, providing broad
economic opportunities to Pennsylvania’s citizens, developing tourism, strictly
monitoring licensing of specified Jocations, Persons, associations, practices, activities,
licensees and permittees, considering the public interest of the citizens of the
Commonwealth and the social effects of gaming when rendering decisions and
maintaining the integrity of the regulatory control of the facilities slots. 4 Pa.C.S. §1102.
- The Act establishes the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board (“Board” or
“I_’GCB") which is comprised of three .gubernaton'al and four legislative appointee

members. 4 Pa.C.S. §1201(b). The Board js provided general jurisdiction over all

gaming and related activities, including but not limited to oversceing acquisition and

operation of slot machines and issuing, approving, renewing, revoking, suspending,
conditioning and denying slot machine licenses, 4 Pa.CS. §1202.
Three categories of slot machine licenses are authorized under the Act: Category

1 lcenses permitting up to seven qualifying licensed horse racetracks to maintain slot

machine facilities; Category 2 licenses Permitting up to five stand-alone slot machine
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locations in metropolitan or other tourism areas; and Category 3 licenses permitting up to
two.hotel-resort slot machine facilities. 4 Pa.C.S. §§1301-1307.

The Act sets forth essential eligibility criteria for each Category of license which
any license applicant must satisfy simply to proceed to consideration of its application.
With respect to Category 2 licenses, which are the subject of this adjudication, Section
1304 of the Act provides the eligibility criteria including that the applicant may not be
eligible for a Category 1 license and that the locations for the Category 2 facilities
include two facilities in a city of the first class, one facility in a city of the second class
and the remaining two facilities in a revenue or tourism-enhanced location. Further, for
each of these facilities, the Act sets specific distance requirements with respect to
Category 1 and other Category 2 facilities. 4 Pa.C.S. §1304. The Act also imposes
eligibility criteria on all applicants for all Categories which include the development and
implementation of a diversity plan to assure equal opportumify in employfnent and
contracting, as well as a requirement that the applicant be found suitable consistent with
the laws of the Commonwealth and otherwise_ qu;aliﬁed for licensure. 4 Pa.C.S. §1325.
Other sections of the Act impose further restrictions on who may or may not be issued
licenses including imposing gc':od character, honesty and integrity requirements upon
appIiE:ants, and requiring letters of reference from law enforcement and other casino
jurisdictions where the applicant may be licensed, 4 Pa.C.S. §1310; imposing business
restrictions on who may own, control or hold key positions for the applicant, 4 Pa.C.S.
§1311; requiring divestiture of interests on non-qualiﬁring persons, 4 Pa.C.S. §1312;
imposing strict financial fitness requirements on the applicants to assure the financial and

operational viability of the proposal, 4 Pa.C.S. §1313, and promoting and ensuring

i
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diversity in all aspects of the gaming activities permitted under the Act including through
the ownership, participation and operation of licensed facilities. 4 Pa.C.S, §1212.
In addition to the eligibility criteria, the Act provides extensive guidance for the

Board’s consideration in issning licenses. Section 1325(c)' - Additional requirements,

provides:

In. addition to the eligibility requirements otherwise provided in this part, the
board may also take into account the following factors when considering an
application for a slot machine license:

(1) The location and quality of the proposed facility, including, but not limited to,
road and transit access, parking and centrality to market service area.

(2) The potential for new job creation and economic development which will
result from granting a license to an applicant.

(3) The applicant's good faith plan to recruit, train and upgrade diversity in all
employment classifications in the facility.

(4) The applicant's good faith plan for enhancing the representation of diverse
groups in the operation of its facility through the ownership and operation of
business enterprises associated with or utilized by its facility or through the

provision of goods or services utilized by its facility and through the participation
in the ownership of the applicant.

(5) The applicant's good faith effort to assure that all persons are accorded
equality of opportunity in employment and contracting by it and any contractors,

subcontractors, assignees, lessees, agents, vendors and suppliers it may employ
directly or indirectly,

(6) The history and success of the applicant in developing tourdism facilities
ancillary to gaming development if applicable to the applicant,

(7) The degree to which the applicant presents a plan for the project which will
likely lead to the creation of quality, living-wage jobs and full-time permanent

' The Section 1325(c) factors are factors which the Board may take into consideration in determining
whether the grant of a license is in the public interest or otherwise in accordance with the objectives of the
Act. Inaddition, and more important to the Category 2 licenses where competition exists, the 1325(c)

factors permit a basis for comparison of applicants to determine, in the Board's discretion, which
applicants’ projects are best-suited for the licenses.
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Jobs for residents of this Commonwealth generally and for residents of the host
political subdivision in particular.

(8) The record of the applicant and its developer in meeting commitments to local
agencies, community-based organizations and employees in other locations.

(9) The degree to which potential adverse effects which might result from the
project, including costs of meeting the increased demand for public health care,
child care, public transportation, affordable housing and social services, will be
mitigated,

(10) The record of the applicant and its developer regarding compliance with:

(i) Federal, State and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and
occupational and environmental-health and safety laws; and

(if) State and local labor relations and employment laws.

(11) The applicant's record in dealing with its employees and their representatives
at other locations.

In light of the comprehensive nature of the General Assembly’s directed

regulation, the Board set a deadline of December 28, 2005, for applications for all three
categories of licenses.> By this deadline, the Board received five applications for the two

available Category 2 licenses in Philadelphia (the city of the first class).

With respect to these five (5) Category 2 applications, the Board, through its

respective Bureaus of Licensing, Investigation and Enfo‘rcement, and Corporate
Compliance and Intemal Controls, engaged in extensive review and investigation. The
Board conducted three (3) days of public input heai‘ings on April 10, 2006, Aprl 11,
2006 and April 12, 2006, during which each of the five applicants made preseritations and
during which one hundred eighteen (118) individuals, including members of the

community, spoke either in favor of or in opposition to gaming and the proposed projects.

2 See www.pgch.state.pa.us/press/pr 112805.htm
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In addition, during the public comment period, the Board received a combined three-
hundred eight (308) written comments relating to the proposals from the public.® The

Board placed large amounts of information about the projects on its website®, and

conducted final Heensing hearings” on November 13-15, 2006, for the Philadelphia
applicants.’

The applicants. befor; the Board for the two ;wailable Category 2 licenses in
Philadelphia are; 1) HSP Gaming LP, also referred to as Sugarhouse; 2) Keystone
Redevelopment Partners, also known as TrumpStreet; 3) Philadelphia
Entertainment and Development Partners, also known as Foxwoods; 4) PNK,
Pinnac.lc Entertainment and 5) Riverwalk Casino. The authority for these licenses
arises under Section 1304 of the Act, Because the Act only permits two licenses to be
awarded in Philadelphia and there are five applicants, there is competition among the
applicants for the two available licenses. Because of this competitive factor, the five
a%)plicants not only have the responsibility to satisfy the Board that they are eligible and
suitable for a Category 2 license, but they also have been required to convince the Board
that their rcsp"ective project s'hould be among the two chosen by the Board to best serve
the Commonwealth’s and the public’s. interests in Philadelphia. Ultimately this is a
determination committed to the sound exercise of the Board’s discretionary authority to
select the two applicants which the Board believes will best serve the Commonwealth’s

and the public’s interests as outlined in the Act.

3 See www.pgcb.statc.ga,uﬂhearing comments,htm
4 See mvw.ggcb.sta!e.ga.uslrcgort hearing htm
5 See Ww.pgcbstate.ga.us!prcssfpr 101 106.htm
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On December 20, 2006, the Board -met during an open, public meeting in
accordance with the requirements of the Commonwealth’s Sunshine Act, 65 Pa.C.S.
Chapter 7, and Section 1206 of the Act for the purpose of voting upon all pending
applications and approving all permanent Category 1 and 2 licenses after consideration of
all of the applications, collectively and together in a comprehensive, Statewide manner.

. In addition to the Act’s eligibility criteria under Sections 1304 and 1310—i313,
factors which the Board took into consideration when reviewing these applications are
those defined in Section 1325 of the Act as listed above. The Board fully considered
these factors as applicable to arrive at a decision on licensure based upon all of the
evidence in.the record before it, The Board considered all of the evidence which makes
up the evidentiary record in this case, received briefs and heard oral argument supporting
the applications, where presented, and has had the opportunity to question applicants
about their proposals.

) In addition, throughout the entire licensing and investigative pro.cess, the Board
reached out to various federal, state and local law enforcement agencies, including the
FBI and the Pennsylvania State Police, requesting any information in the possession of
those agencies related to the suitability of the applicants in order to assure that the Board
had obtained all information relevant to each applicant’s suitability for licensing. Those
agencies have not provided the Board with any information which would preclude the
applicants from being considered for a license.

Based upon each Board member’s comprehensive evaluation of all information

obtained throughout the entire licensing and investigative process and contained in the

evidentiary record, the Board collectively engaged in quasi-judicial deliberations in
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executive session during which it met to fully and frankly discuss the merits of each of

the applicants and their proposed projects.

Each of the five Category 2 Philadelphia applicants has presented the Board with
a solid, competent proposal for the construction and operation of a first-class casino in
Philadelphia, each of which are eligible and.sujtable for licensure under the terms of the
Act. Unfortunately, the Board is constrained by the Act only to issue two licenses m
Philadelphia. Those applicants not awarded a license have, under the mandates of the
Act, been denied a license. The Board emphasizes the point that the denials of three
applicants are not because the unsuccessful applicants were found unsuitable, but because
the Board had the difficult task of choosing among five suitable candidates and proposals,
each of which possessed various positive attributes. Simply stated, the successful
applicants were the applicants which possessed the projects which the Board evaluated,
in its discretion, to be the best projects for licensure under the criteria of the Act.
During its December 20, 2006 public meeting, the Board voted to approve two

Category 2 licenses in Philadelphja, for HSP, Sugarhouse and Philadelphia

Entertainment and Development Partners, Foxwoods, pursuant to terms and

conditions to be imposed by the PGCB. Concurrently, the Board voted that the
remaining three applications for a Category 2 license in Philadelphia, those being
Keystone Redevelopment Partners/TrumpStreet, PNK, Pinnacle Entertainment, and
Riverwalk Casino are denied as not having achieved a qualified majority of support for
licensure as defined in the Act and because the City of Philadelphia is limited to only two

Category 2 licenses. See Sections 1301 and 1304 of the Act.
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The following' Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law set forth the Board’s

rationale for this determination.
FINDINGS OF FACT

General Findings Applicable to ANl Philadelphia Applicants

1. All five applicants have appliefi' for a slot machine license to operate a
slots casino in the City of Philadelphia, a city of the first class.

2. The initial applications from the Philadelphia applicants seeking a
Category 2 slot machine license were received by the Board on December 28, 2005.

3. None of the five (5) applicants proposed locations were located within ten
(10) linear miles or less of an existing Category 1 racetrack facility.

4 The Bureau of Licensing then put each application package through a
detailed completeness review. This process involved scrutinizing each and every
question asked and each answer provided to determine if the answers and documentation
were fully responsive. Where deficiencies were detected, requests for more information,
documentation and additional _applicéti_ons were made of the applicant. As the new
information and applications arived they were again put through the completeness
review process and deficiencies identified.

5. This gathering of information and documentation was ongoing throughout
the ten months prior to the applicants’ suitability hearings.

6. Once the Bureau of Licensing determined it was sufficiently satisfied with
the core contents of the initial applications, the applications were given to the Bureau of
Investigations and Enforcement (“BIE”) and the Bureau of Corporate Compliaxi;:e and

Internal Controls for the character and financial suitability investigations.
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7. BIE reviewed and inspected the applications to identify any

inconsistencies and to develop a general familiarity with the overall business activity,
financial sitvation and history of the applicant, developed Investigative plans that would
be utilized to conduct the background investigations of each applicant and put those plans
into action.

8. Requests for information to numerous organizations and agencies were
made. Criminal history checks were requested through the Pennsylvania State Police
which included queries of the Federal - ‘Bureau of Investigation’s National Crime
Information Center databases for criminal history and wanted person mformatlon
Further queries into criminal history records were conducted by BIE utilizing accessible
databases and through direct contact and/or comrespondence with local law enforcement
agencies having jurisdiction over the current and former locations of the businesses
associated with, the applicant and residences of the natural persons included in or related
to the application. Additionally, the Pennsylvania Office of Attomey General, Execntive
Offices of the Pennsylvania State Police, several United States Attomey Offices and

Federal Bureau of Investigation Offices were contacted with respect to each applicant in

order to aseertain whether any concems existed as to the licensure of any particular
applicant. In addition to the required Pennsylvania state tax clearance review conducted.
by the Department of Revenue and the Department of Labor and Industry, requests for
tax clearance reviews were sent to other applicable federal, state and local jurisdictions.
Additional verifications were made as well such as passports being verified through the

United States Department of State and bank accounts, loans, lines of credit, safe deposit

box ownership, etc. verified with financial institutions,
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9. BIE also conducted databasc searches, utilizing, among others,
commercial databases such as Screening Network, Accurint/Relavint, Lexis/Nexis,
Choicepoint Comprehensive Report, and Auto Track XP to"identify and verify the
employment, family, residence and educatidnal histories of each applicant, as well as
their non-gaming and professional license status, civil litigation dockets and credit
histories. The results and findings of these database checks were then compared against
each other and to the information contained in the application materials.

10.  Contact was made with other gaming regulators concerning the applicants
and the naturai persons associated with the applicants in order to verify gaming licensure .
and licensure status,

11.  Extensive personal interviews were conducted by BIE agents with
applicants and their natoral ,person qualifiers during which investigators gathered
extensive amounts of information conceming these entities and individuals and their
businesses and personal histories.

12.  Investigation of each applicants’ finances in order to assess financial
suitability was conducted jointly by BIE and the Bureau of Corporate Compliance and
Internal Controls. The role of BIE was to verify the data upon which these reports were
based. The Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls personnel created the
financiai fitness report.

13. A Financial Suitability Task Force was established with professional
members from the Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls, as well as

professional consultants retained as part of that Task Force. The Task Force developed
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the process for the determination of financial suitability of the applicants. The process
entailed extensive document review,

14.  The Financial Suitability Task Force established the following criteria in
order to determine Financial Suitability for each applicant.  Criteria 1 being an
applicant’s financial track record examining past financial performa;lce and financial risk
profile; Criteria 2 being an Individua] Ahalysis; and Criteda 3 being the financial
wherewithal of an applicant which included project funding and each applicant’s ability
to grow and maintain revenne,

15, The Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls collected

extensive information from each applicant which included corporate information for the

applicant and any other related entities and individual information where applicable.

16.  Based on the process designed and the information collected, the Task

Force prepared the Financial Suitability Report with supporting documentation consisting
of: 1) Corporate Financial Analysis; 2) Corporate Structure Analysis; 3) Debt Structure
Recap; 4) Drive Time Market Analysis; and 5) Project Financial Overview,

17. A drive-time analysis was conducted for each applicant. A drive-time

analysis is a proven method which has been used extensively over a number of years in

the major gaming markets to estimate potential gaming revenues. The drive-time

proposed site and the assumed surrounding competition. The drive-time is based on a
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typical facility and does not include consideration of the specific site, access, physical
characteristics or management, operational or marketing capabilities of the applicant or
any other applicant in Pennsylvania.

18.  The Task Force conducted a drive-time analysis for each applicant’s
proposed facility to: (1) estimate the gaming revenues of the applicant’s proposed facility
ﬁ;r a stabilized year of operation, which was used because of added comparability (for
clarification, the stabilized year takes place once the permanent faciliiy is open and has
ramped up and is moving into a steady state of operation, and it also takes into account
assumed competition from other relevant gaming facilities); (2) provide a basis for the
Board to evaluate the applicant’s gaming revenue projections; and (3) analyze the
applicant’s long-term view of the market.

19. The drive-time analyses were based on win and visitation analyses for
each applicant’s proposed facility. The visitation analyses were conducted by dividing the
surrounding area into various zones and analyzing the following three critical facto'rs for
each zone: '(1) Adult Gaming Propensity, which is an estimate of the likelihood of a
resident of an area to visit a particular facility in a given year based upon gaming industry
data. The gaming propensity depends upon a number of factors including: access and

drive-time, proximity to existing and proposed competitive gaming facilities, availability

of other leisure activities, and availability and type of transportation to the proposed

facility; (2) Annual Frequency of Visits, which is an estimate of how often a resident ofa
given area visits a particular facility in a year; and (3) Average Trip Expenditure, which

is an estimate of the spending propensity of a visitor during a trip to a given facility.
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20.  Public Input Hez;ﬁngs were conducted by the PGCB on April 10, 11 and
12, 2006, at Drexel University in Phi.ladelphja, Pennsylvania. Numerous representatives
from all five applicants testified at the hearing on behalf of their respective proposals,
All interested groups and individuals wishing to speak at the meeting concerning the five
proposals were given the opportunity.

21.  The Board also Provided a written public comment peri(;d that closéd on

June 2, 2006.

22.  Along with the written comments received by the Board specific to each

applicant, the Board also received one hundred and six (106) comments addressing the
building of any casino in Philadelphia with five (5) supporting casinos in Philadelphia
and one hundred and one (101) opposing any’casino in Philadelphia, Forty-six (46)
comments were also received addressing gan;ing in general, neither supporting nor
opposing any specific project in Philadelphia.

23.  The Board’s regulations at 441.19(y) provide a mechanism for persons

wishing to intervene in any licensing hearing for a slot machine license if that person has
an interest in the proceeding which is substantial, direct and immedjate and if the interest

is not adequately represented in the hearing. 58 Pa. Code 441.19(y).

24.  The Board did not recejve any petitions to intervene in any licensing

hearing of a Philadelphia applicant.

25.  On November 13, 14 and 15, 2006, ali applicants were provided final

hearings during which they were permitted to present witnesses to provide swom
testimony and documentary and demonstrative evidence as each applicant deemed

appropriate to attempt to convince the Board that it should be awarded one of the two

13 .
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Category 2 licenses; in Philadelphia. PGCB Regulation 441.19, Licensing hearings for
slot machine licer;ses, provided the procedural framéwork for those hearings. 58 Pa.
Code §441.19.

26. Pursuant to PGCB regulation 441.19(0), 58 Pa. Code §441.19(0),
applicants were provided the opportunity to also present evidence during their own
hearing to and concerning their comp;atitors .in order to demonstra;e tha.t their own project
should be selected rather than the project of a competing applicant. All applicants who
desired to present comparative evidence were -required to notify the other applicanis of
that intent and provide notice of the evidence to be presented in order to permit all
applicants to respond to.any comparative evidence.

27.  Each applicant was also provided the opportunity to provide a written
brief to the Board by December 8, 2006, after the completion of the suitability hearings
for all five applic.:ants. The Board received a brief from all applicants except HSP, which
\yaived briefing.

- 28. On December 19, 2006, the Board provid;ed the five applicants the
opportunity to provide oral a;'gm-nent before the Board and all applicants participated.

29.  Each applicant, as part of its application, submitted a traffic study
prepared by a professional firm retained by the applicant for the purpose of analyzing
traffic issues associated with the proposed project and proposing traffic and roadway
modifications to alleviate traffic problems association with increases in traffic which the
proposed casino would create.

30. Pursuant to an interagency agrecment with PennDOT, which had an

existing contract for traffic engineering services with the engineering and planning firm
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of Edwards & Kelcey, the Board engaged Edwards & Kelcey to review traffic study

plans submitted by each Category 2 applicant in Philadelphia and to provide a responsive

independent report conceming the traffic studies and proposed mitigation measures and
modifications to address increased traffic concerns,

31.  The Edwards & Kelcey reports were provided to each respective applicant

for review and further comment and discussion,

32.  Each applicant had the opportunity to submit additiona] materials,

supplementations and proposals to address concems raised by Edwards & Kelcey

concemning traffic issues,

33.  Edwards & Kelcey prepared a fina) Teport again analyzing the applicants’

proposals which were provided to the applicants prior to the fina] hearings and to which

the applicants were permitted to respond during their final hearings,

34. The Edwards & Kelcey reports and. the z;pplicanls’ responses were

submitted and admitted as exhibits in the respective applicants’

final hearings.
35.

The Act permits the Board to issue only two licenses in a city of the first
class, ie. Philadelphia.

36.  No applicant filed any written objection to the Board’s docket, or raised

any objection orally or in writing to the Board during the course of jts hearing, relating to

the procedure utilized by the Board for the conduct of the hearing process generally or to

any particular allegation of error.

37. On December 20, 2006, during a public meeting, the Board voted

unanimously to award HSP, Sugarhouse and Philadelphia Entertainment and

Development Partners, Foxwoods the available licenses in Philadelphia, a city of the

15 _
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first class, thereby denying the applications of Keystone Redevelopment Partners/
TrumpStreet; PNX, Pinnacle Entertainment and Riverwalk Casino.

HSP GAMING, LP /SUGARHOUSE (“HSP”)

38,  The HSP project site encompasses 22 acres along the Delaware River.
Planned as a phased gaming facility, HSP does not propose a temporary facility, but
instead plans the initial construction to be an “interim facility” that will become fully
integrated into the Phase 1 facility as its core section. The interim facility is projected to
open within twelve (12) months of licensure and house 1,500 slot machines, related
gaming support and regulatory spaces, a food court and a ten-level self park facility with
2,404 spaces located at the north end of the site.

39. “HSP commits to add to this core structure to reach completion of its first
phase, which will be named Sugar House, to accommodate up to 3,000 slot machines,
additional restaurants and a 6,000 square-foot multi-use event center with related support
areas. The completed Phase I will encompass 1.5 million square feet of new
construction, withi 84,600 square feet of gaming space at a cost of $550 million. This
permanent casino structure has been designed as a two-story podium structure with a
contemporary design and a retro feel, built to attract a sophisticated market competitive
with the best in Atlantic City.

40.  Future phases of the project complete an expansion of the complex to
ultimately accommodate the statutory limit of 5,000 slot machines, a 500 room hotel
tower, expanded dining facilities, a spa and an expanded garage parking. Should all
phases be completed, HSP’s facility would exceed 3,000,000 square feet of new

construction.
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41. At the Public Input Hearing, two (2) Legislators testified with one (1)
supporting the proposal and the second neither supporting nor opposing the project,
Three (3) representatives of local govemment units testified with one (1) supporting the
project while the other two (2) took neutral positions. Twelve (12} representatives of
Community Groups testified with six (6) supporting the proposal and six (6) stating they
were neither for nor against the pro_]ect, but had some questions or concemns. Tea (10)
individuals testified with six (6) supporting the project, two (2) opposing the project and

two (2) requesting more time to analyze certain aspects of the proposal.

42.  In addition, by the June 2, 2006 deadline, the PGCRB recejved twenty-two

(22) written comments specific to the HSP project, with seven (7) supporting the project
and fifteen (15) opposing the project,

43.  Those speaking or providing written comments in support cited reasons

such as increased job opportunities, added revenue, being good for the economy,
relief, strengthening the marketing of Philadelphia and community partnerships and the
amenities that the project offered,

44.  Those speaking or providing written comments in opposition cited reasons

such as traffic congestion, historical impacts, noise and street poliution, destruction of the

riverfront, crime, public safety and not enough EMT’s and police.

45.  On November 13, 2006, the PGCB conducted a public suitability hearing

for the purpose of hearing additional testimony and evidence from HSP concerning its

application and proposed project and its eligibility and suitability for licensure pursuant

to the Act.

17 :
13545 ’



46.  In addition to the public hearings, substantial time reviewing, analyzing
and invest-igating the applications and various submissions was expended by the PGCB’s
Bureau of Licensing in processing and reviewing the application, the Bureau of
Investigations and Enforcement investigating HSP, its affiliates and key
employee/qualifiers and the Burean of -Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls,
;ﬂong with the Financial Suitability Task Force investigating HSP’s financial snitability.

47.  The application fora Category 2 license filed by HSP is complete, all fees
and costs which have been billed to HSP have been paid as required, all required bonds
and/or letters of credit were posted and HSP and its affiliated parties consented to and
have undergone background investigations as required by the Act.

48,  HSP is a limited partnership formed in December 2005 for the purpose of
applying for a Category 2 license. HSP is not an active business, but is in the advanced
stages of developing plans to build its proposed facility.

_+ 49.  HSP’s primary ownership is comprised of High Penn Gaming, LP which
owns 66.25%, HP Gaming Partners, LP w‘hich owns 0.1% and R.PBS Gaming, LP, which
owns 33.65%.

50. - Ownership of these entities is comprised of limited partnerships, limited
liability companies and trusts which include High Penn Gaming, LLC, RPRS Gaming,
LLC, RMP Gaming, LP, 2005 AAA Trust and the Bluhm Family Trusts. Individuals
who have significant ownership interest in these entities include Neil Bluhm, Gregory
Carlin, Meredith Bluhm-Wolf, William Lamb and Robert Potamkin.

51.  HSP’s diversity of ownership is limited because of the existing ownership

structure dominated by limited partnerships. The limited partnerships establish diversity

18 :
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of ownership through the individual investors in and owners of affiliated entjties with

ownership interests in HSP.

52.  The following entity qualifiers, affiliate qualifiers and key
employee/qualifiers of HSP consented to and have undergone required background
investigations: HSP, High Penn Gaming, LP, HP Gaming Partners, LP, RPRS Gaming,
LP, High Penn Gaming, LLC, RPRS Gaming, LLC, RMP Gaming, LP, RMP éaming,
LLC, 2005 AAA Trust, Neil G. Blubm Family Descendants Trust, 2002 LNB Family
Dynasty Trust, Meredith A. Bluhm-Wolf 2006 Family GST Trust, 2002 AGB Family
Dynasty Trust, Lamb Partners, LAMB Company, LLC, Neil G. Bluhm, Andrew G.
Bluhm, Leslie N. Bluhm, Gregory Carlin, William H. Lamb, Richard A. Sprague, Daniel
J. Keating III, Robert M. Potamkin, Meredith Bluhm-Wolf, Jerry Johnson, Thomas
Sprague, Barbara A. Sprague, Peter D, DePaul, Lexie Brockway Potamkin and ten 10)

minor child beneficiaries.

33.  Alternative licensing standards were not utilized by the Board during the

course of its investigation of HSP,

54.  Neither HSP, nor any person affiliated with HSP, is a party to any ongoing

civil proceeding seeking to overturn a decision or order of the PGCB or the
Thoroughbred or Hamess Racing Commissions.

53.  HSP does not possess any ownership or financial interest in any other slot

machine licensee or person eligible to apply for a Category 1 license, its affiliate,

intermediary, subsidiary or holding company.

56.  Neither HSP, nor any affiliates, intermediaries, subsidiaries or holding

companies, hold any interest in a supplier or manufacturer license.
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57. No public official is a key employee/qualifier or has any prohibited
financial interest in, or is employed by HSP or any related entity.

58. Two key employee/qualifiers, Danicl Keating and Peter DéPaul, made
political contributions that appeared to be in violation of the Act. Mr. Keating had filed
his application on December 28, 2005 and a contribution of $250 was made on December
29, 2005. Mr. Keating anq the Boa.rd entered into a consent decree to address the issue,
with Mr. Keating obtaining the return of the contribution and HSP and Mr. Keating
paying a fine. Mr. DePaul made significant 'political contributions after filing his
application and in order to remedy this he divested his interest in HSP and withdrew as a
key employee/qualifier of HSP. The Board approved this withdrawal by Mr. DePaul
from HSP’s application.

59. Investigation did not reveal that BSP or any other affiliates or key
employer/qualifiers made any political contributions of any kind in violation of the Act.

.__ 60.  HSP satisfied all local, state and federal tax obligations.

61. Investigation di‘d not reveal that HSP or any of its affiliates, directors,
owners or key employee/qualifiers ha;;e; been convicted of a felony or 2 gambling offense
in violation of the Act.

62.  Investigation did not reveal any information that would indicate that HSP
or any of its affiliates, directors, owners or keéy exhpioyee!qualiﬁers is of unsuitable
character.

63. Information gathered during the course of BIE’s investigation concerning
HSP and its affiliates, directors, owners and key employee/qualifiers did not reveal any

adverse information concering bankruptcies, civil lawsuits or judgments, crimipal
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convictions, past activities or business practices, business associates or dealings or any

other information conceming the honesty, integrity, family, habits or reputation that

would prohibit licensure of HSP or jis key employee/qualifiers.
64.  The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force performed an evaluation of
HSP’s financial fitness and suitability and did not find anything financially material that

would preciude HSP from obtaining a Category 2 slot machine license,

65.  The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force projected a revenue estimate
for HSP of approximately $310.8 million annually in a stabilized year in 2005 dollars,

with a win per position of $284 per day at 3,000 machines,

66.  HSP projected its Tevenue at an estimated $320.3 million annually in a

stabilized year in 2005 dollars, with a win per positién of $292 per day at 3,000

machines,

67.  HSP’s estimate was 3.0% higher than the estimate of the PGCB Financial
Suitability Task Force.

68.  HSP indicated and j Investigation revealed that it has the ability to pay the

$50 mllllon licensing fee and to post the $1 mllhon bond required when the Category 2

slot machine license is issued,

69.  Based upon representations by HSP and investigation by the PGCB

Financial Suitability Task Force, HSP is capable of maintaining a financially successful,

viable and efficient business operation which will maintain 2 steady level and growth of

revenue,

21 ;
1358a :

o e



70.  HSP principals Neil Bluhm and Dan Keating have experience developing,
_ constructing and managing casinos, including two casinos in Canada. HSP does not have
any interest in any casino located in Atlantic City, New Jersey.

71.  HSP has a Diversity Plan in place addressing and assuring, in good faith,
equality of opportunity in employment and contracting, diversity in groups providing
goods and services to HSP and a plan fo recniit, train and update diversity in all
employment classifications at its facility.

72.  HSP has retained Maven, Inc. to assist with public relations and in the
implementation of its Diversity Plan. Maven is experienced in the development and
implementation of Diversity Plans and is itself a minority owned business. Melonease
Shaw, its.Chairman and CEO, has 30 years experience in enterprise management with an
emphasis on the needs of woman and minorities.

.-73.. HSP submitted a Compulsive and Problem Gaming Plan with its
gpplication, but the plan requires amendment as it does not fully address all criteria for
development, employee training items, self-exclusion training and underage gambling.
However, the plan c!oes express HSP’s intent to comply with the Act’s signage
requirements. The status of this plan does not exclude a finding of eligibility and
suitability at this time.

74.  HSP’s planned location consists of 22-acres along the Delaware River
waterfront located between Shackamaxon and North Ellen Streets, on Columbus Blvd.
just north of the Ben Franklin Bridge and near Interstate 95. Primary access to the’site

will be via Columbus Blvd from I-95.
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75.  The planned interim facility will include a 150 seat food court, a 125 seat

restaurant, a 35 seat casino bar and an 80 seat entertainment Iounge along with the
gaming floor with 1,500 slot machmes HSP is committed financially to building this
interim phase.

76.  The full phase one facility will include a 460 seat buffet/diner

combinati&n, a 135 seat Htalian restau}ant, a 150 seat steak house, a 60 seat bar, a 250 seat
sports bar, a 100 seat Off Track Betting facility and lounge with a 6,000 square foot
multi-purpose ballroom and retaj] space, along with a gaming floor with 3,000 slot
machines. HSP is committed financially to building phase one. The cost of both the
interim and permanent first phase is $550 million,

77.  Phase two, if built, would inchide a 500 room luxury hotel, spa, multi-

purpose event center and additional restaurants and lounges. While HSP fully expects

this phase to be completed, it’s completion will be dependent upon the success of Phase
One.

78. The existing site is a currently vacant, underutilized former industrial

property. The majority of the site has been vacant since 1980 and was previously used by
the Jack Frost Sugar Company as a sugar refinery, packaging and distribution center. All
buildings on the site have been demolished and removed,

79. The area around the HSP project consists of a mixed land use of

industrial, commercial and limited residentia] development. Properties north of the
project site contain commercial/industrial businesses and warehouses. Properties south
and west of the project include a mix of new residential condominivm towers that are

currently under construction, residential town homes and bar/restanrant establishments.
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80.  The project site is within two (2) miles of other Philadelphia atiractions
such as Penn’s Landing, Independence Hall and Park, the Constitution Center, the Ben
Franklin House and Museum, Elfreth’s Alley and numerous restaurants, pubs and the
Reading Terminal Market.

81. A portion of the proposed site is located in a C-3 District, but the majority
of the site is zone& (;‘r-‘Z Heavy Industrial. As a result, the site has multiple zoning
classifications with the C-3.use reasonably analogous to the sought gaming use. The City
of Philadelphia has adopted an ordinance that has created a “Commercial Entertainment
District” which, among-other things, permits licensed gaming facilities. To date, the City
has not indicated which areas will be designated as Commercial Entertainment Districts
as it is waiting to see which applicants are licensed by the PGCB.

82.  HSP does not own the riparian rights along this portion of the riverfront.
However, it is confident that it will secure those rights and if it is not successful the
design of the project could be changed to accommodate the lack of riparian rights.

83.  HSP estimates that its interim facility will provide approximately 586 jobs
and the completed Phase One ;')ropc‘)sal will create a:-total of 1,091 living wage jobs
paying an average of $12.24 per hour with healthcare benefits and a 401(k) plan.

84.  HSP estimates that the entire project will create approximately 1,000
construction jobs as the phases are built.

85.  The record indicates that HSP and its affiliates and entity qualifiers have
favorable records of compliance with applicable federal, state and local discrimination,

wage and hour, disability and occupational, environmental health and safety, and labor
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relations and employment laws and favorable records in dealing with employees and their

representatives.

86.  HSP does not intend to use a management company to operate the casino.

HSP employs various individuals with business and gaming experience.

87.  Neil Bluhm, is a co-founder and currently serves as the Chairman of the

Board of Falls Management Company (“FMC™). In 1998, FMC was selected by the
province of Ontario to assume the management contract for Casino Niagara and to
develop and manage Niagara Fallsview Casino Resort, Mr. Bluhm is also one of the
founders and President of JMB Realty Corporation and founding principal of Walton
Street Capital.

IMB, along with its associated entities, is engaged in real estate

investment and development. In the aggregate, JMB and Walton Street have acquired in

excess of $25 billion of real estate,

88.  Daniel J, Keating I, Chairman and CEO of the Keating Group, a

multifaceted construction and reaj estate development company founded in 1976,
d;veloped and constructed a wide variety of institutional projects valued at over §7
billion dollars totaling more than 500 projects.  With Mr. Kez;ting’s oversight, his
company has served as the general contractor to many large casino projects including the
Tropicana Havana Tower and Quarter in Atlantic City and Bally’s Wild West Casino in
Atlantic City,

89.  The Chief Executive Officer of HSP will be Gregory Carlin. Mr. Carlin

has eleven (11) years of gaming industry experience,

90.  HSP has also hired Robert D. Sheldon to serve as President and’ Chief

Operating Officer. Mr, Sheldon most recently served as Chief Operating Officer of

25
1362a



Foxwoods Resort and Casino in Mashantucket, Connecticut where he was employed for
six (6) years. Prior to that, Mr. Sheldon worked for Steve Wynn for eleven (11) years,
r‘nost recently as President of the Golden Nugget Hotel Casino, a Mirage Resorts Inc.
property in Las Vegas, Nevada.

91.  In addition, during the construction phase;, HSP will retain the services of
entities familiar with develo.ping a;nd builkﬁng casino projects inclu;iing Keating Building
Corporation and Cope Linder Architects,

92.  HSP has also retained Lewin International, LLC as a gaming consultant.
Its principal, Larry Lewin, is a thirty (30) year veteran of the casino and hotel industry
and has- previously worked closely with Mr. Blulim and Mr. Carlin on other gaming
projects. Mr. Lewin’s responsibilities included the development and opening of several
major gaming properties, including Niagara Fallsview Casino Resort in Ontario, Canada.

93.  Joann Weber has' been hired as a human resources consultant. Ms. Weber
l.zas been involved in the casino industry for twenty-three (23) years, most recently as a
Senior Vice President for Human Resources with Foxwoods whom she worked for eight
(8) years. -

94.  Debbie Marchese has been retained by HSP to serve as a consultant in the
area of casino financial operations and reporting. Ms. Marchese is currently Vice-
President of Finance and Information Technology and Chief Financial Officer of
Tropicana Casino and Resort in Atlantic City, New Jersey, where she is responsible for
all aspects of finance, information technology and purchasing. Ms. Marchese will be -
leaving Tropicana followin_g the closing of the sale of Tropicana to work full fime with

HSP.
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95.  Lisa Reilly has been retained by HSP to serve as consultant on casino

comptroller matters and financial reporting. Ms. Reilly is currently employed by
Tropicana Casino and Resort as Assistant Vice President of Finance and will be leaving

upon the sale of Tropicana.

96.  HSP has retained Casino Training Enterprises, (“CTE” , @ minority owned

business, as a consultant for personnel and training issues. Both owners of CTE have

extensive experience in training casino employees, Ms. Fiore is a principal owner of

Casino Gaming Institute (“CGI™), the largest privately owned casino training school

serving Atlantic City casinos, having graduated over 10,000 students since 1997. Ms.
Tweedle is the operating manager of CGI.

97.  HSP submitted a traffic study along with its application and Edwards and

Kelcey have reviewed the study. The traffic study identified the primary access points on
Delaware Avenue at Frankford Avenue and Shackamaxon Street, with a secondary access
located in Penn Street, Edwards and Kelcey indicated that the HSP traffic study
encompassed nine (9) intersections with the afternoon peak hour being the critical peak
hour analyzed in preparation of the study. The study also stated that 85% of the patrons
entering and exiting the HSP site would do so via Interstate 95. In doing so, the study
assumed that Penn Dot would complete the Girard Avenue Interchange allowing access
to Interstate 95 a short distance north of the HSP site.

98.  Edwards and Kelcey examined the three key mitigation areas identified in
the HSP traffic study. First is that timing and coordination adjustments needed to be
made on the traffic lights along Delaware and Girard Avenues, second is to widen the

intersections at Delaware Avenue at Shackamaxon Street and Frankford Avenue in order
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to install dual left turn lanes into the HSP site and third involves traffic calming measures
to discourage traffic from accessing the HSP site from the local streets. In its traffic
study HSP proposed achieving traffic calming through such: things as speed bumps and
neighborhood roadway narrowing.

99.  After examining the HSP traffic study, Edwards and Kelcey determined
that HSP needed to expand its study area. In response, HSP submitted an expanded
traffic study to the Board. Edwards and Keélcey determined that the expanded traffic
study was more comprehensive, but that additional information was still required.
Edwards and Kelcey indicated that its primary concems surrounded the scope of the
intersections included in the study since not all signalized intersections between the
casino site and interstate access were included in the study and the feasibility of HSP’s
recommended improvements.

100. As HSP’s plans are further refined, Edwards and Kelcey recommended
g-hat HSP: review recent traffic accident statistics to determine the need for any safety
measures; be prepared to make operational adjustments to adapt to changing condition_s; ‘
resolve geometric design details; initiate early coordination with utility agencies and
companies regarding relocation needs associated with street and intersection
improvements; integrate public bus operations and stops with the roadway and site
design; ensure vehicles entering the parking garage will not backup into public streets
due to intemnal congestion; develop a comprehensive signage system in coordination with
other nearby destinations; and ensure compliance with ADA requirements throughout the

improvement areas.
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101.  HSP concurred with these recommendations and states it is committed to

the mitigation and financing of all traffic issues related to the project.

102.  The site is also accessible by public transportation stops near the site and

HSP also is planning to ren an employee shuttle bus to the site,

103, HSP has committed to funding a charitable organization known as the

Sugar House Foundation. The Sugar House Foundation was established on April 17,

2006 and HSP has pledged to donate two and one half percent (2 % %) of its annua] pre-
tax income to the Sugar House Foundation, capped at $3 million anmually. The
Foundation will, under the guidance of a board of directors, make grants for the benefit of
the Philadelphia community and the jmmediate neighborhoods.

PHILADELPHIA ENTERTAINMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS Lp/
FOXWQODS (“PHILADELPHIA ENTERTAINMENT”)

104.  Philadelphia Eniertainment’s facility will be located on a 16 and one half
(16'%) acre parcel of vacant land on the Delaware Riverfront at the site commonly known
as Piers 60, 62 and 63 in Philadelphia.

105.  Philadelphia Entertainment’s submitted two site development plans to the
Board: one if it is granted riparian rights on the Delaware River and one if it is denied
riparian rights.

106. The design plan with riparian rights incorporates an existing pier of
approximately 90,000 square feet and Plans for restaurants, an entertainment venue,

lounges and bars, retail shops, parking and full public access to the waterfront,

107.  In the event that it is denied riparian rights, Philadelphia Enteﬂammcnt

- has designed an entertainment complex that can be built without the use of riparian rights

by moving the building back 80 to 100 feet from the other design, but still allowing for
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the construction of a full entertainment district of more than 120,000 square feet in size
on the water’s edge.

108. Philadelphia Entertainment’s project will be known as the Foxwoods
Casino.

109. At the Public Input Hearing, thirty-five (35) individuals testified specific
to Philadelphia Entertaixﬁnent’s proposed project. Two (2) state legislators testified with
one (1) supporting the proposal and one (1) taking a neutral position. Three (3)
representatives of local government testified with one (1) supporting the project and two
{2) taking neutral positions. Fourteen (14) representatives of community groups testified

.with five (5) supporting the project, five (5) opposing the project and four (4) taking
neutral positions. Finally, sixteen (16) individuals testified with four (4) supporting the
project, five (5) opposing the project and four (4) taking neutral positions.

110. In addition, the PGCB received fifty-nine (59) written comments directed
s_pecifically to Philadelphia Entertainment’s pr;Jject by the June 2, 2006 deadline, with six
(6) supporting the project and fifty-three (53) opposing the project.

111, Those speaking or providing written comments in support cited reasons
such as increased job opportunities, added revenue, being good for the economy, tax
relief, strengthening the marketing of Philadelphia and community partnerships, and that
Foxwoods has a good track record, is good corporate neighbor and that it will have a
good impact on businesses in south Philadelphia.

112. Those speaking or providing written commerits in opposition cited reasons

such as negative economic and social impacts on surrounding local commiunities,
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negative impact on real estate values and local businesses, traffic congestion, adverse
historical impacts, noise, light and street pollution ang crime.

113. On November 14, 2006, the PGCB conducted a public suitability hearing
for the purpose of taking additional testimony and evidence from Philadelphia
Entertainment concerning its application and proposed project and its eligibility and
suitability for licensure pursuant to the Act.

114, Inaddition to the public hearing, substantial time reviewing, analyzing and
investigating the applications and varions submissions was expended by the PGCB’s
Bureau of Licensing in processing and reviewing Philadelphia Entertainment’s
application, the Bureau of Investigations and Enforcement investigating Philadelphia
Entertainment, its affiliates and key employee/qualifiers and the Bureau of Corporate
Compliance and Intemal Controls, along with the Financial Smtablhty Task Force,

investigating the financial suitability of Philadelphia Entertainment.
115.

The application for a Category 2 slot machine license filed by Philadelphia
Entertainment is complete, all fees and costs which have been billed to Philadelphia
Entertainment have been paid as required, all required bonds z;ndjor letters of credit have
been posted and Philadelphia Entertainment and its affiliated parties consented to and
have undergone background investigations as required by the Act.

116. The PGCB did not utilize altemnative lidens_ing standards during the course
of its investigation of Philadelphia Entertainment’s application.

117.  Philadelphia Entertainment was formed on January 6, 2005, for the

exclusive purpose of acquiring ownership of the proposed site and obtaining a gaming

license from the PGCRB.
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118.  Philadelphia Entertainment is a Pennsylvania limited partnership, of which
FDC/PEDP GP, LLC (“FDC/PEDP”) is the general partner with a .01% ownership
interest. Philadelphia Entertainment has two limited partners: Washington Philadelphia
Investors, LP (“WPI”) with a 70% ownership interest and FDC Philadelphia, LP (“FDC
Philadelphia™)-with a 29.99% ownership interest.

119. 'WPI is comprised of a general partner, WPI GP, LLC (“WPI GP”} and

several limited partners, including Washington Philadelphia Community Charities, LP

(“WPCC”), which holds a 60.52% ownership interest therein, and private individuals,
who hold a combined ownership interest of 39.38% in WPL }
120. The Rubin Family Charitable Foundation and the Siiver Family Charitable
Foundation (together, the “Foundations™), hold limited partnership interests in WPCT.
The trust documents of the Foundations provide that distributions after expenses will be
‘pledged. to charitable organizations in the greater Philadelphia area, particularly those
s_llpporting underprivileged children. The limited partnership agreement of WPCC
provides that Edward M. Snider’s 18.57% ownership interest in WPCC will also be
pledged entirely to local charities. Therefore, through the trust documents and limited
partnership agreements, 100% of WPCC profits and 42% of Philadelphia Entertainment’s
profits will be allocated to charities and other non-profit organizations in the greater
Philadelphia area. This amount is estimated to be approximately $300 million over ten
years. No specific recipients have yet been identified.
121. Foxwoods Development Company (“Foxwoods Development™), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of thie Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation (the “Tribal Nation™), is the

parent company of FDC/PEDP and FDC Phitadelphia.
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122.  The Tribal Nation is a Native American Indian Tribe which gained federal
recognition in 1983. Pursuant to the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988, federally
recognized tribes are permitted to conduct full-scale casino gaming operations on tribal
lands, subject to the negotiation of a compact with the affected state. The Tribal Nation

is the sole owner of all tribal assets, including the Foxwoods Resort Casino, located in

Mashantucket, Connecticut.

123.  Foxwoods Development was formed in December 2003, by the Tribal
Nation to serve as it commercial business arm and to pursue new
deve]oPmént/management opportunities within the gaming and hoespitality industries,

124, In 1992, the Tribal Nation opened Foxwoods Resort Casino on tribal lands
in Connecticut. Foxwoods Resort Casino has grown to become the Iargest gaming resort
in the world with 340,000 square feet devoted to gaming, approximately 7,400 slot
machines and approximately 350 table games. Foxwoods Resort Castno has three (3)
resort hotels with a combined total of approximately 1,400 rooms, The facility averages
a;)proximately 45,000 visitors per day. The current complex has theaters, lounges,
nightclubs and appr;)ximately 55,000 square feet of meeting space,

125.  Neither Philadelphia Entertainment, nor any of its affiliates, including the
Tribal Nation, own any interest in any casino located in Atlantic City, New Jersey.

126.  In December 2005, Philadelphia Entertainment entered into agreements
with Foxwoods Development and its affiliated entities, (collectively, the “Foxwoods
Entities”) pursuant to which the Foxwoods Entities acquired an aggregate of 30% of the

partnership interests of Philadelphia Entertainment and agreed to assist WPI in its afforts

to obtain a Category 2 slot machine }icense for Philadelphia Entertainment.
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127. The following entity qualifiers, = affiliate qualifiers and key
employee/qualifiers of Philadelphia Entertainment consented to and have undergone
required background investigations: Washington Philadelphia Investors, LP; FDC
Philadelphia, LP; FDC/PEDP GP, LLC; WPI GP, LLC; Washington Partners Community
Charities, LP; Foxwoods Development Company, LLC; Foxwoods GP Philadelphia,
LLC; WPCC GP, LLC; the Rubin Family Charitable Foundation; the Silver Family
Charitable Foundation; the Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation; Foxwoods Management,
LLC; Bally’s Midwest Casino, Inc.; Peter D. DePaul; Frederick C. Tecce; Quincy D.
Jones, Jr.; Anyj J. Agarwal; Alan A. Steinberg; Edward M. Snider; George F. Rubin;
Aaron B. Xrupnick; Michael J. Thomas; Xenneth M. }{eels; Rodney A. Butler; Charlene
R. Jones; Marjorie P. Colebut-Jackson; Richard E. Sebastian; Chalita A. Young; Pedro J.
Johnson; Joseph A. Colebut, Sr.; John A. O’Brien; Maureen C. Sebastian; William J.
Sherlock; Timothy A. Walker; James L. Dougherty and Gary D. Armentrout.

128.  Neither Philadelphia Entertainment, nor any person or entity affiliated
with Philadelphia Entertainment, is a party to any ongoing civil procgedi_ng sqeking to
overturn a decision or order of the PGCB or the Thoroughbred or Harness Racing
Commissions.

129.  Philadelphia Entertainment does not possess any ownership or financial
interest in any other slot ma.chine licensee or person éligible to apply for a Category 1
license, its affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or holding company. However, Bally’s
Midwest Gaming, Inc. (“Bally’s”) holds a promissory note in the amount of $67.3 million
from WPI, the 70% limited partner of Philadelphia Entertainment,  Harrah’s

Entertainment, Inc. is the ultimate parent of both Bally’s and Harrah’s Chester Downs
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Investment Company, LLC, which holds a 50% ownership interest in Chester Downs and
Marina, LLC, a Category 1 slot machine licensee. Until the promissory note is repaid by
WP, a distribution by Philadelphia Entertainment to its partners will require WPI to pay
Bally’s 50% of the amount of the distribution, reducing doMar for dollar the 70% of that
distribution that would otherwise be payable to WPI. However, all distributions by
PhiladelphiaxEntertainment to its partners must be made at such times and in such manner
as FDC/PEDP, the general partner of Philadelphia Entertainment and wholly-owned
subsidiary of Foxwoods Development Co., determines in accordance with the provisions
of the partnership agreement and as permitted by applicable law. Bally’s cannot obtain
any ownership interest in Philadelphia Entertainment, even if WPI defaults on the
promissory note, without PGCB approval pursuant to the Act. As presently constituted,
the relationship does not violate the Act.

130. Neither Philadelphia Entertainment; nor any of its affiliates,
intermediaries, subsidiaries or holding companies, possess any ownership or financial
in-terest in any a supplier or manufacturer license.

131. No public official is a key employee/qualifier or has any prohibited

financial interest in or is employed by Philadelphia Entertainment or any related entity,

132. Peter D. DePaul, a key employee/qualifier of Philadelphia Entertainment,
disclosed in his application, and investigation confirmed, that he had made political
contributions in violation of the Act. In order to resolve this matter, the PGCB entered

into a consent agreement with Philadelphia Entertainment and Peter D. DePaul on

December 4, 2006, In compliance with the terms of the consent agreement, Mr. DePaul
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obtained the return of his political contributions and Philadelphia Entertainment and Mr.
DePaul gach paid the Commonwez%lth a fine.

"133.  Investigation did not reveal that Philadelphia Entertainment or any of its
remaining affiliates or key employee/qualifiers made any political contributions of any
kind in violation of the Act.

134.  Philadelphia Entertainment satisfied all local, state and federal tax

‘obligations.

135. Investigation-did not reveal that Philadelphia Entertainment or any of its
affiliates, directors, owners or key employee/qualifiers have been convicted of a felony or
a gambling offense in violation of the Act.

136. Investigation did not reveal any information that would indicate that
Philadelphia Entertainment or any of its affiliates, directors, owners or key
employee/qualifiers is of unsuitable character.

137. Information gathered during the course of BIE’s investigation concerning
P.hiladelphia Entertainment and its affiliates, directors, owners and key
employeg/qualiﬁers did not rch;al any information conceming bankrupteies, civil
lawsuits or judgments, crimirial convictions, past activities or business practices, business
associates or dealing or any other information ¢onceming the honesty, integrity, family,
habits or reputation that would prohibit licensure of Philadelphia Entertainment or its key
employee/qualifiers.

138. Philadelphia Entertainment is a- new entity with no financial l.iistory.
Therefore, the PGCB'’s Financial Suitability Task Force analyzed the past financial

performance, financial risk profile and debt structure of the Tribal Nation to determine
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the financial suitability of Philadelphia Entertainment, The Task Force also analyzed

Philadelphia Entertainment’s Ccorporate structure, key individuals, project fonding and

project revenue potential.

139. The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force did not find anything
financially material that would preclude Philadelphia Entertainment from obtaining a
Category 2 slot machine license.

140. The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force projected a revenue estimate
for Philadelphia Entertainment of approximately $310.8 million annually in a stabilized
year in 2005 dollars, with a win per position of $284 per day at 3,000 machines.

141.  Philadelphia Entertainment projected its revenue at an estimated $338.0
million annually in a stabilized year in 2005 dollars, with a win per position of $309 per

day at 3,000 machines,

142.  Philadelphia Entertainment’s estimate is 8.7% greater than that of the
PGCB Financjal Suitability Task Force.

143.  Philadelphia Entertainment has indicated and investigation has revealed
that it has the ability to pay the $50 million Iicensing fee and to post the $1 million bond
required when a Category 2 slot machine license is issued.

144.  Based upon representations by Philadelphia Entertainment and
investigation by the PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force, Philadelphia Entertainment
is capable of maintaining a financially successful, viable and efficient business operation
which will maintain a steady level of growth and revenue,

145.  Based upon the commitment letter from Merrill Lynch, Philadelphia

Entertainment has demonstrated that jt has access to sufficient funds to develop the
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* proposed project. Merrill Lynch has committed to arrange and/or underwrite $460
million in third-party financing for Philadelphia ]?:ntertainment’s project, Foxwoods
Casino Philadelphia. In addition, land valued at approximately $70 million, which is part
of the total project cost, has befan contributed to the project by WPI and does not néed to
be financed by the partnership. Philadelphia Entertainment will also receive $55 million
ﬁ'Ol;l Foxwoodsl i)evelopment Co., $?;0 miilion of which will come in the form of equity
to the. project with the remaining $25 million to be repaid by Philadelphia Entertainment
to the Tribal Nation.

146. Philadelphia Entertainment has adopted a good faith diversity plan. The
diversity plan states that Philadelphia Entertainment is committed to providing equal
opportunity -in employment for all people and fo prohibiting discrimination in
employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, sexual
orientation, marital status, AIDS; or HIV status, non job-related disability or veteran’s
stzlitus.

147. Philadelphia Entertainment has a history of promoting diversity. The
:I‘ril;al Nz.atio.n has historically aliocated 12% of its company’s total spending to minority-
owned suppliers.

148. Diverse groups are represented in the ownership of Philadelphia
Entertainment. Through its subsidiaries, the Tribal Nation holds an aggregate of 30% of
the partnership interests of Philadelphia Entertainment. In addition, Quincy D. Jones, Jr.,
an African American, holds a 5.62% limited partnership interest in WPI, a 70% limited

partner of Philadelphia Entertainment. Billy King and Dawn Staley, both African
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Armnericans, each hold a 1.12% limited partnership interest in WPCC, the 60.52% limited

partner WPJ,

149, Overall, approximately 51% of Philadelphia Entertainment is minority

and/or women owned and operated.

150.  Philadelphia Entertainment submitted a Compulsive and Problem Gaming

Plan with its application, but the plan requires amendment as it does not fully address all

criteria for development, employee training items, selfexclusion training and underage

gambling. However, the plan does express Philadelphia Entertainment’s infent to comply
with the Act’s signage requirements. The status of this plan does not exclude a finding of
eligibility and suitability at this time.

151.  Philadelphia Entertainment’s proposed site along the Delaware riverfront

is bordered by Columbus Boulevard to the west, Reed Street to the north, and Tasker
Avenue to the south and is south of the Benjamin Franklin Bridge and north of the Walt
Whitman Bridge.

152.  The site is almost equal in distance between the Sports Complex in South

Philadelphia and Center City. A movie theater complex and big box retailers such as
Wal-Mart and Home Depot are immediately adjacent to the site.

153.  Philadelphia Entertainment’s proposed site is farther in distance from the

proposed HSP/Sugarhouse project, the recipient of a Philadelphia Category 2 slot

machine license, than the other two (2) proposed projects by PNK and Riverwalk along

the Delaware riverfront.

154.  Philadelphia Entertainment has a three phase construction plan.

Philadelphia Entertainment plans to begin construction of Phase I in February 2007, with
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an opening date scheduled for November 2008. Plans for Phase I include 3,000 slot
‘machines, a 2,000-seat showroom, an entertainment lounge, retail shops, a 600-seat
buffet, a 250-seat five-outlet food court and 250-seat sport bar, as well as a 4,200-space
parking garage with an additional 300 surface parking spaces. Philadelphia Entertainment
estimates that the total costs and expenses for Phase I will amount to approximately
$525.8 million and it is committed financially to the building of this p.hase. -
155. Philadelphia Entertainment’s Phase II plan calls for an expansion of the
casino floor. by -approximately 66,000 square feet to accommodate the addition of 2,000
slot machines and/or table games. Phase I plans also include the addition of nightclubs,
restaurants, boutique retail shopping and an expansion of the parking garage for an
additional 1,200 parking spaces. The total costs for Phase I are estimated to total
approximately $223 million. Philadelphia Entertainment does not have a commitment for
the financing of Phase II and its constmction will be dependent upon market conditions.
) 156. Philadelphia Entertainment’s Phase III plan includes the construction of
two (2) 30-story towers that are connected to the existing casino and entertainment
complex. The west tower will be a hotel with approximately 500 rooms and the east
tower is designed to be either an additional 500-room hotel or a 200-resident
condominium. In addition to the two (2) towers, Phase III plans include additional
restaurants, a spa and an outdoor pool. Philadelphia Entertainment anticipates the total
project cost for Phase III at approximately $208.5 million. Philadelphia Entertainment
does not have the commitment for the financing of Phase I and its construction will be

dependent upon market conditions.
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157.  Philadelphia Entertainment’s project is designed to be fully compliant
with the requirements of Philadelphia’s Commercial Entertainment District and has all of
the required setbacks, height festrictions, landscape requirements and public access
required. The plan would also provide public access to the riverfront,

158.  Philadelphia Entertainment does not plan to build a temporary casfno.

159.  Philadelphia Entertainment estimates that the Phase I facility will create
950 permanent operations positions. These positions are intended to be living wage

positions with full medical benefits. More permanent employment positions will be

created as Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia js expanded,

160.  Philadelphia Entertainment estimates that between 945 and 1,071
construction jobs will be created during the Phase I construction of Foxwoods Casino

Philadelphia, Philadelphia Entertainment js committed to utilizing union labor in the

construction of the project,
161.  Philadelphia Entertainment has committed to hire and train local

applicants to fill 95% of the new employment positions at Foxwoods Casino
Philadelphia,

162.  Philadelphia Entertainment has committed to work with and utilize the

Philadelphia Opportunities Industrial Center and Community Self Empowerment
Program, along with other similar organizations, for job training,

163. Philadelphia Entertainment has no business history, however, the record
indicates that the Tribal Nation has a favorable record of compliance with applicable

federal, state and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and occupational,
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environmental health and. safety, and labor relations and employment laws and a
favorable record in dealing with employees and their representatives.

164. . Philadelphia Entertainment has entered into 2 management agreement with
Foxwoods Management, LLC {“Foxwoods Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Foxwoods Development, whereby Foxwoods Management will provide the professional
services necessary and appropriate to acquire the site and to develop, construct, operate
and manage Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia. Under the terms of the management
agreement Philadelphia Entertainment will pay, on an annual basis, all costs and experises
paid or incurred by Foxwoods Management. No management fee will be paid by
Philadelphia Entertainment to Foxwoods Management prior to the tenth anniversary of
the opening date. This agreement must be approved by the PGCB.

165. Philadelphia Entertainment’s traffic expert has proposed a plan to allow
traffic to flow better on South Columbus Boulevard. Working in conjunction with the
Qity of Philadelphia and the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, and using
standards set forth in the Institute of Transportation Engineers publications, Philadelphia
Ent;ertainment’s traffic exp;:rts submitted a series of mitigation measures that it believes
will reduce traffic congestion on Columbus Boulevard by 32%. To improve traffic flow
Philadelphia Entertainment has proposed widening a street as it approaches Columbus
Boulevard, constructing double left tu;'n ianes at two intersections, re-striping other
intersections, and adding two new traffic signals along Columbus Boulevard. These
Phase I improvements would be completed prior to the opening of the gaming facility in

November 2008,
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166.  Philadelphia Entertainment has committed to fund 100% of the traffic

improvements proposed as part of its Phase I development, Philadelphia Entertainment

has committed to fund “its fair share” of the proposed traffic mitigation measures for

Phase II, which includes the construction of a new southbound off-ramp from Interstate

95 to Dickenson Street and reversal of travel along that street between Front Street and

Columbus Boulevard.-

167. Edwards & Kelcey reviewed Philadelphia Entertainment’s traffic study
and proposed mitigation measures and also recommended that measures be taken by

Philadelphia Entertainment to mitigate the project impacts. Following that review,

Philadelphia Entertainment’s proposed mitigation plan and measures adequately

addressing traffic issues in the area of the proposed casino.

168.  Philadelphia Entertainment has committed to help set wp and fund a
special services district to mitigate impacts to the communities nearest to and most
djrcctly impacted by the project. There has been no specific commitment as to which
communities would be included in the special services district, the amount of money that

would be contnbuted to the special semces dlstnct, or exactly how the monies would be

used.

169. In addition, approximately forty-two percent (42%) of Philadelphia

Entertainment’s profits will pass through charitable trust owners to charitable causes to

primarily assist education and disadvantaged children at a rate of approximately $300

million over ten (10) years.
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KEYSTONE REDEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, LLC/TRUMPSTREET

170.  Initially, Keystone proposed building a 90,000 square foot casino with
3,000 gaming positions on an 18 acre tract of'land referred to as the Budd Site, which is
located near the intersection of Henry and Roberts Avenues in Philadelphia.

171.  After acquiring the option on an additional piece of property, Keystone
infor;t.ned the PGCB of its inten; to build a temporary casino, which would ultimately be
incorporated into the permanent, larger facility.

172.  ‘The proposed site with the additional land was approximately thirty (30)
acres of mostly vacant land in an industrial area that was not located along the Delaware
River. The proposed site consisted of the previously optioned Budd site and the still
occupied Tasty Baking Company site all located near the intersection of Fox Street and
Roberts- Avenue, and the Interstate 76 (the Schuylkill Expressway) and Route 1 (City
Line Avenue) interchange.

173.  In addition to a temporary-casino, the new master plan. included food and
beverage outlets, a three (3) screen cinema, a coffee bar, bars and lounges, retail space, an
enter.tainment venue and a hotel.

174. The design concept celebrated the legacy of the Budd Company site,
which manufactured Zephyr trains, in a modern and creative manner by using steel and
glass to re-interpret the forms of the trains created on the site. A 200 foot high smoke
stack on the sight was inspirec-i by the Zephyr Train and would have marked the site. The
project proposed was to be known as the TrumpStreet Casino and Entertainment

Complex (“TrumpStreet”).
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175. At the Public Input hearing fifty-nine individuals testified specifically
about the Keystone project. Four (4) state legislators testified with three (3) supporting

the project and one (1) taking a neutral position. Three (3) representatives of local

government waits testified with one (1) supporting the project and two (2) taking neutral

positions. Twenty-one (21) representatives of community groups testified with eight (8)

supporting the project, eight (8) opposing the project and five (5) taking neutral Positions,
but expressing additional questions or concerns. Thirty-one (31) individuals testified
with fifteen (15) supporting the project and thirteen (13) opposing the project, The
remaining three (3) speakers Tequested more time to analyze certain aspects of the
project,

176. 'Written comments were also received by the PGCB by the June 2, 2005

deadline. Fifty-nine (59} comments were recewed with fifieen (15) supporting the

project and forty-four (44) opposing the project.

177.  Those speaking or providing written comments in support cited reasons

such as increased employment opportunities that the project would bring to the area, the
availability of funding by Keystone for local community groups and the idea that the
project would serve to ignite further development in the nearby area,

178. Those speaking or providing written comments in opposition cited reasons

such as increased traffic in the area, the impact on the students at a nearby school as well

as a local playground and basketball court, increased crime, substance abuse and
compulsive gambling and the impact upon the residents of the nearby Abbotsford Home.
179.  On November 14, 2006, the PGCB conducted a public suitability Hearing

for the purpose of taking additional testimony and evidence from Keystone conceming its
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application and proposed project and its eligibility and suitability for licensure pursuant
to the Act. |

180. In addition to the publi-c hearings, substantial time reviewing, analyzing
and investigating the applications and various submissions was expended by the PGCB’s
Bureau of Licensing in processing and reviewing Keystone’s app]iéation, the Bureau of
Investigations and Enforcement investigating Keystone and its affiliates and key
employee/qualifiers and the Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls,
along with the Financial Suitability Task Forcé investigating the financial suitability of
Keystone.

181.  The application for a Category 2 license filed by Keystone is complete, all
fess and costs which have been billed to- Keystone-have been paid as required, all’
requir;ad bonds and/or letters of credit were posted and Iéeystone and its affiliates and key
employee/qualifiers consented to and have undergone background investigations as
required by the Act.

182, Keystone’s ownership consisted of a ‘variety of 'par_ﬁesfeptigies{ however,
they can be divided into two broad categories: Trump related (63.73%) and general
members (36.27%).

183. TER Keystone Development Co. LLC was the Trump related entity,
owning 63.73% and the general members’ were, Quaker City Gaming, LLC owning
9.6877%, Yo! Gaming, LLC owning 7.6482%, Néighborhood Partnership, LLC owning
7.0108%, S&B Investment Gronp LLC owning 7.0108%, Mitchell Morgan owning

3.5054% and MSM Gaming, Inc. owning 1.4022%.
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184. Diversity of ownership is obtained through ownership interests in the
publicly owned companies of TER and/or Trump related entities which own

approximately 63% of Keystone, and through the individual interests.

185.  Although several of Keystone’s Trump affiliates possess gaming licenses
in other jurisdictions, the PGCB did not utilize alternative licensing standards during the

 course of its investigation of Keystone’s application,

186. The following entity qualifiers, affiliate qualifiers and key
employee/qualifiers of Keystone consented to and have undergone required background
investigations: Hunting Fox Associates I, LP, Hunting Fox 1, Inc., MSM Gaming, Inc.,
Neighborhood Partnership LLC, Preferred Real Estate Developers II, Inc., Preferred Real
Estate Developers II, LP, Quaker City Gaming, LLC, TCI 2 Holdings, LLC, TER
Development Company, LLC, TER Keystone Development Company, LLC, TER
Management Company, LLC, The Deed of Trust of Michael G. O’Neill dated November
15, 1992, Trump Casinos, Inc., Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc., Trump Entertainment

Resorts Holdings, LP, Werther Partners, LP, Yo! Gaming, LLC, Trump Entertainment

Resorts Development Keystone Development LLC, Trump Entertainment Resorts
Development, LLC, S&B Investments Group, LLC, Trump Entertainment Resorts
Funding, Inc., Trump Entertainment Resorts Development Company, LLC, Trump
Marina Associates, LLC, Trump Plaza Associates, LLC, Trump Taj Mahal Associates,
LLC, Donald J. Trump, James Perry, Wallace Askins, Dale Black, John Burke, Edward
Dr’Alelio, James Florio, Cezar Froelich, Morton Handel, Erik Hausler, Mark Juliano, Paul
Keller, Michael Kramer, Virginia McDowell, Robert Pickus, Richard Santoro, ‘Brian

Savacool, Don Thomas, Jeanne Wilkins, Richard Weber, Douglas Burkhalter, Larry
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Doyle, Michael O’Neill, Jeannie O’Neill, Erik Kolar, Nimish Sanghrajka, Michael
Balitsaris, Xevin Traynor, Alan Werther, Meredith Werther, Edward Miersh, Mitchell
Morgan, Shawn Stockman, Nathar Momis, Wanya Morris, Brian Tiemey, Dominick
Cipollini, Peter Ciarrocchi, S.teVen Berk, Gerald Segal and Pasquale Croce.

187. The following individuals requested a waiver of their obligation to be
licensed claiming they are an outside director of an affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or
holding company of Keystone, are niot members of the audit committee and are not
significantly involved in the management or ownership of Keystone: James Florio, Cezar
Froelich, Morton Handel, Brian Savacool and Don Thomas

188. The following also requested waivers of their obligation to be licensed
claiming they meet the definition of institutional investor, have under 15% of the equity
securities of Keystone or its holding or intermediary companies, t_he securities are those
of a publicly traded corporation and its holding of the securities were purchased for
j_nvestment purposes only: Morgan Stanley and Co., Inc. and Franklin Mutual Advisors,
I-nc.

189.  Neither Keystone, nor any person or entity affiliate with Keystone, is a
party to any ongoing civil proceeding seeking to overturn a decision or order of the
PGCB or the Thoroughbred or Harness Racing Commissions.

190. Keystone does not possess any ownersiiip or financial interest in any other
slot machine license¢ or person eligible for a Category 1 license, its affiliate,

intermédiary, subsidiary or holding company.
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191.  Neither Keystone, nor any of its affiliates, intermediaries, subsidiaries or

holding companies, possess any ownership or financial interest in any supplier or

mamifacturer license,

192. No public official is a key employee/qualifier or has any prohibited

financial interest in or is employed by Keystone or any related entity,

193, Neither Keysto}le, nor any of its affiliates or key employee/qualifiers,

made any political contributions of any kind in violation of the Act.

194, Keystone satisfied all local, state and federal tax obligations.

195.  Investigation did not reveal that Keystone or any of its affiliate, directors,

owners or key employee/qualifiers have been convicted of a felony or gambling offense

in violation of the Act.

196. Investigation did not reveal any information that would indicate that

Keystone or any of its affiliates, directors, owners or key employee/qualifiers is of

unsuitable character.

197.  Information gathered during the course of BIE’s investigation concerning

Keystone and its affiliates, directors, owners and key employee/qualifiers did not reveal

any information concerning bankruptcies®, civil lawsuits or judgments, criminal

convictions, past activities or business practices, business associates or dealings or any

other information concerning the honesty, integrity, family, habits or reputation that

would prohibit licensure of Keystone or its key employee/qualifiers.

198. Keystoneisa newly formed entity with no financial history. Therefore, the

PGCB’s Financial Suitability Task Force analyzed TER Keystone Development Co., the

® Evidence was provided concemin

g banknupicies to permit the reorganization of Trump Entertainment
propertics in Atlantic City. Those

matters do not disqualify the applicant from consideration.
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63.73% owner of Keystone; and its parent coimpany, Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc.
for historical financial performance, financial risk profile, debt structure, corporate
structure and project revenue potential to determine the financial snitability of Xeystone.

199.- The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force did not find anything
financially material that would preclude Keystone from obtaining a Category 2 slot
.r;lachine license,

'200. The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force projected a revenue estimate
of approximately $310.8 million annually in a stabilized year in 2005 dollars, with a $284
win per position per day at 3,000 machines. |

201. Keystone projected its revenue estimates at $399.4 million annually in a
stabilized year in 2005 dollars, with a $365 win per position per day at 3,000 machines.

202, Keystone’s projectioris were 28,5% greater than the estimate of the PGCB
Financial Suitability Task Force,

203. Keystone indicated and investigation revealed that it had the ability to pay
}he $50 million licensing fee and to posé the 81 million bond required if a Category 2 slot
machine license had been granted to Keystone. |

204. Based upon representations by Keystone and investigation by the PGCB’s
Financial Suitability Task Force, Keystone was likely to maintain a financially
successful, viable and efficient business operation which would have maintained a steady
level of growth and revenue.

205. Keystone had a good faith Diversity Plan in place which generally stated
that Xeystone had a strong commitment to embrace diversity in all areas of its

orgamization and every phase of its operation and that it does not tolerate any form of
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discrimination or harassment in the workplace, with business associates or in daily

business activities,

206. Keystone implemented policies, procedures and practices which

prohibited discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry,
sexual orientation, gender, age, manital status, AIDS or HIV status, liability for service in

the armed forces of the United States, non job-related disability and veterans® status,

207. Keystone’s plan proposed use of minority and women owned businesses,

as well as businesses owned by persons with disabilities, which it would seek out through

advertising, community and government contacts and through the contacts and business

associates of its related entitjes,

208. Keystone submitted. a Compulsive and Problem Gambling Plan with its

application, but the plan required amendment as it did not fully address all criteria for
development, employee training items, self-exclusion training and underage gambling,
However, the plan did express Keystone’s intent to comply with the Act’s signage
rc::quirements. The status of this plan does not exclude a finding of eligibility and

suitability at this time.

'y
209. Keystone's Proposed site was the only proposed site not located along the
Delaware River, Instead, the proposed site was located in area comprised of mixed
industrial and residentia] neighborhoods that currently have few, if any,‘ attractions, retail

shops or restaurants.

210.  This area of the city is presently an economically depressed area with 38%
of the families living below the poverty line, 27% of the population eaming less than

$10,000 per year and only 55% of the population being employed full-time.
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211. Keystone proposed to build a $444.8 million project, beginning
construction of the temporary/Phase I facility no later than May 2007, with a projected
opening in or about May, 2008.

212, The temporary/Phase I facility would have consisted of a gaming floor
with 1,500 slot machines, limited food and beverage outletg and a three (3) screen
cinema. The temporary facility was to be serviced by surface parking. Keystone was
committed financially to building and operating this phase of the project.

213. Construction of a permanent/Phase I ficility would have commenced no
later than September 2007, with an opening on or about May, 2(309.

214. The permanent facility would have had a gaming floor containing 3,000
slot machines, a coffee bar, additional bars and lounges, upscale restaurants, retail shops
and a buffet and it would have been serviced by-a 3,000 space parking garage. Keystone
was committed financially to building and operating this phase of the project. .

215. Keystone’s Master Plan included firrther expansion, including an
additional 2,000 slot machines, an entertainmeng venue, a 400 room hotel and additional
parking. However, no firm commitments, financially or otherwise, were made with
respect to this phase of the project.

216. The project proposed included $2.5 million to raze dilapidated and vacant
homes in the area, as well as money to restore the facades on other deteriorating homes in
the area.

217. Keystone had a management agreement with TER Management Co., LLC,

a subsidiary of Trump Entertainment Resorts Holdings, LP. The management company
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was to provide Keystone with operational and gaming management services for an initial

term of ten years.

218. Keystone estimated that its temporary/Phase I facility would create

approximately 500 full-time equivalent positions.

219.  Keystone estimated that its permanent facility would create approximately

1,000 full-time equivalent positions with an average annual compensation of $31,000

each,

220. Keystone estimated that the project would create between 1,379 and 2,067
construction jobs,

221. Keystone expected to fill approximately 75% of its jobs with individuals
residing in the immediate community/area and 90% of the jobs with Philadelphia
residents.

222. While Keystone was a newly formed company with no history, it’s
affiliates such as Trump Entertainment Resorts have a favorable record of compliance

with applicable federal, state and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and

occupational, environmental health and safety, and labor relations and employment laws,

and a favorable record in dealing with employees and their represcntatives. Keystone had
neutrality agreements with operations engineers, Teamsters and UNITE HERE.

223. Keystone’s parent company, Trump Entertainment Resorts, owns several
casino properties in Atlantic City, New Jersey.

224, A part of Keystone’s marketing plan was a direct marketing campaign

aimed at the more than 1 million previous and known customers of the Trump Atlantic
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City properties - Tramp Marina, Trump Taj Mahal and Trump Plaza - who resided within

25 miles of the Keystone site.

225. While Keystone was a newly formed entity, its parent company and -

affiliates have considerable experience and presence in the gaming industry. In addition
to the “Trump” brand, Keystone would have relied on gaming professionals such as Mark

Juliano who has over twenty (20) years of gaming experience, James Perry who has over

thirty (30) years of gaming experience and Robert Pickus who has over twenty-three (23) .

years of gaming experience.

226. Keystone submitted a traffic study prepared by Vollmer Associates with
its application. The study conc¢luded that with proper mitigation efforts all increased
traffic flow as a result of Keystone’s project could be adequately handled.

227. The study was reviewed by Edwards and Kelcey who concluded that the
stady was deficient in that it did not analyze future conditions more than ten years
l;-eyond the opening date of the casino.

228.- Keystone then submitted a revised traffic study which, among other
things, addressed most of the issues raised by Edwards and Kelcey’s initial review.

229. This revised plan was reviewed by Edwards and Kelcey who concluded
that most of the traffic issues that can be addressed at this stage of planning have, in fact,
been addressed systematically and thoroughly.

.230. The Keystone site was also accessible by public transportation,

231. 1t has been the longstanding practice of Keystone’s Trump affiliates in
Atlantic City to donate excess food 6 the Atlantic City Rescue Mission and the Atlantic

City Food Bank. In addition, the Trump organizations in Atlantic City are heavily
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involved with the United Way of Atlantic County, soliciting contributions of time and

money from all levels of the organizations, and from the organizations themselves, In
2002, financial contributions reached their peak, totaling approximately $710,000, Also,
prior to the issnance of a riverboat license to Trump Indiana, Inc., another Trump affiliate

of Keystone, a development agreement was negotiated and executed with the host

community, Gary, Indiana. Ifndcr tﬁe Indiana development agreement, Trump Indiana,

Inc. contributed approximately $1 million in scholarships and endowments to local
organizations.

232. Keystone had entered into agreements with Tioga United and the

Allegheny West Foundation non-profits, whereby if Keystone was awarded a license it
would contribute $2.5 million for charitable purposes within six months and would
thereafter provide a percentage of its daily gross termijnal revenue at a rate no less than:
() 31 million annually for each of the first five fiscal years of its operation of the project;
and (i) for each year thereafier, an amount equal to $1 million increased on an annual

compounded basis by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index.

233. Keystone agreed to make contributions of $1.5 million to fund local

school renovations and upgrades, as well as to fond scholarships to schools in the

immediate nejghborhood.

234, Keystone also agreed to donate surplus food and goods to charitable and

community based organizations.

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC. and PNK (PA), LLC (“PNK”)
__——'_—————______é_______
235. PNK’s proposal was located on thirty-three (33) acres along the Delaware

River near the Fishtown section of the City on the site of a former shipbuilding yard.
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236. The proposal included a temporary casino to house 1,500 slot machines
Jocated in a former warehouse on the proposed site. The permanent project included a
casino to house over 3,000 slot machines, restaurants, retail space and movie theaters all
around a central pond area that would become a skating rink during the winter months.

237. PNK intended to develop a project that would be a part of the historic
i1eﬁta;ge of the Delaware waterfront in Philadelp.hia and would provide public access to
the riverfront.

238. At the Public Input Hearing twenty-five (25) individuals testified
specifically with regard to the PNK project: Two (2) Legislators testified with one
supporting the project and the other neither supporting nor opposing it. Three (3)
representatives of local government units testified with one (1) supporting the project
while the othier two (2) were neutfal. Ele\fen' (11) representatives of Community Groups
testified with five (5) of the groups supporting the project and six (6) neither for nor
against the project. Nine (9) individuals testified with five (5) supporting the project and
one (1) opposing the project. The remaining three requested more time to analyze certain
aspects of the project.

239. .In addition, the PGCB received five {5) written comments directed at the
PNK project by the June 2, 2005 deadline with one (1) supporting the project and four (4)
opposing the project.

240. Those speaking or providing written comments in support cited reasons
such as increased job opportunities, added revenue, being good for the economy, tax
relief, strengthening the marketing of Philadelphia and community partnérships,

increasing tourism and the development of underused or unused properties.
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241.  Those speaking or providing written comments in opposition cited

reasons such as gambling addiction, traffic congestion, adverse historical impacts, noise

and street pollution, destruction of riverfront property, crime, public safety and not

enough EMT’s and police.

242, On November 15, 2006, the PGCB conducted a public suitability hearing

for the purpose of hearing additional testimony and evidence from PNK. conceming its

application and proposed project and its eligibility and suitability for licensure pursuant
to the Act.

243.  Inaddition to the public hearing, substantial time reviewing, analyzing and

investigating the applications and various submissions was expended by the PGCB’s

Bureau of Licensing in processing and reviewing PNK’s application, the Bureau of

Investipations  and Enforcement investigating PNK, ijts affiliates and key

employee/qualifiers and the Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls,
along with the Financial Suitability Task Force investigating the financial suitability of

PNK and its parent company Pinnacle.

244.  The application for a Category 2 slot machine license filed by PNK is

complete, all fees and costs which have been billed to PNK have been paid as required,
all required bonds and/or letters of credit were posted and PNK and its affiliated parties

consented to and have undergone background investigations as required by the Act.

245. PNK was formed on- December 23, 2005, as a Pennsylvania Limited

Liability Company, and had no previous business history in Pennsylvania or any

Jjurisdiction.
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246. PNK was orgapized to b.uild, ‘own and operate limited gaming
establishments in Pennsylvania. Pinnacle, its parent company, is publicly traded on the
New Ym""k Stock Exchange and is the 100% owner of PNK.

247. PNK’s diversity of ownership is limited because of Pinnacle’s 100%
ownership of PNK. Diversity of ownership is obtained through ownership of the publicly
traded parent corporation, Pinnacle,

248. Pinnacle, headquartered in Las Vegas, Nevada, is a diversified, multi-
jurisdictional owner and operator of gaming entertainment facilities. Pinnacle is the
successor to the Hollywood: Park Turf Club, organized in 1938. In 1981, Pinnacle was
incorporated in the State of Delaware under the name of Hollywood Park Realty
Enterprises, Inc. The name was changed-to Pinnacle Entertainment in February 2000,

249. Pinnacle owns and operates numerous gaming properties in the United
States: . Belterra Casino Resort, Indiaha; Boomtown Casino and Hotel, Bossier City
I'_;ouisiana; Boomtown New Orleans, a dockside riverboat; Boomtown Ca.sino and RV
Park, Nevada; and L’Aubf_:rgq du I'.ac, Lake Charles, Louisiana. Casino Magic Biloxi
was located in Biloxi, Mississippi but was destroyed by Hurricane Katrina. In addition to
the United States properties, Casino Magic Argentina operates five land based casinos in
the Patagonia region of Argentina and the Casino at Emerald Bay, Great Exuma
Bahamas, opened in.May 22, 2006 in space subleased in the Four Seasons Resort Great
Exuma at Emerald Bay.

250. In addition to its current operations, Pinnacle has several development
projects pending. In 2004, the company was given priority status to design, develop and-

operate two major casino projects in the St. Louis, Missouri area and in November 2005,
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Pinnacle broke ground on the $375,000,000 River City Casino & Hotel in the South St.
Louis community of Lemay. In August 2005, the company submitted a bid for a
development in Rancagua, located within a 45 minute drive of Santiago. In January
2006, Pinnacle announced plans to add 250 guestrooms to the Belterra Casino Resort for
approximately $45,000,000 and the first guestrooms at Boomtown New Orleans property
for approximately $30,000,000. In May 2006, Pinnacle signed a definitive agreement
under which it will acquire certain Lake Charles, Louisiana assets of Harrah’s and
Pinnacle intends to build a second casino resort in Lake Charles {Sugarcane Bay). In
September 2006, Pinnacle signed an agreement to purchase The Sands Hotel and Casino
and adjacent real estate parcels, including the Traymore site in Atlantic City,

New Jersey

and plans to develop this property in the future.

251,  Although PNK's parent company, Pinnacle, has been issued casino
licenses by other state and foreign agencies and these licenses are in good standing, the
PQCB did not utilize alternative licensing standards during the course of jts investigation
o;" PNKs application.

252. The following entity que;liﬁers, affiliate qualifiers and key
employee/qualifiers of PNK consented to and have underpone required background
investigations: Pinnacle, Danie] Lee, Wade Hundley, Alain Uboldi, Stephen Capp, John

Godfrey, Christopher Plant, Clifford Kortman, Sarah Tucker, John Giovenco, Michael

Ornest and Bruce Leske.,

253. The following individuals requested waivers of their obligation to be

licensed claiming they are outside directors of an affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or

holding company of PNK, are not members of the audit committee and are not

59
1396a



significantly involved-in the management or ownership of PNK: James Barich, Arthur
Goldberg, Kimberly Townsend, Humberto Trueba, Rickey Dodd, John Durham, Alice
Mui, Linda Shaffer, Paul Contesse, Larry Buck, Jack Fischer, Todd George, Joseph
Lepinski, Terry Schneider, David Williams, Richard Goeglein, James Martinean and
Lynn Reitnouer.

254. Neither PNK, nor any person or entity affiliated with PNK, is a party to
any oﬁgoing civil proceeding seeking to overturn a decision or order of the Board or the
Thoroughbred or Harness Racing Comimissions.

255.  Neither PNK, nor any of its affiliates or holding companies, possesses any
ownership or financial interest in any other slot machine licensee or person eligible to
apply for a Category 1 license, its affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or holding company.

256. Neither PNK, nor any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, intermediaries or
holding companies, hold any .interest in a supplier of manufacturer license.

o 257. No public -official is a key employee/qualifier or has any prohibited
finaneial interest in or is employed by PNK or any related entity.

258. Neither PNK, nor any of its affiliates or key employee/qualifiers, have
made any political contributions of any kind in violation of the Act.

259. PNK satisfied all local, state and federal tax obligations.

260. Investigation did not reveal that PNK or any of its affiliates, directors,
owners or key employee/qualifiers has been convicted of a felony or a gambling offense

in violation of the Act.
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261. Investigation did not revealed any information that would indicate that
PNK or any of its affiliates, directors, owners or key employee qualifiers is of unsuitable
character.

262. Information gathered during the course of investigation concerning PNK,
is parent company Pinnacle and its key employee/qualifiers did not reveal any
information concerning bankruptcies, civil lawsnits or judgments, criminal convictions,
past activities or business practices, business associates or dealing or any other
information concerning the honesty, integrity, family, habits or reputation that would
prohibit licensure of PNK,, Pinnacle or jts key employee/qualifiers.

263. PNK has no financial history. Therefore, the Financial Suitability Task
Force analyzed PNK's parent company, Pinnacle’s, historical financial performance. The
Financial Suitability Task Force and did not {ind anything financially material that would

preclude PNK from obtaining a Category 2 slot machine license,

264. Pinnacle has a diverse base of gaming and entertainment operations

throughout the United States with approximately 85% of its revenues from gaming

ac_tiw;ities: Profitability for Pinnacle has fluctuated and its revenue and adjusted EBITDA
growth have varied each year since the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000. Financial
analysis indicates a history of operating with a high-risk financial profile, an interest
coverage ratio that varied during the period studied, a leverage ratio that sugpgests a
higher risk financial profile and a liquidity ratio greater than 1.0x. Pinnacle has

demonstrated that the capital markets are reasonably comfortable with its financial

profile,
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265. PNK would have relied on finding from its parent company, Pinnacle, for
project financing. To fund the project, Pinnacle would have drawn on its existing $750
million bank credit facility.

266. The PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force projected a revenue estimate
of approximately $310.8 million annually in a stabilized year in 2005 dollars, with 2 $284
v;/in per position per day at 3,000 machines. '

267. Pinnacle projected its revenue estimates at $338.7 million annually in a
stabilized year in 2005 doMars, with a $309 win per position per day at 3,000 machines.

268. PNK’s projections were 9% greater than the estimate of the PGCB
Financial Suitability Task Force.

269. PNK indicated and investigation revealed that it had the ability to pay the
$50 million licensing fee and to post the $1 million bond required if a Category 2 slot
machine license had been granted to PNK.

270. Based upon representations by PNK and investigation by the PGCB’s
Financial Suitability Task Force, PNK was likely to maintain a financially successful,
viable and efficient business operation which would have maintained a steady level of
growth and revenue.

271. PNK had a good faith diversity plan in place. PNK stated that it was
committed to providing equal -opportunity in employment for all people and to
prohibiting discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, age, sexual orientation, marital status, AID or HIV status, non job-related

disability or veteran’s status,
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281.  PNK anticipated the project would have created 1,200 construction jobs

through Phase I and that Phases II and III would have created an additional 2,100

construction jobs.

282. PNK planned to hire its employees from the local Philadelphia
community.

283.

PNK has no business history. However, the record indicates that its parent
company, Pinnacle, has a favorable record of compliance with applicable federal, state

and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and occupational, environmental

health and safety, and labor relations and employment laws and a favorable record in

dealing with employees and their representatives,

284.  The proposed PNK site is currently zoned General Industrial which does

not permit the use contemplated by the application. The area in which PNK’s site would
have been located has not been designated by Philadelphia Ordinance as a “Commercial
Entertainment District” area (Philadelphia Code § 14-401 et. seq.). Under the ordinance,
the City Council has authority to rezone the proposed PNK site to the new district upon
recommendation of the City 'Planning Commission. Once rezoned pursuant to the
Ordinance, the use contemplated by PNK would have been permissible.

285. PNK owned some, but not all, of the riparian rights along the riverfront of

the proposed site.

286. PNK’s proposed site was located with a few miles of Chinatown, Center

City Philadelphia and downtown hotels, restaurants and bars.

287.  PNK asserted that Interstate 95 created a buffer between the proposed site

and the adjacent neighborhood, with the residential areas of the Fishtown community on
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the westerly side of Interstate 95 and the proposed project site on the easterly side.
Interstate 95 in that area is an elevated highway, permitting access to the site from
neighborhoods under the elevated highway and providing somewhat less of a barrier than
at other sites.

283. PNK submitted a traffic study to the Board which was reviewed by
Edwards and Kelcey,

289. PNK’s traffic impact report showed that 80% of the patrons would have
accessed and departed the site via Interstate 95,

290. A planned interchange project, the Girard Avenue Interchange project, is
scheduled for completion in 2012, which would allow enhanced access to both Girard
Avenue and Delaware Avenue in the vicinity of the proposed PNK. project.

291. PNK’s traffic study proposed. to alleviate delays associated with the

- development of its project by signal timing -and coordination adjustments, roadway
widening at select locz;tions and traffic signal installations at three locations along
Richmond Street, ]E)yott Street and Cumberland Street at Girard Avenue.

292, Review of the plan by Edwards and Kelsey of PNK’s traffic impact study
found that because PNK’s study did not adequately address the additional traffic in that
three-year window between the Phase I casino opening and the completion of the Girard
Avenue interchange in 2012, additional mitigation measures needed to be identified and
more fully evaluated by PNK. Edwards and Kelsey further recommended a ten year
projection and analysis be completed of the increased traffic to ensure acceptable

conditions in the future.
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293. PNK’s proposed site was located near public bus transportation with a

trolley line running close by.

294. Pinnacle has a history of supporting its host communities and stated it

planned to do the same in Philadelphia. Through its other properties, Pinnacle stated that
it has made numerous donations and sponsored events to generate funds to support its
host communities and made $1.5 million in charitable contributions in 2005.

295.  Although PNK had discussions with local neighborhood groups, neither
PNK nor its parent, Pinnacle, made any binding promises of support or commitments of
any funding to any public or private entity related to licensure. Instead, the applicant
would wait until opened and profitable before making any commitments.

RIVERWALK CASINO, LP CRIVERWALK™)

296. Riverwalk’s proposed project would have been located along the
Delaware River on approximately eleven and one half (1134) acres or 500,000 square feet

of space that was formerly the old incinerator site and was comprised of Piers 28 N,27%

N and 31-34.

297.  The project proposed one phase of construction which included a casino,

restaurants, lounges, retail space, a parking garage and an entertainment venue,

298. At the Public Input Hearing thirty-two (32) individuals testified. Two (2)

state legislators testified with one supporting the project and one taking a neutral position.
Three (3) local officials testified with one supporting the project and two taking neutral
positions,

Fifteen (15) representatives of community groups testified with seven @

supporting the project, two (20) in opposition and six (6) with neutral comments. Twelve
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(12) individuals testified with seven (7) supporting the project, two (2) in opposition and
three (3) who expressed they needed more time to form an opinion.

299. Written comments were also received by the PGCB by the Tune 2, 2006,
deadline specific to the Riverwalk project. Ten (10) comments were received with one
(1) supporting the project and nine (9) opposing the project.

300. Those speaking or providing written comaments in support cited reasons
such as the casino being good for the economy by creating jobs, revenue and related tax
relief and that it would add an element of entertainment to the city.

301. Those speaking or providing written comments in opposition cites reasons
such as traffic congestion: and parking issues, increased public safety issues; that the
project is too small and did not allow for a buffer to the surrounding area and a decrease
in property values..

302. On November 13, 2006, the PGCB conducted a public suitability hearing
f9r the purpose of hearing additional testimony and evidence from Riverwalk concerning
its application and proposed project and its eligibility and suitability for licensure
i)ursuant to <the Act. The hearing was continued into and concluded on December 4,
2006.

303. In addition to the public hearings, substantial time reviewing, analyzing
and investigating the applications and various submissions was expended by the PGCB’s
Bureau of Licensing in processing and reviewing Riverwalk’s application, the Bureau of
Investigations and Enforcement investigating Riverwalk, its affiliates and key

employee/qualifiers and the Bureau of Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls,
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along with the Financial Suitability Task Force. investigating the financial suitability of

Riverwalk,

304. The application for a Category 2 license filed by Riverwalk is complete,
all fees and costs which have been billed to Riverwalk have been paid as required, all
required bonds and/or letters of credit were posted and Riverwalk and its affiliated parties
consented to and have undergone background investigations as required by the Act.

305. Riverwalk is a Pennsylvania limited partnership that was formed on
October 28, 2005, for the purpose of acquiring a Category 2 slot machine license and
developing, owning and operating the Riverwalk Casino project,

306. Riverwalk is owned 1% by Riverwalk Casino GP, LLC, as its general
partner and 99% by PA. Financing LP, as its limited partner.

307. Riverwalk Casino GP, LLC, is owned 51% by the Pennsylvania
Partnership Group, LP and 49% by BHM Gaming Opporhunities, Ltd,

. 308. PA Financing LP is owned 50.49% by the Pennsylvania Partnership
Group, LP and 23.50 % by BHM Gaming Opportunities, LTD, a joint venture controlled
by Robert Earl and Douglas Teitelbaum with the remaining interest ir; PA Financing LP
owned by PA HoldCo, LLC (12%), Plainfield Gaming, Inc. (6%), BH Casino and
Hospitality, LLC (3.150%), York Select, LP (1.125%), C. Patrick McKoy (1.01%), York
Capital Management, LP (,975%), Scoggin Capital Management, LP II (.75%) and
Riverwalk Casino GP, LLC (1%).

309. The Pennsylvania Partnership Group, LP is owned 1% by the

Pennsylvania Partnership Group, LLC as its general pariner and 99% by Individual PPG

Investors. These same investors are the 100% owner of the Pennsylvania Partnership
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Group, LEC. These investors are individuals from the Philadelphia area and include:
William Anderson, Bany Crawford, Obra Kernodle Family Trust, Whytni Kemodle-
Frederick, Walter Lomax, Bennet Lomax, Charles Lomax, Willie Johnson, Frank Canty,
the CSR Irrevocable Trust, Thomas Leonard, Thomas Y.eonard Irrevocable Trust, Lisa
Rodriguez, Ira Richards, Asux}cion _Muno_z, Pennis Cook, Johr} Tigton, PPG Partners’
Blind Trust, Adam Kamens-profits, Adam Kamens-capital, Robert Bogle, Bruce
Crawley, Perry Blackman-profits, Perry Blackman-capital, Joel Trigliani-profits, Joel
Trigliani-capital, Charles Greene, Jerome Mondesire, Sunah Park and Timothy-
Woodward.

- 310. Control of Riverwalk would be through its general partmer, Riverwalk GP
and control of Riverwalk GP would have rested with a Board of Managers comprised of
three (3) appointees of the Pennsylvania Partnership Group and two (2) appointees from
BHM - Gaming Opportunities. Had a license been awarded the Board would have
gxpanded to include one (1) member-from Plainfield Gaming. The Pennsylvania
Partnership Group would have had six (6) votes, BHM Gaming would have had four {4)
votes and Plainficld Gaming would have had one (1) vote for a total of eleven (11) votes.

311. Some decisions concerning Riverwalk required a “super-majority” consent
of the Board of Managers. However, daily operations of Riverwalk were controlled by an
Executive Committee which was controlled by BHM Gaming Opportunities.

312. The PGCB did not utilize alternative licensing standards during the course
of its investigation of Riverwalk’s application.

313. The following entity qualifiers, affiliate qualifiers and key

employee/qualifiers of Riverwalk consented to and have undergone required background
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investigations: PA Financing, LP, Riverwalk Casino, GP, LLC, the Pennsylvania
Partnership Group, LP, the Pennsylvania Partnership Group, LLC, BHM, Gaming
Opportunities, Ltd., BHM Gaming Opportunities GP, LLC, BH Casino and Hospitality,
LLC, RIE, Ltd., RIE, LLC, PPG Partners’ Blind Trust, Plainfield Gaming, Inc., PA
HoldCo, LLC, Plainfield Direct, LLC, Dennis Cook, William Miller, IV, Kenneth
Trujillo, Leslie Levi, Joseph Bencivenga, Ronald Johnson, Howard Trauger, John Tipton,

Samuel Staten, Sr., Cyril McKoy, Douglas Teitelbaurs, Robert Earl, Willie Johnson,

Achim Holmes, Bernard Smalley, Sr., Herman Wooden, Mary Lawton, Joseph Ashdale,

York Capital Management, LP, York Select, LP and Scoggin Capital Management, LP I1.

314.  The following entity requested a waiver of it obligation to be licensed

claiming it is an outside director of an affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or holding

company of Riverwalk, is not a member of the audit committee and is not significantly

involved in the management or ownership of Riverwalk: Penn’s Landing Corporation.

315.  Rene Amoore filed a key employee/qualifier application but subsequently

requested to withdraw her application. The withdrawal was approved by the PGCB.

316. Neither Riverwalk, nor any person affiliated with Riverwalk, is a party to

any ongoing civil proceeding seeking to overturn a decision or order of the PGCB or the
Thoroughbred or Hamess Racing Commissions.

317. Riverwalk does not possess any ownership or financial interest in any

other slot machine licensee or person cligible to apply for a Category 1 license, its
affiliate, intermediary, subsidiary or holding company.

318. Neither Riverwalk, nor any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, intermediaries or

holding companies, hold any interest in a supplier or manufacturer license.
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319. No public official is a key employee/qualifier or has any prohibited
financial interest in, or is employed by Riverwalk or any related entity.

320. Two of Riverwalk’s key employee/qualifiers, Joseph Ashdale and Samuel
Staten, Sr., made political contributions that were in apparent violation of the Act.
However, the PGCB and these two individuals entered into a consent decree with regard
to these violations. The consent decree required the individuals to retrieve the
contributions made and pay fines set by the PGCB and for Riverwalk to pay a fine with
regard to the violations.

321.  Further investigation did not réveal any other political contributions made
by Riverwalk or any of its'key employee/qualifiers that were in violation of the Act.

322. Riverwalk satisfied all local, state and federal tax obligations.

323. - Investipation did mot reveal that Riverwalk or any of its affiliates,
directors, owners or key employee/qualifiers have been convicted of a felony or gambling
offense in violation of the Act.

324. Investigation did not reveal any information that would indicate that
Riverwalk or any of its affiliates, dire.ctors, owners or key employee/qualifiers is of
unsuitable character.

325. Information gathered during the course of BIE’s iﬁvaﬁgaﬁon concerning
Riverwalk and its key employee/qualifiers did not reveal any information concemning
bankruptcies’, civil lawsuits or judgments, criminal convictions, past activities or

business practices, business associates or dealings, or any other information concerning

7 Evidence was provided concerning the I;ankruptcy of Planet Hollywood, an entity whose CEO has an
ownership interest in the Riverwalk project. That matter does not disqualify the applicant from
consideration
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the honesty, integrity, family, habits or reputation that- would prohibit licensure of
Riverwalk or its key employee/qualifiers.

326. Riverwalk was a newly formed entity with no business history. Therefore,

the PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force performed an evaluation of Riverwallk’s

financial fitness and suitability by examining its key employee/qualifiers, its financial

wherewithal for developing the proposed gaming facility and the ultimate sources of the
funding to develop the project and did not find anything financially material that would

preclude Riverwalk from obtaining a Category 2 slot machine license.

327. On November 13, 2006, the PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force
projected a revenue estimate for Riverwalk of approximately $418.5 million annually in a
stabilized year in 2005 dolars, with a $229 win per position per day at 5,000 machines,

328. Riverwalk provided to the Task Force projections of its revenues estimated
at $378.1 million annually in a stabilizeg year in 2005 dollars, with a $207 win per
ppsition per day at 5,000 machines.

- 329. Riverwalk’s estimate was 9.6% less than the estimate of the PGCB
Financial Suitability Task Force.

330. Riverwalk indicated and investigation revealed that it had the ability to

pay the $50 million licensing fee and to post the $1 miilion bond required if a Category 2
slot machine license had been issued to Riverwalk.

331. Based upon the representations by Riverwalk and investigation by the

PGCB Financial Suitability Task Force, Riverwalk was likely to maintain a financially

successful, viable and efficient business operation which would maintain a steady level of

growth and revenue,
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332. Riverwalk had a good faith diversity plan in place. Riverwalk’s diversi‘tuy
statement provided for equal employment oppertunity for all persons without regard to
race, creed, color, religion, gender, age, sex, sexual orientation, AIDS or HIV status,
national origin, veteran status, marital status, disability related to childbirth or pregnancy,
non job-related disability, citizenship status or status with regard to public assistance.

333. Riverwalk was in the process of developing its diversity plan with local
area community leaders and diversity consultants and it hosted several Town Hall
meetings to discuss issues relating to diversity with-local residents.

334, Riverwalk had submitted a Compulsive and Problem Gaming Plan with its
application, but the plan réquired amendment as it did not fully address all the criteria for
development, employee training items, self-exclusion training and underage gambling. .
In addition, the plan did not express any intent on the part of Riverwalk to comply with
the Act’s signage requirements. The status of this plan does not exclude a finding of .
e}igibjﬁty and suitability at this time.

335. Riverwalk’s site was to be located along the D'elawa_re River, on Delaware
Avenue at the terminus of Spring Garden Street and near the Vine Street Expressway
(Interstate.676) and the Ben Franklin Bridge.

336. Riverwalk had an option to sublease the property for the proposed site
from Penn’s Landing Corporation.

337. It is not clear if Riverwalk, through the sublease from Penn’s Landing,
possessed the necessary riparian rights for the project,

338. Riverwalk planned two (2) phases of the project with an estimated cost of

$500 million. The plan did not include a temporary casino facility.
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339. The first phase of the project included a gaming floor with 3,000 slot
machines. The second phase of the project included the addition of 2,000 slot machines.

Riverwalk was committed to building and financing both phases of the project at an

approximate cost of $ 495 million,

340.  The total project also included a 400 seat entertainment venue, a television

and radio studio, six (6) restaurants with siver views including a food court, coffee shop

and mix of causal dining cateries, two (2)'lounges and a nighiclub, retail space and over

3,500 parking spaces. A river promenade was to extend all the around the outside of the

property,

341, Riverwalk’s design plan was compliant with the City of Philadelphia’s
ordinance creating a “Commercial Entertainment District” which, among other things,
permits licensed gaming facilities.

342.  Riverwalk estimated that jts project would provide approximately 1,000

quality, living wage casino jobs.
343. Riverwalk estimated that its construction project would provide
approximately 500 temporary construction jobs.

344.  Riverwalk was a newly formed company with no business history.

However, no negative history was found with regard to records of compliance with

applicable federal, state and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and

occupational, environmental health and safety, and labor relations and employment laws,

or dealings with employees and their representatives with regard to any individual

involved in the project. In addition, there was previous experience by BHM Gaming

Opportunities with the union UNITE HERE.
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345. Riverwalk had entered into a management agreement with BHM Gaming
Opportunities, Ltd. (“BHM Gaming™) for the development and operation of the
Riverwalk Casino project for- which BHM Gaming would have been entitled to 5% of
gross project receipts plus lp% or EBITDA over established EBITDA targets. The
PGCB would have had to approve this agreement.

346. BHM Gaming is a joint venture controlled by Robert Earl and Douglas
Teitelbaum. These two individuals are co-chairmen of Planet Hollywood Resort and
Casino in Las Vegas, Nevada, formerly known as the Aladdin Hotel and Casino.

347. Neither Riverwalk, nor any of its affiliates, own any casino properties in
Atlantic City, New Jersey.

348. In December 2005, Riverwalk submitted a traffic study which included a
four (4) intersection study area. The study identified two key peak traffic hours, one
during a weekday afternoon and the second on a Saturday aftemoon. The study
estimated new trip generations from the casino project to be 1,430 cars during the
weekday peak hour and just over 1,900 cars during the Saturday peak hour. The study
anticipated that seventy percent (70%) of the vehicles would use the Interstates for access
to the casino site.

349, Traffic mitigation identified in the study included adjusting signal timing
and coordination at key locations along Delaware Av‘enue, specifically at Spring Garden
Street, installation of additional turning lanes at intersections to increase the capacity of
the intersections and the installation of a new traffic signal at an intersection.

350. Riverwalk’s proposed site was also accessible by public transportation.
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351. Edwards and Kelcey reviewed this initial traffic study and concluded that

the scope of the study area was too limited and should have included all intersections

between the site and the interstate access points and that a ten year projected analysis

should be performed,

352.  Riverwalk responded stating that it was committed to mitigation of traffic

and would find al] necessary infrastructure improvements, and that it also planned to hjre
a traffic coordinator when the casino was opened,

353. Riverwalk had a binding commitment to fund costs of traffic mitigation,

emergency medical services and police projection through a special services district

agreement, which was a requirement of their lease with Penn’s Landing Corporation.

354.  Riverwalk also committed to funding $2 million of fine arts improvements

in conjunctioxi with approvals from the Philadelphia Arts Commission,

7 ;
1414a ;

e

I



CONCLUSIOﬁS OF LAW AND COMPARATIVE DISCUSSION

The decision as to which two of the five eligible and suitable proposals would
receive the awé::d of the two Category 2 slot machine operator licenses in Philadelphia
was a very difficult one calling for the Board to weigh five competitive, yet unique and
different proposals to determine which two the Board, in its sole discretion, believed to
be the best fit for the Commonwealth and the public in light of the various factors which
may be taken into consideration under the Act. If the Board’s decision was; imamised on
an objective formula or defined scoring system such as one based only on the revenue fo
the Commonwealth to support property tax relief or on the number of slot machines or
the number of projected visitors, the analysis of the Board in reaching its decision would
be much more simplistic. But that is not the case or the task assigned to the Board under
the Act. The Act embodies multiple objectives to be considered by the Board, including
the ‘protection of the public through regulating and policing all activities involving

-gaming, enhancing entertainment and employment in the Commonwealth, providing a

" significant source of income to the Commonwealth for tax relief, providing broad

economic opportunities to Pennsylvania’s citizens, developing tourism, strictly
‘monitoring licensing of specified locations, persons, associations, practices, activities,
licensees and permitiees, considering the public interest of the citizens of the
Commonwealth and the social effects of gaming when rendering decisions and
maintaining 'the integrity of the regulatory control of facilities. 4 Pa.C.S. §1102.

In addition, the General Assembly specifically indicated its intent and goal that
the Board promote and ensure diversity in all aspects of the gaming activities authorized

under the Act. 4 Pa.C.S. §1212(a). The Board also believes this to be an important goal
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to be implemented and encouraged in the gaming industry for the benefit of all citizens
and fully intepds to assure that diversity of representation is enhanced in accordance with
the Act. Accordingly, the Board also looks to the factors of the representation of diverse
groups in the ownership, participation and operation of an applicant for a license as

provided for in Sections 1212, 1325(b) and 1325(c)(3) of the Act when evaluating the

applicants for licensure.

As we have set forth above, in weighing the evidence presented to the Board with
respect to these objectives and to determine which applicants should be approved for

licensure, Section 1325 of the Act provides that the Board may consider factors

including:

* the location and quality of the proposed facility, including, but not limited to,

road and transit access, parking and centrality to market service area, Section
1325 (e)(1);

= the potential for new job creation and economic development which will result
from granting a license to an applicant, Section 1325 (c)(2);

* the applicant's good faith plan to recruit, train and upgrade diversity in all
employment classifications.in the facility, Section 1325 (c)(3);

* the applicant's good faith plan for enhancing the representation of diverse
groups in the operation of its facility through the ownership and operation of
business enterprises associated with or utilized by its, facility or through the
provision of goods or services utilized by its facility and through the
participation in the ownership of the applicant, Section 1325 (c)(4);

» the applicant's pood-faith effort to assure that all persons are accorded equality
of opportunity in employment and contracting by it and any contractors,

subcontractors, assignees, lessees, agents, vendors and suppliers it may employ
directly or indirectly, Section 1325 (c)(5);

* the history and success of the applicant in developing tourism facilities ancillary
to gaming development if applicable to the applicant, Section 1325 {c)(6);

» the degree to which the applicant presents a plan for the project which will
likely lead to the creation of quality, living-wage jobs and full-time penmanent
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Jobs for residents of this Commonwealth generally and for residents of the host
political subdivision in particular, Section 1325 (c)(7);

» the record of the applicant and its developer in meeting commitments to local
apencies, corumunity-based organizations and employees in other locations,
Section 1325 (c)(8);

» the degree to which potential adverse effects which might result from the
praject, including costs of meeting the increased demand for public health care,
-child care, public transportation, affordable housing and social services, will be
mitigated, Section 1325 (c)(9);

- the record of the applicant and its developer regarding compliance with Federal,
State and local discrimination, wage and hour, disability and occupational and
environmental health and safety laws; and State and local labor relations and
employment laws, Section 1325 {(c)(10); and

+ the applicant's record in dealing with its employees and their representatives at
other locations, Section 1325 (c)(11).

Thus, the Act calls for the Board to consider evidence and give weight to factors
as it, solely in the exercise of its discretion, finds to be in the furtherance of the Act’s
objectives based upon all of the evidence in the evi;ientiary record before the Board. It
is upon this basis that the Board approves and denies the license applications now before
it.

After reviewing the entire evidentiary record for each of the five (5) applicants,
the Board has determined that HSP, Sugarhouse and Philadelphia Entertainment and
Development Partners, Foxwoods, represent the best fit following a complete review of
all applicants for Category 2 licensure in the City of Philadelphia. In reaching this
conclusion, the Board has examined and weighed the various factors cited above.
However, there were several factors that, in the Board’s opinion, made HSP and

Philadelphia Entertainment’s projects stand out above the remaining applicants.
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First, both HSP and Philadelphia Entertainment are located on the riverfront and

have excellent design plans for their facilitjes, Neither have riparian rights issues

because if they are not successful in securing riparian rights®, they both have altemate
plans to bu:ld quality facilities without the need for these rights. The synergy provided
by the riverfront locations and the proximity to Center City and the downtown
Philadelphia area were positive factors,

Second, the location of each facility, as it relates to the other, creates the most

advantageous locations, Both locations are largely separated from primary residential
areas by Interstate 95 and it is anticipated that a significant amount of the patrons coming
to the casinos will use Interstate 95 to access the sites, In addition, siting one locatlon on
the North Delaware Avenne corridor and the other location farther south and below the
Ben Franklin Bridge, will spread out the patron traffic and avoid the traffic congestion

that havmg two sites located close together would invariable bring to Phlladelplua

Additionally, HSP has the least community opposition voiced to the Board

conceming its proposed project, HSP plans to have an interim facility that will be in

operation within twelve (12) months of licensure, its partners have expenence in the

gaming industry, and HSP has made a significant commijtment to the community.

Philadelphia Entertainment has a strong partner in Foxwoods, an investment grade
business with years of experience in the gaming industry, in has diversity in its

ownership and at least forty-two percent (42%) of the profits will flow to imevocable

charitable trusts to be used for charitable purposes in the Philadelphia area. Finally,

* The Board reco

gnizes that similar questions regarding riparian rights existed for the other river front
applicants,
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neither HSP nor Philadelphia Entertainment has ties to any casino properties in Atlantic
City, New Jersey which could provide competition to lure customers to another site.

While all the factors set forth in the Act were examined and considered by the
Board when reaching its decision to award HSP and Philadelphia Entertainment the
available slot machine hcenscs these were factors wh:ch made these two pro_]ects stand
out in the crowd. -The followmg discussion sets forth a .more detailed analysis of these
factors and the weight given the evidence relating to the factors by the Board.

A. Location and Traffic

Location

The Philadelphia éxiojects present five casino projects in three general locations:
4] HSP}Sugarhouse, Pinnacle/PNK and Riverwalk, located East of Route 95, north of
the Benjamin Franklin Bridge, and between North Columbus Blvd/North Delaware
Avenue and the Delaware River (referred to as the “North Delaware Avenue” location);
(2) Philadelphia Entertainment DeveIOphmént Partners’ Foxwoods® site, located East of
Route 95 between South Columbus Boulevard and the Delaware River in South
Philadelphia (referred to as the “Foxwoods” location); and (3) Keystone Redevelopment
Partners” TrumpStreet site located in North Philadelphia East of the Schuylkill River and
just off Route 1 (referred to as the “TrumpStreet” location). Each of the three locations
bring with it perceived advantages and disadvantages; as testified to at length by each of
the applicants during the final licensing hearings. The Board has considered the
locations not as dispositive, but as influential, and as one of the many factors in its
review of the projects, along with how that location may affect other criteria examined

and considered.
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Because there are three general ocations, two of which are along the Delaware

River, it is clear that at least one of the two casinos must be located along the River. In

the Board’s view, if the Board approved one of the North Delaware Avenue locations for

a license, then the Board is constrained to eliminate the other two locations in the same

general vicinity for reasons of traffic Mmanagement as discussed below. In essence, while

credible testiniony was presented to establish that additional traffic associated with one

casino along North Delaware Avenue could be adequately managed through mitigation
and road improvement measures, the Board has not been presented with sufficient,

credible evidence to permit the Board to find that the increased traffic associated with

two casinos in the same general area counld be adequately managed along the North
Delaware Avenue corridor. Further, the distance between these sites is such that walking

between them is not feasible. Therefore, additional traffic would be generated by patrons

desiring to visit both. Accordingly, the Board finds that only one casino can be sited in

the North Delaware Avenue area.

Subject to this limiti.ng conclusion, the Board finds the North Delaware Avenue
corridor and the Foxwoods location in South Philadelphia to be desirable locations for
casino development. Both locations have significant advantages in that they are largely

separated from primary residential areas by Interstate 95 and therefore should not have

significant impacts on larger residential areas® It also is anticipated that a significant

amount of traffic to these locations will arrive via Interstate 95, providing just a short

drive from the interstate to the casino properties.

? The Board notes that Interstate 95 in the area of the Ping

acle project is an elevated roadway and therefore
does not provide a buffer to the neighborhoods to the ext

cnt it does in other areas,
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Also significant in the Board’s opinion and to its decision is the Delaware River
which flows past these two locations. The River-view properties provide an exciting yet
tranquil setting for the building of a2 new industry in Pennsylvania, providing
opportunities for the development along the river-front not only of casinos, but also of
hptels with associated amenities which will spur other riverfront economic development.
Further, as -several proposals have demonstrated, the River can actually be incorporated
into the proposals creating a synergy between the Delaware River, the waterfront
properties and the City. Finally, the riverfront locations are each located to take
advantage of their access to center-city Philadelphia, the convention center, hoteis and
other existing Philadelphia business and attractions in a way that provides easy access io
a host of visitors and tourists for entertainment while staying in Philadelphia.

The location of Keystone’s ;I‘rump Street proposal brings with it many questions
related to the potential success of the operation.  Located in an older,

residential/commercial mixed use area of North Philadelphia and sandwiched between

the Tioga, South West Germantown, Allegheny West and East Falls neighborhoods, and

near areas economically depressed with decaying infrastructure and residential
properties, Keystoné’s Trump Street proposal champions the location as one which can
invigorate a depressed neighborhood bringing needed jobs and redevelopment. The
Board sees this as a Field of Dreams scenario of “if you build it, they will come.”
Trump Street offers that if the casino is built, patrons will flock to the Trump Street
casino with the effect of bringing millions of dollars which in turn will provide jobs to
neighborhood residents who will spend their money to upgrade their neighborhoods and

give reason for commercial business to reenter those same nejghborhoods. The Board
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does not find that the evidence supports this contention. The Board finds that Tromp
Street has not met its burden in demonstrating the project will support the €conomic
stimulus suggested as the Board is not convinced by the evidence presented that all of
that speculative redevelopment activity and benefit would occur as envisioned.

The Trump Street location algo lacks a feature of the waterfront properties which
the Board finds to be important to the siting of the HSP and Foxwoods casinos along the

river front. The Board has found that the river front properties create a synergy between

the Delaware River, the waterfront properties and their access to center-city Philadelphia  *

and the other attractions located there. The Trump Street location, unlike those of HSP
and Foxwoods, is lacking a similar synergy with the existing Philadelphia tourist and
business and restaurant opportunities which are tried and proven draws for the City.
Further, the Board finds the building of a casino at the Trump Street location
raises concems in terms of the effects on the surrounding residential areas. That location
is sun‘ounded on all sides by residential areas which will bear some degree of the traffic
assocmtcd from the casino as patrons traverse the various streets and highways to arrive
at the site. In short, while the Board recognizes that this project brings with it hope for
revitalization and jobs to that area, the Board also recognizes its duty to the
Commonweaith as a whole in bringing casino sites to frujtion which have the best
chance for long-term success, economic development and other associated benefits and
snmply Is not convinced that the Keystone Trump Street site is one of the best sites

among those available to accomplish these goals.
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Traffic

The PGCB finds, based upon the record evidence, that traffic is a concern at all
three general Jocations and with respect to all five properties. Traffic congestion is
detrimental to a proposed casino since patrons may not attend the casino if access is
difficult or results in substantial delays in arriving at the casino. Likewise, siéniﬁcant
additional traffic congestion does not serve the public interest of those living in
surrounding neighborhoods and commut'ers who‘use the surrounding road network for
daily non-gaming uses.

i North Delaware Avenue trafiic

With respect to. all three proposals foi the North Delaware Avenue area, the
Board finds based upon the evidence presented that a number of traffic issues have been
identified and a number of traffic mitigation measures proposed. The Board finds
credible the evidence of Edwards & Kelcey that further analysis of this area should be
conducted in order to achieve satisfactory traffic mitigation plans and also finds that
traffic mitigatitﬁ efforts can alleviate additional traffic in this area to accommodate
increased traffic. It l:s incumbent upon the Boaid to insist that such measures be
addressed through conditions to the license.

In addition, traffic management in tlie North Delaware Avenue arca will rely, in
part, on the planned Girard Avenue interchange imprdvement which is anticipated to be
completed in the year 2012. The Girard Avenue Interchange will link Interstate 95
directly to Delaware Avenue and absorb a significant amount of casino traffic in this
area. The Board acknowledges that the applicants all proposed opening a casino piior to

the completion of that date and, therefore, there will be period of time in which traffic in
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this area may be detoured o inconvenienced due to the construction. However, the
Board finds that based upon the evidence, the projections of traffic and the projected
opening dates of the final Phases of the casino projects which will generate the largest
pairon visits, the Girard Avenue interchange when completed will provide another route
for traffic exiting Interstate 95 to the North Delaware Avenue area, will assist in
channeling traffic int(-) the casino and will assist as a long-term éolutfén to

mitigate traffic

congestion otherwise associated with the casino,

As stated with respect to the locus decision of th;e Board, the Board is very
concerned abont the prospect of siting two casinos in the North Delaware Avenue region
because of detrimental effects of traffic as well as the impact that locating two casinos jn
close proximity would haye on one neighborhood, Trip generation data provided by the
applicants indicates that about 1615 to 1865 additional vehicles per hour during the

projected peak hours would be expected in this area upon build-out of phase 1 of the

casinos with 3,000 slot machines.'

® Of course, an increase to 5,000 machines and more
amenities will increase the trip generation data, While the Board has no doubt, based
upon the evidence presented, that this area can,absorb the increased traffic associated

with one casino project, the Board has not received evidence satisfying it that this same

area can currently, or with the currently-proposed mitigation measures, absorb the impact

of additional traffic from two casinos which would create approximately 3230 to 3730

additional vehicle trips per peak hour plus potentially more with further build-outs,

" The trip generation estimates, which the Board finds credible and

from the traffic studies submitted by applicants HSP and PNK to the
website for public access,

relatively consistent were obtained
PGCB and placed on the Board's
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To take any other position and site two casinos in the same location would not be
consistent with giving due concem to the public interest in this matter.

In addition, the evidence presented by the applicants leads to another traffic
related issne. The three-proposals, although each in the same gencral area, are far
enough apart that patrons could not easily walk from one to another, Therefore, if two
licenses were grantéci to the North Delaware Avenue location, a patron ;>f one would
likely have to drive to the other casino should that patron desire to visit both in one
outing — thereby adding additional traffic between those facilities in a limited area.

ii.  Foxwoods site traffic .

The Board finds credible the testimony and report of Edwards & Kelcey that
most of the traffic issnes identified as of November 1, 2006 have been addressed
systematically and thoroughly. Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods has committed to
address any remaining issues upon licensing through continued work with PennDOT and
t!le City of Philadelphia. The Board finds crédible the evidence produced by the
re-:spective traffic engineers that traffic in the Foxwoods area can be successfully
m_itigz-ate(i not-oniy for the benefit of Foxwoods’ patrons, but for the benefit of the
surrounding community.

The Board recognizes the concerns of the South Philadelphia community related
to increases in traffic associated with the Foxwoods project. However, as stated, the
Board. believes that the Interstate 95 buffer and access to the site along with the
mitigation measures proposed will assist in alleviating current congestion. The Board
was presented with credible testimony frox.r‘l Edwards & Kelcey engineer Cunningham

that the mitigation measures proposed adequately address traffic and that “upon
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completion of the mitigation measures that have been identified in their study, that we

will not see an increase in the amount of delay in and around the roadway network in the

study area.”” See Philadelphia Entertainment’s fina} licensing hearing transcript

(11/14/06) at p, 17. The Board has not been presented with evidence which it finds
Supports a contention that the traffic situation operating under remedial mitigation
measures will overburden or cauge significant concems for the area,

ili.  Trump Street site traffic

As demonstrated in the November 1, 2006, report of Edwards & Kelcey, most of

the traffic issues surrounding the Trump Street location that can be addressed have been

addressed systematically and thoroughly, While there are no traffic issues with this

proposal in terms of whether casino traffic can be managed from Route 1 and at the

Trump Street site, Trump Street’s location bordering and near residentia} neighborhoods,

however, raises another traffic issue of concern to the Board. Specifi icaily, as has been a

concemn of the public about this project, the Board is concerned about the effect traffic

wnl] have on the bordering residential neighborhood areas including further traffic

congestion through a number of local intersections surrounding the proposed facility.
The Board finds it significant that the Trump Street location does not have a large buffer
from residential areas like the riverfront areas which have Interstate 95 nunning between
the casino project sites and major residential neighborhoods. The Board finds credible
evidence that various residential streets will be used to travel from other points in
Philadelphia to the Trump Street site and that the increase in traffic from a casino would

likely cause detrimental affects to the surrounding neighborhood in this respect,
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It would be disingenuous to say that traffic associate(i with the casinos will have
no impact on the sumrounding aréas and the Board does not suggest such. However,
while every project would increase traffic in the vicinity of the casinos as a natural by-
product of the patron-driven business, the Board finds based upon all of the evidence that
the impact can best be managed and mitigated at the two Delaware River sites, which
each have Interstate 95 as a buffer between the casino’s and major residential areas.
While we also believe that the Trump Street site could affect mitigation measures, the
presence of additional residential traffic in that area still raises serious concerns in the
Board’s view of the Trump Street site.

B. Quality of the Facility

All five proposals for casinos and related-use facilities represent state-of-the-art
architectural designs, all of which have their own unique nuances. Each project is
phased into production with. initial phases to gain operational status and income while
work is expanded at the sites to build the permanent facilities. Even the permanent
facilities have additions to-come later depending on market conditions. While tl?e P_:oardn
is cognizant that all phases of development are not committed to and that later phases of
the projects are market dependent, the Board looks to the overall proposals in this section
as reflective of the quality of the facilities.

HSP/Sugarhouse provides a vibrant complex on a 22 acre peninsula extending
into tlie Delaware River with a phased development including a proposed 500 foom hotel
and spa, event center, 4,250 parking spaces, 5,000 slot machines, a marina, water

fountains, riverside sculpture garden and side-perimeter access for the public to the

Delaware River. With entrances both off Delaware Avenue and from the river marina,
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the HSP proposal takes full advantage of the Delaware River frontage to present a first
class facility which would insti]l pride in any city.

Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods’ project located on a 16 acre parcel of
property includes the phased development of 5,000 slot machines, a 500 room hote} and
spa, condominiums, a 2,500 seat theater, 6,000 parking spaces and amenities. Like other
riverfront projects, Foxwoods incorporates the riverfront and an entertainment complex
built over Pier 60 which includes Wwater-taxi access and day-use docks. The entrance
from Columbus Bonlevard presents a modem yet somewhat subdued appearance.
However, the facility comes to life upon entering and the casino, located in the rear of
the facility, is transformed into a bright, active entertainment destination.

Keystone’s Trump Street project that would have been built on a 30.1 acre site
which formerly, in part, was home of the Budd Manufacturing Company which
manufactured the Zephyr Rail Cars, presents a modermn upscale design of the former
industral site with rounded comers: glass and a spiraling tower jutting skyward and
fe::-ttuxing 5,000 stot machines through 3 phases, a hotel and special events and
performance center, a 3 screen cinema, restaurants, bars and }etail shops.

The PNK casino promotes itself as connecting the community to the Delaware
River and does just that, The casino project to be situated on a 33 acre parcel has the
riverfront as its focus as the riverside of the structure forms a semi-circular form
surrounding a large manmade pond which appears as a river inlet but actually is a
separate body of water which turns into an ice-skating rink in the winter and a dramatic
water fountain and reflecting pool in the summer. The entire project through 3 phases

includes up to 5,000 slot machines, restaurants, bars and entertainment centers, a 12 to
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14 screen theater, 5,000 parking spaces and significant retail space. In addition, a 500
room hotel tower and a residential/commercial tower is incorporated into the master
plan. Access to the casino is also available through a small marina built on the PNK site
along the Delaware River. -

The Riverwalk project provideés a clean classic stone and glass three level
structure with a seven-story parking garage, and river promenade to the sides and rear of
the property providing public walking access to the Delaware River. The architectural
design provides ample views of the river, the surrounding walkway andlthe nearby
Benjamin Franklin Bridge from the restaurant and terrace dining areas, as well as a 400
seat entertainment venue, retail shops and a television studio, Through all phaseé, the
structure will accommodate up to 5,000 slot machines with first class finishing touches.
The size of the Riverwalk parcel of property presents an area of concetn for the Board.
At just 11.5 acres, the Riverwalk site is the smallest property for casino developxﬂent in
Philadelphia and provides for a comparatively very compact project. In terms of
potential and flexibility for development, Riverwalk’s restricted area provides the least
advantageous property for consideration in the Board’s view.

Additionally, the Board finds that one very desirable quality of the riverfront
properties js direct access to and from the Delaware River which promotes a synergy
between the Delaware River and the City waterfront properties. Direct access from
Delaware River is incorporated into the projects of PNK, HSP/Sugarhouse and
Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods''. The Riverwalk facility does not propose a

marina or other access fronr boating traffic, but does provide walking access to thé river

"' The Foxwoods’ proposal presented two alternate scenarios for development of the waterfront depending
on whether it acquires riparian rights or not. Thus, should one plan not come to being, the alternative
scenario demonstrates planning te incorporate a waterfront entertainment destination into the plan.
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for the public, During its hearing, Riverwalk provided what in the Board’s opinion was

uncertain testimony as to whether it even had riparian rights at that site which would

permit access from the river.

The “quality of the facility” factor is one hard to quantify in any objective
formulation. As stated, each facility is unique and possesses state of the art design
techniques. In some respects, all of the projects are the same or similar in that a similar
number of slot machines will be housed within, parkiné garages will be incorporated and
restaurants and bars will serve patrons very similar drinks and foods, The Board
reviewed all aspects of the architectural Presentations and plans of alt facilities and after
careful consideration and evaluation has formed its choices that HSP and Philadelphia
Entertainment/Foxwoods proposed the best facilities for the Philadelphia area,

Given the five choices, the Board finds two proposals to be of a similar quality
which the Board finds should define the new casino industry and gaming establishments

in Philadelphia,  Those two proposals are HSP/Sugarhouse and Philadelphia

Entertainment/Foxwoods. In the Board’s opinion having weighed the record evidence,

these two proposals capture the essence of whét the Board finds to be right for
Philadelphia — the development of the Delaware Riverfront in 2 manner taking advantage

of sweeping views, €asy access from a major interstate and the river, all in an atmosphere

of upscale grandness,

C. Potential for New Job Creation and Economic Development
One of the objectives of the Act is to provide a significant new source of revenue
to the Commonwealth to Support property tax relief, wage tax reduction, economic

development opportunities and other similar initiatives, 4 Pa.C.S. §1102(3). The Act
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also provides that the Board may consider the potential for new job creation and
economic development which result from granting a license to an applicant. 4 Pa.C.S.
§1325(C)(2).

i. Revenue generation

Evidence produced during the hearing process demonstrated to the Board’s
satisfaction that the ﬁve proposals were relatively consistent in terms of the amount of

"revenue which would be realized once the casinos were developed and operating at

capacity. This is of concern to the Board because the success of the applicants in
generating revenues is directly related to the economic benefit to the Commonwealth
through the receipt of tax revenues for the l;eneﬁt of Pennsylvania citizens. The
Financial Suitability Task Force projected HSP/Sugarhouse; Keystone; PNK and
Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods at $310.8 million at 3,000 machines or $284 win
per;unit in a stabilized year and Riverwalk had estimated annual revenues of $418.1
million at 5,000 machines or $229 win position per unit in a stabilized year based upon
those applicants proposed 5,000 slot machines. The applicants’ own projections were
HSP/Sug'm];ou;e: $3.20.3 million annually and $292 win per unit; Keystone: $399.4
million annually and $365 win per unit; PNK: $338.7 million annually and $309 win per
unit; Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods: $338 million annually and $309 win per
unit; and Riverwalk: $378.1 million annually and $207 win per unit,

At first glance based upon the Task Force estimates, it appears that Riverwalk
will be more profitable than the other casinos. Based upon an examination of the
evidentiary records, the Board f{inds there is no significant difference in the révenue

estimates. Riverwalk’s revenue generation estimates were based upon an assumption
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that 5,000 machines would be operational by the stabilized year. The number of
machines is based upon that number for which financing was in place at the time of the
hearing. The other casino applicants’ projections were based upon 3,000 machines
because that is the number of machines in the committed-to phases of the building
projects. Each of those applicants provided credible testimony that they would proceed
to their subsequent expansion phase and increase up to 5,000 machines with Board
approval if the market supports that expan.sion. Even Riverwalk could not unilaterally
expand from 3,000 to 5,000 machines without Board approval. The Board must approve
that expansion based upon factors which can include the potential benefit to economic
development, employment and tourism, enhanced revenues to the Commonwealth and
other economic indicators it deems applicable in making its decision. See 4 PaC.s.
§1210. T'hus, the expansion for any applicant would be conditioned on the economic
viability of the expansion as deteﬁned by the Board. Although they have the financing
in place, if Riverwalk did not show usage and economic activity sufficient to support
2:000 additional machin'es, the Board would not be obligated to permit the expansion.
Likewise, if.another casino demonstrated that 3,000 machines were utilized to such an
extent that expansion was warranted, then market conditions would warrant an expansion
for their facility as well. In sum, market conditions will dictate the number of machines
over the 3,000 threshold number at any of the properties. This was illustrated by
testimony that more machines do not necessarily translate to more revenues if the market

demand is not present for the additional machines. Rather, a supply/demand balance

must be achieved so that enough machines are present to fulfill the public’s demand.
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Otherwise, the economic benefits to the operator suffer which could ultimately affect the
bei'leﬁts to the Commonwealth.

Keystone, recognizing as did all applicants, that one casino must be placed along
the Delaware River, introduced evidence in support of its proposal to support a
contention that having one casino on the riverfront and one (the Trump Street casino) in
North Philadelphia would create more revenue for the Commonwealth. The thought
- underlying this theory is that two casinos in the same vicinity will pull patrons from the
same close market area whereas the Trump Street site would complement the Delaware
River site and actually expand the geographic area from which the majority of patrons
for Philadelphia-casinos would amrive, thereby increasing the number of overall patrons
in the immediate geograpliical market. Trump Street submits that there are as many as
2.2 million more people in the geographic market if the two casinos are separated than if
the two casinos are both on the Delaware River.'?

) Trump Street’s argument does have a certain theoretical appeal ... if the casinos
and locations were equal and comparable. As discussed above, however, the Board ﬁgds_
based upon the evidence presented that the Trump Street Jocation is not equal to the
riverfront locations in terms of the desirability of its own location and the surrounding
neighborhood factors. Therefore, the Board is not convinced that the revenue generated
under this scenario would be greater by having Trump Street licensed than if there are

two casinos on the river,"”

** The Board notes that the Task Force projections did not find a difference in the revenue estimates based
upon the Trump location being different from the riverfront.

13 Keystone Redevelopment Partners also asserted that Trump Street would benefit from the “Trump”
name which is widely recognized. In light of the concems about location, the Board is not convinced that
the “Trump” name would overcome the significant disadvantages of the site location as outlined in this
discussion.
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ii. Creation of jobs

The Board finds credible evidence that each of the proposed projects would
create new jobs and economic development. Of course, the extent of the new jobs or
economic development is also related to the size and scope of the project and the
amenities provided. Whether the scope and use of those amenitics are fully realized
leading to the fulfillment of the projected job numbers is speculative based upon the
development of subsequent phases of the properties and the success of the facility and
amenities,

Likewise, each applicant represents that they are firly committed to hiring a
substantiql percentage of their employees from the local employment markets. ‘The

Board does not find any credible evidence that there appears to be any appreciable

difference between the applicants in this regard.

iii. Economic development

The Board also finds that each of the proposals will bring economic development

to their respective locales. The size and scope of the applicants’ economic commitments

to the initial phases of their projects being substantiall;( similar, ranging from $495
million for Riverwalk to $525.6 million for Foxwoods." Undoubtedly, any and all of
these projects would provide a significant economic boost to the Philadelphia labor
market beginning with the construction Phase and proceeding through opening.
Likewise, cach applicant provided substantial evidence that its respective project would

generate additional spin-off jobs based upon the need for additional restaurants in the

communities as well as to provide goods and services to those employed by the

" PNK did not provide a definile estimate of the project cost, but instead provided a range of costs which
are thought te be within this approximate range based upon the in formation which was provided.
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construction and casino trades. Thus, the Boatd clearly finds that economic developmet
both at the casino sites and in the nearby communities will be greatly enhanced by the
grant of a license. Except as expressed concerns about the Trump Street site, the Board is
unable to find that this economic benefit will be of greater significant in any one location
however and, therefore, does not credit any project with a superior edge over the others in
this regard.

The Board does find that, based upon the evidence, Pinnacle, PNK’s parenf
company, has engaged in a rapid expansion of its gaming positions since 2000 throughout
the United Stat;:s, as well as in South America and the Bahamas, to gain a strong position
in a national network of preminm gaming facilities and entertainment properties. The
evidentiary record establishes that Pinnacle cumently has several large development
projects pending in various stages of design or completion. The expansion projects of
Pinnacle, while a symbol of its success, also bring with it concemns of the Board.
Because Pinnacle is engaged in a number of other gaming acquisitions, expansions and
building projects elsewhere, the Board 'questiqns whether the resources are present to
provide the Philadelphia project with the degree of aftention that other aPplicants who are
not engaged in as much deveIOpmenf elsewhere could bring to the Philadelphia market
and whether Pinnacle would focus greatér éfforts at other properties which may be more
capital intensive or profitable than the Philadelphia location. While the Board has not
determined that Pinnacle lacks the ability to construct and operate the property, in a
comparative setting such as present for the award of these licenses, this is a factor

weighed by the Board'in its consideration of the economic development factor.
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The Board also notes that evidence was provided that Foxwoods possesses an
investment grade bond rating and is not engaging in the development of new properties
which will be competing against the Philadelphia site. The Board finds that this
information is reflective of the financial strength of the company and supports the
likelihood that Foxwoods has the ability to follow through on its commitments and
promises. Foxwoods brings a history of strong management ea-:perience as evidenced by
its Foxwoods’ Connecticut property with 7,400 slot machines and 350 table games and
other amenities, and which not only has developed into a major tourist destination and
gaming spot in the Northeast, but has become the largest gaming resort in the world,
hosting more than 45,000 visitors per day. The Board finds that Foxwoods’ financial
strength combined with its tremendous success in Foxwoods-Connecticut is a factor

weighing in favor of Philadelphia Entertainment/ Foxwoods’ economic development

benefits in Philadelphia.

iv. Atlantic City competition

Throughout the final hearing process, some Philadelphia applicants presented
evidence and answered questions of the Board Icor;lceming competition of Atlantic City
casinos and cross marketing given the proximity of Atlantic City to Philadelphia.
Specifically, one concem raised was whether, if a casino operator in Philadelphia also
owned a casino in Atlantic City, would that operator use the Philadelphia market to gain
patrons who would then be diverted to the Atlantic City property through promotional
marketing in order to gain advantage of the lower tax rate for the casino in Atlantic City.

In other words, the operator will obtain more profit from the same dollar gambled in
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Atlantic City than it will in Pennsylvania because of the much higher tax rate which the

operator must pay here.

The evidentiary record establishes that Keystone’s parent company, Trump
Resons, owns three Atlantic City casinos and that PNK’s parent company, Pinnacie, has
recently purchased the former Sands property in Atlantic City for development of a
casino, HSP/Sugarhouse, Rwerwalk and Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods do not
own or control any Atlantic City properties. The Board has comsidered the fact of
competing Atlantic City properties as a negative factor for licensure in Philadelphia.
While the Board believes that each.applicant desires to make a profi.t in Philadelphia if
granted a license, the Board also is cognizant of its duty to license casinos in Philadelphia
which are in the best interests of the Commonwealth and Philadelphia. The Board finds
it credible that owners of casinos in both locations may attempt to use the Philadelphia
property as a gambling-incubator to gain new customers who will then be Iured to its
Atlantic City properties where it can earn a much larger profit on every dollar gambled.
Li.kewise, the Board finds applicants without Atlantic City connections are more strongly
motivated to compete directly against the Atlantic City competition because they have no
intefest in diverting patrons to the casino which has a better tax structure for the casino.
Additionally, evidence has been introduced that the Trump Entertainment properties in
Atlantic City have undergone bankruptcy reorganizations in order to rebuild and
revitalize them. The Board believes this further supports its decision to choose other
applicants who do not have other facilities so close to Philadelphia which may lure
patrons to Atlantic City to assist in the rebuilding and revitalization of properties there.

Therefore, the Board finds that licensing casinos in Philadelphia which do not have
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common ownership with Atlantic City facilities are more likely to further the interests of
the Commonwealth and the public which stands to benefit through increased revenues
obtained by the Pennsylvania propetties,

V. Community and other commitments

Each applicant made various commitments and promises to the communities
served. These commitments typically are promises to provide funding for various
projects or services in the communities and are factors which the Board can consider both
in support of economic development, 4 Pa.C.S. §1325(c)(2), and to mitigate costs of
meeting the increased demand for public health care, child care, public transportation,
affordable housing and social services. 4 Pa.C.S. §1325(c)(9).

HSP/Sugarhouse commits to providing a charitable contribution cach year to the
Sugarhouse Foundation in an amount equal to 2! percent of its annual pre-lax income up

to an annual amount of $3 million.

- Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods has committed to hiring and training
local applicants to fill 955 of jts new Jobs at the facility, and to work with the
Philadelphia Oppo.rtum'ti&c Industrialization Center and Community Self Empowerment
Employment Programs for job training. They have committed to set up and fund a
Special Services District to mitigate impacts to those impacted by the casino, but no firm
funding arangement is in place, to utilize union labor in the construction of the project,

to fund the traffic improvements in Phase I and a fair share of the improvements

proposed for Phase 11, and to provide public access to the Delaware river at the Foxwoods

location.
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Finally and significantly, over 42% of the Foxwoods project is owned by
Washington Philadelphia Community Charities, LP. Foxwoods, through the Washington
Charities, commits that 42% of the profits of the Foxwoods Philadelphia project will be
used for charitable purposes with priority given to charities whose mission is to assist the
education and benefit of disadvantaged children. This amount is estimated to be
approximately $300 million over a ten year period.

Keystone/Trump Street has entered into a Community Benefits Agreement with
th‘e Tioga United and Allegheny West foundation which provides for an up-front $2.5
million contribution to the Community Development Foundation (CDF), to annually pay
between $1 million and $3.5 million to the CDF, to contribute $1.5 million to fund school
renovations, upgrades and scholarships; and to-endeavor to fill and maintain 75% of its
new jobs with impacted community residents and 90% of those jobs with Philadeiphia
residents,

_ PNK/Pinnacle has not made any binding commitments to fund any public or
;private entity if licensed. ‘PNK has stated it advised local citizen groups that it intends fo
be a good .corporate citizen including the participation in community and charitable
involvemeit in the markets and communities it serves. However, when asked during the
testimony of the November 15, 2006 final licensing hearing about community
commitments, a PNK representative stated that comrﬂunity commitments are something
you look at once you are open and profitable and then it is easier to put a number of it.

See 11/15/06 Transcript at pp. 144-45. Thus, community commitments, contrary to some

other applicants, did not exist in any quantifiable amount at the time of the hearing,.
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Riverwallkk committed to establishing a foundation and an equityu fund as vehicles
for funding programs to benefit local charities, community organizations and business

enterprises, The primary funding of these efforts comes from a commitment to donate

2.5% annually of Riverwalk’s profits up to $3 million per year and the Pennsylvania

Partnership Group’s commitment to irrevocably donate 20% of its net profits.”>

addition, Riverwalk, in connection with its lease of its property from the Penn’s Landing

Corporation, represents it has made other community commitments including funding

certain traffic study improvements, incremental costs of police protection as a result of

Riverwalk’s operations, costs of emergency services to support Riverwall’s operations,

funding approximately $2 million i fine arts improvements in conjunction with the
Philadelphia Arts Commission, and funding a special services district entity to mitigate

the adverse impact of Riverwalk’s operations on the surrounding community.

The Board finds that while ail community commitments are beneficial to the

surrounding communities and neighborhoods, the community commitment of

Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods is unsurpassed by any other applicant and weighs

greatly in favor of Foxwoods. The Board finds that the type of commitment made by

Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods to be an indicator that Foxwoods will be a

substantial and beneficial addition to the Philadelphia community,

¥ Given the proposed capitalization of Riverwalk Casino as provided in Riverwalk's
Board questions whether this commitment will be realized, Due to the subordinated mature of Pa
Partnership Group’s limited partnership interest, funds for the charitable contributions may not be available
until the retirement of prefermed equily interests, absent bomowing funds against future distribution.
Evidence established that this could be a five

Board™s satisfaction by clear and convincing evidence that the fundi

ing commitment will produce timely
benefits to the community in relation to the commitments of other applicants.

application, the
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D. Diversity Plans

Each of the applicants has presented a good faith plan to recruit, train and
upgrade diversity in all employment classifications. No evidence has been presented to
suggest that any applicant does not have the required, good-faith diversity plan or that it
has failed to support diversity in other business endedvors.

E. History of Developing Tourism Facilities Ancillary To Gaming

The five applicants each have varying degrees of success in developing tourism
facilities ancillary to gaminé

HSP/Sugarhouse, as a new entity has not previously developed tourism facilities
ancillary ‘to-gaming. Various principals of HSP, though, have extensive experience and
histories of developing and managing tourism facilities. Principal Neil Bloom has been
intimately involved in the devélopment of casinos and a resort in the Niagara Falls
region{ as'well as in real estate investment and development projects. Principal Daniel
Keating has extensive experience in-real estate development including construction of
casine resort locations.

Philadelphia Entertaioment/Foxwoods, through its Connecticut property has
developed three resort hotels and is in the process of building a fourth, and has
established entertainment and mefating venues at that site to provide amenitics besides
gaming. Additionally, with its American Indian heritage, the Mashantucket Pequot
Tribal Nation has built a $193 million Native American Museum and Research Center,
and sponsors an annual Native American festival.

Keystone/TrumpStreet as a new entity has not préviously developed tourism

facilities ancillary to gaming. Various principals of Keystone, including Trump
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Entertainment Resorts has developed or owns a number of tourist properties including

three Atlantic City casinos,

PNK/Pinnacle maintains, and the records supports, that its varjous gaming
properties provide a number of amenities including hotel and spa facilities, golf course
and entertainment venues which make the Pinnacle gaming facilities actual tourist

destinations and not simply gaming facilities,

Riverwalk is a new entity and therefore has no history of developing tourism
ancillary to gaming, However, Robert Earl, a principal in BHM Gaming Opportunities
(the general partner of the management company for Riverwalk) has extensive
e.perience in developing tourism facilities around the world involving restaurant and
show venues including the Hardrock Café and Planet Hollywood brands which are
known as tourist attractions around the world.

I. Record of Applicant in Meeting Community Commitments

The record of the applicant in meeting community commitments to Jocal

agencies, community-based organizations and employees in other locations is a factor

which the Board may consider in assessing and evaluating the applicants, 4 Pa,
C.3.§1325 (c)(8).

HSP/Sugarhouse as a new entity having no prior existence has no prior history
of meeting community commitments. HSP’s principals have produced evidence of
significant commitments, too voluminous to list, including to educational, social, civic
and charitable organizations including well over $20 miltion by the Bluhm family; by the

Falls Management Company of which Neil Bloom is Chairman; by Robert Potamkin
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which has through the Potamkin Foundation contributed over $12 million to charitable
causes; and by Daniel Keating, William Lamb, Peter DePaul and Richard Sprague.

Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods, as a ne'w entity, has no history of
meeting community commitments. The Tribal Nation however, has a substantial history
of providing for the community including $1 million to a Connecticut library, $10
million to the Smithsonian Institute, funds for a health clinic in Haiti, donations of
$750,000 to educational institutions, over $500,000 annually for the United Way and
other contributions for Special Olympics, Hurricane relief, and other charitable causes.

Keystone/TrumpStreet as a new entity has not met prior commitménts.
However, it has been the longstanding practice of Keystone’s Trump affiliates in Atlantic
.City to donate excess food to the At_lantic City Rescue Mission and the Atlantic City
Food Bank. In addition, the Trump organizations in Atlantic City are heavily involved
with the United Way of Atlantic County, soliciting contributions of time and money from
q}] levels of the organizations, and from the organizations themselves. In 2002, financial
'coptribu_tim_xs reached their peak, totaling approximately $710,000. Also, prior to the
issuance of a riverboat license to Trump Indiana, Inc., another Trump affiliate of
Keystone, a development agreement was negotiated and executed with the host
community, Gary, Indiana. Under the Indiana development agreement, Trump Indiana,
Inc. contributed approximately $1 million in schol"arships and endowments to local
organizations.

PNK/Pinnacle has established its position as a good corporate citizen and

supporter of the communities it serves. The Pirinacle brand has supported a variety of
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community events and has supported hurricane disaster relief efforts as well as children,

seniors, health and other charitable causes.

Riverwalk as a new entity has no history of meeting community commitments.
Individuals who possess ownership stakes in the project do have significant histories of
supporting communities and the education, social service and charities serving a variety
of communities. Willie F. Johnson, C. Patrick McKoy, John Tipton, Dennis Cook,
Robert Ear! and Douglas P. Teitelbaum have established themselves as individuals who
have not only given monetarily to educational institutions and funds, social service
agencics but also have given their time to establish and support these programs.

G. Potential Adverse Effects

As stated above, traffic concerns are the primary identifted adverse affect that
each project will bring to Philadelphia. While increases in traffic cannot be avoided,
their impact can be mitigated -through roadway and intersection modifications. The
assurance of such modifications will be addressed through conditions of the license
consistent with the input of the traffic and planning engineers who provided input to the
Board d;n'ing the licensing review and hearing process,

The Board also recognizes potential adverse effects of gaming in terms of
gambling addictions. This is an issue which will arise no matter who the licensee is or
where the project is located. Therefore, the Board believes the most appropriate way to
deal with this potential effect is through the strong enforcement of a compulsive

gambling plan to be established and monitored by the Board through conditions of

licensure,

-
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- Finally, in terms of potential adverse ‘effects, the Board notes the nature and
amount of public comment jn support and in opposition to the proposed projects.
Overall, the proportion of public support and opposition to the various projects was

relatively constant between the properties although the amount of public comment in

total was higher for Keystone/TrumpStreet and Philadelphia Entertainment/Foxwoods

projects. The overall quantity of cominent both oral and written was lower for the North
Delaware Avenue area,

The Board notes that the opposition groups and individuals can be divided into
two categories: those who oppose specific projects for identifiable reasons and those who
simply oppose gaming on moral grounds. The concems of the former groups are taken
into account by the Board with respect to the specific concems raised. As to the second
group, ie. those who simply oppose gaming, the Board is obligated to follow’ the
mandates of the Act which directs the establishment of gaming facilities. The General
stembly has, through: the enactment of the Pennsylvania Race Horse Development and
Gaming Act, already established the policy in this Commonwealth that gaming
establishments, as outlined in the Act, will be licensed. Included within this mandate is
the establishment of two facilities in"the city of first class, Philadelphia. The Board’s
duty is to award those two licenses to two applicants if it finds, in its sole discretion, that
the applicants are eligible and suitable under the criteria of the Act. The Board will not
and indeed cannot countermand the intent and will of the General Assembly by refusing
to issue licenses based upon those who oppose the spirit of the validly enacted statute.

As to those members of the public who opposed specific projects for other

specified reasons, the majority of reasons included the affects of traffic and the proximity
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of the projects to neighborhoods. The Board cannot eliminate traffic and cannat avoid
all impacts on the local neighborhoods. The Board finds, however, that those adverse
effects can be minimized through roadway improvements and site selections which
provide buffers from residential areas, while at the same’time providing substantial
benefits for the community in terms of Jobs, infrastructure improvements and infusions
of monies ‘to social needs. This is the case with respect to the Foxwoods and Trump
Street projects.'® As noted above, the Board finds that Interstate 95 provides a buffer to
the neighborhoods. Trump Street does not benefit from such an advantage with respect
to separation from the neighborhoods. Likewise, the substantial community
commi}ments of Foxwoods will provide tremendous benefit the neighborhood
communities, In sum, the Board believes based upon the evidence presented that a
balance can be achieved in which the benefits to the public obtained through the gaming
industry will offset and compensate for any negative effects,

H. Record of Applicant in Complying With Employment and Wage

Laws

The Board has not been presented with any c;ediblc evidence demonstrating any
significant difference among the applicants with respect to the applicants’ records
regarding compliance with Federal, State and local discrimination, wage and hour,
disability and occupational and environmental health and safety laws; State and local
labor relations and employment laws, or the applicants’ records in dealing with its
employees and their representatives at other locations. See 4 Pa.C.S. §1325Q10)(11).

There being no evidence of record sufficient to establish that any one applicant is

" This also applies to the othier applicants but to a much lesser degree. Foxwoods and Trump Strect, as the
applicants gencrating the majority of public comment on the traffic issue are the focus of this discussion,

109
l446a



appreciably better as to this factor, the Board does not find that any applicant will fulfill
t.he requirements of these laws in any substantial or appreciably better manner than any
other applicant. Accordingly, this factor for consideration, while examined by the
Board, does not lead the Board to find that one applicant is more suitable for licensure
than another based upon these criteria.

| 8 Other Matters

The Board ajso notes that despite inquiry by the Board during the Riverwalk
hearing, the Board did not received clarification to its satisfaction as to the ownership
structure of Riverwalk or as to who had control of the Riverwalk project. Although the
ownership structure appeared to be sét up as 51% owned by local Philadelphians, many
of whom are minorities, and 49% owned by BHM Gaming Opportunities, it was not
clear to the Board that the group of Philadelphians actually had control over the
Riverwalk project. In fact, testimony appeared to establish that the 49% owner actually
l_zad control over the project and that the 51% minority ownership did not have ac;tive
. control to the degree originally presented to the Board. See Riverwalk hearing transcript
(11/13/06) at pp. 93-114. While there was minority ownership and purportedly to a
31% level, the evidence did riot demonstrate that that ownership brought with it control
as would be expected with a .51 % interests and therefore, the level of minority
ownership does not differentiate this project from the minority passive investor
ownership of other applicants.  As indicated in the findings of fact above, the contro}
over the day to day operations and many of the other decisions regarding the project was
held by an executive committee which was controlled by BHM Gaming Opportnities.

Because of this lack of clarity of ownership and control, the Board was not convinced
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